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OURBUSINESS AT A GLANCE

SSP IS A LEADING
OPERATOR OF FOOD

AND BEVERAGE OUTLETS
IN TRAVEL LOCATIONS,
PRINCIPALLY AIRPORTS
AND RAILWAY STATIONS.

All of our outlets, from quick service to fine dining, are
developed or tailored to be run in high-volume travel
locations to meet the evolving needs of our customers
and our clients.

Our people are the heart of our business. Our colleagues
around the world demonstrate knowledge, passion and
the highest possible standards in everything they do.

Prior to the onset of Covid-19, we had a very strong
track record of delivering profit growth since our IPO
in 2014.

Performance since IPO

Revenue (actual currency - £m) 2020 performamce
Jrone has been significantly
23791 S2bes +0.0% impacted by Covid-19
18329 3 +195% 0 "7 i with the almost total
- we Shutdown of the
. global travel market
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 n Apﬂl and May aﬂd d
very slow and erratic
Underlying operating profit/(loss)* (actual currency - £m) recovery thereafter
221.1
L e gs2 g
97.4 : +34.2%
N
2117
-195.7%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

*Stated on a Pro forma IAS 17 underlying basis. Refer to section on Alternative
Performance Measures (APMs) on page 31 for further details
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WE ARE THE FOOD TRAVEL EXPERTS

To be the best part of a customer's journey
by providing delicious food and drink for
people who are on the move.

To be the leading food and beverage operator
in travel locations worldwide, delivering for
all of our stakeholders.

We are one team...

warking together and sharing
our best ideas to fulfil our
global potential.

We areresults focussed...
delivering great food and service
for our customers and outstanding
results for our colleagues,
shareholders and clients.

We all make a difference...
respecting each other, acting
responsibly and being accountable
for the contributions that we make.

550+
brands

600+
sites

2,700+
units’

35
countries

*Trading or temporarily closed as atyear end

We are bold...
seizing opportunities, innovating
and quickly adapting every day.

We celebrate success...
recognising andvaluing
everyone's achievements.

@ North America: 19%*

@ UK (including Republic of Ireland): 30%*
@ Continental Europe: 37%*

@ Restof the World: 14%*

*Percentage of Group totalrevenuein 2019



02 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2020

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The strength of the
business model, our
portfolio of long-
term contracts and
attractive brands,
and our highly skilled
team leave SSP well
placed to capitalise
ontherecavery.

Decisive action to protect the business through the pandemic

Covid-19 has had an unprecedented impact on SSP and the wider travel industry. Fromthe
outset, we took rapid and decisive action to protect the health and safety of our teams and
our customers, aswell asto protect the business by reducing operating costs, minimising cash
usage andraising additional liquidity, toenable it to trade through a prolongedrecovery.

Our strategic priority, inthis period of great uncertainty, has beento establishaleanand
flexible organisation, whilst retaining the capability to reopen our outlets and rebound rapidly
asthetravelsectorreopens. The strength of the business model, our partfolio of long-term
contracts andattractive brands, and our highly skilled team leave SSP well placed to capitalise
ontherecovery.

Outstanding commitment from an experienced and dedicated team

Onbehalf of the Board, lwould like to take this opportunity to thank our teams around the
worldfor their support. The action takento protect the business and prepare for our re-
launch has been achieved thaugh the commitment and focus of all our dedicated colleagues.
Significant sacrifices have been made by those who have left the organisationand those
whaohave worked tirelessly to protect it. It remains our intention to re-open units quickly as
demandfor travelreturns and welcome colleagues back to SSP.

Dividends

After delivering five years of 22% average dividend growth per annum, the impact of the
pandemic hasresulted in the business making a loss for the year. As such, no full year dividend
willbe paid for the 2020 financial year.

Corporate Governance and the Board

Our strategy is underpinned by acommitment to a high standard of corporate governance,
and the members of the Board are responsible for ensuring we do so. We bring a diverse range
of skills and experience to sit alongside that of the Executive Committee. We regularly review
the Board composition to ensure we have the right balance of individuals with the right set

of skills, and this past year we made two additional appointments to strengthen the Board.
Judy Vezmar joined on 1 August and brings strong expertise in the field of data and analytics.
TimlLodgejoinedon 1 October, bringing a wealth of financial expertise, aswell as experience
inthefood and beverage industry. I look forwardto working with them and would like to thank
allBoardmembers for their valuable contributions and oversight throughout the past year,
especially as we've navigated the challenges brought about by the pandemic.

Corporate Responsibility

Having engaged with our stakeholders to better understand their expectations, we have
re-launched our Corporate Respansibility strategy this year focussing on those areas where
SSP canhave the greatest pasitive impact. Our principal focus will be on our people and
communities, the food and drink we serve, and our impact onthe planet. This programme will
be spearheaded by the Group CEO, with oversight from the Board. Further informationon
the progresswe've made in the past year and our future focus can be foundinthe Carporate
Respansibility Repart, and | would like recognise our teams who donated food and their own
time to support local relief efforts during the crisis.

Looking to the future

This hasbeenanextraordinary year for our business, but | am confident that we have taken
allthe necessary actions to ensure we weather this stormand put the business ina position
of strength as we prepare for arecavery. The first half of this new financial year is expected
toremain challenging, but looking into our second half and towards the summer, we expect
toseeanincrease inpassenger numbers, and we will be ready to serve them. Longer term,
we remain confident that the travel market will recover, and as we continue to strengthen
our competitive position, we will return to delivering long-term sustainable growth for all of
our stakeholders.

Mike Clasper

Chairman
16 December 2020
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Our teams all around
the world haverisen
to the challenge and
demonstrated their
professionalism,
resilience, team
spirit and‘cando
attitude every
single day. We have
strengthened our
competitive
advantages, and

we areinastrong
position torebound
as travelrecovers.

Overview

My first full year as CEO of SSP has seen bath significant challenges and also considerable
learnings. We have worked decisively and flexibly to address the impact of the pandemic.

At the outset of the crisis, we took a cautious approachto the timing of the recavery.

We assumed it would be prolonged, and therefore proactively planned our actions accordingly.
We immediately raised additional liquidity and hibernated our units, whilst developing a

more flexible operating model that has enabled us toreopen in line with demand. Our teams
allaroundthe world have risento the challenge and demonstrated their professionalism,
resilience, team spirit and'can do'attitude every single day. We have strengthened our
competitive advantages, andwe are ina strong position torebound as travelrecovers.

lwould like to personally thank my Executive team for their support and tenacity.

Our response to the crisis and preparing for the future

When the virus first emerged, our immediate priorities were to ensure the health and
safety of our calleagues and protect our business. We temporarily closed the majority of
our units, furloughing team members where schemes existed, and engaged with our clients
torenegotiate rents. We alsoreduceddiscretionary spend and capex to the minimum.

Our relentless focus on cash control has enabled us to minimise cash outflows and with
liquidity of more than £500m at the year end ,we have considerable headroomto trade
throughthecrisis.

After anear shutdown in April, demand gradually started to increase led by domestic rail and
air leisure travel. We responded quickly, reopening units systematically and profitably, and

by the end of the year, we had more than one third of our units open. During the pandemic,

we have looked to strengthen our relationships with our clients and have evolved our offer to
meet the needs of our customers. As the market recovers, we will be ready to reopen the rest
of our estate profitably, to re-hire our people and to provide food and beverages to travellers
around the world. With the benefit of all that we have learned through this crisis, we will start
toexpandthebusiness again.

Our People

Our people are at the heart of our business, andhave been hugely impressed by how they've
brought our values to life and the commitment they've shown throughout this challenging
year. Our colleagues have worked tirelessly to help protect the business and have made many
sacrifices, anddlike to thank them for their dedication. Id also like to acknowledge the strong
leadership shown by our Regional CEOs and their management teams who have beenintegral
todelivering our plans.Regrettably, due to the crisis, we've had to take some very tough
decisions, including the need to make colleagues redundant, but it remains our intention that
whenwe reopen our units we can welcome our colleagues back soon.

Corporate Responsibility

We have also taken the opportunity during this crisis to consult with stakeholders to
understandhow their priorities have evolved through the pandemic, and it's evident that
the social elements, including engaging with our people, diversity and inclusion, and health
andwellbeing are all areas of increased importance. As aresult, we have refocused our
approach, prioritising these and other key areas, such as sustainable packaging, food waste
andresponsible sourcing. Thisis anarealam personally leading, and which Ifeel strongly will
underpin our sustainable growth in the years to come.

Outlook

Whilst we expect passenger numbers to remain subdued over the winter, we are optimistic
that, alongside good progress with the vaccination programme, we will start to see arecovery
inthetravel sector lead by domestic demand and international leisure travel mare broadly.
We areready torespond quickly. The actions we have taken and continue to take torebuild the
business and strengthen our competitive advantages will position us to capitalise on future
market opportunities.

S Salli-

Simon Smith
Chief Executive Officer

16 December 2020
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OURMARKETPLACE

The global travel food and beverage market

We estimate that our core market, comprising food and beverage (F&B)
sales in airports and railway stations, was valued at approximately
£23bnin 2019. Ours is a very fragmented market, with only a small number
of large players operating on a global level, of which we are one. Many of
our competitors are small local operators.

What key channels and geographies

do we focus on?

In 2020, 60% of our revenue came from air,
whilst the rail sector accounted for 33%.

7% 60% Inthe Rail sector, passengers in our

key European markets (UK, France and
Germany) were estimated to total 6bn

in 2019.Prior to Covid-19, passenger
numbers within these countries had
increased at anaverage annual rate of
c.2%since 2013, with moderate growth
forecast to continue in the medium term’.

Rail sector

We believe the following factors will drive
continued growthinpassengers and the
food and beverage market in particular:

2019 2020

(%) (%)

® Airsector 64 60
© Rail sector 31 33
® Other 5 7

We operate across 35 markets, whichwe
group into four key divisions: 1) UK (UK and
the Republic of Ireland); 2) Continental
Europe (DACH, Frabel, Netherlands,

Spain and the Nordics); 3) North America
(USA and Canada) and 4) Rest of the World
(EasternEurope, India, Asia Pac, Middle East
and South America). The split of revenue
betweenthese markets is as follows:

29%

*ORR; Eurostat(2019)

Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, air
passenger growthwas forecast to
increase at 4% per annum, according
to Airport Council International (ACI)’,
reachingmore than double the 8.8bn
passengers (2018) by 2037

We are confident that once the market
recovers, there will continue tobe
growthin passengers and spend onfood
andbeverage, andthis growth willbe
underpinned by anumber of key trends,
as follows:

2019 2020

(%) (%)

® UK 30 29
@ Continental Europe 37 39
® North America 19 19
@ Rest of the World 14 13

*ACl World Traffic Forecast (2019)
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"Demand for our services will rebound and
we are well-placed to deliver for all our
stakeholders as the travel sector recovers’

Simon Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Continued investment in track
expansion, especially in high-speed
rail networks

Destination station development
strategies - improving retail, leisure
and business offerings

Infrastructure investments in
developing countries

Governments seeking to encourage
passengers to switch fromroad
torailtransport toreduce road
congestion and to address
environmental concerns

Globalisation of business and leisure

Rising disposable incomes,
especially in developing markets

Growth of short haul travel and
low-cost carriers

Infrastructure investments in
developing markets

Increased level of security and dwell
time at airports

Greater focus on non-aeronautical
revenues by airparts

Reduced food and beverage service
onboard

Covid-19 impact on SSP

The Covid-19 outbreak and the strict
restrictions put in place to limit the
spread of the virus ledto an almost
total shutdown of the travel market
worldwide. By April, we were forced
to close the majority of our units
inrespanse to the dramatic fall in
passenger numbers, with only around
10% openduring this time. As aresult,
Group sales dropped to-95% in April
andMay, recovering very slightly to
-90%inJune.

Throughout the summer, restrictions
eased somewnhat, people went back ta
work (and back onto trains) and there
was arecovery inregional air travel,
especially in Europe and the UK during
the school holiday season. Inrespanse,
we were able to apenmore units to
capitalise on the increase indemand,
and atthe end of September, sales
hadimproved to c-/6% of pre-Covid
levels, and we were operating
c.1,200units.

Since the end of September, however,
there has beenare-emergence of

the virus in many countries, and
restrictions have tightened. This again
hasimpacted demand inthe travel
sector, leading to aperiod of lower
sales andthe temporary re-closure of
anumber of units across the Group.

Our response

People and Communities

New H&S safety protocols created
and cascaded

Offices closed and colleagues
supported towork fromhome

Increased communication
to colleagues

Donations to food banks
and local hospitals; corporate
charity fundraising

Profit protection
Temporary closure of units

Colleagues furloughed globally
where schemes available although
redundancies have beennecessary

Rents renegotiated: lower/flexible
rentals, Minimum Annual Guarantees
(MAGs) waived

Salary reductions across senior
management, Executive Committee
andBoard

Careful interrogation of passenger
dataandan evolved flexible operating
model to enable us to reopen more
units at lower levels of sales

Liquidity

Raised over £550m of new liquidity via
March equity placing (E209m), access
to CCFF (£300m) and additional local
facilities (E44m)

Focus on minimising cash outflows:
tight working capital management,
capex programme on hold and
suspension of returns to shareholders

Afurther small placing in June, allowing
investors to reinvest 2019 final
dividends toretain cash in the business
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Our business model is focused on driving growth

by meeting the food and beverage needs of our
clients and customers in the complex and challenging
travel environment.

It is founded on five key elements, which have been key to creating value
for our stakeholders since IPO and have proved critical in helping us trade

through the Covid-19 crisis.

1

2

3

4

Leading.rnarket ——— > Food travel —8M8M8M8@M8 ™ — Long—ter;n client ——— > Localinsightand

relationships

positions

We have leading positions in
some of the most attractive
sectors of the travel food
and beverage market
thanks to our extensive
brand portfolio (comprising
our own brands and
bespoke concepts as well as
franchised local and global
brands - see next page) and
established management
and operational teams
across the 35 countries in
which we operate.

Our strong market presence has
allowedus toreaopen selectively
and profitably across many
locations, evenat lower levels of
sales, ensuring we continue to
serve our customers and clients.

expertise

We provide a compelling
proposition for both clients
and customers based on our
food travel expertise.

Thisincludes adeep
understanding of what our
customers are looking for
andanextensive of fering of
concepts tomeet these needs.
Managing high passenger
volumes and the complex
logistics that characterise
travel environmentsis an
essential element of our
business model.

These complexities include
longer operating hours, supply
chain and logistics constraints,
space limitations and peaks
andtroughs indemand.

Our understanding and ability
tomanage these complexities
allows us todeliver consistently
high quality food and beverage
of ferings that fulfilthe
requirements of clientsand
customers. This expertise has
allowedus to adapt toamore
flexible operating model to
mitigate the impact of Covid-19.

Our principal clients are

the owners and operators
of airports and railway
stations, but we also have a
small presence in motorway
service areas, hospitals and
shopping centres.

We have excellent, long-
standing relationships with
many of our clients and have
maintained high successrates
inretaining our contracts.

The strong, local relationships
we've established withour
clientshave beencriticalin
helpingus trade through the
Covid-19crisis, as we have
beenable tonegotiate more
favourablerent agreements,
whichin turnhas allowed us to
reopenmore of our units and
serve more customers.

international scale

We have a deep knowledge
of the individual markets in
which we operate, alongside
significant international
scale and expertise.

Astronglocal presence
enables us tounderstand local
customers'tastes andneeds, as
well as allowing us to maintain
close relationships with clients
andbrand partners by creating
a'sense of place'inthe locations
wherewe operate.

Ourinternationalreachenables
us to benefit fromeconomies
of scalewith regardto central
functionsandsystems, as
wellas sharingbest practice
across regions, countries and
sites. This sharing of best
practice has beenparticularly
relevant inhelping accelerate
our reopening programme and
roll-out of technology across
the Group.

B
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5.
Experienced
management team

We have highly experienced
colleagues with a broad
range of expertise across
the food and beverage,
travel and retail industries.

We employ dedicatedteams

of senior managers focused on
business development, sales,
marketing and operations, who
waork closely withour clients
toensuretheir requirements
aremet. Theyare supported
by experienced, locally based
operational teamswhohave
atrackrecordof delivering
operational excellenceand great
customer service.

Regrettably, this yearwe'vehad
totakeanumber of very difficult
decisions to protect our business
inresponse to Covid-19, including
making many roles redundant
across the organisation. However,
asfaraspossible, we haveaimed
toretainourlongest-serving
andmosthighly skilled talent
inanticipation of the recovery,
sothatwearewell placedto
reboundand mobilise quickly
whendemandreturns.

We have more than 550 brands in our portfolio,
from well-known grab & go sandwich shops and
cafes to bespoke high end bars and restaurants,
which means we canrespond to the specific needs
of passengers as they travel around the world.

This large selection of brands helps us win and retain contracts, as it gives
clients confidence in our ability to cater to their customers with a great
selection of food and drink options. We differentiate our brands between
those we franchise and those we've created.

Brands we franchise

Local hero brands

Brands we've created

Our own brands

Bringing inwell-known local brands is one of
thebestwaystoevake the true atmosphere
of the city that the travelhub serves.

LEON

NATURALLY FAST FOOC

Brioche
Dorée

CRUSeH oserwers @

wahlburgers

International brands

We have been creating and running our own
brands fornearly 60 years, startingwith Upper
Crust, first established inthe 1960s.

—— COMPTOIR
- - COOKIES

RITAZIA ’mgﬁﬂ

MICASH

- BURRITOS

Bespoke concepts

Over many decades, we have partnered
with some of the world's biggest names,
whichtrust us to serve their customers

tothehighest standards.

L
SIMPLY FOOD E“T&g Iﬁ"‘é

JAMIE'S DELI . %
[

We are experts at developing bespoke
concepts whichwe have createdin
collaborationwith clients, brand partners
and leading chefstobringa 'sense of place’
tothe locationwe serve.

UHIOE Eg:"l:!?slp:];l’ %L pay sﬂ

WINE &VIEW
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OURSTRATEGICPRIORITIES

Building on our competitive advantages torestore
the business to growth

As aresult of the dramatic impact of Covid-19 on the travel sector, we have
taken decisive action to protect our business, whilst at the same time, we
have worked to develop our competitive advantages so that we are in the
best possible position to succeed when the market recovers. Our strategic
priorities will evolve as the business recovers, ensuring we deliver strong and
sustainable growth for the benefit of our stakeholders.

Organic growth

Cost efficiencies

Selective M&A

Focus onreturns

£23bnmarket and growing Multiple levers Strong track record Disciplined capital allocation
More space dedicatedto F&B Culturally embedded Disciplined ROI Balance sheet efficiency
Market leading positions Technology and automation Strategic fit Returns to shareholders

International scale,
local expertise

Delivering better quality, more sustainable long term growth

Since IPO, this has been supported by our five lever framework to deliver growth and efficiencies

1. Optimise our offer
to benefit from the
positive trends in
the travel market

2. Grow profitable
new space

3. Optimise gross
margin and leverage
scale benefits

4.Runan
efficient and
effective business

5. Optimise
investment using
best practice and
shared resource

We aim touse our broad
portfolioof brands and
retailing skills to drive
profitable like-for-like
sales, ensuring that we
maximise the benefit
from the positive trends
inthese travel markets.

The travel food and
beverage market in
airports andrailway
stationsis characterised
by long-term structural
growth. It offers
excellent opportunities
forustoexpand
our business across
theglobe.

Key areas of focus
includerange and
reciperationalisation,

procurement disciplines,

and themanagement of
waste andlosses.

We have amulti-year
programme of initiatives
toimprove operating
efficlency, whichhas
beenimportant to
the Group giventhe
historical backdrop
of ongoing labour
costinflation.

We continue to look at
how we canreduce cost
anddrive simpler, more

efficlent processes.
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Our strategic response to Covid-19

The impact of Covid-19 onour business
hasrequired us to streamline our
operations andrebuild our fundamentals.
Having protected the business during
theworst part of the crisis, our strategic
focusisnow torestore SSP to growth
andpositionus for future successasa
strengthenedbusiness, which will deliver
long-term sustainable growth for all

our stakeholders.

SSP’s purpose
‘to be the best part of a
customer’s journey by

providing delicious food and
drink for those on the move'

v

We've categorised our strategic
response to Covid-19 in three phases:

The first phase - Protection - covers
the springand early summer of 2020,
when the virus first took hold and
spread rapidly around the world.
Thisresultedinstrict government
restrictions which led toasharpfall
inpassenger numbers andrevenue,
leading us to take all the necessary
measures to protect our business
fromthe crisis.

The second - Recovery -reflects the
period from summer onwards, aswe
started to take the actions needed
toputusinthe strongest positionto
benefit fromaneventualrecavery.

The final phase - Sustainable
Growth - characterises the period of
sustainedrecovery and the steps we
will putin place to ensure we return to
delivering sustainable growth tothe
benefit of all our stakeholders.

v

Protection Recovery Sustainable Growth
Priorities Priorities Priorities
Ensure the health and Establishaleanbut |dentify market

safety of our teams
and customers

Reduce costs

Protect liquidity

flexible arganisation

Disciplinedreopening of
units using new model
Build agility andresilience

tomanage a prolonged
anderraticrecovery

growth opportunities

Build long-term
competitiveness and
customer relevance

Keep teams engaged
and motivated; retain
our talent

Embed CRfurther
within our
operations
Actions Actions Actions
Enhancedsafety Re-organised structures Optimise existing space

protocols communicated
andimplemented:;
colleagues enabled to
work fromhome

Agreed flexiblerents
with landlords

Closed units;
furloughed teams

Discretionary
spendand capex
reduced to minimum;
projects deferred

£550mnew liquidity
createdviaplacing
andloans

toright size the business
whilst retaining resource
toscale up quickly

Developed new unit
economics enablingusto
break even at lower levels
of sales

Protected/strengthened
liquidity whilst keeping
cashburntoaminimum

Acceleratedroll out
of IT, technology and
automationas enablers

Redefined Corporate
Responsibility (CR) and
People strategies

andreturnto growing
profitable new space

Further develop customer
propositiontomeet post-
Covid expectations

Optimise efficiency
andautomation

Highreturning and
selective reinvestment
and disciplined M&A

Deliver against our CRand
People strategies
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OURSTAKEHOLDERS

As aglobal business with operations in 35 countries, SSP has awide and diverse group of stakeholders, onwhomwe rely for our success.
We define our stakeholders as those whom we affect and those who affect us. We have identified eight stakeholder groups: colleagues,
customers, clients, shareholders, brand partners and suppliers, communities, non-governmental organisations, and government and
regulators. We review these stakeholder groups onaregular basis.

We are committed to engaging with our dif ferent stakeholder groups, so that they can better understand our business, and we, inturn, can
understandwhat isimportant to themand can then take their views and expectations into account when taking business decisions. This has
beenespecially important thisyear as we have navigated through the Covid-19 crisis.

The table below gives a summary of our stakeholder groups, their expectations or material concerns, and how we have engaged with them
throughout the year.

Who are they? Why do we engage? How have we engaged? Covid-19 impact
Our The peoplewho Asaserviceprovider, ourteamsare at the * Surveys * Internal comms programme
colleagues work at SSP heartof our business. Wewanttoensurethey « TownHall meetings significantly enhanced

aretreatedfairly, have the training they need
todotheirjobto the best of their ability and
the opportunity todevelop their careers.

More frequentonline
briefings forall colleagues
Collateral developedto
supportthose onfurlough

* Teambriefings
 Conferences
* Internalchannels

» Works councils
Akk * Supportprovidedto those
2 made redundant
Our The people whomwe Understanding customer needs and trends * Customer surveysand * Morevisible H&S information
customers serveatouroutlets enables us toprovide the choices they want; comments cards * Adaptingour offer tomeet
theirviewsalsohelpusensureourteamsare  « Feedback toour changingneeds

delivering the quality and servicetheyexpect.  customercareline

Implementing contactless
Onlinereviewsites order and pay methods

1,

Our The peoplewhorunthe Ourbusiness success is dependent on * Clientsurveys * Enhancedclient
clients travellocationswhereour retainingthe spacewe haveandwinningnew Regular emails/phone calls/ communications over actions
unitsarelocated spaceintravellocations worldwide. By better inpersonupdates led by our beingtaken
understanding our clients, we canmeetand localbusiness development  « Ongoingdiscussions toagree
aimto exceed their expectations. teams moreflexiblerentsand

CEQlevel'toptotop'meetings ~ opening/closingtimes

Our The people whoown Our shareholders ownourbusinessandaffect * Investorroadshows * Enhancedfrequency of
shareholders sharesinSSP Groupplc itsvalue. Werely ontheir support, and their + Regular phone and face-to- meetings onimpact of crisis
views areregularly discussed by our Board facemeetings andactions being taken
of Directors. * AGM * Additional engagement
@ regarding equity placing, ESG
andremuneration
Our brand Thepeoplewhotrustus  Wehavemany long-standingrelationshipswith ~ * Regular email/phone dialogue * Additional communication
partners and withtheirbrandsorwho  thisgroupandif we're successful, theyalso * Meetings todiscussunit closure and
suppliers provideourproductsand  benefit.Likewise,if wedon'tunderstandwhat Provision of training materials reopeningplans, agree new
services happens throughout our supply chain, this can onaspecific topic, for rangesinunits, and secure

carryarisk toourreputation. example, modernslavery more favourable payment

IT_] terms toprotect cashflow

Our Thepeoplewholivein Many of those in our communities are our * Charity partnerships * Enhancedefforts tosupport
communities those areaswherewe customersand ouremployees. It'simportant  « Programmes toget local charities, organisations
operate wereseenasagoodemployeranda disadvantagedpeople andhospitals with food
responsible business. intowork donations and other
2' « Foodand drink donations charitable contributions
NGOs Non-governmental UnderstandingNGO expectations has * Informaland formal « Continued ongoing
organisations who contributedto positive progress against correspondence engagement
provideexpertguidance  keyareas, suchas animal welfare and food
v.x O key areas of our waste. We take their views into account when

* sustainability strategy reviewing our sustainability strategy and
identifying commitments and KPIs.

Government Theregionaland Toshare our positiononpolicy areas which * Meetings « Additional engagement
and regulators nationalgovernments have the greatestimpactonourbusiness;to  « Correspondence (directlyandviatrade
andagencies whichset betterunderstand their priorities. associations) tocall
thelaws andpolicies forextrasupport
4B governingourbusiness forbusinessesinthe
E travelsector

More information on our stakeholders can be found throughout the Annual Report.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Each Director of the Board confirms that during the year under review, they have acted in the way they consider, in goad faith, would be most likely
topromote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as awhole, and in doing so, has had regard (amongst other matters) to:

* Thelikely consequences of any decisioninthe long term:
Theinterestsof the Company's employees;

Theneedtofoster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;
Theimpact of the Company's operations onthe community and the environment;
The desirability of the Company maintaining areputation for high standards of business conduct; and

* Theneedtoact fairly asbetweenmembers of the Company.

The principles underpinning Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act’) are embedded in the Board's decision making and the Board
recognises the importance of understanding the views of the Group's key stakeholders and having regard to those views inits discussions and
decision-making processes. A summary of the Group's key stakeholders, their expectations and how the Group has engaged with them is set out
onpage 10.Page 55 of the Corparate Governance Report sets out howthe Board engages and s kept informed of key stakeholder interests and
the below table provides examples of how stakeholder interests and the matters set out in Section 172 of the Act were considered inkey Board
discussions and decision-making inFY20.

Key

@ Long-term

@® Employees

@ Businessrelationships

March
Placing and
Subscription
o000

@ Communities and the environment
@ Reputation forhigh standards of business conduct
@ Actingfairly betweenshareholders

On 25March 2020, the Company announced the successful completion of the non pre-emptive placing and subscription by certain directors and
senior management foranaggregate of c. 86.5mnew ordinary shares inthe capital of the Company. Together, the placing and subscription raised
grossproceedsof £216.2m.

Inmaking its decision to approve the placingand subscription, the Board considered the purpose of the placing and subscriptionwhichwas to
strengthen the Company'sbalance sheet, working capital and liquidity positionduring a period of unprecedented disruptionin the global travel
market asaresult of the Covid-19 outbreak. Inmakingits decision, the Board considered the benefit of the placing and subscriptioninthe long
termand the need to protect the business, its colleagues, customers and partners as the Company dealt with the onset of Covid-19The nonpre-
emptive placing structure was chosen as it was aneffective way toraise funds both fromacost and time perspective. However, mindful of their
dutytoact fairly as between shareholders and of governance guidelines regarding non pre-emptive issues, members of the Board and the senior
management team consultedwith the Company's major institutional shareholders before approving the placing and subscription

Forfurther details of the placing and subscriptionsee page 8/.

June Placing,

On4 June 2020, the Company announced the successful completion of a further non-pre-emptive placing and subscription by certain directors

Subscription andsenior management andretail investors foranaggregate of c. 3.5mnew ordinary shares in the capital of the Company. Together, these

and Retail actionsraisedgross proceeds of approximately £11m.

Offer for Following the onset of Covid-19 and itsimpact onthe Company, the Directors andmembers of senior management engaged withregulators

re-investment and shareholders andassessed various options for the non-payment of the FY 19 Final Dividend £ 26.8m (approved at the Company's AGMin

of FY19 Final February 2020).However, inlight of the circumstances around the timing and shareholder approval of the FY19 final dividend, many of the

Dividend options provedtobeunachievable.

o000 Following further engagement with shareholders, lenders andregulators and with the continued aim of retaining cashwithinthe Group, the
Board approvedthe June Placing, Subscription and Retail Offer to allow investors entitled to the FY 19 Final Dividend payment an opportunity to
reinvest their cashdividendback inthe business. Inmaking this decision, the Board neededtobalance the interests of shareholders (who were
entitled tothe dividend), lenders (who were being asked to defer repayments and waive covenants) and the long terminterests of the Company
(andtherefore those of its colleagues, customers andbusiness partners). It was felt that the placing fairly balanced these interests. For further
details of the placing, subscriptionandretail offer see page 87.

Theproceedsallowedpart of the FY19Final Dividend payment to be effectively retainedin the business to further enhance the Company's cash
andliquidity position during the period of unprecedenteddisruptioninthe global travel market as aresult of the Covid-19 outbreak.

Appointment On 1 November 2019, the Company announced ts decision to appoint Mike Clasper to its Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director

of Mike Clasper andChairman designate. This followed a thorough search process conducted with external support as set out inthe Report onthe Nomination

as Independent
Non-Executive

Committee onpage 53.
Inmakingits decision, Mike's significant andrelevant experience, inparticular, deep expertise in the airport and aviation services industries

Director and following his time as Chief Executive of BAAplc and his experience as Chair and Board member of main market listed plcs was considered. It was
Chairman agreed that Mike's appointment would likely help the Company maintain areputation forhigh standards of business conduct and promote the
designate success of the Companyinthe long term, particularly givenMike's significant business experience and proven leadership track record.
000
Business On 1July 2020, the Company announcedits plans toreorganise the UK business toreflect the low level of UK passenger demand, and closure
restructuring of asubstantialnumber of units inthe UK resulting from the significant impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the travel industry and the Group's
process business. Thisledto the start of acollective consultation resultingin c. 5,000 roles becoming redundant fromwithin the head of fice and
Y UK operations.
Inmaking the difficult decision to approve the proposed reorganisation of the SSPUK business, the Board took into consideration the need
toprotect the business and to substantially strengthen the Group's financial positionin order to deliver long termsustainable growth for the
benefit of all its stakeholdersincluding its employees.
Covid-19 Astheimpact of Covid-19 became apparent, senior management and the Board recognised the need to take rapid and decisive action to protect
recovery thebusinessinthe short term. However, the Board were also clear that in order to protect the interests of the Company inthe long term (and those
trat of its colleagues), andto foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others, the Company needed to set aCovid-19
s.r.a.e%y. response strategy that not only dealt withimmediate protective steps, but which also set out the steps torecovery andareturnto the delivery of

sustainable growth. Indevising this strategy, the Boardwas mindful of the Company's role within the communities it operates in. For further details
of the agreed strategy see pages 8to9.
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At SSP we recognise the impact our business has on
others. Our social and environmental responsibilities
are integral to our business strategy, and we are
committed to playing a key role in addressing the
issues where we can make the greatest positive impact.

Thisyear has presented some unprecedented challenges inthe
implementation of many of our existing corporate responsibility (CR)
initiatives. The Covid-19 crisis has increased the level of activity on
issues like employee engagement and community partnerships as
our business and our teams responded directly to avery immediate
need brought on by the pandemic. In other CRareas, however, the
crisis had the opposite effect and meant that some established work
programmes had to be put onhold, notably onissues like plastic
reduction, energy efficiency and sustainable sourcing, due to the
fact that units were either closed or operating under very different
conditions to normal, as well as the fact many of our colleagues

were furloughed. As aresult, we have not made the progress we
would have hoped inmanaging some issues. Our CRreporting this
year is influenced by this trend, with more focus on People and
Community issues.

Inthe latter part of the year, we have taken the opportunity to
review our Corporate Responsibility strategy, acknowledging that
stakeholder expectations had evolved since our strategy was
originally created, and particularly inlight of the Covid-19 crisis.

We have gathered feedback fromkey stakeholders to understand in
greater depth how views and priorities have, or have not, changed.

Our key stakeholder groups include, amongst others, our colleagues,
our customers, our clients, suppliers and shareholders, as well as the
communities inwhichwe operate. Ourrecent research had helped
us tounderstandthat social issues nowhave increased importance
for our stakeholders. Within this, the wellbeing of people, diversity,
humanrights across the supply chainand corporate culture are all
particular areas of focus. Environmental issues, inparticular climate
change and plastics also remain key issues. For more information
about our wider engagement with stakeholders, please see page 10.

Reflecting our stakeholder views on social and environmental issues,
alongside our ownbusiness priorities, we have identified the issues
we believe are most material for our business and our stakeholders
(both now andinyears ahead) and where we believe we canmake the
biggest impact. These issues form the basis of our new CR framework
andare groupedunder three pillars: People and Communities, What
we serve,and Our planet.

We concluded that twoissues are so critical to the overall business
strategy that they should sit above and wrap round the CR strategy.
These are Safety (including colleague, customer and food safety) and
our People strategy.

Members of boththe Group Board and the Executive Committee have
definedresponsibility for each of our CRpolicies and commitments.
Inthe year ahead, our Group Executive Committee will lead the work
to agree the specificKPls, targets and actions which will sit below
each of our CRcommitments. Ongoing progress will be monitored

by the Group Executive Committee, withregular reportstothe

Group Board.

SSP is committed to @
supporting the UN Sustainable 55 ormen:
Development Goals GOALS

Specificgoals are signposted inthe relevant sections of this report.
More detalil, together withrelevant policies and additional case
studies, is available at www foodtravelexperts.com

Our revised Corporate Responsibility framework, as approved by our Group Board, is set out below:

©

Colleague engagement and wellbeing
Inclusion, diversity and humanrights
Community partnerships

Nutritional balance
Sustainable sourcing
Animal welfare

Protecting our planet

Single-use plastic
Foodwaste
Carbonfootprint

Underpinned by Group Safety Strategy and our People Strategy
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e People and Communities

People are at the very heart of our business, and this pillar looks at
those directly employed by us or who work in our supply chain as
well as those living in the local communities in which we operate.

We strive to deliver anengaging, supportive and understanding
working environment for our colleagues, giving them the opportunity
todevelop their skills and build their careers inaninclusive, non-
discriminatory culture where they feel valued, respected and part of
the team. We are committed torespecting the humanrights of those
whowork forus, boththose directly employed by our business and
inour supply chain. We also aim to make a positive difference inour
communities around the world by supporting local initiatives.

Employee engagement

ey FEErery Related UN Sustainable
N Development Goals
ot

Our commitment

We value and respect our colleagues, caring for both their physical
andmental wellbeing. We work to create an environment where they
feelinformedand engaged andknow that we will support themto
develop their skills and achieve their full potential.

Our progress

Our Board and Executive team are committed to ensuring that
our colleagues are fully engaged with our business strategy and
objectives and understandthe contribution they make to this.
We have aregular programme of briefings, huddles, employee
conferences and news updates using anumber of different
channels - from face to face or virtual meeting to emails and
posters.Many of our markets have colleague forums or warks
councils ta give an opportunity for colleagues toraise any issues
or concerns they might have so that we can address them and
improve the colleague experience at SSP. We operate a European
Wark Councilwith the objective of providing timely and meaningful
information and a forum for consultation to enhance the social
dialogue with our European colleagues. The forum addresses
transnationalissues, which may affect employment, working
conditions and the interests of its employees.

One way inwhichwe listento our colleagues is through engagement
surveys. For example, this past year, SSPFinland conducted a
colleague satisfaction survey, which also gathered views onhow
they were being impacted by Covid-19. In our UK business, our
surveys have been focused on specificissues, for example, to
gather feedback andinput into designing our new head office
space, or tounderstand the views of colleagues returning to work
after furlough.

Following the launch of our new Group Values last year, the Board
agreed aprogramme of work to embedthe values into our core
business culture. Our HR teams held workshops across our markets
toensure that colleagues understood the new values and to listen
totheir feedback. Colleagues (initially head office and operations
management) were introduced to the values and supporting
behaviours andtook part infacilitated activities to talk through
eachvalue and discuss what we should Stop/Start/Continue to
support the values. Everyone who attended was asked to make
their own personal commitment to living the values with follow up
inregular team meetings to agree team commitments and action
plans. We will continue towork to build awareness of the values and
integrate them into our business culture, for example, as part of
recognitionschemes and performance reviews. Our Group CEO has
kept the Board updated on the progress of the roll-out of our Group
Values during his monthly CEOreport.

During the latter part of the 2020 financial year, the Group
developedarevised People strategy, focused on retention,
engagement and development. This was presented to the Group
Executive Committee and Group Board following the yearend and is
currently being launched throughout the business. The engagement
mechanisms discussed here and in the Corporate Governance
Report will enhance the Board's ability to assess and monitor
culture throughout the Group.

Colleague engagement during
unprecedented times

Our Board and Group Executive team were clear that strong
colleague engagement should be our top priority during the
Covid-19 pandemic to ensure that colleagues had regular updates
onbusiness performance and any changes that were being made
to help them manage what has been an incredibly challenging
time for all. Our Group CEO Simon Smith and Regional CEOs have
ledregular leadership updates to our teams, across both our
management and operations populations. These are carried out as
interactive discussion sessions. We have also sought to maintain
regular team meetings and 1:1s for all colleagues, whether on
furlough or not, recognising the importance of continuing to stay
together as a team and keeping in touch with the business.

Our Group HR team created guidance materials to support
colleagues on specific issues they may be facing as a result of
the pandemic. Guides covered working from home, how to cope
with being furloughed, mental wellbeing, and leading a team
remotely. These resources were made available across all of our
global markets.

Forthose colleagues whose roles were regrettably made
redundant as aresult of the crisis, we created a bespoke package of
digital tools to give them support in finding new roles. The guidance
covered topics ranging from managing change and wellbeing, to
marketing yourself and how to improve your CV. This content is
available to colleagues even after they leave SSP.
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As part of our Board commitment to employee engagement, we

have appointed Per Utnegaard as SSP's designated Non-Executive
Director for employee engagement. Per's role focuses on ensuring
that we effectively engage with our colleagues, listen to their views
aswellas giving themthe opportunity to share feedback onthe
topics whichmatter most to our colleagues and which are key to our
business. Per willkeep the Board updated on these topics to ensure
that the Boardunderstands boththe views of colleagues and the
current culture within the Group. In addition, the Group CEOincludes a
people sectioninhis monthly CEO report to the Board which provides
anupdate onkey colleague related matters. Going forward, both
avenues of feedback into the Board will allow the Board to better take
intoaccount interests of colleagues as it develops business strategy
and takeskey strategic decisions.

inavariety of departments suchas T, Project Management,
Business Administration, and Finance. Degree apprenticeships
are also available with enrolments supported for recognised high
performing managers.

Inclusion, diversity and human rights

1 Per Utnegaard, Non-Executive Director
| Designated NED for Employee Engagement

Whilst much of the colleague engagement inFY 20 has been adapted
to the Covid-19 colleague experience, in the year ahead, we aim to
continue to strengthen our employee engagement activities with a
wider range of forums across all of our regions, giving colleagues at all
levels of seniority the opportunity to engage directly with our Board
and Executive team, both to learnmore about our business strategy
andto share theirown views with us.

Developing our people

We are committed to supporting our colleagues to develop their skills
and careers. The SSP Academy, our global online learning platform, is
at theheart of our learning and development strategy. The Academy
isavailable to colleagues in all our markets, in their language, and is
designedtohelp us support the development of our colleagues at all
levels, aswell as delivering corporate and high risk training content in
allmarkets. We continue to extend the range of training providedvia
the Academy.

As part of our Board commitment to develop high potential talent
withinthe business, during the year, we worked with Ashridge Hult
Business School to launch our new Global Leadership Programme.
The aim of the programme is to identify and develop high potential
talent to fulfil future larger leadership roles; to explore what great
leadership at SSP looks like now and in the future to ensure our
continued success; andto support our senior leaders to be successful
inanevolving and challenging world and to deliver for all of our
stakeholder groups. Early in 2020, we commenced our first cohort
of 20 delegates fromacross nine countries. Going forward, this
programme will also be reinfarced by a core curriculum of leadership
andbusiness skills far all colleagues.

We offer apprenticeship qualifications in many of our European
markets, including Germany, France, Greece, Norway and the UK.
These qualifications form akey part of our learning and development
strategy, giving our team members the opportunity to develop

their careers into junior managerial roles. In the UK, we increased

our apprenticeship portfolio and now offer over 13 different
apprenticeship programmes for our operations colleagues,

with further apprenticeships also available for head office staff

F9 Related UN Sustainable
gl Development Goals

Our commitment

We promote aninclusive, culture reflecting the diversity of our local
communities andthe customers we serve. We respect and protect
humanrights throughout our business and supply chain.

Our progress: Inclusion and diversity

Our Equality Policy outlines our expectationthat all our employees should
be treatedwithrespectandbe able towork inanenvironment inwhich
they canrealise their patential, free of harassment and discriminationin
any form.We provide trainingandguidance toall our colleagues toensure
theyunderstand and comply withthis policy. One of the ways inwhich

we measure the success of this approach is by monitoring the number of
womeninsenior management roles and onour Board. This year, we were
pleasedtowelcome Judy Vezmar as aNon-Executive Director who brings
awealthof valuable experience to our PLCBoard.

Aswell aslooking to promote diversity within our ownbusiness,

we also consider diversity as part of our business relationships.

SSP Americaworks to support minority businesses throughiits
netwark of joint venture partnerships and our participationinthe
Airport Minarity Advisory Council (AMAC), where members of the SSP
Americateamhave held leadership and advisoryroles.

Across the Group, fulland fair consideration is given to applications
foremployment from people with disabilities. We are committed to
supporting disabled employees, including employees who become
disabled during the course of their employment with the Group, with
regardto training, career development and promotion.

Employees by gender” () (J
'n' Male ﬂ Female
Board of Directors 71%(5) 29% (2)
L
Senior management 77% (49) 23%(15)
TrTreTY -
Allemployees 48% (10,446) 52%(11,352)

(TIETY

*Statsasat 30 September 2020. As at 16 December 2020, the Board of Directors
gender breakdown is 75% male and 25% female following the appointment of Tim
Lodge to the Boardon 1 October 2020.

The methodology for reporting Gender Diversity at a senior management level
hasbeenrevisedthis year to ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code. These figures are now based on SSP Group's submission to the Hampton
Alexander Report and comprises Senior Management (which is our Group Executive
Committee and Company Secretary as per the Code definition) and direct reports.
Thishasresultedinayear-on-year comparisonwhichis not ona like-for-like basis
andtherefore not reflective of the Group's approach to recruitment and progression
policies.See above and page 53 for details of such policies.
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Our progress: Humanrights

Our Supplier Code of Conduct and Human Rights Policy outlines our
commitment that the people working for SSP and within our supply
chainare tobe treated withrespect, and their health, safety and
basic humanrights must be protected and promoted. We require
that our suppliers comply with all relevant local and national laws and
aimtomeet the standards outlined in the Ethical Trading Initiative
Base Code, which SSPhas adopted as our international standard.
This applies across our global business. As at 1 February 2020, 85%
of our existing global suppliers (by value) had signed up to our policy,
andthe policy is part of the contract for allnewvendors.

Inorder to understand more about how our suppliers are managing
humanrights within their business, we require suppliers to share
ethical trade auditswithus, often using the Supplier Ethical Data
Exchange (SEDEX) platform. Going forward, we will continue towork
with our country management teams, in particular inthose countries
deemedtobe higher risk for ethical trade and modern slavery, to
ensure that they are able to assess therisks in their supply chainand,
where appropriate, work with suppliers to improve performance.

Inline withthe requirements of the 2015 Modern Slavery Act, we
also operate adue diligence process to ensure that modern slavery
risks are closely monitored within our business and supply chain.
Further detail on our approach is providedin our separate Modern
Slavery statement, available at www.foodtravelexperts.com.

Anti-bribery and anti-corruption, prevention of facilitation of tax
evasion, whistleblowing and fraud

SSPhas a Group-wide Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy

to comply withthe Bribery Act 2010, aswellas apolicy onthe
prevention of facilitation of taxevasion. We periodically review our
procedures (including due diligence onnew partners) toensure
continued effective compliance in its businesses around the world.

The Group's Whistleblowing Policy provides aframework to
encourage andgive all individuals working at all levels of the Group,
includingemployees, consultants and contractors, confidence to
‘blow the whistle'and report irregularities. Individuals are encouraged
toraise concerns with designated persons and/or through the
Country Whistleblowing Officer or confidential Group Helpline.

The Board (in conjunctionwith the Audit Committee) monitors

this policy and reviews the mattersreported andthe outcome of

any investigations.

The Audit Committee periodically reviews the Group's policies and
procedures for preventing and detecting fraud, its systems, controls
and policies for preventing bribery and for preventing the facilitation
of taxevasion, its code of corporate conduct and business ethics
and its policies for ensuring that the Group complies with relevant
regulatory and legal requirements. The Audit Committee receives
updates onbribery andfraudtrends and activity inthe business,

if any, with individual updates being given to the Audit Committee
asneeded.

Community partnerships

Our commitment

We support the communities inwhichwe operate through
partnershipswith charitable and other local organisations.

Our progress

Our Community Engagement Policy sets out our aims to make the
communities where we work better places to live and do business,
and encourage our colleagues to be involved with local communities
to their mutual benefit.

With operations in 35 countries, we are present inmany communities.
Our teams across the world have partnerships with awide range of
local and international charities, with each country team identifying
the charitable causes which are most relevant to their colleagues

and customers.

InNorth America, SSPhas an extensive community engagement
programme supparting awide range of charities, ranging from
children's hospitals and hospices ta charities supporting the
homeless. InIndia, our TFS teamworks with the K Corp Charitable
Foundationto support anumber of charities onprojects focused
onfood, nutritionand hunger inIndia. SSP units across the UK raise
funds for the SSP Foundation, a UK registered charity which makes
grants to support employee nominated charities in the communities
where SSP operates, as well as providing funding for projectsto
promote skills development for young peaple. In partnership with
the SSPFoundation, our SSPUK colleagues have been supporting
Macmillan Cancer Support since 2018. Colleagues put onregular
fundraising activities, ranging fromgreen-themedfancy dress events
toMacmillan Coffee Mornings. To date, the partnership has raised
over £6/0,000.

SSP UK donated 100,000
Millies Cookies to NHS workers

Supporting our local communities
during the pandemic

During some of the darkest days of the Covid-19 crisis earlier this
year, SSP teams recognised the importance of reaching out to
support key workers and those in need in their local communities.
One example was the donation of 100,000 freshly baked Millies
milk chocolate cookies to NHS workers, arranged thanks to
apartnership between SSP UK, Delice de France, Electrolux
Professional and London-based events caterer Food Show.

The sweet treats were distributed to hospitals across London and
the South East. SSP UK also gave away nearly £15,000 worth of
food that would have otherwise reached its expiry date to charities
and food banks across the country.

In India, our TFS joint venture partners K Hospitality served more
than one million meals to frontline workers and those in need
through their Karuna Seva initiative. This is inno small part to all
those who came forward to volunteer and the great work of NGOs
and the Maharashtra government, who also supported the project.

Group CEOQ, Simon Smith commented, “I'm so proud of the many
efforts our colleagues have made to support those who need it
most during these difficult times. From donating leftover stock
from closed units to food banks and sending out treats to hospitals
to cooking meals for the homeless, our teams have gone above and
beyond to make a difference to their local communities. Thank you
for everything you've done and all you continue to do.”
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m What we serve

We are passionate about providing quality products and services to
our customers and providing themwith the information and choice
they need to make balanced nutritional choices. We are committed
toensuring the sustainability of our product ingredients and our
supply chain.

Nutritional balance

LYW Related UN Sustainable
—'\'\/’ Development Goals

Our commitment

We provide customers with the information and the menu choices
theyneedto select healthy options andto satisfy awide range of
dietary needs.

Our progress

With such awide range of brands across so many markets, we know
that we are well-positionedto help customers to make healthy

food choices. We are committed to taking health and nutrition into
account whenwe design our product ranges and menus with the
objective of offering customers a choice which includes healthier
options, together with nutritional information about the products we
areserving.

Some of our brands, such as Haven and Camden food co., have

been specifically designedto focus on providing menus with strong
health credentials. These menus have anemphasis on fresh fruit
andvegetables, salads and smoothies, with many items vegan or
vegetarian. This year, we were delighted when our Haven unit in Oslo
airport was awarded second place in the Norwegian Championship
Healthy Fast Food category for its smoothie bowl.

InFebruary 2020, before the closure of many of our units due to the
Covid-19 crisis, we had plans in place for the rollout of a wider range
of healthy options acrass our key brands and markets, supportedby
improved communication and labelling to help our customers make
healthy choices. Unfortunately, the Covid-19 crisis meant that this
programme has to be put onhold as units were closed and ranges
reduced, which has impacted the level of choice available. As we
expand our ranges again, health and nutrition will be akey factor in
our new product development plans.

Sustainable sourcing

Related UN Sustainable
Development Goals

12% [ —
O |re | &

Our commitment

We source our products andingredients with due care for
the environment and the people involved intheir production
andmanufacture.

Our progress

Our Responsible Sourcing Palicy outlines the standards which
we expect our purchasing teams to implement when sourcing
ingredients for ourmenus. Our purchasing teams are trained on
the policy requirements and the policy is apart of all standard
vendor contracts.

Our global purchasing teams have been focusing on driving
improvement inthe sourcing of some of the ingredients core to our
business. One example is coffee, teaand hot chocolate, products
whichare care ta SSP'sranges worldwide. We are committed tousing
tea, coffee and hot chacolate produced in accordance with ethical
andsustainable standards, such as the Fairtrade or Rainforest
Alliance certification schemes. As of February 2020, /8% of the hot
beverages purchased for our proprietary brands were from certified
sources under schemes such as Fairtrade or Rainforest Alliance.

Our teams have also been working with suppliers to ensure that the
fishon our menus is fromwell-managed marine sources and that
the productswe serve only use sustainably sourced palm oil. We will
continue towork with suppliers to drive improvement inthese key
areasandit's our aimtostart reporting KPl datato demonstrate
our progress.

Animal welfare

Our commitment
We work with our suppliers to maintainhigh standards of animal
welfare across our global supply chain.

Our progress

Farmanimalwelfare is akey concernfor SSP, our customers and
other stakeholders. Our animal welfare commitments are integrated
into our Responsible Sourcing Policy and we set an expectation that
allglobal suppliers meet or exceed the standards within the Tive
Freedoms'cancept proposed by the Farm Animal Welfare Council.
We also publish a separate Farm Animal Welfare Policy which outlines
the standards we want suppliers towork towards. This policy has
beenextendedto cover all of our European markets andwe planto
conduct training for our purchasing teams to help themensure that
the policy isimplemented through our supply chain.

We have set specifictargets to drive performance improvement
ontwokey issuesrelated tothe welfare of chicken. Firstly, we have
setatarget that 100% of the shell eggs and liquid egg products
usedwithin our global proprietary brands should be from cage-free
sources by 2025 We are already making good progress towards this
abjective in core markets including Germany, Sweden, Norway and
the UK.
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Inorder to help improve the conditions for broiler chickens across
Europe, SSP has committedtowork with our supplierstomeet the
standards set out inthe Furopean Chicken Commitment (ECC) for
100% of the chicken meat we source for our proprietary brands
inEurope, by 2026 The ECCis aset of sixaspirational standards
that focus onatransition to breeds with better welfare outcomes,
increased living space, greater environmental enrichment and more
humane stunningmethods. Last year, our UK purchasing team had
started to work withkey suppliers on the implementation of this
commitment and this work will resume in the year ahead and extend
across our wider European operations.

We continue to take part in the Business Benchmark for Farm Animal
Welfare (BBFAW), the investar-led global measure of carporate
practice and performance on farmanimal welfare. Inthe 2019
Benchmark, we were pleased taimprove our ranking inthe Index.
BBFAW wrote to SSP commenting, “We are encouraged to see that
SSP Group plc has substantially improved its ranking in the 2019
Benchmark; this indicates that you have made notable improvements
inyour farm animal welfare management practices and reporting
over the past year."We will continue to work to strengthen our animal
welfare management practices and hope to further improve our
BBFAW ranking inthe years ahead.

Safety

Safetyis of paramount importance at SSP It is imperative that our
food is safe to eat andthe safety of our employees, customers and
the publicis protected. Our Group Safety programme monitors
safety practices and incidents inallregions against aset of key
safety performance indicators. These cover health and safety, food
safety and fire safety andinclude allemployees, temporary and
agency workers.

Toharmonise safety operations in all units, we have developed
aframework of minimum standards for our country operations.
These Global Safety Standards must be implemented across all
regions of operationandinadditionto any local legal, brand or client
requirements. The standards provide aframework of minimum
technical safety standards and arrangements for implementation
at country operational level. This includes self-audit and actions
templates, quarterly safety statistic reports and an escalation
process far serious safety incidents. Global Safety responsibilities
are defined at country, regionand Group level to ensure effective
implementation, support and monitoring of the Global Safety
Standards. Inorder to drive continued improvement, safety datais
reportedby all countries and reviewed by the Group Risk Committee
and Group Board.

This year, we have carried out areview of allergens standards within
the food safety part of the Global Safety Standards Self-Audit to
ensure compliance with the additional labelling requirements from
‘Natasha's Law'inthe UK.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, our health and safety procedures
have been strengthened with additional safety measures putinplace
andincreasedreporting to our Group Executive team and Board.
Additional training was provided for all country teams on steps to
take tokeep colleagues and customers safe, withregular updates
reflecting the latest public health messaging and advice. We have
provided team members with personal protective equipment and
introduced additional cleaning regimes to further protect colleague
and customer safety.

@ Protecting our planet

We are committed to responsibly managing the environmental
impact of our business, focusing on reducing the carbon intensity
of our operations and products, and the levels of waste generated.
Our Environmental Policy sets out our commitment to responsibly
manage the environmental impact of our business. Inthe majority
of our locations, we donot purchase utilities or services ourselves,
sowe continue towork with our clients to improve the quality of
environmental impact dataand look for ways to improve.

Carbon footprint

T¥ 3 Related UN Sustainable
@ Development Goals

Our commitment

We workto reduce the carbon footprint of our business, improving
the energy efficiency of our operations andreducing the carbon
intensity of our menus throughmore plant-based meals.

Our progress

Inrecentyears, we have hadan active programme in place to establish
aculture of good energy management withinour units, focusing
onembedding behavioural change and technological changes to
improve energy efficiency and thereby reduce the GHG emissions
fromour aperations. Changes have included the installation of LED
lighting and mini building management controls, suchaslast man
out’switches andtemperature controls. These initiatives have
beenrolled out across UK andkey European markets. This year, we
completed aminiLED project at a select number of UKM&S units,
withthe changes expectedto deliver year-on-year energy savings
of aver 14%. Energy efficiency is also akey cansiderationin our
capital projects investments as we look to introduce new equipment
that saves on both energy and maintenance. Our total energy
consumption this year was 285,176,022 kWh, whichrepresented
adecrease of 18.5% comparedto 2019 levels (349,945,716 kWh),
andwas primarily due to the fact that so many of our units had to be
closedforpart of theyear.

We continue to closely monitor the greenhouse gas emissions
associated with our operations, and thisdatais reportedinthe table
onthe next page. We have seen asignificant reduction in overall GHG
emissians this year; however, our measure of intensity (emissions per
f sales)isup 2/% year-on-year. Thisincrease is due to the fact that,
althoughmany of our units were closed, there was still a requirement
for certain services or equipment to remain on, for example, security
lighting, alarms, and refrigerators, whichmeant that a low level

of energy was stillused during this period. Inthe years ahead, we
willresume our work tareduce the greenhouse gas intensity of

our operations.

Inaddition tothis, we alsorecognise the impact that meat production
has onglobal GHG emissions, and we are committedtoplaying

our part inaddressing this issue through the promotion of more
plant-based menu options within our ranges. We know that many of
our customers are also looking for more meat-free options on our
menus, recognising that this can have both health and environmental
benefits.Inrecent years, we have responded to this trend with

the introduction of awider range of vegetarian and vegan options
across many of our brands and markets. Many of our ranges have
beenreduced torespond to trading conditions during the Covid-19
pandemic, whichhashad animpact on the level of choice available,
but, as we expand our ranges again, plant-based options willbe akey
factor inour newrange development.



18 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2020

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REPORT CONTINUED

Global greenhouse gas emissions data

2019 2020
Tonnes of Tonnes of
COze COze
Scope 1 emissions
Combustion of fuel
and operation of facilities 11,313 6,406
Scope 2 emissions
Electricity, heat, steam and cooling
purchased forownuse 102,132 71,552
Total 113,445 77958
Intensity measurement
Totalemissions reported above 4245 53.85
normalised grams per £ of turnover grams/£ grams/f

Scope and methodology

Wehave reportedonall the emission sourcesrequiredunder the Companies
Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors'Report)Regulations 2013 and 2018
These sources fall within the scope of our consolidated financial statements.
This data covers the continuing activities undertaken by our retailing
operations worldwide

Themethodology applied todatagathering and analysis is consistent with
the SECR (replacing guidance onMandatory Greenhouse Gas Reporting
(MGHG)) for Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions and the DEFRA Environmental
Reporting Guidelines. This submission meets minimum requirements relating
togas, electricity, and transport fuel as well as providing an intensityratioand
informationrelating to energy efficiency action.

Afulldocumentation of the methodology used, including collection of data
fromworldwide operations, exclusions of any non-material emission sources,
emissionfactors usedand assumptionsmade isavailable uponrequest.

Food waste

"7 Related UN Sustainable
[\, | Development Goals
w

Our commitment

We are cutting food waste at all stages of our business, and, wherever
possible, working to develop channels to ensure unsold food s
donatedto those who need it.

Our progress

We work to reduce food waste wherever we can within our operations.

Countrymanagement teams have targets around food waste
reduction, with performance tracked at unit, country and Group level.
Waste has beenaparticular focus aver the last sixmonths as our
teams have hadto adapt their operations inresponse to the Covid-19
crisis. Waste has been reduced by moving any perishable or unsold
ingredients and products from closed units and designing menus and
ranges carefully tominimise unsold food waste.

Oneway inwhichwe are looking ta reduce unsold food is through
partnerships with food markdown schemes, such as Too Good To Go
andKarma. These apps let customers know when food is available
tobe purchased at reduced prices, so that they can come in before
closing and take a'mystery'bag of food, which is going out of date
that day. We have beenusing these schemes across France, Norway,
Denmark and Germany and will ook for further opportunities to
extendinto the UK and other European markets.

Many of our country teams have partnerships with local charities so
that we canoffer them donations of any foods whichis unsold at the
end of the day. During the Covid-19 crisis these donations have been
more important thanever and our country teams have made great
effortstoreachout tothose inneed in their local communities and
donate what surplus food products they could.

Our team at Le Train Bleu
prepared food for those in need

Donating surplus food during the pandemic

During the pandemic, our global teams have been quick to reach
out to local charities to ensure that any surplus ingredients or food
products were donated to people in need. Our team at Le Train Bleu
in Gare de Lyon, Paris, teamed up with Restos du Coeur, a French
charity, which distributes food packages. Colleagues volunteered
their time and were able to use Le Train Bleu's kitchen to produce
meals for homeless people and others in need. Between 15 May
and 25 June 2020, Le Train Bleu prepared between 700 and

900 meals per day.

SSP Spain donated food to the Red Cross and other small, local
NGOs. This comprised anincredible 990 kg of fresh vegetables,
670kg of fresh fruit, 625 eggs, 835 yoghurts and nearly 135,000
pairs of gloves.

The SSP team at Ottawa airport teamed up with their local FOOD
SHARE outlet, which serves nearby Dundas and Mormont counties,
supporting those left without work or living on reduced wages.

The team donated around 300kg of fresh fruits and vegetables and
enough eggs, yogurt, juice and fruit to serve more than 300 people.
Meanwhile, at Seattle-Tacoma airport, we helped store food for a
local food bank in our commissary throughout the month of April,
as the charity was unable to accommodate all the donations in
their own facility.
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Single use plastic
Our commitment

We are replacing single-use plastic wherever we caninfavour of more
environmentally-responsible alternatives.

Our progress

We know that single-use plastic is amajor global environmentalissue
andakey concern for our stakeholders. We are committed to moving
away fromsingle-use plastic packaging wherever viable. All of our
markets globally have beentasked with developing aplanto da this,
starting with the removal of plastic straws and cutlery, identifying
alternative, more sustainable packaging materials, and also providing
incentives for our customers to use more reusable packaging, for
example, through the sale of reusable coffee cups and discounts for
customers who bring their own cups. In the majority of our European
markets, plastic cutlery, stirrers and straws have beenreplaced.

Our European teams have also made good progress towards
replacing PET salad containers, tumblers and similar items with those
made fromrecycled PET, which canitself berecycled after use.

Inmany markets, the Covid-19 pandemic has necessitated a
temporary move to use more single-use packaging as customers
and clients require more takeaway and disposable products. \We are
however committedto improving the sustainability of our packaging
andwill continue to focus onthis areaas Covidrestrictions lift.

Coo Sudlil

Simon Smith
Chief Executive Officer

16December 2020
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

Inaccordance with the requirements of section 414CB of the Companies Act 2006, the below table sets out where stakeholders
can find information relating to non-financial matters. Further information on some of these areas canbe found on our website
(https,//www.foodtravelexperts.com/international/).

Some of SSP’s Where to find out more about SSP’s

Environmental
matters
(including the
impact of the
Company's
business on the
environment)

relevant policies

* Environmental Policy

* Supplier Code of Conductand
Human Rights Policy

* Responsible Sourcing Policy
 Farm Animal Welfare Policy
* Whistleblowing Policy

Principalrisks relating to
these matters (pages 35 to 41)

3. Businessenvironmentand
geopoliticaluncertainty

11. Benefitsrealisation from
efficiency programmes

approach to these matters
Chairman'’s statement -
Corporateresponsibility

CEQ's statement -
Corporate responsibility

Our Stakeholders

Corporate Responsibility Report -
Whatweserve

Corporate Responsibility Report -
Protectingour planet

Financial review

Risk Management and Principal Risks

See page 2

See page 3

See page 10
See page 16

See page 17

See page 21
See pages 33-41

Employees

* Colleague Code of Conduct
* Equality Policy

* Global Safety Standards

* Whistleblowing Policy

6. Seniormanagement capability
andretention

9. Labourlawsandunionisation

Chairman's statement - Corporate
responsibility

CEQ's statement - Our people

Our Marketplace - People and
communities

Our Stakeholders - Our colleagues
S172(1)Statement

Corporate Responsibility Report -
People and communities

Corporate Responsibility Report - Safety

Risk Management and Principal Risks

See page 2

See page 3
See page 5

See page 10
Seepagell
See pages 13-15

See page 17
See pages 33-41

Social matters

» Community
Engagement Policy

4. Retentionof existing client
relationships

6. Seniormanagement capability
andretention

7. Regulatory compliance

8. Foodsafetyandproduct
compliance

12. Changing client behaviours

Chairman'’s statement - Corporate
responsibility

OurMarketplace -People and
communities

Our Stakeholders
S172(1) Statement

Corporate Responsibility Report -
People and communities

Corporate Responsibility Report -
Whatwe serve

Risk Management and Principal Risks

See page 2

See page 5

See page 10
See page 11
See pages 13-15

See pages 16-19

See pages 33-41

Respect for
humanrights

* Equality Policy

* Supplier Code of Conduct and
HumanRights Policy

* ModernSlavery Statement

* Whistleblowing Policy

7. Regulatory compliance
9. Labourlaws andunionisation

Corporate Responsibility Report -
People and communities

Risk Management and Principal Risks

See pages 13-15

See pages 33-41

Anti-corruption
and anti-bribery
and prevention
of facilitation
of tax evasion
matters

* Codeof Conduct

* Anti-Briberyand Anti-Corruption
Policy

* Whistleblowing Policy

* Prevention of facilitation of Tax
EvasionPolicy

7. Regulatory compliance

Corporate Responsibility Report -
People and communities

Risk Management and Principal Risks

See pages 13-15

See pages 33-41

Business model

OurBusiness Model
Our Strategic Priorities
Risk Management and Principal Risks

See pages 6-7
See pages 8-9
See pages 33-41

Non-financial
KPls

3. Business environmentand
geopolitical uncertainty

8. Foodsafetyandproduct
compliance

9. Labourlaws andunionisation

Corporate Responsibility Report -
Employeesby gender

Corporate Responsibility Report -
Whatweserve

Corporate Responsibility Report -
Protectingour planet

Risk Management and Principal Risks

See pages 13-15

See page 16

See page 17

See pages 33-41

Principal risks

Risk Management and Principal Risks

See pages 33-41
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FINANCIALREVIEW

Jonathan Davies

Chief Financial Officer

We have responded rapidly to the pandemic,
raising additional liguidity and managing cash
flow very effectively.

Pro forma IAS 17 change
IFRS 16 IAS 17% IAS 17
2020 2020 2019 Constant
£m £m £m Reported currency LFL
Revenue 14331 1,433.1 27946 (48.7)% (47.9)% (50.8)%
Underlying operating (loss)/profit (315.4) (211.7) 2211 (195.7)% (195.7)%
Operating (loss)/profit (363.9) N/A 219.2 N/A

" Amounts are statedona proformaunderlying |AS 17 basis, further detail is provided on pages 31-32.

Group performance

Revenue decreasedby 4/9% on a constant currency basis,
comprising a like-for-like sales reduction of 50.8% offset by net
contract gains of 2.9%. At actual exchangerates, totalrevenuefell by
487%,to£1,433.1m.

The Group's strong sales performance during the early part of the
year hasbeen overshadowed by the very severe impact of Covid-19.
Prior to seeing the initial impact fromthe virus in China towards the
end of January, we had enjoyed agood start to the financial year, with
like-for-like sales growth of 1.2% during the first quarter, inline with
our expectations, despite anumber of externalheadwinds, including
theimpact of the BoeingMax /37 groundings, the slowdown in
Chinese passenger numbers, the failure of Jet Airways inIndiaand the
transport sector strikesinFrance.

Inthe second quarter, like-for-like sales decreased by 18.5%, with

the Group's performance impacted significantly by the development
of Covid-19. We began to see amaterial impact on trading in our

Asia Pacific region (which accounted for around 8% of group sales)
from the escalation of the virus during late January and throughout
February. Trading then deterioratedrapidly across the entire group
duringMarch as the impact of the pandemic spread across the world.
By the finalfew days of March, as lockdowns and travel restrictions
were implemented aroundthe world, like-for-like sales had decreased
by over 90% across all regions.

During the third quarter, with the global lockdowns continuing, like-
for-sales in April and May were approximately 95% below last year,
improving slightly to 90% lower in June.Helped by a limited return of
some short haulair travel over the summer holiday period, the fourth
quarter saw afurther gradual improvement in like-for-like sales,
whichwere around 80% lower than the prior year.

Priortothe onset of Covid-19, the Group had also made good
progress indelivering additional sales growth fromnet contract
gains, particularly inNorth Americaandin Continental Europe,
reporting net gains of 5./% for the first half. Furthermore, new
openings during the first half of 2020 andthose planned for the
second half were expectedtodrive significant further net gainsinthe
remainder of the year, which were expected tobe over 6% for the full
year, prior to Cavid-19. The new openings during the second quarter
included outletsin Australia and Germany following the acquisitions
of the Red Rock operations in Perth and Melbourne airports and the
StationFoodrail business in Germany. For the year as awhole, despite
theimpact of Covid-19 net gains added 2.9% to prior year sales.

Trading results fromoutside the UK are converted into Sterling at
the average exchangerates for the period. The overall impact of the
movermnent of foreign currencies onrevenue (principally the Euro,

US Dollar and pegged currencies, Norwegian Krone, Swedish Krona
and IndianRupee) during 2020 compared to the 2019 average was a
reduction of 0.8%.However, thisis solely a translation impact.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Underlying operating loss

Theunderlying operating loss for the yearwas £3154m.Onapro
formalAS 17 basis, the Group reported an underlying operating loss
of £211./m, compared to anequivalent profitof £221. Iminthe
prioryear.

For the first half year, we estimated that the loss of sales as aresult
of the rapid spread of Covid-19 was approximately £ 14/m (compared
toour pre-Covid forecasts), and that this impacted operating profit
by around £65m. The relatively high drop through on the sales lost
dueto Covid-19in this periodreflected the extreme speed with
which travel restrictions impacted our markets during March, limiting
our ability toreduce operating costs, particularly labour costs, at
very short notice and prior to the commencement of government
furlough support schemes, while we also suffered the impact of stock
write-offsas aresult of the rapid closure of most of our outlets latein
themonth.

For the second half year, the devastating and prolonged impact of
Covid-19 onour travel markets resulted ina much more significant
loss of sales, estimated at approximately £1,435m (down86%
year-on-year) compared to our internal pre-Covid forecast for the
period. The equivalent impact on second half underlying operating
profitonaprofarmalAS 17/ basis, was approximately £377/m, aprofit
conversion of around 26% onthe reduction in sales. This lower profit
conversiononthe lost sales comparedtoMarchreflected the speed
withwhichwe were able toreduce our operating costs during the
"hibernation”period in Apriland May, when around 90% of our units
were closed, and the systematic approach applied in re-opening our
outlets during the summer, in particular the selective opening of units
inmulti-unit locations, ensuring that we were able to trade profitably
even at lower levels of footfall. Our focus throughout this challenging
period has been onmaximising sales per passenger and ensuring
that any units re-opened were making a positive contribution to cash
profit. Looking forward, sales inthe first quarter of the new financial
year are expected toremain at similar levels to that seenin the final
quarter of the year, approximately 80% lower year-on-year, and

we are planning onthe basis that sales will remain at similar levels
during the second quarter. As a consequence, we expect the profit
conversionon the lost sales to remain in the region of 25%, reflecting
the actions takentoreduce our operating costs as well as continued
government furlough support, which has been extended thraughout
thefirst half inmany markets.

Operatingloss

Onareportedbasis, the operating loss was £ 363.9m, reflecting an
adjustment for the non-underlying operating items of £48.5mas
detailed onpage 31 anddescribed further below.

Non-underlying operating items

[tems which are not consideredreflective of the normal trading
performance of the business, and are exceptional because of their
size, nature or incidence, are treated as non-underlying operating
items and disclosed separately. In addition to arecurring adjustment
for the amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets of £1.9m
(2019 £1.9m), the non-underlying operating loss this year includes
items specifically relating to the impact of Cavid-19 on the business
amounting to£46.60m.

Thenon-underlying operating items that have arisenas adirect
consequence of Covid-19 are summarised below:

* Impairment of goodwill: as aresult of past acquisitions, andin
particular the acquisition of the SSPbusiness by EQT in 2006, the
Group holds a significant amount of goodwill onits consolidated
balance sheet. Thisis allocated onacountry level and tested
annually for impairment by comparing the value held by each
countrywiththe net present value of its expected future cash
flows. As aresult of Cavid-19, goodwill impairments totalling
£33 0mwereidentified, comprising write downs in Switzerland,
Germany and Singapore. Further details are providedinnote 13
onpage 124

* Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right of use
assets: the impact of Covid-19 onthe Group's operations is
expectedto continue during the current year andbeyond. As a
result, the Group has carried out areview for potential impairment
across the entire unit portfolio. The impairment review compared
the value-in-use of individual cash-generating units, based on
management's assumptions regarding future trading performance
(taking into account the effect of Covid-19), to the carrying values
at 30 September 2020, Following this review, a charge of £7/6.6m
has beenrecagnised, which includes animpairment of right of use
assetsof £38.2m.

* Accelerated depreciation: As aresult of areassessment of the
lease term of certainunits, accelerated depreciation of £6.2mhas
beenrecordedon fixed assets toalign their carrying value to their
expecteduseful economic life based ontherevised lease term.

* Restructuring costs: as aresult of the impact of Covid-19,
the Group hasrecogniseda charge of £22. /mrelating toits
restructuring programmes carried out across the group during the
second half of the year. The charge primarily relates to redundancy
costs. It alsoincludes some costsrelated to the exit from certain
contracts, most notably at Sheremetyevo Airport inRussia.

* IFRS 16rent credit: as part of its response to Covid-19, the Group
negotiatedrent waivers with clients totalling £91.9m. The Group
appliedthe practical expedient issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board as a part of the Amendment to IFRS
16 tarecordthis asareductioninrent expense and an exceptional
item within the Consolidated Income Statement.
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Regional performance
The following shows the Group's segmental perfarmance. For full details of our key reporting segments, please refer to note 4 onpage 115.
Proforma IAS 17 change
IFRS 16 IAS 17 IAS17
2020 2020 2019 Constant
£m £m £m Reported currency LFL

Revenue 410.1 4101 840.5 (51.2)% GL1)%  (51.2)%
Underlying operating (loss)/profit (28.7) (12.4) 101.8 (112.2)% (112.1)%

Note:
Statutory reported operating loss was £39.0m (2019: £100.3m profit) which includes an adjustment for the amortisation of acquisition-related intangible
assetsof £1.5m(2019:£1.5m). Italsoincludes adjustments for items specifically related to the impact of Covid-19 of £8.8m.

Revenue decreasedby 51.1% ona constant currency basis, comprising a like-for-like reduction of 51.2% and net contract gains of 0.1%.
At actual exchange rates, revenue declined by 51.2%to £410.1m.

Prior to theimpact of Cavid-19inMarch, like-for-like sales growth had beenrobust, driven by increasing passenger numbers. However, the
significant reductioninpassenger numbers during March resulted in overall first half like-for-like sales declining by 5.2%. Net contract gains of
2.1% during the first half included contributions from the three Jamie Oliver outlets at Gatwick airport that we began operating last summer.

During the third quarter, the impact on passenger travel arising from Covid-19 resultedin the closure of almost all of our units in the UK.

Inthe fourth quarter there was a slight recovery inthe air sector over the summer holiday season, however the UK Gavernment's quarantine
restrictions limited passenger numbers. The rail sector remained weak throughout the second half, although we had begun to see aslow
recovery during the fourth quarter, driven by agradual return in commuter travel as people returned to the office. Thisrecovery, however, was
curtailed by further government restrictions announced towards the end of September. Overall UK second half sales fell by 91.8%, comprising
alike-for-like sales decrease of 91.6% and net contract losses of 0.2%.

The underlying operating loss far the year for the UK was £ 28./m and reported operating loss was £ 39.0m. Non-underlying operating items
comprisedanimpairment charge of £21.1m, accelerated depreciation of £6.2m, exceptional restructuring costs of £5.9mand an adjustment
for the amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets of £1.5m. These were offset by IFRS 16 rent credits of £24.4m.Onapro formalAS
17/basis, theunderlying operating loss was £ 1.2.4m, which compared to anunderlying operating profit of £101.8m last year

Pro forma IAS 17 change
IFRS 16 IAS 17 IAS17
2020 2020 2019 Constant
£m £m £m Reported currency LFL
Revenue 558.2 558.2 1,036.9 (46.2)% (44.7)% (48.2)%
Underlying operating (loss)/profit (148.1) (103.2) 793 (230.1)% (229.5)%

Note:
Statutory reported operating loss was £193.5m (2019: £78.9m profit) which includes an adjustment for the amortisation of acquisitionrelated intangible
assetsof £0.4m (2019:£0.4m). It also includes adjustments for items specifically related to the impact of Covid-19 of £45.0m.

Revenue decreasedby 44./% ona constant currency basis, comprising a like-for-like reduction of 48.2% and net contract gains of 3.5%.
At actual exchange rates, revenue declined by 46.2% to £558.2m.

During the first half, revenue decreasedby 3.2% on a constant currency basis, comprising a like-for-like reduction of 10./% and net contract
gainsof /5%. The impact of Covid-19 on first half like-for-like sales was more significant in this region than in either the UK or North America,
withanumber of countries in Continental Europe announcing that they were closing borders and restricting travel in early March following the
outbreakinltaly towards the end of February. Prior to the impact of Covid-19, like-for-like sales had beeninline with our expectations, albeit
witha continuation of some of the headwinds from the second half of last year, including the national strikes inFrance during December and
January andthe impact of major redevelopments inanumber of airports, including Copenhagen, Malaga and Las Palmas.

Net contract gains during the first half remained very strong, driven by new outlets openedlast year at Montparnasse Railway stationand in
the new motorway service areas in Germany, as well as the Starbucks units inrailway stations across the Netherlands. They also included the
impact of the acquisition of the StationFood rail business in Germany at the end of February.

Aswas the case inthe otherregions, like-for-like sales remained at very low levels during the third quarter, with the majority of our units closed
across this period. However the fourth quarter saw a stronger recovery in Continental Europe compared to the rest of the Group, with weekly
sales approximately 66% lower year-on-year, compared with the UK, North America and the Rest of the World, where weekly sales remained
around 80-85% lower year-on-year. This was helped by the limited return of some short haul air travel over the summer holiday period, by
astronger recovery inrail passengers numbers in Germany and France compared to the UK, with more people returning to their normal
workplaces, and by the motorway business in Germany and France which, in line with government requirements, remained open throughout
the crisis. Overall Continental Europe second half sales fell by //.1%, comprising a like-for-like sales decrease of / /6% andnet contract gains
of 0.5%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

The underlying operating loss for Continental Europe was £148.1mand reported operating loss was £193.5m. Non-underlying operating items
comprisedanimpairment charge of £6.2.2m, exceptional restructuring costs of £8.3mand an adjustment for the amortisation of acquisition-
related intangible assets of £0.4m. These were offset by anIFRS 16 concession credit of £25.5m.

OnaproformalAS 17/ basis, the underlying operating loss was £ 103.2m, which compared ta anunderlying operating profit of £/9.3m last
year. The overallimpact from Covid-19 in this region during the first half was much more significant than in others, partly due to the earlier
imposition of travelrestrictions compared to the UK and North America, but also as aresult of the longer lead times required to reduce labour
costsinresponseto arapidreductionin sales. Prior ta the impact of Cavid-19, operating profit for the region had already beenimpacted by
transport strikes inFrance throughout December and January, the ongoing impact of the airport redevelopments in Denmark and Spain, and
significant pre-opening and integration costs fromnew contracts and the acquisition of the Station Food business in Germany.

Pro forma IAS 17 change
IFRS 16 IAS 17 IAS 17
2020 2020 2019 Constant
£m £m £m Reported currency LFL
Revenue 274.9 274.9 5334 (48.5)% (47.9)% (53.1)%
Underlying operating (loss)/profit (55.4) (43.7) 41.9 (204.3)% (204.6)%

Note:
Statutory reported operating loss was £63.3m (2019: £41.9m profit) which includes adjustments for items specifically related to the impact of Covid-19
of £79m.

Revenue decreasedby 4/9% ona constant currency basis, comprising a like-for-like decrease of 53.1% offset by net contract gains of 5.2%.
At actual exchange rates, revenue declinedby 48.5%to £2/4.9m.

Prior to theimpact of Covid-19, like-for-like sales growth had beenrabust, benefiting from positive trends inairport passenger numbers inthe
North American market. However, the significant reduction in passenger numbers during March resulted in overall first half like-for-like sales
declining by £.5%. Net gains of 10.5% during the first half were driven by new openings in Ottawa, Seattle, Oakland and LaGuardia Airports.

Following the lockdowns during the third quarter, domestic air travelbegan to recover in many states over the summer, although international
travel remained largely closed. Overall, second half sales fell by 90.2%, comprising a like-for-like sales decrease of 91.5% and net contract
gains of 1.3%.

The underlying operating loss for North Americawas £554m andreported operating loss was £63.3m. Non-underlying operating items
comprisedanimpairment charge of £19.1mand exceptional restructuring costs of £2.1m, offset by IFRS 16 concession credits of £13.4m.
OnaproformalAS 17/ basis, the underlying operating loss was £43./m, which compared to anunderlying operating profit of £41.9m last year.

Proforma IAS 17 change
IFRS 16 IAS 17 IAS17
2020 2020 2019 Constant
£m £m £m Reported currency LFL
Revenue 189.9 189.9 383.8 (50.5)% (49.9)% (53.5)%
Underlying operating (loss)/profit (55.6) (24.8) 35.9 (169.1)% (170.8)%

Note:
Statutory reported operating loss was £37.3m (2019: £35.9m profit) which includes adjustments for items specifically related to the impact of Covid-19
of £18.3m.

Revenue decreased by 49.9% onaconstant currency basis, comprising a like-for-like fall of 53.5% offset by net contract gains of 3.6%.
At actual exchange rates, revenue declined by 50.5% to £189.9m.

The impact of Covid-19 on first half like-for-like sales was more significant inthe Rest of the Worldregion than in the others, falling by 12.3%,
reflecting the earlier escalation of the virus in Chinaand acrass the Asia Pacific region from late January. Prior to the impact of Covid-19, like-
for-like sales growth in the Rest of the World had been steady, benefiting from an improving trend in India but impacted by the ongoing political
disruptioninHong Kong,

Firsthalf net gains included sales fromnew outlets in Cebu Airport in the Philippines and in Bangalore Airport in India, as well from the
acquisition of the Red Rack operations inPerth and Melbourne airports in Australia.

During the secand half, whilst domestic air passenger levels had recovered strongly in Chinaby the fourth quarter and were improving in
Thailand and Indig, international traffic remained low across the region. Overall, second half sales fell by 90.2%, comprising a like-for-like sales
decrease of 91.3% and net contract gains of 1.1%.

The underlying operating loss far the Rest of the Worldwas £55.6m and reported operating loss was £ 3/3m. Non-underlying operating items
comprisedanimpairment charge of £/2mand exceptionalrestructuring costs of £3.2m, offset by anIFRS 16 concession credit of £28.6m.
OnaproformalAS 17/ basis, the underlying operating loss was £.24.8m, which compared to an underlying operating profit of £35.9m last year.
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Share of loss of associates

The Group's share of losses fromassociates was £2.4m. Onapro formalAS 17/ basis, the Group's share of losses fromassociateswas £1./m
(2019:£4.Improfit), the year-on-year reductionreflecting the impact of Covid-19 on our associate investments around the world.

Net finance costs

The underlying net finance expense was £ 54.0m including interest on lease liabilities of £2/8m. Reported net finance expense was £59.5m,
including an adjustment of £54mrelating to non-cash interest charges arising from the adoption of the debt madification rules under IFRS 9.
OnaproformalAS 17 basis, underlying net finance costs increased year-on-year to £ 26.2m(2019: £ 22 0m), primarily due to the higher net
debt comparedto the prior year.

Taxation
The Group's underlying tax credit for the year was £.23./m (2019: £45.1m charge), representing an effective taxrate of 64% (2019: 22.2%) of
underlying loss (2019: profit) before tax. On areported basis, the tax credit for the period was £ 28 1m (2019: £43./m charge).

OnaproformalAS 17 basis, the Group's underlying tax credit was £6.3m (2019: £45.1m charge), equivalent to an effective taxrate of 2.6%
(2019: 22.2%) of the underlying loss (2019: profit) befare tax.

The Group's taxrate is sensitive to the geographic mix of profits and losses and reflects a combination of higher rates in certain jurisdictions,
aswell as the impact of losses in some countries for whichno deferred tax asset isrecognised. The change in the taxrate for the current year
comparedto historical rates of around 22% s due to the impact of Cavid-19 which has led to a significant change in the Group's geographic mix
of profits andlosses compared to prior years.

Non-controlling interests

The loss attributable to non-controlling interests was £ 22./m.OnaproformalAS 17/ basis the loss attributable to non-controlling interests
was £9.6m (2019: £ 26.6m profit), with the year onyear change largely reflecting the impact of Covid-19 on our partly-owned operations in
North Americaandinthe Rest of the World.

Earnings/(loss) per share

The Group's underlying loss per share was 68.0 pence per share, and its reported loss per share was /6.1 pence per share.Onapro forma
IAS 17 basis the underlying loss per share was 454 pence per share (2019: 29.1 pence earnings per share).

Dividends

Therewas no interim dividend declared during the financial year 2020 (2019: £ 25.8m). Additionally, the Directors will not be recommending a
financialyear 2020 final dividend (2019: £ 26.8m) which will result inno ordinary dividends for the year (2019: £ 52 6m). Looking forward, the
Group will continue ta be restricted from declaring or paying dividends until the expiry of certainrestrictions that apply under the amended
debt arrangements with the Group's lending group of banks and US private placement note holders. When these restrictions are lifted and
conditions improve, the Board will consider the best way to restart returning capital to shareholders.

Free Cash flow
The table below presents a summary of the Group's free cash flow during the year:

2020 2019

£m £m

Underlying operating (loss)/profit! (211.7) 2211
Depreciation and amortisation 1135 1053
Exceptional restructuring costs® (22.7) -
Working capital (67.6) 37
Net tax (11.0) (371)
Other 2.0 8.2
Net cash flow from operations (197.5) 301.2
Capital expenditure? (134.5) (185.0)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, adjusted for net debt acquired (26.5) (25.8)
Net dividends to non-controlling interests and from associates (16.8) (22.5)
Net finance costs (19.6) (17.4)
Free cash flow (394.9) 50.5

' Presentedonan underlying proformalAS 17 basis (refer to page 31 for details).
: Capital expenditure is net of capital contributions from non-controlling interests of £3.1m (2019: £9.0m).
® Refer to the APMs section on pages 31-32for further details.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

The Group's net cash outflow during the year from operations was £19/5m, compared to a £ 301 2mnet cash inflow last year. The principal
driver of this significant year onyear change was the underlying operating loss of £ 211./m, compared withaprofit of £221.Iminthe prior year,
reflecting the impact of Covid-19 as described earlier. Furthermore, the exceptional restructuring costs of £22./mwere all incurred as adirect
consequence of the pandemic, primarily reflecting the casts of redundancy programmes carried out across the Group during the second half
of theyear.

The working capital outflowwas £6/6m compared to a small cash inflow of £3./min the prior year. This cash outflow was primarily driven by
the extreme reduction in average daily sales following Covid-19. Nevertheless, this was a significantly better working capital out-turn than
anticipatedat our interimresults in June, driven by very tight management of working capital which has continued since the escalation of the
virus inMarch. Throughout this period, the Group has worked hard to manage its payments, agreeing rent waivers and deferrals with many of
our clients and taking advantage of government-approved payment deferral schemes around the world, particularly inrelation to payroll taxes
and VAT

Corporationtax payments were materially lower year-on-year at £11.0m (2019: £3/1m), the reductionreflecting considerably lower payments
onaccount (of taxdue for the current year) compared to 2019, Indeed, during the second half we saw anet recovery of carporation tax (an
inflow of £9.1m) as we successfully applied for and received carporation tax repayments across a number of countries.

Capital expenditure was £134.5m, areduction of £50.5m comparedto the prior year. Following the Covid-19 escalation, we placed our capital
programme onhold pending arecovery in the travel sector and we were able toreduce our second half expenditure to £15.0m, inline with our
indications at the interimresults in June. For the year ahead, we anticipate a further significant year on year reduction as we continue to work
withour clients to defer capital programmes until passenger numbers and sales show material signs of recovery.

Acquisitions of £26.5m primarily reflected the purchases of the Red Rock operations in Perth and Melbourne airports in Australia and of the
StationFood rail business in Germany during the first half. Net cash outflows to non-controlling interests and from associates amountedto
£16.8m, nearly all of which was incurred during the first half year prior to the anset of Covid-19.

Net finance costs paid of £196mwere £ 2. 2mhigher thanthe prior year, mainly reflecting increased average levels of net debt andrelated
financing costs.

Net debt

Overallnet debtincreased by £2086mto £6920monaproformalAS 17 basis, with the significant free cash outflow in the year of £394.9m
offset by the £ 208 6mequity issuance (net of related fees) in late March. We were also able to retain some of the cashrelated to the payment
of £26.8minrespect of the final 2019 dividend (declared and approved at the AGM inFebruary 2020) through a further small equity placing,
retail offer and subscription raising net proceeds of £ 10.8minJune, as we gave investors the oppartunity to reinvest the proceeds of that
dividend payment into new SSP shares. To further preserve liquidity for the Group as the impact of Covid-19 became apparent, we suspended
our previously announced share buyback programme having only incurred £ 1./mon the purchase of shares.

The table below highlights the movementsinnet debt in the year onapro formalAS 1/ basis. Note that the Group adopted IFRS 16 Leases'
witheffect from 1 October 2019 using the modified retrospective approach to transition which means that the prior year balances including
net debt have not beenrestated.

£m
Net debt excluding lease liabilities at 1 October 2019 (IAS 17 basis) (483.4)
Underlying free cash flow (394.9)
March 2020 equity issue (net of fees paid) 2086
June 2020 equity issue (net of fees paid) 10.8
Dividend paid (26.8)
Share buyback (1.7)
Impact of foreign exchange rates (2.0)
Other (2.6)
Net debt excluding lease liabilities at 30 September 2020 (IAS 17 basis) (692.0)
Lease liabilities (1,349.3)
Other 0.7

Net debt including lease liabilities at 30 September 2020 (IFRS 16 basis) (2,040.6)
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Asnotedabove, the Group adoptedIFRS 16 on 1 Octaober 2019 and as aresult nowrecognises lease liabilities, which are initially based on the
present value of the future payments required under each lease discounted at the incremental borrowing rate. The movement in the lease
liabilities from the transitiondate of 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2020 was as follows:

Year ended

30 September

2020

£m

Beginning of the period -
Lease liabilities on transition (1,464.4)
Acquisitions (24.1)
Additions (266.4)
Interest charge in the period (27.8)
Payment of lease liabilities 2004
Remeasurement adjustments 2272
Currency translation 5.8
End of the period (1,349.3)

Actions taken to strengthen liquidity and to secure covenant waivers

Since the anset of Covid-19, we have taken decisive action to protect cash, minimise costs and raise additional liquidity to allow us to operate
throughout even our most pessimistic trading scenario. This action to increase liquidity included a £ 209m (net of related fees) equity placing
and share subscription inlate March 2020, followed shortly afterwards by securing access to the Bank of England's Covid Corporate Financing
Facility (CCFF), under which facility we were permitted to draw up to £300m. In addition, the Group also secured access to a number of
additional smaller liquidity lines, including government-backedfacilities in France, Spain and Switzerland, providing a further £44m.

As well asraising this additional funding, we have taken anumber of further steps to protect liquidity. At the current very low levels of sales, the
current monthly cash burn of approximately £25-30m reflects the many management actions taken to minimise operating costs, as already
described. Furthermore, we have also taken action to defer all non-essential capital expenditure, to agree rent waivers and deferrals with our
clients, to suspend our previously announced share buyback programme and to negotiate with our lending banks a twa year deferral of term
loan amortisation payments, amounting to approximately £63m, which were due to be paid in July 2020 and July 2021. The Board has also
announced that the Coampany will not pay a dividend inrespect of the current financial year.

At the end of the year, the Group had approximately £520m of available liquidity, including cash of £ 185m and committed undrawnrevolving
credit facilities of £150m, aswell as a further £1/5mavailable to be drawn down under the CCFF. The £150mrevolving credit facility is
committed until July 2022, while the Bank of England has confirmed that the Group can draw down the maximum £ 300m available to it under
the CCFF for aperiod extending through to February 2022.

Taking into account the current level of cash and available facilities and the monthly cash burn as described above, we are confident that we
have sufficient liquidity to operate even through a prolonged crisis and a slow recovery. Nevertheless, notwithstanding the recent positive
news on the development of potential vaccines, we recognise that the pace of the anticipated recovery in our markets remains uncertain, and
as such there may be arequirement toraise additional liquidity prior to the repayment of the CCFF inearly 2022.

Inaddition to the actiontaken in the Spring to strengthen liquidity, the Group secured an agreement inMay 2020 from SSP's lending group of
banks andits US private placement note holders to waive existing financial covenants, testing both interest cover and leverage, for the two
testing periods covering the twelve months to 30 September 2020 and 31 March 2021. They agreed that these existing covenants would

be replaced between the date of the agreement and 30 September 2021 by two new covenants, each tested monthly, with the first of these
based onthe Group demonstrating aminimum level of liquidity and the second based on the Group not exceeding amaximum level of net debt.
For the testing period ending 30 September 2021 both the existing and new covenants would be relevant, with the Group returning to the
existing covenants thereafter, once compliance with the existing covenants has been confirmed.

Inorder to provide the maximum financial flexibility for the Group through this exceptionally challenging period, we have now agreed further
covenant waivers and amendments covering the period up toMarch 2022. As was the case with the covenant amendments agreed inMay,

the existing financial covenant testing leverage has been waived, until reinstated inMarch 2022, with the two temporary, monthly-tested

new covenantsonminimum liquidity and maximumnet debt introduced for a further six months from October 2021. For the testing period
ending 31 March 2022 both the existing and new covenants would be relevant, with the Group returning to the existing covenants thereafter,
once campliance with the existing covenants has been confirmed. In addition, we have agreed to an additional new covenant, testing minimum
EBITDA thresholds for the sixmonths ending 30 September 2021 and 31 December 2021. Modified interest cover tests (calculatedona last
sixmonths basis) will also be applied at these two testing dates. All of these new covenant thresholds have been based on our most pessimistic

trading scenario, which is described in more detail alongside the Board's considerations in adopting the going concern basis of accounting in
note 1.2 onpages 106-107.

Impact of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

As stated above, the Group adopted IFRS 16 'Leases' witheffect from 1 October 2019 using the modified retrospective approach to transition
whichmeans that the prior year balances have not beenrestated. The new standard requires that the Group's leased assets are recorded as
right-of-use assets together with their corresponding lease liabilities. Interest expense is recognised on the lease liability and the right-of-use
assetsarerequiredto be depreciated on astraight-line basis over the lease term.
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Income Statement impact

Theimpact of the implementation of IFRS 16 on the Income Statement for the year ended 30 September 2020 is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2020 IFRS 16 2020

IAS 17 adjustment IFRS 16

£m £m £m

Revenue 1,433.1 - 14331
Underlying operating (loss)/profit (211.7) (103.7) (315.4)
Share of loss from associates (1.7) (0.7) (2.4)
Financeincome 2.5 = 2.5
Finance expense (28.7) (27.8) (56.5)
Underlying loss before tax* (239.6) (132.2) (371.8)

! Statedonan underlying basis, which excludes non-underlying items as further explained in the section on Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) on

pages 31-32.

Balance Sheetimpact
The impact of the implementation of IFRS 16 on the Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2020 is as follows:

Asat As at
30 September 30 September
2020 IFRS 16 2020
IAS 17 adjustment IFRS 16
£m £m £m
Non-current assets
Right-of-use assets = 1.271.2 1,271.2
Other non-current assets 1,2949 93 1,304.2
1,2949 1,280.5 2,5754
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 1324 (71) 1253
Other current assets 216.7 19 218.6
3491 (5.2) 343.9
Total assets 1,644.0 1,275.3 29193
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities - (289.1) (289.1)
Other current liabilities (596.3) 5.9 (5904)
(596.3) (283.2) (879.5)
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities - (1,060.2) (1,060.2)
Other non-current liabilities (779.1) 15 (7776)
(779.1) (1,058.7) (1,837.8)
Total liabilities (1,375.4) (1,341.9) (2,7173)
Net assets 268.6 (66.6) 202.0
Total equity 268.6 (66.6) 202.0

Cash flowimpact

There isnonet impact oncash flows, however, there has been a change in classification of cash flows whereby anincrease innet cash inflows

from operating activities has been offset by adecrease innet cash flows from financing activities.

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2020 IFRS 16 2020

IAS17 adjustment IFRS 16

£m £m £m

Net cash flows from operating activities (197.5) 1999 24
Net cash flows from investing activities (153.1) - (153.1)
Net cash flows from financing activities 3075 (199.9) 1076
(43.1) - (43.2)

Further information on the impact of adoption of IFRS 16 canbe foundinnote 1.
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Principal risks
Twonew principalrisks facing the Group have been added since last year regarding liquidity and funding and the impact of Covid-19.
The impact of these risks has been discussed above.

The Company's principalrisks, together with the Group's risk management process, are detailed on pages 33 to 41, andrelate to the following
areas: the twonew risks noted above, business environment and geopolitical uncertainty; retention of existing contracts; impact of Brexit;
senior management capability and retention; regulatory compliance; food safety and product compliance; labour laws and unionisation;
information security and stability; benefits realisation from efficiency programmes; changing client behaviours; outsourcing programmes; tax
strategy; maintenance and development of brand portfolio; and expansion into new markets.

Post balance sheet events

InDecember 2020, SSP Financing Limited secured an agreement from its lending group of banks and US private placement note holders to
waive the net debt cover financial covenant for the testing period covering the twelve months to 30 September 2021. Please refer to the going
concernsectioninnote 1.2 onpages 106-107 for further details.

Alternative Performance Measures

The Directors use alternative performance measures for analysis as they believe these measures provide additional useful informationon
theunderlying trends, performance and position of the Group. The alternative performance measures are not defined by IFRS and therefore
may not be directly comparable with other companies' performance measures and are not intended tobe a substitute for IFRS measures.
Further detail is provided onpages 31-32.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our strategic priorities based on our five lever framework are:

@ Optimising our offer to benefit from the positive trends in our markets and driving profitable LFL sales; @ Growing profitable new space;
© Optimising gross margins and leveraging scale benefits; @ Running an efficient and effective business; and @ Optimising investment

usingbest practice and sharedresources.

Revenue (actual currency - £m)

27946
23791 mepte [EEIEE
1320 L9%3 EEE] R
“
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Strategic priorities € ©

Definition - Revenue represents amounts for cateringandretail
goods and services sold to customers excluding value addedtax
andsimilar items.

Comment - Total revenue decreased by 48 7%to £ 1,433 1m (at
actual exchange rates) following the significant impact of Covid-19
onpassenger numbers across all of our markets.

Like-for-like sales (%)

3.7% 3.0% 3.1% 28% 1.9% -50.8%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Strategic priorities €

Definition - Like-for-like sales represent revenues generatedinan
equivalent period in each financial year in outlets whichhave been
open far aminimum of 12 manths. Units temporarily closedas a
result of Covid-19 have not been excluded for the purposes of the
like-for-like calculation.

Revenue inoutlets which have been openfor less than 1.2 months
are excluded from like-for-like sales and classified as contract gains.
Prior periodrevenues inrespect of closed outlets are excluded from
like-for-like sales and classified as contract losses.

Comment - Like-for-like sales fell by 50.8% due to the impact of
Covid-19 Following agood first quarter, like-for-like sales were
impacted by the spread of the virus across the world, resulting in the
effective shut downof the global travel market.

Year-on-year revenue movement (constant currency - %)

11.7% 95% 78%
43% 5.0% .
= Bl 47.9%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Strategic priorities € ©

Definition - Revenue at constant currency eliminates the impact

of foreign exchange rates onrepartedrevenue. Constant currency
isbased onaverage 2019 exchange rates, weighted over the financial
year by 2019 resuilts.

Comment - Revenue decreased by 4/9%in 2020 ona constant
currency basis, comprising like-for-like fall of 50.8% and net
contract gains of 2.9%.The overall impact onrevenue of the
movermnent in currencies (principally the Euro, US Dollar, Swedish
Krona, NorwegianKrone andIndian Rupee) was -0.8%.

Underlying operating profit/(loss)* (actual currency - £m)

221.1
1914 1629 l REE)
97.4 : +34.2%
Sl
-211.7
-195.7%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

*Stated on a Pro forma |AS 17 underlying basis. Refer to section on Alternative
Performance Measures (APMs) on page 31 for further details

Strategic priorities €@ @ © ©

Definition - ProformalAS 17 underlying operating profit / (loss)
represents revenue less operating costs which exclude anumber

of items which are not consideredreflective of the normal trading
performance of the business, and are considered exceptional
because of their size, nature or incidence. Refer tonote / for further
details of non-underlying items.

Comment - ProformalAS 17 underlying operating loss for the
yearwast211./m, adecrease of 195./% compared to the prior
year onboth constant currency basis and at actual exchange
rates. Statutory operating loss was £363.9m(2019: £219.2m
profit), reflecting various non-underlying items totalling £48.5m
(2019: £1.9m) which have been discussed further innote 7.
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Alternative performance measures

TheDirectors use alternative performance measures for analysis as they believe these measures provide additional useful information onthe
underlying trends, performance and position of the Group. The alternative performance measures are not defined by IFRS and therefore may
not be directly comparable with other companies’ performance measures and are not intended to be a substitute for IFRS measures.

Revenue growth

Asthe Group operates inover 30 countries, it is exposed to translation risk on fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, and as such the Group's
reportedrevenue and operating profit will be impacted by movements inactual exchange rates. The Group presents itsfinancial resultsona
constant currency basis in order to eliminate the effect of foreign exchange rates andto evaluate the underlying performance of the Group's
businesses. The table belowreconciles reportedrevenue to constant currency sales growth, like-for-like sales growth, net contract gains/
(losses)andthe impact of acquisitions where appropriate.

Continental North

(Em) UK Europe America RoW Total
2020 Revenue at actual rates by segment 410.1 558.2 2749 189.9 1,433.1
Impact of foreign exchange 0.6 155 3.2 25 218
2020 Revenue at constant currency! 410.7 5737 278.1 1924 1,454.9
2019 Revenue at actual rates 840.5 1,036.9 5334 3838 2,794.6
Constant currency sales (fall)/growth (51.1)% (44.7)% (47.9)% (49.9)% (47.9)%
Whichis made up of:
Like-for-like sales growth? (51.2)% (48.2)% (53.1)% (53.5)% (50.8)%
Net contract gains? 0.1% 3.5% 5.2% 3.6% 29%

(51.1)% (44.7)% (47.9)% (49.9)% (47.9)%

' Constant currency isbased on average 2019 exchange rates weighted over the financial year by 2019 results.

? Like-for-like sales representrevenues generated in an equivalent period in each financial period in outlets which have been open for a minimum of
12 months. Units temporarily closed as aresult of Covid-19 have not been excluded for the purposes of the like-for-like calculation. Like-for-like sales are
presented ona constant currency basis.

® Net contract gainsrepresent the net year-on-year revenue impact fromnew outlets opened and existing units permanently closed in the past 12 months.
Net contract gains/(losses) are presented on a constant currency basis.

Underlying profit measures

The Group presents underlying profit/{loss) measures, including operating profit/(loss), profit/(loss) before tax and earnings/(loss) per share,
which exclude anumber of items which are not considered reflective of the normal trading performance of the business, and are considered
exceptional because of their size, nature or incidence. The table below provides a breakdown of the non-underlying items inboth the current
yearand the prior year.

IFRS 16 IAS 17
2020 2019
£m £m
Operating costs
Impairment of goodwill (33.0) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (38.4) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets (38.2) -
Depreciation (6.2) -
IFRS 16 rent credit 91.9 -
Restructuring expenses (22.7) -
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisition (1.9) (1.9)
(48.5) (1.9)
Finance expenses
Effective interestrate charge and debt modification loss (5.4) (2.2)
Unwind of discount on obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking = (0.3)
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains on revaluation of obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking - (1.6)
Other (0.1) -
(5.5) (4.1)
Taxation
Tax credit onnon-underlyingitems 44 14

Total non-underlying items (49.6) (4.6)
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Further details of the non-underlying operating items have been pravided in the Financial Review section onpage 22.

Furthermore, areconciliation fromthe underlying to the statutory reportedbasis is presented below:

2020 (IFRS 16) 2019(IAS17)

Non- Non-

underlying underlying
Underlying items Total Underlying items Total
Operating (loss)/profit (Em) (315.4) (48.5) (363.9) 2211 (1.9) 2192
Operating margin (22.0)% (3.4)% (25.4)% 7.9% (0.1)% 78%
(Loss)/profit before tax (Em) (371.8) (54.0) (425.8) 203.2 (6.0 1972
(Loss)/earnings per share (p) (68.0) (8.1) (76.1) 291 (1.0) 281

Furthermore, it should be noted that the Group adopted IFRS 16'Leases'on 1 October 2019 using the modified retrospective approachto
transition.Inaccordance with the standard, the prior year figures have not been restated and as aresult comparison with the prior year is
distorted. However, in order to provide ameaningful comparison with prior year, whichwas accounted forunder IAS 1/ Leases, commentary
has beenincluded inthe Business Review, Financial Review and other sections with reference to underlying profit measures computed in
accordance withIAS 17 These arereferred toas 'ProformalAS 1/'measures. Areconciliation of key underlying profit measures to'Pro forma

IAS 1/'numbers is presented below:

Pro forma Impact of

IAS 17 IFRS 16 IFRS 16

2020 2020 2020

£m £m £m
Underlying operating loss (211.7) (103.7) (315.4)
Underlying loss before tax (239.6) (132.2) (371.8)
Underlying loss per share (p) (45.4) (22.6) (68.0)
Net debt (692.0) (1,348.6) (2,040.6)

IFRS 16 increases the underlying operating loss, whereby the depreciation of the right-of-use assets of £ 305.3m is offset primarily by the
reduced lease expense of £201.6m, resulting inanet charge tounderlying operating loss of £103./m. The interest charge onthe lease
liabilities of £2/78mandthe loss fromassociates of £0./m further increases the loss, giving the underlying loss before taximpact of £132.2m.

The impact of IFRS 16 onnet debt is primarily the recognition of the lease liability balance.
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RISKMANAGEMENT AND PRINCIPAL RISKS

Effective risk management is key to supporting

the Group's strategic objectives.

The Boardhas overall responsibility for the Group's risk management
policies and internal control systems and s also responsible for
reviewing their effectiveness. The management of risks is delegated
tothebusiness throughavariety of committees that are responsible
forreviewing and managing the procedures. We recognise that the
procedures are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives as they can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material errors,
losses, fraud or breaches of laws and regulations.

Furthermore, the Boardis responsible for ensuring that the Group
maintains a strong capital base and adequate sources of funding at
alltimes, inorder to pursue its strategy of growth and the creation
of long-term sustainable value for its shareholders. The Board has
taken caretoensure that all relevant risks have been appropriately
analysedand understood inthe context of this strategy. The regional
businesses operate within a Group-wide risk management
framework, which allows the regional management teams to utilise
theirknowledge of their local markets as effectively as possible to
deliver onthe Group's strategic priorities as set out anpages 8and9,
whilst operating within the risk tolerance levels set by the Board.

Risk management framework

The Group's risk management framework is designed to ensure that
material risks throughout the business are identified and effectively
managed onanongoing basis.

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant and emerging risks faced by the
Group. This process was in place throughout 2020 and up to the date
of approval of this Annual Report, which meets the requirements of
the guidance produced by the Financial Reporting Council.

However, while the Group has continued to embed internal control
andrisk management further into the operations of the business and
todealwithany areas of improvement which come tomanagement's
and the Board's attention, a key aspect of the last half year hasbeen
considering the processes in light of Covid-19 and appropriate
adjustments given Covid-19'simpact on the Group (see page 36 for
details of emerging Covid-19 risks).

The Audit Committee has kept under review the effectiveness of the
systemof internal controls and has reportedregularly to the Board.
Thekey features of the risk management process are as follows:

* The Group conducts anannual Risk Assessment and local
management teams maintain country and regional risk registers.
Theregional/country registers cover the assessment of risks
(including social, environmental, governance and ethical matters),
anymajor changes inrisks ar new initiatives, and any current
aswellas future mitigation activities, which are discussed by
the Executive Committee. The Group maintains a top down
consolidatedrisk register which covers risks to the averall Group.
Risks are evaluated inrespect of their potentialimpact and
likelihood, andkey risks are highlightedto the Risk Committee and
the Audit Committee;

 TheBoarddiscusses andagrees the principal risks that are
includedinthe AnnualReport;

* Anannualrisk management actionplanis putinplace to further
enhance the Group's risk management capability;

* The Group has established androlled out anumber of risk
management polices including a Colleague Code of Conduct,
aWhistleblowing Policy, an Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption
Policy, a Prevention of the Facilitation of TaxEvasion Policy, a
GDPR Compliance Policy, andvarious T security polices, as well
as training thereof, all of whichare refreshed onan ongoing
basis. Training has been provided to the Board and the senior
management, which covers the abligations and behaviours of a
UK listed company, including those relating to compliance, insider
trading and market abuse;

* Themanagement of risk and compliance with associated palicies
isconsideredas part of the Group's performance management
systems; and

* TheBoard considers social, environmental, governance and ethical
mattersinrelationtothe Group'sbusiness as part of its Carporate
Responsibility Strategy and assesses these whenreviewing
therisks faced by the Group. Further informationregarding
environmental and ethical mattersis available onpages 12to 19.
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Thetable onpages 36 to 41 summarises the principal risks and
uncertainties towhichthe Group is exposed, and the actions taken
tomitigate them.Risks are identified as principal'based on the
likelihood of occurrence andthe potential impact onthe Group.
The principalrisksare listedin order of priority.

Twonewrisksregarding liquidity and funding and impact of Covid-19
have beenaddedtothe principalrisks since last year. Tworisks,
relating to competitive intensity and business development
capability and investment, are no longer considered strategic risks,
andas suchhave beenremoved fromthe principalrisks.

Internal control framework

TheBoardhas averallresponsibility for the Group's internal control
framework and reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit Committee
supportsthe Board generally inregularly reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group's system of internal controls.

Theregional and country management teams are responsible for
implementing internal control and risk management practices within
theirownbusinesses and for ensuring compliance with the Group's
policies and procedures.

During 2020, the Board reviewedthe effectiveness of the Group's
riskmanagement and internal controls systems. These reviews
included an assessment of internal controls, in particular operational
and compliance controls as well as their effectiveness, supportedby
reports fromthe internal auditor as well as the external auditor on
matters identifiedin the course of their statutory audit work.

Inaddition during the year, Deloitte, as internal auditor, carried out a
Strategic Risk Assurance Review following the 2019 Risk Assessment
process to determine the extent to which the highlighted mitigation
activities hadbeenimplemented andto consider whether additional
assurance activity is appropriate frominternal audit. They confirmed
that the mitigations for the strategic risks were being incorporated
asapart of the senior management's key oversight processes

suchas business performance and forecasting, Group Business
Development and Group Investment Committee processes and New
Planinitiatives.

There were no changes to the Group's internal controls over financial
reporting that occurred during the year ended 30 September 2020
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Group's reported financial position.

Approach to risk management following the onset of Covid-19

The impact of Covid-19 has been significant on SSP and has been
detailed invarious sections of the Strategic Report. As such, the
narrative below should be read in conjunctionwith other sections of
the Strategic Report to provide a better understanding of the risks
andour response to Covid-19.

[t became clear at the start of the second quarter of the financial
year that Covid-19 would become a global pandemic and would have
asevereimpactonallour regions. The Group management took
decisive action to protect its staff and customers as well as the long-
termviability and survival of the business.

Fromthe outset of the pandemic, the Group established a Business
Continuity Committee, led by the Group HR Director, to provide
strategic leadership and to ensure the implementation of the
requisite processes tomitigate risks arising out of the various
potential Covid-19 scenarios. Group HR carried out a comprehensive
review of government guidelines onhealth and safety and social
distancing procedures to ensure customer and employee safety can
be ensured as offices and units started toreopen following the initial
closures. Liquidity and funding emerged as a significant risk during
the period.

SSPimplemented various processes to effectively manage liquidity
pressures including utilising the government support schemes,
significant reductionin capital expenditure as well as implementation
of salary reductions across senior management. Further detail onthe
impact of Covid-19 on our existing risks as well as mitigation plans
has beenset out inthe principal risks section onpage 36.
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The Group's risk management framework

Board

Overallresponsibility for the Company's system of internal controls and risk management policies.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews procedures that relate to risk management processes and financial controls. The assessment of controls and
risk management processes provide areasonable basis for the Board to make proper judgements on an ongoing basis as to the financial

position and prospects of the Group.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports to the Board on any matters that have arisen from the Audit Committee's review of the way
risk management and internal control processes have been applied. This includes insights fromits review of the reports of the internal and

external auditors.

* Supports the Board by reviewing risk management processes

and financial controls.

Risk Committee

Meets quarterly and operates under the
management of the Audit Committee.
Chaired by the CFO and comprises
various senior management. Senior
representatives from Deloitte attendin
their internal audit capacity.

onanongoingbasis.

* Reviewsresults of the CSAprocessand
internalauditreports.

* Reviews the Groupbalance sheet.

* Reviews the Group'sinformationsecurity
protocols.

* Assessessafety managementreports
andinitiatives.

* Reviewsinternalreportsrequiredby the
Group Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy
andassesses furtheractions and controls.

* Reviewsthe Group's strategy for privacy
and GDPR compliance.

* Reviewsthe Group's activitiesinmanaging
theriskof modernslavery.

Financial Reporting

* Coordinates the risk management process (updates risk registers,
assesses risk ratings and documents mitigating controls).
* Conducts meetings withrisk owners across the business.

» Coordinates and consolidates localrisk registers.

* Along withthe CEO and CFO, carries out regular tradingand

* Receives andreviews detailedrisk registers, Control

Self-Assessment (CSA)results and internal audit reports.
* Assessestheintegrity of the Group's financial reporting.

Executive Committee

Meets monthly andis chaired by the CEQ.

Composed of the Executive Directors and

senior management (comprisingregional
CEOsandfunctional heads).

Produces adetailed Budget annually
inaccordance with our financial
processes. Thisisreviewedand
approvedby the Board.
KeepsBudgetunderreview pursuant
tooperationalreports onaweekly and
monthly basisinaccordance with the
Group's financial procedures manual.
Identifies and executes, subject to
thenecessaryBoard approvals, new
strategic business opportunities and
relationships.

Identifies and executes, subject to the
necessary Boardapprovals, strategic
business acquisition and divestment
opportunities and major capital
expenditure proposals.

Reviews the assessment of risks, as
wellas current and future mitigation

activities atboth the Group andregional/

country levels.

The CEO and CFOreport tothe Boardon
financial performance andkey issues as

they arise.

Group Finance

Disclosure Committee

Composed of the CEO, CFO and
Company Secretary.

Meetsonanadhocbasis.

« |dentifies information whichrequires
disclosure under the Listing Rules, Market
Abuse Regulations or the DTRs inatimely
manner, to ensure that suchinformation
is properly consideredand that such
considerationincludes whether the
information should be disclosed.

Group Investment Committee

 Reviewsand authorises material capital investments and
acquisitions proposed by the business.
* Operatesanannual postinvestment review process covering

allacquisitions and capital expenditure approved by the Group

financialreviews to monitor the ongoing operations of the Group.

Regional and Country Management

Investment Committee.

* Implements internal controland risk management practices locally and ensures compliance with the Group's policies and procedures.
« Considers, updates and maintains local risk registers and risk maps.
» Completes theannual CSA process, and proposes and follows up on action points to address any control gaps.
 Submitsrequests forapproval of controlled activities.
» Compiles reports and maintains registers as required (e.g. ABC, safety, modern slavery and other compliance matters).

* Reviewsandupdatesrisk registers.
* Reviews operationalrisks, controls andKPIs

Internal Audit

I « Carriesoutassurance activities to help informthe Boardand committees of potential risk areas and mitigating controls.

Top down
Oversightand
leadership of risk
management
approach

Bottomup
|dentification,
assessment,
mitigation and
escalation
of risks
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Principal risks

Risks are identified as principal' on the basis of their likelihood of occurrence and their potential impact on the Group. Furthermore,
our strategic priorities based on our five lever framework laid out below form the basis of Group-wide risk identification, assessment

anddiscussions:

@ Optimising our offer to benefit from the positive trends in our markets and driving profitable LFL sales; @ Growing profitable new space;
© Optimising gross margins and leveraging scale benefits; @ Running an efficient and effective business; and @ Optimising investment
usingbest practice and sharedresource.

The principalrisks discussed in the table below are listed in order of priority. New risks have been added to the principal risks since last year
regarding liquidity and funding and the impact of Covid-19.

0 Risk increasing

Risk/Risk priority

1 Liquidity and
funding

New risk

Strategic priorities

o Risk decreasing

Q No risk movement

Risk description

Covid-19has significantly reducedtrading overan
extendedanduncertain timeframe. Aninability to
effectively respond and manage expenditure accordingly
wouldimpact the Group's ability to operate within
committed credit facilities.

The Groupis reliant on the Covid Corporate Financing
Facility (CCFF),and aninability to refinance the facility or
draw down further funding tranches would furtherimpact
the Group's ability to operate within committed credit
facilities. The Group's senior debt facilities, which mature
inJuly 2022, will also needrefinancing or extendingin
due course. Thereis alsoarisk of breaching covenants
onexisting financing facilities unless covenant waivers
aresecuredfromlenders. If the Group isunable to agree
covenantwaivers thereis arisk that the lenders could
require repayment of their financing commitments.

Mitigating factors

SSPhasimplemented effective processes to minimise
liquidity pressures; for example, a significant reduction
incapital spend and the furlough of colleagues, as well as
salary reductions have beenimplemented across senior
management.

Further, the Group did not declare aninterimdividend,
postponed its share buyback programme and completed a
new equity placingin March 2020 (as well as a small placing
inJune 2020 toretain some of the final 2019 dividend as
cashinthebusiness).

Covenantamendments have beensecuredas further
detailedin the viability statement onpages 42-43,and in
the going concernnote onpages 106-107.Management will
remainin close dialogue withboth lenders and USPP note
holders and will seek further covenant amendments should
theneedarise. Liquidity and covenants headroomis closely
monitored andstress tested.

SSPhas also engaged in ongoing discussions with key
advisorsand lenders about access to alternative sources of
finance in the future should this be needed in the medium to
longer term.

2 Impactof
Covid-19

New risk

Strategic priorities

The pandemic hashad asevere effect onthe travel
sector,whichhas been effectively closedinmany of SSP's
markets, and thereis arisk that therecoveryinthe travel
markets may be prolonged due to ongoing restrictions
forhealth and safety reasons and behavioural changes
whichmightimpact passenger numbers.Inthe Air sector
mostindustry analysts expect that therewillnotbea
recovery to pre-Covid levels of activity until 2023 or 2024.
The principal reasons for this willbe a potential loss of
business travel, as companies look torestrict travellingand
promote video-conferencing, which has proveneffective
during the pandemic, and areductioninlonghaul travel, as
aconsequence of airline capacity reductions and safety
concerns.Inthe Rail sector, there may alsobe some longer
termimpacts onpassenger numbers as a consequence the
accelerated trend towards working from home, which has
proven effective for many firms and their employees, and
willaffect commuter travelwhichis important for SSP's
railoperations.

Therisks to SSP are that passenger volumes may not
returnto pre-Covid levels, and therefore impact sales
potential, leaving some outlets and contracts operating
atuneconomic levels of sales, given the fixed operational
costbase. Thereisalsoarisk that thereis greater pressure
fromclients to pay fixed minimum guaranteedrents,
evenat lower passenger volumes, or openmore outlets at
individualsites than is commercially optimal for SSP.

Furthermore thereis arisk that some of the actions
takenby SSPto trade through the pandemic, notably the

organisational restructuring undertakeninmany countries,

may leave the business under-resourced for arecoveryin
demandandremove key management capabilities.

As aconsequence of Covid-19 the Group has beenrequired
toadoptnew health and safety protocols and operational
standards (e.g. tomeet social distancing regulations)
inorder to protectits staff and customers. All of these
potentially lead to higher operational costs and carry
compliancerisks.

The Group has implemented short-term cost reductions and
asignificantrestructuring programme toreduce the cost
base, while also improving short-termliquidity by the use of
government support schemes, suchas the UK's Coronavirus
JobRetention Scheme, reductionin capex spendand
negotiatingrentreliefs withits clients. Therehas alsobeen
areductioninproductrange to further reduce supply chain
complexity and costs.

The Group CEO and CFO continue to carry out focused
weekly trading reviews with country management teams.
Managementhavealsoputinplacerollingforecastsin
place of quarterly forecasts to enable the Group toreact to
changes as they occur.

Atthe outset of the Covid-19 pandemic, the

Group established a Business Continuity Committee to
ensure that the Group had all the proper processesinplace
tomitigate therisks of a variety of Covid-19 scenarios.
This was led by the Group HR Director withinput from our
internal auditor's risk /crisis team.

Group HR has led acomprehensive review of government
guidelines onhealthand safety and social distancing
procedures to ensure customer and employee safety canbe
ensured as offices and units start toreopen.
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Risk/Risk priority Risk description Mitigating factors
3 Business The Group operates inthe travel environment where The Group monitors the performance of individual
. external factors such as the general economic and business units and markets regularly. The Executive
environmentand geopolitical climate, levels of disposable income, Directors review detailed weekly and monthly
geopo[itica[ weather, changing demographics and travel patterns information covering arange of KPls, and monitor
. could allimpact both passenger numbersand consumer ~ progress onkey strategic projects with local senior
uncertainty spending. Thereis arisk that the Group is unable, or management. Specific short-and medium-term actions
Q poorly placed, torespond to these external events. are taken to address any trading performance issues
The travel environment is vulnerable to acts of whichare monitored on an ongoing basis.
terrorism or war, an outbreak of pandemic disease, or There has been greater focus on business continuity
amajor and extreme weather event or natural disaster planning and recovery. The Business Continuity plan has
which could reduce the number of passengers in beentested during this current crisis with staff working
travel locations. fromhome and has proved to be effective.
Tourism and business travel have been materially The Group has been conducting research to understand
impacted by Covid-19resultinginadirect business changing requirements of customers in light of the
impact due to the downturninthe global economy. pandemic to better tailor our offer to their needs.
while also increasing the risk of economic downturn
inthe global economy. The crisis will be more acute
in countries with ahigh level of debt and dependency
ontourism, e.g. Greece and Spain, and the timeline to
recovery in the travel sector is uncertain.
Further, Covid-19 has exacerbatedrisk to airline
stability, which had previously beenincreasing, e.g.
the failure of Jet Airways and impact of Boeing Max
737 grounding.
Increased protectionist trade policy and tariffs could
Strategic priorities result in costinflation, particularly inthe US. Public
concernover climate change may impact air travel,
00 either directly or through government policies.
4 Retention The Group's operations are dependent on the terms The Group's local management structures in all its major
. of airport andrailway station concession agreements. geographies allow it to maintain strong relationships
of eXlStlﬂg Growth (and maintenance of market share)is withits clients and to monitor performancein close
contracts dependent onthe Group's ability to retain existing partnership withits clients'management teams.

&)

Strategic priorities

concession contracts and win new contracts from
either new or existing clients.

Covid-19 hasresultedinareduction in tenders, thus
reducing this risk in the short term. However, rent relief
negotiations may result infriction, especially for reliefs
soughtbeyond the near term. Unsuccessful rent relief
negotiations may force the Group to exit units that are
no longer viable.

Moreover, as trading recovers from Covid-19 impact,
there may be tensions over the timing of reinstatement
of suspended capital expenditure programmes given
the ongoing pandemic and unit closures.

Resource reductions made inresponse to Covid-19
may result inreduced operational standards, impacting
relationships with clients and franchise partnersin the
medium term.

Further, the Group has an established contact strategy
withkey clients to establish and/or maintain ongoing
relationships. These are discussed between Group and
local management on aregular basis.

Management has actively engaged with clients on
areopening programme to ensure that units canbe
reopened profitably.

The Group conducts regular online and interview-
based client surveys to ensure any concerns are
being addressed.

5 Impact of Brexit

&)

Strategic priorities

Brexit may have anadverse impact on the wider
economic environment inthe UK and across the EU,
resulting in weaker consumer spending in the travel
food and beverage markets. It would also impact the
travel sector directly if any restrictions in the freedom
of industrial air travel between the UK and EU countries
come intoforce.

The potential depreciation of the pound could lead to
costinflation pressures, particularly in the food
commodity markets.

Potential restrictions on mobility of EU nationals post-
Brexit may limit the availability of labour resource in
the UKin the long term.

These risks may be compounded in the case of
a’'no deal’ Brexit which could further reduce the
attractiveness of the UK for investment.

The Group carefully monitors the ongoing negotiations
of the UK's exit from the EU through its Brexit risk
mitigation committee.

The Group maintains a global portfolio and regularly
monitors the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations
onits cash flows, mitigating the impact from foreign
exchangerisk.

The Group's pricing and range initiatives are driven
by continuous monitoring of consumer spending
benchmarks.

Various gross margin initiatives, including recipe
re-engineering and procurement rationalisation
continue to be pursued, to mitigate the impact of
cost inflation.

The Group continues to develop its UK recruitment
strategy to ensure SSPis positioned as an attractive
employer inthe UK during the store reopening
programme. There is also an ongoing focus on labour
flexibility and productivity to improve retentionrates
post Brexit. Anincreased focus on technology initiatives
during the Covid-19recovery stage willhelpreduce
demand for labour as units open.
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Risk/Risk priority

6 Senior
management
capability and
retention

o

Strategic priorities

Risk description

The performance of the Group depends on its ability
to attract, motivate and retain key employees. The
skills developed in our business are highly attractive
to other companies, whichregularly target our staff
forrecruitment.

Giventhe impact of Covid-19 and the increasing risk
over staff retention, particularly for senior employees
with transferable skills, insufficient senior capability
risk has increased over the prior year. Additionally,
there continues to be arisk that the Group may not have
sufficient resources in various functions including in
legal, finance and IT, to meet the changing and complex
needs of aninternational business as it adapts and
recovers from the impact of Covid-19.

It may also be difficult to attract senior employees as
the travel food sector will be consideredriskier in the
short to mediumterm.

Mitigating factors

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration for senior management in light of
Covid-19 with the aim of ensuring that the reward offer
is designed to attract, retain and motivate the key
personnelrequired to runthe Group effectively. Inlight
of Covid-19 and the resulting increased recruitment
andretentionrisk, the Group has developedrevised
incentive schemes for senior management, e.g. arevised
LTIP structure.

The Group also continues toreview key roles and
succession plans atacountry and ata Group level. The
Group carries out anannual talent mapping exercise
to identify candidates for future roles and continues
toinvestin additional resources to support change
initiatives and career development programmes.

7 Regulatory
compliance

o

Strategic priorities

The laws and regulations governing the Group's
industry have become increasingly complex across
anumber of jurisdictions and a wide variety of

areas, including, among others, labour, employment,
immigration, security and safety, bribery and
corruption, tax evasion, modern slavery, competition
and antitrust, consumer protection, data protection,
licensing requirements andrelated compliance. There
is arisk that the Group fails to comply with such laws
andregulations.

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2018, certain
amendments to the Companies Actand IFRS 16 are
applicable to SSP’s current financial year. These new
requirements create a disclosure and reporting risk in
the financial statements as well as reputational risk if
the new rules are not properly implemented.

Covid-19 has resulted in an additional compliance
burden due to the increased health and safety
protocols to be observedfor colleagues and customers,
use of government support programmes (e.g. furlough
schemes)and anincreased focus on good governance.

Reduced staffing and employees being placed on
furlough, and anincrease inreliance on external
advisors, has also led to anincreased compliancerisk,
slightly offset by the extension of compliance deadlines

The Group has procedures and processes inplace to
ensure compliance with local laws and regulations. The
Group may obtain external advice to supplement the
in-house legal and compliance team.

The Group has anumber of key compliance polices

(e.g. Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption) for which
training has beenrolled out internationally. This is
continually being reviewed and updated to improve
controls and monitoring. The Group's procedures
under its compliance policies include regular reporting
by the businesses to the Risk Committee and regular
monitoring by internal audit. All alleged breaches of the
Group's policies are investigated.

GDPR compliance is determined and managed locally
butis overseenby a steering committee, comprising
leadership from Group HR, Group IT, Commercial
andLegal. The Group's Global Privacy development
programme is temporarily on hold in light of Covid-19,
however, with advice fromits external advisors, the
Group has adopted a short-term simplified controls
programme for FY 2021.

Related to IFRS 16, a new software solution has been
implemented to ensure correct computation of the
impact on the financial statements. Increased frequency
of reviews from country CFOs have ensured that risks
related to completeness and accuracy of the numbers

is mitigated.

Following the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Group's internal, legal and finance teams (supported

by the Business Continuity Committee) have worked
closely withthe local business teams to assess the risk
of non-compliance with laws and contracts arising from
the crisis and to advise on mitigating actions (including
operational protocols to safeguard our various
stakeholders).
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Risk/Risk priority

8 Foodsafety
and product
compliance

o

Strategic priorities

Risk description

Foodsafety andintegrity are vital for our business.
The preparation of food and maintenance of the
Group's supply chainrequire abase level of hygiene,
temperature maintenance and traceability. Non-
compliance with food safety laws or failure to
effectively respondto afood safety incident, can
expose the Group to significant reputational damage
aswellas possible food safety liability claims, financial
penalties and other issues.

Proper management of allergens remain in the industry
spotlight. From October 2021, foods that are pre-
packaged for direct sale in the United Kingdom will
needtohave a label with a full ingredients list with
allergenicingredients emphasised within it (commonly
referredto as’Natasha's Law’).

Anincrease inNGO activism and UK public awareness
has seenincreased pressure toreduce the use of
plasticsinthe food and beverage (F&B) industry.
Network Rail has stated that F&B units must be plastic-
free at their sites by 2020. Switching to non-plastic
alternative materials could have significant cost impact
onthe business. Thereis also the risk of additional
levies beingimposed by the government on the use

of plastic.

Mitigating factors

The Group has implemented a global safety
management programme, setting minimum standards
of health and safety, fire safety and food safety across
allits operations and requiring periodic reporting

of performance and incident statistics. Within this
management programme are food safety standards
whichinclude processes to monitor the supply chain and
tomanage allergens. AllSSP country operations are
required toreportonall food safety incidents (including
allergens) on a periodic basis to the Risk Committee,
whichreports onglobal safety performance to the Audit
Committee every six months.

SSP UK &lreland currently controls allergen
management within the supply chain, supported by staff
training and unit audits. All operational staff undertake
allergen training as part of mandatory trainingupon
commencement of employment in unit. Allunits are
subject to an unannounced‘Safe and Legal' audit by

the Health and Safety team ona 12-monthly cycle. Full
technical guidance and clarity of scope of Natasha’s
Lawis expectedtobe provided by the Food Standards
Agency. The UK allergens working group set up last year
is currently checking which products are in scope,

and sourcingan IT platformto support allergen data
and labelling.

Ongoing reviews of operations are being carried out

inthe UK to determine plastic-free feasibility and
opportunities.

9 Labour laws
and unionisation

()

Strategic priorities

Approximately half of the Group's employees are subject to
collective bargainingagreements. These are principally in
France, Germany, Spain, Denmark, Finland, Norway, Sweden
andthe United States.

The Groupisaalso subject to minimum wage requirements
andmandatory healthcare subsidisationinsome of the
jurisdictionsinwhich it operates, notably North America, the
UnitedKingdomand China. Furthermore, inthe US, costs
have continuedtoincrease due to the FairLabor Standards
Act(FLSA) aswell as the immigration policy which has had
anadverseimpactonthe supply of labour. Thereis arisk that
the Group isunable to offset the costimpact of theaboveon
itsoveralllabour costs,

Thereisalsoarisk that governments will seek further
employee protections as aresult of Covid-19, which could
negatively impact the Group's base costs.

The Group works proactively withall of its unions to ensure
that the various collective bargaining agreements are
appropriate for the Group and therefore minimise
commercialrisks.

The Groupis continually reviewing theimpact of changesin
remunerationstructures in developing mitigating strategies
across the Group. The reviews include the ongoingimpact of
the National Living Wage and the ApprenticeshipLevyinthe
UnitedKingdom, and the impact of healthcare legislationand
FLSAinthe United States.

The Group's strategicplaninresponse to Covid-19includes
initiatives toimprove labour efficiency and profitable
reopening of units with continued focus onroll-out of
technology solutions tosuchas self order Kiosks and order at
table toreduce costs.

Owingtothejob losses due to Covid-19, there mightbe
increased labour supply inthe short to medium termwhich
may mitigate some of therisk of the ongoing labour inflation.

10 Information
security and
stability

©

Strategic priorities

Thereis arisk that the Group becomes exposedto
information security, cyber threats, e.g. threats detailed
inthe Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards
(PCIDSS{asweII asransomware attacks, particularly inlight
of increasedhomeworking of its head of fice staff.

The Group has commencedamajor programme to
implement SAP Inventory and Finance systems which can
risk significant operational disruption. Thereis arisk that
the speed of implementation is negatively impactedby the
Covid-19recovery process.

As the Group adapts to the post Covid-19 way of doing
business, thereis likely tobe anincreased focus on
technology solutions and thereisarisk that the Groupis
unable tomake theright investment of time, capitaland
resource intosuch programmes.

Reductioninresource as part of Covid-19 response may
generallyincrease pressureon|T teams.

The Grouphas developedextensive T disasterrecovery
andinformation security policies and practices, toensure
that these meet the changing landscape. These areregularly
discussedandreviewedby the Risk and Audit Committees as
wellastheBoard.

The Group's new Security operation centre became
operationalin September 2020 (as part of the Company's
Cyber Security Programme). This willhelp toreduce time to
detectandrespondtoincidents (spam, malware attacks,
phishing emails, etc.). Additional layers of protection to
preventransomwareimpactingcritical files onservershave
beenadded. The Group has alsorolled out cyber security
trainingacross the business toreinforce dataprotection
responsibilities and cyberrisks.

The Group's segmental businessmodeland T systems
structure help toensure that potential cyber attacks are likely
toremainisolatedlocallyrather thanimpact the entire Group.

Acleargovernance and management structure hasbeen
setupforthe SAP projectimplementationincluding the
engagement of aSAP preferred partner for theroll-out
whichhas significant experience of implementing SAP at
large companies.

Inlight of the increased working from home by head office
colleagues, the Group hasincreased the roll-out of the new
modernworkplace technology toimprove security of our
laptops across the business (e.g. multi-factor authentication,
encryptionofalldataonharddisks, etc.).
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Risk/Risk priority

11 Benefits
realisation
from efficiency
programmes

©

Strategic priorities

0006

Risk description

The Group s continuously seeking new programmes to
improve efficiency. There is arisk that these programmes
may be difficult toimplement due to complexity, and
furthermore that they couldfail to deliver the desired
benefits, e.g. labour efficiency and minimising waste
andloss.

Theimpact of Covid-19restructuring has been significant
andmay lead to loss of momentumontechnology
enhancements and capital investment that are required for
sustainable growth. Thismay be compoundedby the loss
of resource inareas such as commercial, waste and loss,
procurement and labour management.

Mitigating factors

The Group's strategic planinresponse to Covid-19is being
implemented with focus on guiding the business strategy
through the Covid-19 periodto ensure evaluation of the
overall cost structure. This includes variousinitiatives such
as simplification of product offering and profitable
reopening of units.

The Group has completed a detailed evaluation, planning and
partialimplementation of its major change programmes,
andadapts andresponds to feedback onan ongoing basis.

Toaid these programmes, the Group continues to utilise
specialist expertise inthe business whererequired, bothat a
Groupandatacountry level.

Group IT also provides support for project management and

implementation, using agreed standard business processes
andcontrols.

12 Changing client
behaviours

©

Strategic priorities

Changing client requirements, suchas splitting tenders
across two or more providers, seeking new income
streams through pouring rights agreements, partnering
withoperatorsinjoint ventures, developing third party
purchasingmodels and favouring franchise and local brand
operators or partnering directly withbrand owners or
increasedhealth and safety monitoringrequirements,
may adversely affect the Group's business and /or
profitmargins.

Furthermore, new tender processes canbe more
complexanddemandincreasedrents. However, Covid-19
isexpectedtoresultinareductioninnew tenders and
increased flexibility as clients aim to get through the
downturn.

The Group hasinplace aclear'SSP Value Proposition’that it
presentsto the client toaddress thisrisk.

Senior Group commercial management works closely with
country management teams to enhance and clarify the
Group's propositiontoits clients. Thereis greater

focus ondevelopinginternal concepts to reduce complexity
andcosts.

The Group's contact strategy withkey stakeholders

and clients helps to mitigate thisrisk. Thisisinformed by
its annual client survey, whichis carried outbyan
independent party.

13 Outsourcing
programmes

o

Strategic priorities

The Group may fail to execute outsourcing projects
effectively, resulting in business as usual being
disrupted and the introduction of new third party risks.

Furthermore, any benefits expected from the
outsourcing programme may not be realised.

Staff turnover at outsourcing partners may be
impacted by Covid-19.

The Group continues to utilise specialist resourcesinthe
business tomanage implementationand transition projects,
andit continues touse external advisors to provide input
into the management of risks in such projects.

The Group has temporarily scaled down some outsourced
resources to matchreductioninbusiness operations in light
of Covid-19. This process has been well managed.

There are alsomonthly and quarterly reviews with
outsourcing partners focusing on efficiency and costs to
ensure shared services are being appropriately managed.
Performance feedback is reportedto the Executive
Committee and the Risk Committee onaregular basis.

14 Tax strategy

o

Strategic priorities

The Group may suffer reputational damage if
customers, clients and/or suppliers believe that
the Group is engaged in aggressive or abusive
taxavoidance.

Thereis arisk that the Group may not be tax compliant
due to complicated local tax laws across different

eographical territories. Covid-19 support schemes
%e.g. furlough) have further increased the tax
compliance burden.

Thereisanincreased focus ontax governance fromthe
tax authorities, including the integration of systems
with tax authorities. There continues to be more
investment from OECD into Base Erosion and Profit
Shifting (BEPS) related initiatives. Thereis arisk that
there could be wholesale changes to how taxation
systems work based on the data gatheredin the future.
Thisis also driving digitisationresulting ina cost and
complexity impact.

The Group has atax management policy whichisbased on
the Board's guidance toadopt alow-risk tax strategy.

The Group alsoregularly reviews its tax priorities and has
done soinlight of the Covid-19 pandemic (for example,
the Eat OuttoHelp Out scheme was successfully rolled
outatshortnotice). Thereis alsoincreased oversightand
monitoring of key tax issues within divisions by the Group
taxteam.

Increased disclosure of tax policy and tax payments in Group
financial documents.
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Risk/Risk priority Risk description Mitigating factors
15 Ma[ntenance/ The Group's success is largely dependent uponits ability to Inlight of Covid-19, to provide greater support to the
maintainits portfolio of proprietary brands and the brands regions, the top 10 franchise brand negotiations are being
development of  ofitsfranchisors, aswellas the appeal of those brands to handled by the Group centrally. There are also ongoing
brand pOI’thliO clientsand customers. negotiations with franchise brand partners to obtainbetter
The loss of any significant partner brands, the inability to terms, whichhave beenaccelerateddue totheneedto
o obtainrights to new brands over time or the diminutionin respondto Covid-19.
appeal of partnerbrands or the Group's proprietary brands, The Group continues towork closely withits partner brands,
couldimpair the Group's ability to compete effectively in particularly inlight of Covid-19, to maximise theroll-out
tender processes and ultimately have amaterial adverse of operational efficiencies to ensure units are opening
effectonthe Group's business. profitably despite lower passenger numbers.
Therisk hasreduced over the prior year as, inlight of The Group will continue to carry out customer researchinto
Covid-19, there have been no significant new brand passengers'needs as necessary to ensure its brands and
openings during the year. Inthe short term the need for new concepts have theright offer inthe post-Covid-19 world.
brands has reduced due to the economic disruption caused Finally th ;
: ) - y, the Group continuously looks to strengthenthe
by Covid-19. There ishowever, arisk that some of our brand depthandbreadth of its brand partners as well as to reform
Strategic priorities ~ Partnersmay failduring the ongoing pandemic resulting and strengthen its own proprietary brands.
inadverse financial and reputational consequences for
00 the Group.
16 Expansion into  Historically, the Group's strategy has involved The Group has strong management teams in developing

new markets

©

Strategic priorities

expanding its business in developing markets. The
political, economic and legal systems and conditions
inthese markets are less predictable than in countries
with more developed institutional structures,
subjecting the Group to additional commercial,
reputational, legaland compliance risks.

However, this risk has reduced due to the ongoing
impact of Covid-19 as entering new markets in the
short to medium termis unlikely. However, Covid-19
may extend the time period over which new businesses
canreach profitability after the initial set-up.

markets where this risk exists. In addition, the Group adopts
ajoint venture modelin certain new territories to provide
access to existinglocalinfrastructure and expertise,
aswellas tohelp mitigate therisk inherent onentering

new territories.

The Group has clearly defined authorisation procedures for
all contractinvestments, to ensure that they are consistent
withthe objectives setby the Board and that they fully
consider and evaluate therisks inherent in expansion
intonew locations and territories. The Group works with
in-house and external advisors to ensure the risks of doing
business indeveloping markets are identifiedand where
possible, mitigated before entering those markets. This
includes appropriate due diligence of potentialjoint venture
andotherlocal partners.

The Group legal teamworks closely with country legal
and operational teams to support business development
activities and to ensure compliance with local requirements.

Therisk of workingin developing markets is also monitored
by the Risk Committee, Group Investment Committee and
the Audit Committee.
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Viability statement

SSP Group's operations aremanaged on aregional basis and are
primarily focused onthe airport and railway station food and
beverage salesmarkets. As detailed on page 4 (Our marketplace),
those markets benefit from anumber of long-term structural
growthdrivers andwe are confident that this will remain the case
looking forward, despite the impact of Covid-19 in the short and
medium term. Our business model is focused on meeting the food
andbeverage needs of our clients and customers in the complexand
challenging environments inwhichwe operate. As explained further
onpage 4, SSPhas anumber of structural advantages that we believe
place usinastrong positionto capitalise on the recoveryinour
markets when it comes.

The UK Corparate Governance Code requires that the Board issue a
viability statement confirming that it has areasonable expectation
that the Company canoperate and meet its liabilities for the
foreseeable future. The Boardis requiredto assess this viability over
aperiod of greater thantwelve months, taking into account anumber
of key factors, including its principal markets, its business model
andits strategy as outlined above, together with its current position
and principalrisks and uncertainties.

Ashasbeenthe case inprevious years, the Directors have assessed
the Group's prospects andviability over a five-year planning cycle.
Asthe business is now globally established within a fairly mature
yet dynamic market, the Directors believe that forward planning
over this longer time horizon is appropriate, particularly as this
periodencompasses what is anticipated tobe afull recoveryin
passenger numbers across our principal markets following the
impact of Covid-19.

The assessment process and the impact of Covid-19

The Directors performan assessment of the Group's prospects
throughits annual strategic and financial planning process.

This process is led by the CEO and CFO in conjunctionwith the
Executive Committee andthe country management teams.
Theresults of the assessment are then summarised within the five-
year strategic plan (the Medium Term Plan or MTP), which is discussed
and approved by the Board annually. The most recent MTP, which
coversthe periodfrom 2021 to 2025, was approved in July 2020.

The impact of the global Covid-19 pandemic has created a level of
uncertainty in our markets which has been significant and far-
reaching. While the Directors firmly believe that the demand for travel
inallof our principal markets will returnto pre-pandemic levels in the
medium term, the exact pace and timing of that recovery remains
uncertain. As such, the MTP included anumber of scenariosreflecting
different rates of recovery for 2021 and 2022, and these scenarios
have been further refined over the subsequent five months as the
immediate impact of the virus, and the related government-imposed
lockdownrestrictions, has become clearer. Unusually, and in contrast
topreviousyears, it has been easier to develop longer-term scenarios
basedonexternal forecasts and assumptions around arecovery of
passenger numbers inthe travel sector, than to develop short-term
scenarios, given the high levels of uncertainty surrounding current
national lockdowns and the pace of roll-out of vaccines and other
measures such as testing and tracing.

Since the global escalation of the virus inMarch, management's
response hasbeento take decisive action to protect cash, minimise
costs andraise additional liquidity to allow us to operate throughout
evenour most pessimistic trading scenario. This actiontoincrease
liquidity included a £209m equity placing in late March 2020,
followed shortly afterwards by securing access to the Bank of
England's Covid Corporate Financing Facility (CCFF), under which
facility we are permittedto draw up to £300m. In addition, the Group
alsosecuredaccess toanumber of additional smaller liquidity

lines, including government-backed facilities in France, Spainand
Switzerland, providing a further £44m.

Aswell as raising this additional funding, we have takenanumber

of further steps to minimise operating costs while salesremain at

the current low levels. Furthermare, we have also taken action to
defer allnon-essential capital expenditure, to agree rent waivers and
deferralswithour clients, to suspend our previously announcedshare
buyback programme and to negotiate with our lending banks a two-
year deferral of term loanamortisation payments. The Boardhas also
announced that the Company will not pay a dividend inrespect of the
current financial year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had approximately
£520m of available liquidity, including cash of £185m and committed
undrawnrevolving credit facilities of £150m, as well as afurther
£1/5m available to be drawn down under the CCFF. The £150m
revolving credit facility is committed until July 2022, while the Bank of
England have confirmed that the Group can draw down the maximum
£300mavailable to it under the CCFF for aperiod extending through
toFebruary 2022.

The Directors have reviewedthe financial forecasts and funding
requirements, reflecting all of the mitigating actions outlined above.
Their assessment of viability is outlined below.

Assessment of viability

For 2021, the Directors have reviewed a base case scenario which
is cansistent with the Board-approved 2021 Budget, adjustedfor
the lockdown across England announced by the UK Government on
31 October, aswell as significantly increased government-impased
restrictions inmany other parts of Continental Europe which are
likely toremainin place for the immediate future. The Budget reflects
our expectations of ongoing challenging trading conditions for the
remainder of this financial year, with sales recovering slowly during
calendaryear 2021 to approximately ©60% of pre-pandemic levels
by the end of this financial year. For 2022, the forecast assumes
afurther gradualrecovery, albeit ending the year still below pre-
pandemic levels. We assume arecovery to broadly 2019 levels

of sales by 2023, with organic growth in line with pre-pandemic
norms thereafter.

Due tothe extreme level of uncertainty created by the global
Covid-19 pandemic, there remains a risk, notwithstanding the recent
positive news on the development of potential vaccines, that further
waves of the pandemic could affect our markets during 2021, leading
totravelrestrictions being imposed at short notice and reducing
customer confidence in travel. Accordingly, adownside scenariohas
alsobeenmodelled, applying severe but plausible assumptions to our
base case. This scenario assumes a further twelve week lockdown

(in addition to the November lockdown), lasting from December until
February. The downside scenario thenassumes a gradual recovery,
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but at amuch slower pace than envisaged in our Budget throughout
the second and third quarters of the current financial year. Only by
the fourth quarter do our downside sales assumptions converge with
those inour base case.

Inbath the base case and the downside case the Group would
continue to have sufficient liquidity headroombased on the cash
and available facilities as described above.

Inaddition to the action taken in the Spring to strengthen liquidity,
the Group secured an agreement inMay 2020 from SSP's lending
group of banks and its US private placement note holders to

waive existing financial covenants, testing both interest cover and
leverage, for the two testing periods covering the twelve months

to 30 September 2020 and 31 March 2021. They agreed that

these existing covenants would be replaced between the date of

the agreement and 30 September 2021 by twonew covenants,

each testedmonthly, with the first of these based on the Group
demonstrating a minimum level of liquidity and the secondbased
onthe Group nat exceeding a maximum level of net debt. For the
testing period ending 30 September 2021 both the existingand new
covenants wauld be relevant, with the Group returning to the existing
covenants thereafter, once compliance with the existing covenants
has been confirmed.

Inorder to provide the maximum financial flexibility for the Group
through this exceptionally challenging period, we have now agreed
further covenant waivers and amendments covering the period up
toMarch 2022. Aswas the case with the covenant amendments
agreedinMay, the existing financial covenant testing leverage has
beenwaived, until reinstatedinMarch 2022, with the two temporary,
monthly-tested new cavenants on minimum liquidity and maximum
net debt introduced for afurther sixmonths from October 2021.
For the testing period ending 31 March 2022 both the existing and
new covenants wouldberelevant, with the Group returning to the
existing covenants thereafter, once compliance with the existing
covenants has been confirmed. In addition, we have agreed to an
additional new covenant, testing minimum EBITDA thresholds

for the sixmonths ending 30 September 2021 and 31 December
2021.Modifiedinterest cover tests (calculated on a last six months
basis)will also be applied at these two testing dates. All of these
new covenant thresholds have beenbased on our most pessimistic
trading scenario.

Although the Directors are confident that the Group has sufficient
headroom to stay withinthe applicable new covenants for at least
the next twelve months, they alsarecognise that there is likely to be
continued disruptionto travel markets during 2021, notwithstanding
the recent vaccine developments, and as a consequence it is difficult
topredict with confidence the overallimpact of Covid-19 onthe
Group's profitability in the twelve month period ending March 2022
at this stage. Given this level of uncertainty, there are scenarios in
which the Group could breach its existing interest cover and leverage
covenants at the end of March 2022 and September 2022 when
these tests arereinstated, as well as the minimum liquidity covenant
when the CCFF is expected to be repaid in the first quarter of 2022,

Insuch circumstances, the Directors took account of the fact that
they would be able to raise additional liquidity prior to the repayment
of the CCFF inearly 2022, and that management would remain in
close dialogue with both lenders and noteholders, and would seek
further covenant waivers should the need arise. Nevertheless,

the possibility of a covenant breach during the first quarter of
calendar year 2022, together with the possible requirement to raise
additional liquidity when the CCFF is repaid at that time, cannot be
discounted, and as suchrepresents amaterial uncertainty that may

cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company's ability to
continue asagoing concern.

The Directors have also performed arobust assessment of the
Group's principal risks, which canbe found on pages 35 to 41.
Therisks arelisted inorder of priority. The risk descriptions explain
why therelatedrisks are important, and the Directors believe that the
corresponding mitigating factors adequately address eachrisk, such
that any residual risk falls within the Board's risk tolerance.

Due tothe severe impact of the pandemic inthe travel and haospitality
sector, two Covid-19relatedrisks, both of which are new additions
totheriskregister, are the most significant risks facing the Group
atpresent. One of these reflects the operational challenges that
Covid-19has presented, while the ather highlights the financing
consequences, asoutlined abave.

One of the otherkeyrisks that the Group faces is Brexit. However, as
aresult of the business operations extending across 35 countries,
the business is naturally hedged against adownturnand currency
fluctuations inany one specific market. An orderly exit from the
EUwhereby a deal has been agreedis not expected tohave a
significantly adverse impact that may otherwise arise under
ano-deal Brexit scenario.

Viability statement

After reviewing the current liquidity position, financial forecasts,
stress testing of potential risks and considering the uncertainties
described above, andbased on the current funding facilities available,
the Directorshave areasonable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue inoperation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
aver the five-year period of their assessment to September 2025.
Nevertheless, as described above, the risk of a covenant breach
cannot bediscounted. Furthermore, if the impact of the pandemic
ismore severe or prolongedthanmadelled by the Directors, this
couldresult inmanagement action being required to secure ongoing
liquidity for the business.

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on agoing concern
basis. Asexplainedinnote 1.2 onpage 106, given the ongaing high
level of uncertainty around the exact timing of the recovery inour
markets asaresult of the impact of Covid-19, there are scenarios in
which the Group could breach its existing interest cover and leverage
covenants at the end of March 2022 when these tests are reinstated,
aswellas the minimum liquidity covenant when the CCFF is expected
toberepaidinthe first quarter of 2022.

Inadopting the going concern basis of preparation, the Directors
took account of the fact that they would be able toraise additional
liquidity during 2021, and that management would remain in close
dialogue withboth lenders and noteholders, and would seek further
covenant waivers should the needarise. Nevertheless, the possibility
of acovenant breach during the first quarter of calendar year

2022, together with the possible requirement to raise additional
liquidity when the CCFF isrepaid at that time, represents a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the
Company's ability to continue as agoing concern, and that it therefore
may be unable tarealise its assets and discharge its liabilities inthe
normal course of business.

After reviewing the most recent projections and the sensitivity
analysis and having carefully considered the material uncertainty

and the mitigating actions available, the Directors believe thatitis
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis. The financial statements do not containany adjustments that
would be necessary if that basis were inappropriate.
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Mike Clasper

Chairman
(N )

Mike joined the SSP Board as
anIndependent Non-Executive
Director on 1 November 2019 and
was appointed Chairman following
the 2020 AGM in February 2020.
Mike has served onboards across a
wide range of businesses. He brings

significant andrelevant experience,

in particular an expertise in the
airportand aviation services
industries following his time as
Chief Executive Officer of BAAplc.

Previous experience:

Mike has held various senior
executive positions including
Chief Executive Officer of BAAplc,
Operational Managing Director

of TerraFirma Capital Partners
Limited and President (Global
Home Care & New Business
Development) of Procter & Gamble
Limited. Inaddition, Mike has

held various non-executive roles
including Chairman of HM Revenue
& Customs and Which? Limited and
Senior Independent Director of
Serco Group plcand ITV plc.

External appointments:

Mike is currently Chairman of
Coats Group plc and Chairman

of Bioss International Ltd. Mike
isalsoa Trustee of Heart Cells
Foundation, a Governor of the
Royal Shakespeare Company (RSC)
and an Advisory Board member for
Arora International.

Qualifications:

Mike graduated from the
University of Cambridge with an
MAinEngineering.

Simon Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Simon was appointed as Chief
Executive Officerin June 2019,
havingjoined SSP as Chief
Executive Officer of the UK &
Ireland regionin 2014. Simon
brings significant business and
operational experience to the
Board and has more than 25
years'experience in the retail and
catering sectors.

Previous experience:

Simon began his career at
Fenwicks before moving to Allders
Department Stores, and then
Safeway where he worked inboth
commercial and marketingroles.
Before joining SSP, Simon was

at WHSmith for 10 years, most
recently as Managing Director

of WHSmith's travel division.

He joined the travel division of
WHSmithin 2004 and held the
roles of Trading Director and
Chief Operating Officer before his
promotion to Managing Director.
Duringhis tenure, the travel
division expanded to more than 20
new international markets across
Europe, India, the Middle East and
Asia Pacific.

Inhis previous role at SSP, in
addition torunning the UK
business, Simon's role broadened
internationally, and he took full
responsibility for the integration
and development of the Company’s
jointventureinIndia, Travel

Food Services.

Qualifications:

Simon holds a first class Economics
honours degree from Leeds
University.

Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer

Jonathanhas beenthe Chief
Financial Officer of SSP since its
formation within Compass Group
in 2004. Jonathan brings extensive
financial experience to SSP and has
spentover 25 years working within
retailand FMCG companies.

Previous experience:
Jonathanbeganhis careerin
Unilever plc's management
development programme before
joining OC&C, the strategic
management consultancy, as a
start-up in 1987, where he was
partof its rapid growthand
development tobecome a leading
international consulting firm. From
1995 to 2004 Jonathan worked for
Safeway plc, where he was Finance
Director onits Executive Board
between 1999 and 2004.

External appointments:
Jonathanis aNon-Executive
Director of Assuraplc, where heis
Senior Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Qualifications:

Jonathanholds adegreein
Chemistry from Oxford University
and an MBA from INSEAD Business
School, France.

Carolyn Bradley

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

000

Carolynjoined the SSP Board as
anIndependent Non-Executive
Directorin October 2018. Carolyn
has extensive experience in
marketing and, having worked in
theretailindustry for over 30
years, brings a strong consumer
focus. Carolynbrings significant
board andboard committee
advisory experience to the Board.

Previous experience:
Carolynspent over 25 years at
Tesco, holding anumber of roles
including Chief Operating Officer
for Tesco.com, Commercial
Director for Tesco Stores and
Tesco UK Marketing Director,
before being appointed Group
Brand Director in 2012. She was
also aNon-Executive Director of
Legal & General Group plc.

External appointments:
Carolynis aNon-Executive
Director of Majid Al Futtaim
Retail LLC, Marston's plc
(Senior Independent Director),
The Mentoring Foundationand
B&M European Value Retail S.A.
Sheis atrustee and Deputy
Chair of Cancer Research UK
andamember of the Advisory
Board of Cambridge Judge
Business School.

Qualifications:
Carolyngraduated from the
University of Cambridge with
anMAinEnglishLiterature.

Board Committees

O Audit Committee

0 Remuneration Committee

() Nomination Committee

Chair
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lan Dyson

Independent
Non-Executive Director

000

lanjoined the SSP Board as an
Independent Non-Executive
Directorin April 2014. lan brings

significant financial and business
experience to the Board.

Previous experience:

lanwas formerly Chief Executive
Officer (and then Non-Executive
Director) of Punch Taverns plc,
Chief Executive Officer of Spirit
Pub Company plc, Group Finance

& Operations Director at Marks

& Spencer Group plc and Finance
Director of The Rank Group plc.
Prior to this he was Group Financial
Controller of Hilton International
Co.Hejoined Hiltonfrom Le
Meridien, a division of Forte Group
plc, where he had been Finance
Director.lanhas alsobeenaNon-
Executive Director of Misys plc.

His early career was spent with
Arthur Andersenwhere he was

promoted to partner of the firm
in1994.

External appointments:

lanis Senior Independent Director
of ASOS plc, and a Non-Executive
Director of Intercontinental
Hotels Group plcand Flutter
Entertainment plc (previously
known as Paddy Power Betfair plc).
lanis also Chairman of the Audit
Committee of both ASOS plc and
Intercontinental Hotels Group plc.

Qualifications:
lan qualified as a chartered
accountantin 1986.

Per Utnegaard

Independent
Non-Executive Director

000

Perjoined the SSP Board as an
Independent Non-Executive
DirectorinJuly 2015. Per brings
considerable international business
experience to the Board. Per

was appointed as the Company’s
designated Non-Executive Director
foremployee engagement in April
2019 and further details on this
role canbe found on page 14.

Previous experience:

Per’s previous roles include Group
Wholesale Director and amember
of the Group Board at Alliance
UniChemplc, Senior Vice President,
Corporate Business Development
at Danzas Holding Limited (a
subsidiary of Deutsche Post AG)
and various senior positionsat TNT
Post Group.

Perhas also been the Group
Presidentand the CEO of Swissport
International Ltd, the Vice chairman
of Swissport International AG, the
Chairman of the Executive Board

of Bilfinger SE and aNon-Executive
Director of Xovis AG.

External appointments:

Perhas beenaNon-Executive
Director of Alvest Holding since
April 2019 and Saudi Ground
Services Company since May 2019.
He has alsobeenaboard member
of the Swiss University Sports
Federation since April 2016.

Qualifications:

Per graduated from Northern
Michigan University witha
Bachelor's degree inBusiness
Administration and Marketing.

Judy Vezmar

Independent
Non-Executive Director

(R)

Judy joined the SSP Board as

an Independent Non-Executive
Director on 1 August 2020. Judy
has extensive knowledge of running
complex, international businesses,
andbrings significant expertise
tothe Boardin the field of data
and analytics having held senior
leadershiprolesinthe technology
sector formany years, bothin the
US and internationally.

Previous experience:

Judy was previously Chief
Executive Officer of LexisNexis
International, aglobal provider

of legal, regulatory and business
informationand analytics. Prior to
LexisNexis, Judy held anumber of
executive leadershiprolesinsales,
marketing and strategy within the
Xerox Corporationin the United
States and Europe.

Judy was also a Non-Executive
Director of Rightmove plc from
February 2006 to May 2015,
servingonits Nomination, Audit
and Remuneration Committees.

External appointments:

Judyis currently aNon-Executive
Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of
Ascentialplcandis alsoabusiness
advisor to Gypsy Bean Coffee
Roasters in Florida.

Qualifications:

Judy holds adegree in Marketing
and Business from B.S. Marian
University and an MBA from
Columbia University.

Tim Lodge
Independent
Non-Executive Director

()

Timjoined the SSP Board as an
Independent Non-Executive
Directoron 1 October 2020. Tim
isanexperienced public company
CFOwithastrong financial,
accounting and audit committee
background. He has significant
international commercial
experience and a track record of
advising businesses with complex
global operations and supply chains
inthe food and beverage sector.

Previous experience:

Timbrings relevant food and
beverage sector and supply chain
experience to the Board having
held various positions with Tate
&Lyleplcfrom1988to 2014,
including six years as chief financial
officer from 2008. He also more
recently held Chief Financial Officer
roles with COFCO International Ltd
and the Nidera group, part of the
COFCO International group.

External appointments:

Timis currently aNon-Executive
Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of both Aryzta AG and
Arco Limited.

Qualifications:

Tim holds an MAin Classics from
the University of Cambridge and is
CIMA qualified.
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The Board is responsible for leading the Company, for
overseeing the governance of the Group, and for setting
the tone for the Groups culture, values and standards.

UK Corporate Governance Code

Last year theBoardwelcomed the changes to carporate governance
inthe 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code'), whichis the
standard against whichwe arerequired tomeasure ourselves for year
ended 30 September 2020.

The Code canbe foundonthe Financial Reporting Councils website at
www.frcorg uk. The table below andthis Corporate Governance Report
(which forms part of the Directors'Report), together with the Audit
CommitteeReport (pages 56to 61, Statement by the Chairman of the
Reruneration Committee and Directors'Remuneration Report (pages
62to85)and Strategic Report (pages 1 to43), describeshow the Board
has applied themain principles of good governance set out inthe Code
during the yearunder review.

TheBoard considers that, save as disclosedbelowinrespect of
anexternal BoardEvaluationand as disclosed in the Directors'
RemunerationReport (see page 64)inrespect of alignment of Executive
Director pension contributions to the workforce, for the year ended

30 September 2020, the Company has complied with all the relevant
pravisions set out inthe Code that are applicable to this reporting period.

Inthe 2019 Annual Report, we repartedonsome of the steps the
Companyhadtakentoimplement the Code ahead of its application from
1 October 2019, Since the start of FY19/20, we have continued to review
andupdate our governance framework to embed the newrequirements
of the Code. Inparticular theBoard has focused onrefreshing and
reframing the Group's Corporate Responsibility Strategy, akey part

of whichhas been consideringhow to best consider the interests of

our broad stakeholder group, including calleagues, customers, clients,
shareholders, brandpartners and suppliers, communities, NGOs
andgovernments and regulators when making business decisions.
Further detailsonthiscanbefoundonpages 10to 12,

Corporate Governance Code summary

Another key areafor the Group, particularly considering the impact

of Covid-19onthe business, has been the development of workforce
engagement processes andfostering aculture that alignstothe
Company'spurpose, values and strategy (see pages / and 13 for further
informationonthis).

How we govern the Company

Our gavernance structure comprises the Boardandvarious committees
(detailedbelow), supportedby the Group's standards, policies and risk
management andinternal controlframework, which are describedin
more detailinthisreport.

The Boardleads the Group's governance structure andis assisted by
three principal committees (Audit, Nomination andRemuneration), each
of whichisresponsible forreviewing and dealing withmatters withinits
own Terms of Reference. The minutes of all committee meetings are
circulatedprior to scheduledBoard meetings.

The Company also has several executive management and business
committees (Disclosure, Group Risk, Corporate Responsibility and Group
Executive). These consider various specific matters for recormmendation
totheBoardandits principal committees or to deal with day-to-day
matterswithin the authority granted by the Board. Directors who are not
members of individual Board committees may be invited to attend one or
more meetings of those committees during the year.

The Chairmanof each of the principal committees attends the AGM
torespondtoany shareholder questions that might beraised on
committee activities.

The Group General Counsel and Company Secretary acts as Secretary to
allBoard committees.

Our governance structureis supported by the Group's standards, policies
andinternal controls, which are described inmore detail throughout the
Annual Report.

Board TheBoard's overarchingrole is to promote the long-term sustainable success of the Company, generating value for
leadership and shareholders and contributing to the wider society. Having established the Company's purpose, values and strategy, the
Company purpose  Boardisnow focused onensuring that these matters and its culture are aligned.
For details see pages 1 to 3 (culture, purpose and values), pages 1, 10, 11 and 55 (stakeholder engagement) and page 52
(AGMresolutionupdate).
Division of The Board has aclear division of responsibilities between Board and business leadership and established lines of

responsibilities

authority for each of the Board's committees. Governance arrangements are in place to ensure Code compliance.

For details see pages 47 to 48 (composition, leadership and responsibilities).

Composition,
succession
and evaluation

The Board and Nomination Committee undertake regular composition reviews and succession planning. The Board
undertakes anannual review of its effectiveness and that of its committees and individual Directors.

For details see page 49 (Board effectiveness) and pages 53 to 54 (Nomination Committee activities).

Audit, risk and
internal control

TheBoard, supportedby the Audit Committee, is responsible for establishing appropriate risk management and internal
control procedures, akey part of which is the identification and mitigation of risks in the context of the business asawhole.

For details see page 60 (risk management and internal control) and pages 56 to 61 (Audit Committee).

Remuneration

TheBoard, supportedby the Remuneration Committee, ensures that the Company's remuneration policies and practices support

strategy and promote long-term sustainable success. Executive remuneration s set inalignment with Company purpose and
values andis clearly linked to the successful delivery of our long-term strategy.

For details see pages 62 to 85 (Directors' Remuneration Report and Remuneration Committee’s chair's statement).
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The Company’s governance framework

The Board

Board changes and composition

The Board has seen significant change over the last twoyears.
Following Kate Swann's departure with effect from 31 May 2019,
Simon Smithwas appointed as the new Group CEO with effect from
1 June 2019 Vagn Serensenretired as Chairman of the Board with
effect fromthe conclusion of the 2020 AGM. Mike Clasper joined
the Boardas anIndependent Non-Executive Director and was also
appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee, bothwith
effect from 1 November 2019. Mike was subsequently appointed
as Chairman of the Boardfollowing the conclusion of the 2020 AGM.
The Board also welcomedthe appointments of Judy Vezmar and
TimLodge witheffect from 1 August 2020 and 1 October 2020
respectively. Judy and Tim were appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Directors andJudy serves as amember of the Board's
Remuneration Committee with Tim serving as amember of the
Board's Audit Committee.

As at 30 September 2020, the Board was made up of seven
members, comprising the Chairman, two Executive Directors and
four Non-Executive Directors. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises eight members following the appointment of Tim Lodge to
the Boardwith effect from 1 October 2020.

A I Shareholders and other stakeholders <— | Investor Relations
A
Board of Directors
Strategic development, purpose, values and culture,
corporate governance, risk management
Committees
Group CEO and Audit Committee Remuneration Nomination Committee Compﬁny Secretary
Group CFO Financialreporting, Committee Board appointments, AdvisesBoardon
operational and riskmanagement Remuneration Policy, succession planning, governance, manages
financial governance internal controls, audit rewardalignment Boardskills, diversity information flow
functions with strategy and betwgen Board,
culture, workforce committees and
remuneration policies management
Risk Committee Disclosure Committee Corporate
Assesses and monitors Oversees thedisclosure Responsibility
internal controlandrisk of market sensitive Committee
management informationand other Advises on CR strategy
public announcements
Group Executive Committee
v Day-to-day operational management and implementation of strategy v

CarolynBradley, lanDyson, Per Utnegaard, Judy Vezmar and
TimLodge are considered by the Board to be independent of
management and free of any relationship which could materially
interferewiththe exercise of their independent judgement (in light of
the Corparate Governance Code requirements onindependence), as
was Mike Clasper on his appointment. The Board considers that the
Non-Executive Directors bring their own senior level of experience
gained intheir own fields.

CarolynBradley is the Company's Senior Independent Director.
Therole of the Senior Independent Director includes acting as
asounding board for the Chairman, providing support to the
Chairmanandacting as anintermediary for the Non-Executive
Directors, where necessary. The Board considers that Carolynhas
the appropriate experience, knowledge and independence for the
Senior Independent Directorrale, having held non-executiveroles
invarious FTSE 250 and 100 companies since 2014 including as
senior independent director at Marston's PLC since 201/. The Board
also considers that she has the appropriate experience to chair

the Remuneration Committee, having served onthe remuneration
committees of other listed company boards for more than 1.2 months
prior toher date of appointment as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee. Further details on Carolyn's experience canbe found in
the Director biography section on page 44.
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Per Utnegaardwas appointed as the designated Non-Executive
Director for engagement (ENED) with the Company's workforce in
April 2019 Perisrespansible for gathering the views of all colleagues
andrepresenting these views at Board level. Per'srole is to facilitate
effective engagement with all colleagues and strengthen the link
betweenworkers andthe boardroom. Anengagement planwas
underway, however given the Covid-19 pandemic and the various
restructures around the organisation, thishas now beenrevised.
Agreed activity will be rolled out over the course of FY20/21 and
reportedoninthe 2021 Annual Report. Further information onthe
role of the ENED canbe found onpage 14.

Biographical details of each of the Directors currently in office

are shownon pages 44 and45. The Company's policy relating

to the terms of appointment and the remuneration of both the
Executive andNon-Executive Directors is detailed in the Directors'
RemunerationReport.

Responsibilities
TheBoardis accountable to shareholders for managing the
Company inaway whichpromotes its long-term sustainable success,

generating value for shareholders and contributing to wider society.
Incarrying out thatroleitis primarily responsible for:

* Determining the strategic development of the Group and
overseeing the implementation of such strategy by the Group CEO;

* establishingand promoting the Group's purpase, values and
strategy andensuring that these and its culture are aligned;

* Ensuring that the Company's obligations to its shareholders and
stakeholders are understood and met (and in doing so ensuring
effective engagement with, and encouraging participation from,
these parties);

* Monitoring the Company's culture and reviewing
whistleblowing reports;

* Ensuring that the Company's workforce policies and practices are
consistent with the Company's values and support its long term
sustainable success; and

* The Group's systems of risk management and internal controland
for reviewing the effectiveness of such systems (with the support
of the Audit Committee which oversees the risk management
pracess and oversees internal controls on the Board's behalf)
Details of the Group's systems of risk management and internal
control (including financial contrals, controls inrespect of the
financialreporting process and operational and compliance
controls) canbe foundin the Strategic Report onpages 32to 34,
and Audit Committee Report onpages 56 to 61.

TheBoardhas established aprocedure for Directors, if deemed
necessary, to take independent professional advice at the Company's
expense inthe furtherance of their duties. EveryDirector alsohas
access tothe General Counseland Company Secretary, who'is
chargedwith ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
good corporate governance is implemented throughout the Group.
Together withthe Group CEO and the General Counsel and Company
Secretary, the Chairman ensures that the Board iskept properly
informedand is consultedonallissuesreservedtoit. Board papers
andother information are distributedinatimely manner to allow
Directors tobe properly briefed in advance of meetings.

Theroles of the Chairman, Group CEO and Senior Independent
Director are separate and clearly defined in accordance with the
division of responsibilities set out inwriting and agreed by the Board.
Acopy of the division of responsibilities is available on the Company's
investor relations website (www.foodtravelexperts.com).

Board meetings

The Board manages the business of the Company througha formal
schedule of mattersreservedfor its decisionandindoing so it
receives routine financial and operatingreportstoallow it assess
progress against the above responsibilities. The schedule is reviewed
annually and it was last amended in September 2019.

The significant matters reserved for its decision include:

* Theoverallmanagement of the Company;

» Approval of the business model and commercial strategy
and operating and capital expenditure budgets;

* Oversight of financial reporting and controls including
approval of the Annual Report, financial statements, and
dividend policy;

+ Control, audit and risk management, corporate governance;

 Material agreements, acquisitions and disposals and non
recurring projects and treasury matters;

» Boardmembership, appointments, executive
remuneration and review of Remuneration Policy; and

+ Corporateresponsibility.

The Board has a forward looking timetable to ensure that it
allocates sufficient time tokey areas of business andto allow
sufficient time for debate and challenge. The agendaiis run

with flexibility to adjust the agenda as needed (for example
during the Covid-19 pandemic).

Please see page 86 for details of the powers canferred onthe
Directors inrelation to issuing or buying back shares.

The Board's annual business includes:

* Group CEO'sreports, including business reports;

* Group CFOreparts, including financial results, capital
structure and investor relations updates;

* Strategy setting and updates, including in-depth sessions on
specific areas of the business and strategic initiatives;

* Stakeholder engagement;

* Assessment of progress made by the Group against its
Corporate Responsibility Strategy:

* Assessment and monitoring of the Company's culture;
* Talentreview and succession planning;

+ Consideration of potential acquisitions and
substantial contracts;

* Governance and compliance matters including risk
management and assessment; litigation update,
health and safety, whistleblowing and the Annual Report;

* Financingarrangements, dividend policy; and
 Composition, conflicts and Board Evaluation.
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Meeting attendance during the year

The Board meets regularly during the year, as well as onanad hoc basis, as required by business need. The Board met 12 times between
1 October 2019 and 30 September 2020 and attendance at these meetings is shown in the table below. The increased number of meetings
comparedto previous yearsreflects the increasedrole taken by the Board at the outset of the Covid-19 crisis.

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board, Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees in the year

ended 30 September 2020:
Name Board Audit Committee
Mike Clasper”
(Board and Nom Co Chair) 11of11 -
Vagn Serensen™ 3of4 =
Simon Smith 120f12 =
Jonathan Davies 120f12 =
Carolyn Bradley
(Rem Co Chair) 120f12 40of4
lan Dyson (Audit Co Chair) 110f12 40of4
Per Utnegaard 120f12 4of4
Judy Vezmar™* lofl -

Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee

50f5 =
1of3 =
60f6 50f5
60f6 50f5
60f6 5of5
= lofl

*

Mike Clasper was appointed to the Board and Nomination Committee from 1 November 2019. Mike attended all 11 Board meetings
and all 5 Nomination Committee meetings held following his appointment.

Vagn Serensenretired from the Board following the conclusion of the 2020 AGMin February 2020. Vagn attended 3 out of 4 Board meetings, and

1 out of 3 Nomination Committee meetings held prior to his retirement from the Board. Vagn did not attend all of the meetings for reasons concerning

potential conflict of interest regarding the appointment of his successor.

¥ Judy Vezmar was appointed to the Board and Remuneration Committee from 1 August 2020. Judy attended the 1 Board meeting and 1 Remuneration

Committee meeting held following her appointment.

The table shows the number of meetings attended out of the number of meetings that each Director was eligible to attend. Directors who are
not members of individual Board committees have also been invited to attend one or more meetings of those committees during the year.

Director effectiveness and training

The Chairman leads the Board andis responsible for its overall
effectiveness indirecting the Company. In this light, and in
accordance withbest practice, the Chairman addresses the
developmental needs of the Board as awhole, with aview to further
developing its effectiveness asateam, andensures that each
Director refreshes and updates his or her individual skills, knowledge
andexpertise. Directors are also provided with updates as necessary
onrelevant legal, regulatory and financial developments, changes
inbest practice and environmental, social and governance matters,
deliveredby the General Counsel and Company Secretary and others.

Meetings between the Non-Executive Directors, bothwith and
without the presence of the Chairman andthe Group CEO, are
scheduledinthe Board's annual programme. Board meetings are
alsoheld at Group business locations when possible to help all Board
members gain a deeper understanding of the business, and to
provide senior managers from across the Group with the apportunity
topresent to the Board, as well as to meet and interact with the
Directors onmore informal occasions. This has beensomewhat
curtailedin the second half of FY19/20 given the Covid-19 pandemic
and most Board meetings during this period have takenplace

online, but it ishopedthat this valuable practice will resume when
circumstances allow.

Aformal, comprehensive and tailored inductionis given to allNon-
Executive Directors following their appointment, including visits
tokey locations within the Group and meetings with members of
the Group Executive Committee and other key senior executives.
The inductionalso covers areview of the Group's governance
policies, structures and business, including details of the risks
(including environmental, social and governance risks) and operating
issues facing the Group. Onjoining the Board, Judy Vezmar and
TimLodge bothreceivedinitial tailored inductions to ensure that
theyunderstandthe mainareas of business activity and the key
risks andissues facing the Group. Judy and Tim's induction will
continue over the next year with meetings with the Board members
and otherkey senior executives and advisors. It is hoped that

site visits tokey locations within the Group canbe planned in the
latter half of FY20/21 but this is dependent on the status of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

The Chairman ensures that the Board maintains an appropriate
dialogue with shareholders and further details of the shareholder
engagement programme are set out on page 54.
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Succession planning and culture

Succession planning is amatter for the whole Board, rather than
foracaommittee. During the year ahead, the Board will continue
tofocus on its successionplanning and talent review cycle (in
conjunctionwith the Nomination Committee) to assess and ensure
the readiness of internal candidates for all key roles across the
business. The Company's Articles of Association provide that at
every Annual General Meeting (AGM), each Director shall retire and
seek re-election.New Directors may be appointed by the Board
but are subject to election by shareholders at the first AGM after
their appointment.

The Articles of Association limit the number of Directors to not less
thantwo, save where shareholders decide otherwise. The Articles
of Association may be amended by special resolution of the
shareholders. Non-Executive Directors are normally appointed
(subject to annual re-election by shareholders at the AGM) for an
initial term of three years which isreviewed and may be extended
forafurtherthreeyears. The Boardmay then invite Non-Executive
Directors to serve for a further additional period.

The Boardis committedto leading fromthe top when it comesto
governance, values, culture and leadership, recognising that these are
key considerations for a strong sustainable business. The Company's
values and culture are akey feature of the Board's discussions and
the Boardwill continue towork with the management teamto align
culture and behaviours withthe Company's purpose, values and
strategies. As part of this work, the Company has been developing
anew People strategy, which puts in place plans for retention,
engagement and development of our people with a strong emphasis
onculture. Further details onthe People strategy are provided on
page 13.

Board Evaluation

The Chairmanis responsible, with assistance from the Nomination
Committee, for ensuring that the Company has aneffective Board
withan appropriate range of skills, expertise and experience.
Everyyear, aperformance evaluation of the Board, its committees,
the Chair and the individual Directors is carried out to ensure

that they continue tobe effective, that each of the Directors
demonstrates commitment to his or her respectiveroles and has
sufficient time to meet his or her commitment to the Company.
The Board Evaluation process allows the Chair to cansider the
compositionanddiversity of the Board and its committees.

Review process

Anindependent formal external Board Evaluation is required under
the Code tobe conducted at least every three years and, asnotedin
the Company's 2019 Annual Report, it was intended that an external
evaluationwould take place during FY19/20. As aresult of the
outbreak of Covid-19 andthe significant challenges this had caused
the Company andits management team, it was agreed at the Board
meeting in July 2020 that the external evaluation process would be
postponeduntil 2021.

Accordingly, a formalinternally facilitated evaluation was carried
outaver the course of July, August and September 2020. The Board
intends toundertake anindependent formal external Board
Evaluationin 2021

Scope and nature of review

The evaluation process was coordinated and directed by the
Chairmanwiththe support of the Company Secretary. A detailed
questionnaire was circulated to each member of the Board and the
Company Secretary and individual feedback formed the basis of
in-depth interviews with the Chairman, the Senior Independent
Director, the Company Secretary and each of the Directors.

The Chairman also undertook arigorous review with each of the
Directors to assess their performance and commitment totherole
and to provide feedback on fellow Board members'performance.

The Chairmanthen led a discussion with the Senior Independent
Director, the Company Secretary andthe Chair of each committee
to consider responses and the action points and recommendations
totheBoard. The findings were presented ta the Boardat its
September 2020 meeting.

The discussion of the performance of each of the Chairman, the
Group CEQ andthe Senior Independent Director was also undertaken
by the Non-Executive Directors (without the Chairman being present
for the Chairman’s evaluation, without the Group CEO being present
for the Group CEQ's evaluation and without the Senior Independent
Director being present for the Senior Independent Director's
evaluation) as part of the September 2020 Board meeting,

Findings of review

The findings of the evaluationwere cansidered by the Board and
confirmed the important role performed by the Board in supporting
management through the unprecedented andrapidly escalating
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Company. Additionally the
culture and dynamic of the Board was consideredto be constructive
withopenand inclusive dialogue between the Non-Executive and
Executive Directors, all of which has been enhanced by the recent
changes inboth Chairman and Group CEO.
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The main areas considered during the Board Evaluationwere (i) the size and composition of the Board, (ii) the skills and experience of each
of the Directars, (iii) the contribution of the Directors, (iv) shareholder and wider stakeholder engagement and (v) the performance of the
committees. The outcomes and recommendations from the 2020 evaluation process are set out in the table below.

Key area

Board size, composition,
diversity and skillset

Outcomes and recommendation

Good progress made withregard to the size and composition of the Board.

Areview of Non-Executive Director succession planning, together with a skill mapping exercise should be undertaken to

identify any gaps/areas for development to maximise Board effectiveness.

Nomination Committee to agree aBoard diversity statement and formal policy for adoption by the Board. Furthermore,
followingrecent structural changes to the business in light of Covid-19 and anincreased focus ondiversity generally,
Nomination Committee torevisit its Equality Policy and agree updated Group wide diversity policies for adoption by the Board.

Strategy

The Group's strategy continues to be clearly defined and well communicated.

Boardto continue to consider length of strategy meetings to allow time for the Board to consider and discuss wider-ranging

issues and provide for more extensive debate.

Further consideration tobe given to engaging and consulting with the Non-Executive Directorsinadvance of any

strategy meeting.

Non-Executive Director
interaction with
Executive Committee
and senior management

Subject to Covid-19 constraints, identify further opportunities for interaction with wider management to be builtinto the

annual Board calendar.

Resume (where possible) overseas Board meetings/visits at least twice per year and use these as opportunities to introduce
the Board tolocalmanagement and talent. In addition, all the Non-Executive Directors should consider, whenever appropriate,
usingany other overseas business travel they have planned to also carry out independent, informal visits to

SSPbusiness units.

Risk management
and other matters

Further focus tobe givento these areas and, inparticular, to develop the quality of reporting on healthand safety matters

including food safety.

Audit/Rem Committee
skillset/experience

The Auditand Remuneration Committee skillsets and experience to be further reviewed during the skillmapping exercise

referredtoabove.

Individual Director
performance reviews

Further consideration to be given to the format of the individual Director performance reviews to ensure that they are an

effective assessment tool.

Update on 2019 Board Evaluation

Key area

Board size and
composition

Outcomes and recommendation

The Nomination Committee should continue to determine the optimal size
and composition of the Board and the expertise and skillset of the Directors
needed for the Board to operate effectively.

Update

Board size and compositionimproved
with the appointments of Mike Clasper,
Judy Vezmar and Tim Lodge.

Succession planning

The Board and the Nomination Committee should continue to focus on
greater transparency, forward planning and effective communication
around succession planning.

Succession planning has improved over
the course of FY19/20 with the Director
appointments referred to above and

the processes and planning that were
involvedin thisregard.

Strategy The Board should consider the option of holding a dedicated annual strategy ~ Ongoing.
event or extending the strategy event to allow more time for the Board to
consider and discuss wider-ranging issues and provide for more debate.
Governance The Chairman should ensure the length of meetings allows sufficient Ongoing.
of Board and time for thorough discussions and that Board papers areissuedina
committee timely manner.
meetings

Remuneration
Committee

The current Chair of the Remuneration Committee has taken positive steps

to address the issues arising from the significant vote against the FY 18/19
Remuneration Reportincluding engaging with shareholders. This will continue
tobe monitored throughout FY 19/20.

Ongoing engagement with shareholders
regarding remuneration matters.
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Director performance

Aspartof the BoardEvaluationprocess, the performance of each of
theindividual Directorswas considered. Following the evaluation of

the Chairman, the Group CEO and the Senior Independent Director, the
Non-Executive Directors consider that each of the Chairman, the Group
CEOandthe SeniorIndependent Directoriseffective. The Non-Executive
Directors consider that the Chairman provides effective leadership of the
Board andexerts the requiredlevels of governance and control. Theyalso
consider that the Group CEO has provided effective management of
thebusiness sincehisappointment totheroleon 1 June 2019andthat
the Senior Independent Director continues to performwell. TheNon-
Executive Directorswill continue toreviewtheroles of the Chairman, the
Group CEOandthe Senior Independent Director inthe year ahead.

Further, the Chairman considers that (i) each Director is effective,
demonstrates commitment tohis orher respective raleandhas sufficient
time tomeet his or her commitment to the Cormpany and (i) both the
Board andits committees continue to provide effective leadership
andexert therequiredlevels of governance and control. The Boardwill
continue toreviewits procedures, effectiveness anddevelopment in
theyear ahead Any specificareas for development for the individual
Directorswere fedback to therespective Directorsas part of the 2020
BoardEvaluationprocess.

Shareholder feedback

The Boardgatheredfeedback fromshareholders following the outcome
of the vote ta approve the RemunerationReport at the 2020 AGM andit
was clear that akey area of concernrelated to the leaving arrangements
for our former Group CEQ, Kate Swann. The Board agreed that Kate's
employmentwouldend on 31 May 2019 as it recognised the importance
of asmoothtransitionandbelieved that the most appropriate time for our
current Group CEOtotake over the business would be following the half
year results announcement. Terminationarrangements were agreed with
thisasthepriority.

The Boardrecognises the importance of engaging with the Group's
shareholdersandlast year undertook extensive consultationaroundthe
operation of our Remuneration Policy and our approach todisclosure
inthe AnnualReport. Following these consultations, the Committee

has substantially improvedits approach todisclosure inthe Directors'
RemunerationReport. We remain keento encourage anongoing dialogue
withour shareholders and value active participationinthat process.

We have worked with our shareholders onour newRemunerationPolicy as
further describedinthe Statement by the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and the Directors'RemunerationReport onpages 62to 85.

External Board appointments

Aspart of their ongoing development, both the Group CEOandthe

Group CFOmay each seek ane, externalnon-executiveroleona
non-competitor board, for whichthey may retainremunerationin

respect of the appointment. Inorder toavoidany conflict of interest, all
appointments are subject to the Board's approval and the Board monitors
the extent of Directors'other interests toensure that its effectiveness
isnot compromised. There were no additional external appointments
undertaken by any Boardmembers throughout the FY19/20 year,

Conflicts of interest

EachDirector has adutyunder the Companies Act 2006 to avoid
asituationinwhichhe or shehas, or could have, adirect or indirect
interest that conflicts or possibly may conflict with the interests of
the Company. Thisduty isinadditiontothe obligationthat he or she
owes tathe Company todisclose tothe Boardhisor herinterestin

any transaction or arrangement under consideration by the Company.
The Company's Articles of Associationauthorise the Directors to
approve suchsituations andtoinclude other provisions to allow
conflicts of interest tobe dealt with. The Board follows an established
procedure whendeciding whether to authorise anactual or potential
canflict of interest. Only independent Directors (i.e. those who have
no interest in the matter under consideration) will be able to take the
relevant decision, and in taking the decision the Directors must act in
goodfaithandinaway they consider willbe most likely to promote the

Company's success. Furthermore, the Directors may, if appropriate,
impose limits or conditions when granting authorisation.

Anyauthorities are reviewedat least every 1.2 months. The Board
consideredandauthorisedeachDirector'sreportedactualandpotential
conflictsof interest at its September 2020 Board meeting,

Committees of the Board

Principal committees

The Board has established anumber of committees to assist

inthe discharge of its duties, and the formal Terms of Reference
for the principal committees, approved by the Board and updated
forthe 2018 Code, are available from the General Counsel and
Company Secretary and also on the Company's website. The Terms
of Reference are reviewedannually and updated where necessary.

* Membership anddetails of the principal committees are shownon
pages 44 t045,49,53t0 54, 56to61 and 62 to 85.

* Details of the attendance of the committee members at
eachmeetingare set out inthe table onpage 49 abave.
The Directors'Nomination Committee Report is set out
onpages 55 to 56 and includes details of the Nomination
Committee’s activities during the year.

¢ The General Counseland Company Secretary acts as
Secretarytoall Board committees.

* The Audit Committee'sReportis set out onpages 56 to 61
and includes details of the Audit Committee'sresponsibilities
andactivities during the year.

¢ TheDirectors'Remuneration Report is set out on pages 62 to 86
andincludes details of the Remuneration Committee’s activities
during the year and the Company’s policy on remuneration.

Executive management and business committees

The Company has also established the following management
and or business committees, which are not considered principal
Board committees.

Group Executive Committee

The Group Executive Committee is made up of the Executive Directors
and senior management (comprising regional Chief Executive

Officers and functional heads). The Executive Committeeis chaired

by the Group CEO and meets onamonthlybasis. It is responsible for
developing and executing the Group's strategy, capital expenditure
andinvestment budgets, andreporting onthose areas to the Board for
approval;implementing Group policy, monitoring financial, operational
and quality of customer service performance, healthand safety,
purchasing and supply chainissues, successionplanning, and day-to-
daymanagement of the Group.

Risk Committee

The Group Risk Committee isrespansible for risk management. Itis
made up of the Group CFO and senior management. It meets quarterly
andreportstothe Audit Committee. Further details of the Risk
Committee are set out in the Strategic Report onpages 32 and 34.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee isresponsible for overseeing the disclosure
of informationby the Company tomeet its obligations under the Market
Abuse Regulationand the Financial Conduct Authority's ListingRules and
Disclosure Guidance and Transparent Rules. Itismade up of the Group
CEO, the Group CFOandthe General Counsel and Company Secretary.

It meetsonanadhocbasisandreports tothe Board.

Executive CSR Steering Committee

The Corporate Responsibility Steering Committee, whichis chaired by
the Group CEQ, isresponsible for guiding the ongoing development of
our strategy and monitoring performance against our KPls.
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Nomination Committee Report

The following section constitutes the Directors'Nomination
Committee Report.

Key responsibilities

TheNomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
compositionof theBoardandits committees and makes
recommendations with regardtoany changes considerednecessaryin
the identification and nomination of new Directors, the reappointment
of existing Directors and the appointment of members tothe Board's
committees. It also assesses theroles of the existing Directorsin
office toensure that there continues to be abalanced Board in terms
of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity and sets measurable
objectivesand the policy for Board and senior management diversity.
The Nomination Committee reviews the senior leadership needs of
the Group toenable it to compete effectively in the marketplace.

The Nomination Committee also advises the Board on succession
planning for Director appointments and maintains oversight of a
diverse pipelinefor succession, althoughthe Boarditself is responsible
for successiongenerally. Inaddition, the Nomination Committee
advises theBoard on significant developments inthe law and practice
of carporate governance withinits area of expertise.

The Nomination Committee'skey objective is to ensure that the

Board comprises individuals with the necessary skills, knowledge
andexperience toensure thatitiseffectiveindischargingits
responsibilities. The 2019 BoardEvaluationhighlightedBoard size,
compositionandsuccession planning as areas for development, and
these continuedto be areas of focus for the Board and the Nomination
Committee duringFY'19/20. Both the Nomination Committee and the
Boardhave continuedto consider the leadershipneeds of the Group,
together with the skills and experience needed fromits Directors
going forward. The Committee oversaw the process of identifying and
recommending the appointment of Judy Vezmar and Tim Lodge ta the
Board.Earlier inthe year, the Committee, led by the Senior Independent
Director, oversaw the process of identifying and recommending

the appointment of Mike Clasper as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and Chairman designate.

The 2020 BoardEvaluationrecognisedthat considerable progress
hadbeenmade during the year withregard to Board size, compaosition,
diversity and skillset, with the various Board appointments. Whilst it
was acknowledged that the gender, diversity and experience of the
Board could be further strengthened, it was agreed that this should
formpart of a plangoing forward whichwould be subject to the
speedand level of businessrecovery. Further details about how the
evaluationwas conducted andits outcomes canbe found on page 50.

Asnotedinthe Corporate Responsibility Repart, the Group is
committedtoequal opportunities and non-discrimination throughout
the business, including in its approach to appointing Board members.
Diversity andinclusionare key areas for the Board. Our Equality Policy
outlines our expectation that all of our calleagues shouldbe treated
withrespect andbe able to work inanenvironment inwhich they can
realise their potential, free of harassment and discriminationinany
form, regardless of their gender, race, religion, disability, age or sexual
orientation. We provide training and guidance to our colleagues to
ensurethey understand and comply with this policy. All decisions
relating to employment practices will be objective, free frombias and
based solely uponwork criteria and individual merit.

One of the ways inwhich we measure the success of our approach
todiversity andinclusion isby monitoring the number of womenin
senior management roles. Asnoted on page 14, as at 30 September
2020, 29% of our Board of Directors were female and 23% of senior
management roles filled by women. In addition, we also seek to
support minority groups within our business, for example through SSP
America's partnership withwww.diversityjobs.com. Withregard to the
Hampton Alexander Review, the Board is committedto improving our
current Board gender balance.

The Group believes that diversity, including gender andrace diversity,
butalsodiversity of experience andbackgrounds, is important not only
inthe business generally, but also withrespect to each Board member.
Inorder to help ensure the Board has the appropriate balance of skills
andattributesrequiredforeffective decisionmaking and strategy,
Board appointments are made onmerit with due regard todiversity.
The Company (and therefore the Nomination Committee) currently
does not have set targets for the composition of the Board, the view
being that allemployees should have anequal chance of progressing
their careers within the Company and so that the most appropriate
people are appainted to the Board.

The Company acknowledges that whilst it doeshave anEquality
Policy inplace, there is work to be done regarding updating this

policy andtheway it isimplemented, along with the wider Group's
diversity andinclusion policies and procedures, in each case, toreflect
inparticular the Company’s new values and updated Corporate
Responsibility Strategy. Diversity and inclusion will be afocus area

for the Nomination Committee during FY20/21 and has formeda
partof the Company’s new People strategy. As part of its ongoing
work regarding diversity and inclusionand given therecent changes
tothe Board, the Nomination Committee will develop awrittenBoard
diversity statement or palicy for adoption by the Board aver the course
of the FY 20/21 year. Additionally, following recent structural changes
tothebusinessinlight of Covid-19 andanincreasedfocus ondiversity
andinclusion generally, the Nomination Committee will review the
existing diversity palicies with a view to developing new and updated
Groupwide policies, to be adopted by the Board over the course of
the year Following this process, we will provide an update in our 2021
Annual Report including onthe Group's policies on diversity inclusion,
the policies' objectives and linkage to Company strategy and details
onhow it has beenimplemented and the progress made onachieving
the objectives.

Membership as at 30 September 2020
Chairman: Mike Clasper

Members:|an Dyson, Carolyn Bradley, Per Utnegaard.

Changes: Mike Clasper became amember with effect from
1 November 2019 and succeeded Vagn Serensen as Chairman
of the Committee with effect from 1 November 2019.

Details of the committee meetings held and attendance of the
committee members at eachmeeting are set out inthe table
onpage 49.

Activities of the Nomination Committee

Matters the Nomination Committee considered during the
year include:

* Assessing the composition of the Board and its committees;
+ Talent management and succession planning;

* The appointment of Mike Clasper as anIndependent
NonExecutive Director and Chairman designate of
the Company;

* Therenewalof lanDyson's letter of appointment;

* The appointment of Judy Vezmar and Tim Lodge as
Independent Non-Executive Directors;

* Reviewingthe outcomes andactions of the 2019
Board Evaluation and linking this into Board composition
and succession planning; and

« Carrying out the annual review of its Terms of Reference.
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Board appointment process

The Company adopts a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors and senior executives

with dueregard todiversity. Prior to making anappointment, the
Nomination Committee will evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge,
independence, experience and diversity onthe Boardand, inlight of
this evaluation, will prepare adescription of the role and capabilities
required, withaview to appointing the best-placed individual
fortherole.

Inidentifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee:

* usesopenadvertising or the services of external advisors to
facilitate the search;

* considers candidates from different genders and a wide range of
backgrounds; and

* considers candidates onmerit and against objective criteria,
ensuring that appointees have sufficient time to devote to the
pasition, inlight of other significant commitments.

During FY19/20, the Committee approachedRussell Reynolds (which
hasno other connectionwiththe Company) to assist with the searchto
identify suitable candidates tojoin the Board. The Committee prepared
detailedrole specifications including the expected time commitment
andduties ta be performed, following a review of the required skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity to enhance the composition of
the Board. Mike Clasper, as Chairman of the Committee, submitted
ashort-list of candidates to the other members of the Nomination
Committee andthe Group CEO. Following athorough review process
which considered the time commitments of the roles against other
demandsonthe candidates'time, the Board's approach to diversity
andthe geographic representationamongst the Board, the Committee
recommended that both Judy Vezmar and Tim Lodge be appointed
tothe Board asNon-Executive Directors of the Company. The Board
accepted therecommendations and, accordingly, Judy and Timwere
appointed asNon-Executive Directors with effect from 1 August 2020
and 1 Octaber 2020 respectively.

Inthe year ahead, the Nomination Committee will continue to assess
the Board's composition and how it may be enhanced. The Committee
will consider diversity (gender, ethnicity and experience) and
geographicrepresentation, and will use independent consultants
asappropriatetoensure abroadsearchfor suitable candidates.

Shareholder relations

The Company values the views of shareholders andrecognises their
interests inthe Group's strategy and performance.

Substantial shareholdings

Details of the substantial shareholdings can be found on page 89
of the Directors'Report.

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

Details of the rights and obligations attaching to shares canbe found
onpage 88 of the Directors'Report.

Communicating with shareholders

The Company places considerable importance on communication
withits shareholders, including its private shareholders. The Group
CEOandthe Group CFOare closely involved ininvestorrelations
supportedby the Group's investor relations function, whichhas primary
responsibility for day-to-day communication withinvestors. The views
of the Company's major shareholders are reported to the Board by

the Group CEO and the Group CFO, as well as by the Chairman and the
Senior Independent Director, and are discussed at its meetings.

The Boardrecognises the importance of promoting mutual
understanding betweenthe Company and its shareholders through
aprogramme of engagement. This includes the maintenance of a
regular dialogue between the Board (including the Chairman) and
senior management, and major shareholders. Aspart of this dialogue,
the Executive Directors and the Director of Corporate Affairs
regularly meet with institutional investors to make presentations on
the Company’s results. Further information on how we engage with
shareholders and how we have continued to engage with shareholders
throughout the Covid-19 pandemic can be found onpage 10.

The Chairman of each of the committees engages with shareholders
inrelationto significant matters related to their areas of responsibility
andthis communication has continued despite Cavid-19. For example,
see page 64 for anupdate onhow CarolynBradley, as Chairman of

the Remuneration Committee, engaged with shareholdersregarding
remunerationrelated matters throughout the year. The AGM

provides anopportunity for all shareholders to meet the Board and
raise any questions that they may have. Further informationonthe
arrangements for the 2021 AGM canbe found on page 90. The Notice
of AGM s circulated to shareholders at least 20 working days prior to
the AGM, and it is Company policy not to combine resolutions tobe
proposed at general meetings insofar as they relate to separate issues.
Theresults of proxy voting for and against eachresolution, as well as
abstentions, are announced to the London Stock Exchange and are
published onthe Company's website shortly after the AGM.

The primary method of communicationwith shareholders isby
electronic means, helping to make the Company more enviranmentally
friendly by reducing waste and pollution associated with the printing
andposting of its Annual Report. The SSP Group Annual Report and
Accounts 2020 is available to all shareholders and can be accessed via
the Company's website at www.foodtravelexperts.com. The Group's
annualand interim results announcements are also published on

the Company’s website, together with other announcements and
documentsissuedto the market, suchas trading updates and
presentations. The website also provides shareholders and the wider
stakeholder community withanarchive of information onthe Company,
includinggovernance details, policies and up-to-date share price
information. Enquiries fromshareholders may alsobe addressed to the
Group'sinvestarrelations functionthrough the contacts provided on
the Group's website.
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Stakeholder engagement and Board decision making

Asummary of the Group'skey stakeholders, their expectations and howthe Group has engagedwith themis set out onpage 10. The belowtable
setsouthowthe Board engages andis kept informed of key stakeholder interests and page 11 provides specific examples of how stakeholder
interestsandthematters set out inSection 1/2 of the Act were considered inkey Board discussions and decision-making inf-Y19/20.

Our stakeholders

Our colleagues

Ak
2

How the Board is kept informed

The Boardis provided withregular updates regarding the Group's employees. For example, the results of engagement
surveys and proposed recommendations are reported to the Board as are succession planning, culture, and talent
development initiatives.

Colleagues across the business were consulted as part of aprogramme to review and relaunch our Group Values. Each country
was asked to hold focus group sessions to gather feedback from colleagues across different levels. The feedback formed the
basis for anew set of five Group Values whichwere reported to the Board.

Thereview of workforce engagement policies and procedures, monitoring of culture and whistleblowing reports are built into
the Board's corporate calendar.

Per Utnegaard was appointed as the designated Non-Executive Director responsible for workforce engagement and further
information onthisis set out on page 14.

The Group encourages employees to become shareholders by participatingin the Company’s UK and International Share
Incentive Plans. The Board is updated on the plans and approves the terms on an annual basis.

Our customers

1,

The Boardreceives regular updates on customers from the Executive Directors, members of the Executive Committee and the
Group Commercial and Business Development teams.

The Boardis informed of sales performance, customer and market insights, including evolving needs and trends. This assists the
Boardindeveloping and maintaining its understanding of the Group's customers as well as potential issues and opportunities.

Our clients

The Boardreceives regular updates on the Group's clients from the Executive Directors, through updates from members of the
Executive Committee and the Group Commercial and Business Development teams.

Forexample, the Boardis regularly informed of the pipeline of business including any renewals, new wins or losses and any client
or country specificissues or opportunities.

Our shareholders

6

See above under the ‘Shareholder Relations’section on page 54.

Our brand
partners and
suppliers

&

The Boardreceives regular updates onbrand partners and suppliers from the Executive Directors, through updates from
members of the Group Executive Committee and the Group Commercial and Business Development teams.

The Boardis kept informed of key changes to brand partner and supplier relationships and on supply chain logistics and

opportunities for value creationin the supply chain. There is also amodern slavery compliance process in place which s signed
off by Board.

Our communities

Half yearly corporate responsibility reports which cover the Group's activities with its communities and environment are built
into the Board's corporate calendar.

The Boardis kept informed of these activities primarily through the Group CEO who chairs the Corporate Responsibility
Steering Committee, and is responsible for guiding the ongoing development of our strategy and monitoring performance

2 against our KPIs. The work of the SSP Foundation is also reported to the Board and further information on this canbe
¥ foundon page 15.
NGOs The Group regularly engages with NGOs who provide guidance on key areas of our sustainability strategy and the Group's work
onESGmatters.
Vv X

(Y

Understanding NGO expectations has contributed to positive progress against key areas, such as animal welfare and food
waste. The Board is kept updated on this and of the views of NGOs in the Corporate Responsibility reports and strategy.

Government and
regulators

.
I1X

The Boardisregularly updated by the Company Secretary and General Counsel, other specialists within the business and also
external advisors on the activities and actions of government bodies and regulators relevant to the Company's business and the
legalandregulatory landscape within which it operates.

Regular corporate governance and regulatory development updates are provided to the Board.
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The Committee has
continued to play
akeyrole in SSP's
governance and

risk management
structure, providing
important challenge
and oversight on
behalf of the Board.
Unlike inprevious
years, this oversight
has taken place
against the backdrop
of the Covid-19
pandemic and its
unprecedented
impacton

the business.

lan Dyson
Chairman, Audit Committee

16 December 2020

Dear Shareholder

Onbehalf of the Audit Committee (the' Committee’), |am pleased to present its report for the
year ended 30 September 2020.

During the year, the Committee has continued to play akey role in assisting the Boardin
dischargingits oversight responsibility. As in previous years, its focus has been on monitaring
the integrity of the Group's financial reparting, internal control and risk management
systems, reviewing the effectiveness of internal and external audit programmes, overseeing
business conduct and ethics and ensuring that the Group's processes and controls prevent
the facilitation of tax evasion. Unlike in previous years however, this activity has taken place
against the backdraop of the Cavid-19 pandemic, and its unprecedented impact on the
business, its finances and its people.

The development of Cavid-19 obviously introduced a significantly heightened level of risk
inanumber of areas, in particular inrelation to the health and safety of our colleagues and
customers, to our ability to operate our units andto the financial performance of the business,
Maintaining sufficient liquidity and covenant headroom has emerged as a significant new risk
for the Group, particularly when planning for arange of scenarios amid ongoing uncertainty
aroundthe precise timing of the recavery in our markets. Further details of these risks and
their mitigating controls are set out on pages 33to 3/ of thisreport.

Asthe impact of Covid-19 onthe Group became apparent, the Committee worked with the
Board andmanagement to adapt normal financial and operational controls and governance
processes suchthat they remained effective and appropriate for the new business
environment. Such adjusted controls were kept under regular review by our Risk Committee,
our internal audit function and by the Committee. In addition, our finance teams across the
Group have hadto quickly adapt to the restrictions that remote working imposed, ensuring
that the Group's financial control environment was maintained despite the challenges
presented. This year, the decisionwas made to delay our interimresults (by three weeks) and
full yearresults (by four weeks) inline with advice from the UK regulator to extend reporting
timescales to allowtime to deal with the challenges facing companies adversely impacted
by Covid-19.

Alongside itsimpact onthe operations of the Group, the emergence of Cavid-19 has also
increasedthe degree and complexity of judgemental decisions that needed to be reflected
inour financial statements. Furthermore, this year saw the first time application of IFRS

16, whichhashad avery material impact on the financial statements, and also involved

the exercise of judgement in several areas, notably inthe assessment of lease termwhere
termination options are includedinanumber of property leases. The Audit Committee

has playedanimportant role in challenging management onthe appropriateness of the
judgements made. In addition, the Committee has focused on the completeness and accuracy
of the initial recognition of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on transition to

IFRS 16 and the key management judgements to compute these balances. Covid-19 has
providedaspecific trigger for impairment of fixed assets and ROU assets. Together with
therecoverability of goodwill, the Committee also reviewed the exercise performedby
management to determine the recoverability of these assets for all material cash-generating
units (CGUs). Review of going concern and viability assessment has also remained akey area
of focus.

The Committee seeks to balance independent oversight of matters within its remit, with
providing support and guidance to management. | am confident that the Committee,
supported by members of senior management as well as the internal and external auditors,
has carried out its duties effectively and to a high standard during the year, particularly given
the challenging circumstances following the emergence of Covid-19.

Composition and meetings

The Committee held four meetings during the year and comprises myself and two other
independent Non-Executive Directors namely, Per Utnegaard and Carolyn Bradley.
Attendance at these meetings is shown onpage 49. As Chairman, | have recent andrelevant
financial experience throughmy past roles as a Chief Executive Officer and Group Finance
Director of publicly quoted companies. Since the financial year end, Tim Lodge, has been
appointed to the Board and as a member of the Committee. Tim brings awealth of public
company financial and audit committee experience that will serve the Committee well as the
Group navigates its way through the pandemic and our recovery fromit. The expertise and
experience of the members of the Committee (including Tim Lodge) is summarised on pages
44 and 45 and reflects the competence of the Committee as awhole relevant to the sector.
The Company Secretary, Helen Byrne, acts as Secretary to the Committee.
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At the Committee's request, the Chairman of the Board, the Group
Chief Financial Officer and senior members of the SSP Group

finance andbusiness controls departments attend meetings of the
Committee, together with senior representatives from the internal
and external auditors. The Committee holds private sessions with the
internal and external auditors without management being present.
Iregularly keep intouchwith the Group Chief Executive Officer, the
Group Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary. | also meet
privately withboth the internaland external auditors and provide
regular updates to the Board on the key issues discussed at the
Committee's meetings.

Overview of the year
During the year, the Audit Committee has:

* reviewedthe Group's risk assessment, with particular focus
ontherisks which were deemedtohave increased, either in
likelihood or impact, along with the supporting action plans to
mitigate the risks.In 2020, two new risks were added regarding
liquidity and funding and the impact of Covid-19. Other areas
of particular focus included the impact of Brexit, which has
continued tobe a highrisk areafor the UK business, information
security and stability, and compliance with various pieces of
legislation (for example, GOPR, the Criminal Finances Act, the
Madern Slavery Act and the Bribery Act);

* agreedthescope of boththe externaland internal annual
audit programmes, reviewed the outputs and monitored the
effectiveness of the internal and external audit process, and
evaluatedthe internal audit strategic risk assurance process
anditsrole;

* reviewedand monitored the external auditor's independence
and objectivity; the policy on engagement with the external
auditor to supply non-audit services has remained unchanged:

* overseen therelationship with the external auditor and made
recommendations to the Board inrelation to reappointment,
remunerationandterms of engagement;

* monitored the integrity of the Group's financial statements
and continued to challenge the assumptions and judgements
made by management in determining the financial results of the
Group, including ensuring that the disclosures in the financial
statements were appropriate, particularly following the
emergence of Covid-19;

* overseen the process for determining whether the Annual
Report and Accounts presented afair, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's positionand
performance, business model and strategy; and

* evaluatedand approved the going concern assumptionand
longer-term viability statements, especially taking into account
the guidance issued by the Investment Association and the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC).

The Committeereceives independent assurance fromthe Group's
internal audit function, which is outsourced to Deloitte, and also
receives updates from the external auditors across a wide range of
issues. The Committee isfurther supported by the Risk Committee
whichmeets quarterly and is chaired by the Group CFO.

The Audit Committee's performance evaluationwas undertaken as
part of the wider Board Evaluation process set out onpages 50 and
51 of the Corporate Governance Report.

The terms of reference of the Committee canbe found at
www.foodtravelexperts.com.

In addition to the above, the Committee reviewed the following
matters during the year:

* assessments of impairment of goodwill, intangible assets
and assets held within cash-generating units as a result of
Covid-19 pandemic;

* adoptionof IFRS 16, key judgements and impact of concession
accounting onrent waivers during the year,

* updates ontaxmatters, including the Group's tax strategy:;

* appropriateness of statements on going concern, liquidity and
viability, reflecting the impact of Covid-19;

* praposals for the scope of minimum financial controls reviews
and for the proposed internal audit activity in 2021;

* theeffectiveness of health and safety measures, including
specifically an evaluation of the Group's controls inrespect of
allergens; and

¢ the Audit Committee's terms of reference and the Committee's
overall performance and composition.

Afuller description of the operation of the Committee during
theyear is set out in thisreport. | will be available at the 2021
Annual GeneralMeeting (AGM) to answer any questions from
shareholders about the work of the Committee.



58 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2020

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Financial reporting

As part of our work to ensure the integrity of financial reporting, the Committee focused on the following areas during the year:

Area

Goodwill and
intangible assets

Background

The Group has asignificant goodwill balance, mainly representing
the consideration paid in excess of the fair value of the identified
netassetsacquiredinrelationtothe 2006 acquisition of the SSP
business by EQT Partners, through the purchase of various Compass
Group plcsubsidiaries, by various subsidiaries of SSP Group plc. The
netassetsacquiredincludedintangible assets relating to the Group’s
ownbrands, and franchise rights inrespect of third party brands that
wereidentifiedand valued at the date of acquisition. The goodwill
andintangible assets balance alsoincludes amountsrecognisedon
acquisitions during the current and previous financial years.

The Committeerecognises that thereis arisk thatanasset can
becomeimpaired, for example, due to changes inmarket conditions.
As aresult, the Group monitors the carrying values of goodwill and
intangible assets to ensure that they are recoverable and any specific
indicators of impairment are discussed by the Executive Directors
withboth operational and financial management at Group and
incountry.

Dueto Covid-19, there has been an additional trigger for impairment
inthe currentyear.

Committee’s activities and conclusions

The Committee reviewed the goodwillimpairment assessment
prepared by management and challenged the key assumptions,
including theimpact of Covid-19 on the forecasted sales and EBITDA
andthe appropriateness of discountrates used.

The forecasts used by the management were much more
conservative compared to the prior year. The discount rates have
increasedby c. 2% on average reflecting the increased market risk
and volatility of cash flows. As aresult, total goodwillimpairment
of £33.0mhas beenrecognisedinthe currentyear. The Committee
agreed with this conclusion. The disclosureisset outinnote 13.

Cash-generating
units impairment

Cash-generating units (CGUs) are required to be tested for
impairment annually if there is a trigger for impairment. Historically,

The Committee challenged key judgements made by the
management. Due to the significant increase in the discountrates,

assessment SSPhasbeen profitable and there hasbeenno specific trigger for along with challenging key inputs, we reviewed management's
impairment.However, inthe currentyear Covid-19hasresultedina  benchmarkingexercise against acomparator group of companies
specifictrigger forimpairment.Management has determinedaCGU  whichwas compiled based on externally available data. The discount
tobeasite, e.g. anairportorarail station. rates were notedtobeinasimilar range and as suchwe deemed these
Similar to the goodwill impairment assessment, managementhave  t0bereasonable. Wealso challenged the consistency of forecasting
exercisedsignificantjudgement duringthe processrelating to assumptions useq inthis exercise against t.hose used forthe goodwill
discountrates, future growthrates and cash flows. Management impairment exercise. Whilst the CGUimpairment exercise was
have carefully considered the impact of Covid-19ineach CGU. carried outatamuchmore granular levelandmanagement have
exercisedjudgement based on theirknowledge of specific cash flows
foreachsite, we noted that overall the forecasting assumptions were
consistent with forecasts used for the goodwillimpairment and going
concernexercises.
Totalimpairments recognisedrelated to fixedassetsandROU assets
are£384mand£38.2mrespectively. Theimpairment primarily
arose onthose sites whichwere expiringin the next twoto three
years and as such there was not sufficient time to allow for recovery
tonormallevelof sales and profitability. We also noted that quite a
few sites which were marginalin prior periods were also impaired due
tofurther reduced profitability as aresult of Covid-19.
Further details onimpairments have beenset outinnotes 12 and 14.
Taxation The Group operates, andis subject toincome taxes, inanumber The Committee reviewed the Group's tax strategy andreceived
of jurisdictions. Management is required to make judgements and reportsand presentations fromthe Head of Tax, settingout the tax
estimates in determining the provisions for income taxes and the strategy and highlighting the principal taxrisks that the Group faces
amount of deferred taxassets and liabilities recognisedin the and thejudgements underpinning the provisions for potential tax
consolidated financial statements. liabilities. The Committee also reviewed the results of the external
The Committee recognises that management judgement is required auditor's assessment of provjsions forincome taxes anddeferredtax
in determining the amount and timing of recognition o taxbenefits ~ assetsandliabilities, andhaving done sowas satisfied with thekey
and anassessment of the requirementtomake provisionsagainst ~Judgements made by management.
therecognition of suchbenefits.
Going concern Inorder tosupportits going concernassessment, the Groupcarries  The Committee challenged management's trading and liquidity
and viability outreviews of its available resources and cash flows regularly witha  forecasts for both the base case and the downside scenario, focusing
statement more detailed viability assessment carried out onan annual basis. onthereasonableness of the pace of recovery of passenger numbers,

Covid-19 hashad amaterialimpactonthe Group's operations
andcash flows. There is considerable uncertainty surrounding

the ongoing impact of the pandemic. In making the going concern
assessment, the Directors have modelled two scenarios for the
period toMarch 2022 with the base case scenario reflecting

the Budget for 2021 adjusted for the lockdown across England
announced by the UK Government on 31 October, as wellas
significantly increased government-imposedrestrictions inmany
other parts of Continental Europe. The downside scenario shows a
further 12-week lockdownand amuch slower recovery.

continuedand timely access to finance such as the Bank of England's
Covid Corporate Financing Facility (CCFF) and the ability to meet its
existing financial covenants.

Wenoted that whilst the Group has managed to obtainwaivers
toSeptember 2021, there are scenarios inwhich the Group could
breachits existinginterest cover and leverage covenants at theend
of March 2022, as well as the minimum liquidity covenant when the
CCFFis expectedtoberepaidinthe first quarter of 2022.

However, following the review, the Committee was satisfied and
recommended to the Board that the Directors should continue to
adopt the going concernassumption, notwithstanding that material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt onthe Group's and
the Company's ability to continue as agoing concern.
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Area Background Committee’s activities and conclusions
IFRS 16 The Group adopted IFRS 16'Leases'with effect from 1 October The Committee has closely reviewed management's key assumptions
2019 using the modified retrospective approach to transition. andaccountingjudgements onIFRS 16 at each Audit Committee
Adoption of the new standard has had amaterialimpact on the meeting held during the year with aspecific Audit Committee
Group's financial statements, withright-of-use (ROU) assets of meetingheldin Apriltosolely discuss IFRS 16 and its impact onthe
£1,468.9mrecognised on transition together with lease liabilitiesof  half year and full year financial statements.
£1,464.4m.Managementhas made key assumptionsincomputing e reviewed management's approach to ensure that the opening
thesebalances atalease levelwhich are inherently judgemental. ROU assets and lease liability recognised at the transition date was
Evenminor changesinkey assumptions maderelatedtodiscount complete andaccurate. Controls put in place included an audit carried
rates, futurerental payments and lease term couldresultina out by the Group Finance department on all material territoriesin
materialchange to the balances. addition toreviews by local senior finance management.
Key challenges for this year included the impact of rent waivers
grantedby landlords in the current year and the application of IASB
concessionaccountingwhich canonly be appliedif strict criteria
are met. We probed management's approach for recognising these
concessions as suchrather thanas contract modifications.
Otherkeyjudgements around lease term, capitalisation of specific
contracts and computation of discount rates werereviewed by the
Committeeinthe prior year and deemed tobereasonable. There has
beenno change inmanagement approach onthese assumptionsin
thecurrentyear.
Overall, the Committeeis satisfied that the balances recognised
attransition, the key assumptions made during the year, closing
balances andkey disclosures includedin the financial statements are
materially correct.
Alternative Inadditionto IFRS based performance measures, the Directorsalso  The Audit Committee noted the guidance issued by the FRCin
performance use alternative performance measures (APMs') to provide additional - relationto the use of APMs and considered whether the performance
measures usefulinformationonthe underlying trends, performance and measures used provided meaningfulinsights for shareholdersinto

position of the Group (see page 31). These measures are not defined
nor specifiedunder IFRS and therefore are notintendedtobe a
substitute for the same.

Further, as this is the year of transition to IFRS 16, management have
presented’'ProformalAS 17’ numbers together with the statutory
numbers to demonstrate comparability with the prior period.

the Group'sresults. The Committee also reviewed the treatment of
items considered for separate disclosure in the Annual Report and
Accounts, ahead of their approval by the Board. The Committee also
continued to support the judgements made by the management
regarding those items considered as exceptional and requiring
separatedisclosure.

The Committee concluded that clear and meaningful descriptions
hadbeen provided for the APMs used and that the relationship
betweenthese measures and the statutory IFRS based measures
was clearly explained. It was also concluded that the Committee
supported the considered understanding of the financial statements,
and that the APMshadbeenaccorded equal prominence with
measures that are defined by, or specified under, IFRS.

The Committee reviewed the'ProformalAS 17'disclosures added
inthe currentyear and concluded that these werereasonable to
include during the first year of adoption of IFRS 16 for comparability,
however, would no longer be required going forward as the
comparatives willbeunder IFRS 16.

Fair, balanced and
understandable
financial
statements

Anintrinsicrequirement of a Group's financial statementsis

for the Annual Reportand Accounts to be fair, balanced and
understandable. The coordination and review of the Group-wide
inputinto the Annual Report s asizeable exercise performed
withinan exacting timeframe, whichruns alongside the formal audit
process undertaken by the external auditor.

The process to ensure that the Committee, and then the Board,
are satisfied with the overall fairness, balance and clarity of the
documenthas beenunderpinnedby:

* guidanceissuedto contributors atanoperational level;

* averificationprocess dealing with the factual content of the
reports;and

» acomprehensivereview by the Directors and the senior
management team.
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Risk management and internal control

The Boardhas overall responsibility for risk management and internal
control systems, andfor reviewing their effectiveness. This process
isoverseen by the Committee on the Board's behalf It is increasingly
important that thisis carried out in the context of the social,
environmental and ethical matters relating to the Group's business.

The system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasanable, but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement, loss, fraud or breaches of law and regulations.

The Board has established a clear organisational structure with
defined authority levels. The day-to-day running of the Group's
businessis delegated to the Executive Directors of the Group.

The Executive Directors meet with both operational and financial
management on aweekly and monthly basis. Key financial and
operational measures are reported onaweekly and monthly basis,
and are measured against bath budget andreforecasts in these
meetings. This process has been adapted where neededby the
CEOand CFOtareflect the nature of reporting required during the
Covid-19 pandemic.

The Group maintains Group and regional/country level risk registers
which outline the key risks faced by the Group including their impacts
and likelihood, along with relevant mitigating controls and actions.
Onanannual basis, regional and country management teams are
requiredto update their localrisk registers and risk maps to ensure
that the key strategic, operational, financial, as well as emerging risks
ineachlocation are captured and prioritised according to likelihood
andimpact, and ta identify the risk management activities for each
risk. The regional and country risk registers are used in conjunction
withinput fromthe Executive Committee, to update the Grouprisk
register. The Risk Committee and Executive Committee review the
assessment of risks, aswell as current and future mitigationactivities
atboth the Group and regional/country levels. The Committee
reviewed this process and asummary of therisk registers during
theyear.

Following this process, asummary of the principal risks and
uncertainties which are currently judged to have the most significant
impact onthe Group's long-term performance is set out on pages
19to24.

The Committee reviewedthe effectiveness of the Group's financial
and other internal control systems through the annual Control
Self-Assessment process, as well as the reports of the internal

and external auditors during the year. It subsequently reported on
these mattersto the Boardtoallow it to carry out its review (see
pages 33-34).

Internal audit

Deloitte acts as internal auditor to the Group, and the partner
responsiblereports directly to the Audit Committee, in addition to
being apermanent member of the Risk Committee. Internal audit
playsanimportantrole in assessing the effectiveness of internal
controls through a programme of reviews based ona continuing
assessment of business risks across the Group.

Internal audit is inregular dialogue with the regional Chief Financial
Officers and the Group Chief Financial Officer, to discuss the output
fromthe assurance work and acquire an update onthe business risks
across the Group. Where control deficiencies are noted through the
assurance work performed, Deloitte will perfarm follow-up reviews
andvisits.

The Committee meets regularly with Deloitte ta review and
progress the Group's internal audit plan. The relevant audit planand
procedures are aimed at addressing risk management objectives
and providing coverage of therisks identifiedintheregionaland
countryriskregisters. The internal audit plans have been prepared
inaccordance with standards promoted by the Chartered Institute
of Internal Auditors. The Committee continues to monitor the
effectiveness of internal audit plans in accordance with the Group's
ongoing requirements.

As aresult of Covid-19, its impact on SSP's operations and majority

of the staff being on furlough, the planned internal audit programme
for the year was largely postponed. In addition, the Control Self-
Assessment (CSA)was replaced with a'MinimumFinancial Controls'
(MFC) exercise which focused ona smaller number of key controls
expectedtobeinplace acrossall local finance operations. The output
of the exercise was reviewed by the Committee which ensured that
any proposed actionwas timely and commensurate with its level of
risk, whetherreal or perceived.

Despite the challenges arising from Covid-19, it was noted that there
were na significant weaknesses identified in the year that would
materially impact the Group as awhole. The Committee continues

to closely monitor the impact of Covid-19 and will ensure the
resumption of full scope of internal audit and CSA programmes at the
appropriate time once the outlook has impraved. For the current year,
the Committee remains satisfied that the Group's systemof internal
controls works well.

The Committee determines the adequacy of the performance

of the internal audit process through the quality and depth of
findings and recommendations. During 2020, the Committee also
carried out aformal assessment of the internal audit process,

using questionnaires completed by senior finance personnel both

at Group andin country, along withkey members of the business
controls, legal and tax departments. The survey covered areas such
as organisation, purpose and remit, process management, quality of
theteam, knowledge and expertise, and communication of results
andrecommendations. The survey indicated an overall satisfaction
withthe internal audit process, including Deloitte's interactions
withthe local teams as well as their understanding of the business
andtheissuesit faces. The Committee discussed theresults of the
survey with Deloitte and was satisfied with the internal audit process.
Theresults and feedback fromthe survey were incorporatedinto the
next year's internal audit plan.
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External audit

The effectiveness of the external audit process and independence
of KPMG LLP (KPMG), the Group's external auditor, is key to ensuring
the integrity of the Group's published financial information. Prior to
commencement of the audit, the Committee reviewed and approved
the audit plan to gauge whether it was appropriately focused.

KPMG presentedto the Committee its proposed plan of work, which
was designed to ensure there are no material misstatements in the
financial statements. The Committee considered the accounting,
financial control and audit issues reported by the external auditor
that flowed from their audit work.

During the 2020 financial year, the Committee carried out an
assessment of the external audit pracess, including KPMG'srale in
that process. Thiswas supported by the results of discussions with
individual Committee members and questionnaires completed by
senior finance personnel both at Group and in country, along with key
members of the legal and taxdepartments. The survey covered areas
such as communication, the audit approach andscope, the calibre of
the audit teams, technical expertise, and independence. The survey
indicated overall satisfaction with the services provided by KPMG
and the Committee was satisfied withKPMG's responses to the
pointsraisedinthe survey. Theresults and feedback fromthe survey
were incorporated inthe next year's external audit plan.

In 2015, the Group tendered its external audit appointment and
asaresult, KPMG was reappointed as external auditor. The audit
partner for the year ended 30 September 2020 was Nicholas Frost.
Under the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 (the "CMA Order”)
the Group is required to put its external audit process out to tender
againby nolater than 2025 and intends to do so in line with those
regulations. The Committee confirms it is in compliance with the
provisions of the CMA Order.

Auditor independence and non-audit services policy

The Committee has adoptedaformal policy governing the
engagement of the external auditor to provide non-audit services,
taking into account the relevant ethical guidance on the matter.

This policy is reviewed annually by the Committee, which describes
the circumstances inwhichthe auditor may be engagedto undertake
non-audit work for the Group. The Committee oversees compliance
withthe policy, and considers and approves requests to use the
auditor for non-audit work.

Recognising that the auditor isbest placed to undertake certainwork
of anon-audit nature, .e g audit related services, the engagements
fornon-audit services that are not prohibited are still subject to
formalreview by the Committee based onthe level of fees invalved,
withreference to the /0% cap that applies. Non-audit services that
are pre-approved are either routine innature with afee thatis not
significant inthe context of the audit, or are audit-related services.

The Group had updated its non-audit services policy in the prior
year to ensure it remained in line with the latest ethical guidance.
Therewere nofurther changes made during the year.

Details of fees payable to the external auditor are set out innote 6
onpage 118.1n 2020, non-audit fees represented approximately
20% of the audit fee. KPMG has provided services to certain Group
companies and the non-audit fees in 2020 included £0.1m of fees for
assurance work inrelationto turnover certificates, which are needed
to comply with certain local regulations.

The external auditor reported to the Committee onits independence
fromthe Group and confirmed it had complied with the independence
requirements as set out by the APBEthical Standards for Reporting
Accountants. The Committee is satisfied that KPMG has adequate
policies andsafeguards inplace to ensure that auditor objectivity and
independence are maintained.

FRC Correspondence

During the year, the UK regulator (FRC) reviewed the SSP Annual
Reportand Accounts 2019 and asked the businessto consider a
number of technical disclosure matters. The Committee has reviewed
the letter fromthe FRCand SSP's response. As aresult, SSPhave
clarified and enhanced some disclosures in this Annual Report and
Accounts. The enquiry was closed.

lan Dyson
Chairman, Audit Committee

16 December 2020
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Introduction

Onbehalf of the Board and the Remuneration Committee, | present the Directors'
Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 September 2020, which contains:

* TheupdatedDirectors'Remuneration Policy, to be put to a shareholder vote at the
2021 AGM.

+ Theannualremunerationreport, describing how the existing policy has been applied
inthe 2020 financial year and how the updated policy will be implementedinthe 2021
financial year.

Response to Covid-19

Prior tothe onset of Covid-19, the business was on track to deliver another solid set of
financialresults. However, by the second quarter, the impact of the Covid-19 outbreak in Asia
andthe strict restrictions put inplace there and elsewhere in the world became apparent and

O LUr new travelalmost immediately ground to ahalt. By April, sales were down 95% across the Group.
. Whenthe virus first emerged, our immediate priority was to ensure the health and safet
Rem un erat 10N of our colleagues and custgomers, andto protepct our\/busmess for the future. We mtroduc\/ed
p l h heightened safety protocols to ensure we could keep our colleagues and customers safe.
O le Supports t e Costswere significantly reduced, and by April we had secured approximately £ /50m of
. . liquidity through an equity placing as well as accessing Government loan schemes, enabling
evo {\/lng St rateglc us to trade throughaprolongedrecovery. The Board and Senior Management took significant
Sy salary reductions and our Group CEO proposed to waive his bonus for 2020. We were able
p Mo rlt €S Of toretainsome of the cashrelated to the payment of the final 2019 dividend as we gave
shareholders the opportunity toreinvest the proceeds of that dividend payment into new
the Group. S5Pchares
Where we neededto close our units, we sought to protect as many jobs as possible through
Carolyn Bradley utilising any available job support schemes. It iswith regret that the prolonged nature of this
Chair, Remuneration Committee crisis resulted inus having to take the difficult decision torestructure in order to protect the
16 December 2020 business, leading to considerable job losses.

The Committee wouldlike to take this opportunity to thank our colleagues, both on the frant
lineand those inour support functions. Our teammembers demonstrated our Values by
resiliently continuing to provide services to the travelling public, many of whom have been
key workers. Our management team have worked incredibly hardto ensure the safety and
wellbeing of our colleagues and to protect the business for the future.

By the end of the third quarter, restrictions had begun to ease inanumber of countries
andwe begantore-openunits using anew flexible operating model. By year end, we were
operating c. 1,200 of our units profitably across the Group and sales hadrecovered slowly to
approximately 24% of pre-Covid levels. A significant focus on cash preservation enabled the
Group to minimise the cash outflow in the second half of the year and by the end of the year,
SSPhad some £520m of liquidity.

Since the year end, there-instatement of local and national lockdowns, notably in the UK and
Continental Eurape, hasresulted in further volatility in passenger numbers which we expect
to continue through the second quarter of the new financial year. We are optimistic that, allied
to the rollout of the Covid-19 vaccination programmes, we will see the start of arecovery
inthe second half of the year. We are ready to respond quickly. The actions we are taking to
rebuild the business will put us in a strong position to capitalise on the recavery as well as
future opportunities, enabling us to deliver long term sustainable growth for the benefit of all
our stakeholders.

It is against this backdrop that the Committee considered remuneration out-turns and our
new policy. Indoing so, we have sought to balance alignment with our shareholders, workforce
andwider stakeholders, while ensuring our policy will support the rebuilding of the business
andlong term sustainable growth.
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Executive pay - response to Covid-19

Salary reductions

As announced on 25March 2020, significant salary reductions were
made across all senior management, the Group Executive and Group
Board. Salaries were reduced by 30% from April 2020.NED fees
were also reduced by 30% during this time. For September, SSP's
management and Board agreedto a salary/fee reduction of 10%.

Bonus waived

For the year ended 30 September 2020, the Group CEOwas eligible
toreceive abonus based 80% onunderlying operating profit and
20% onperformance against strategic objectives. The Group CFO
was also eligible tareceive abonus based onunderlying operating
profit and strategic objectives, assessed using the Group's
Management Bonus Plan matrix structure which has been operatedin
prior years andwhich applies to our management population.

The underlying operating profit threshold was not met and the
decisionwas taken to not pay abonus to our wider management
team, a decisionwhichthe Committee believed appropriate inthe
current conditions. On this basis, no bonus was earned by Jonathan
Davies in the year, despite the fact that his strategic objectives were
satisfied (as set out later inthe report).

The Group CEO would have beenentitled to a potential annual bonus
under the strategic element. However, Simon Smith volunteered
towaive his bonusfor this year and this waiver was agreed by the
Committee andthe Board. Notwithstanding that the bonus had been
waived, the outcome of this element has been provided in this report.
Inline with our Policy, we assessed our Executive Directors'strategic
performance based onthe targets set at the start of the year, against
whichrobust performance was still delivered. However, as the crisis
hit, the business'priorities changed drastically and our Executive
Directors performed outstandingly to protect the business through
their decisive andimmediate actions.

NoLTIP pay-out
The performance conditions for the 201/ PSP were not met, and
therefore the award has lapsed in fulland no shares will vest this year.

Remuneration Policy Review

The Remuneration Policy ("Policy") was last approved by shareholders
atthe 2018 AGMand is due for renewal this year. We have taken

this opportunity toreflect on our approach to executive pay in

the context of the ongoing external uncertainty and our evolving
business strategy.

Taking into account the long-termstrategic needs of the business
and the views of our shareholders, the Committee proposes to make
the following changesto the Policy.

Our evolving pay governance
Last year, we made anumber of good governance changes ahead
of our Policy review. These changes included the following;

* Strengthened annual bonus deferral by introducing the
requirement for 33% of any bonus earnedto be deferredinto
sharesfor three years regardless of whether the minimum
shareholding requirement is met.

* Improved thetransparency of the annual bonus target disclosure.

* Pensions for any new Executive Directors aligned with the rate for
the wider workforce.

* Minimum shareholding requirements for the CEO and CFO
increasedto 250% and 200% of salary respectively

* Introduced post-employment shareholding requirements for
Executive Directors.

Inreviewing our Policy we have continued to be mindful of good
governance practice and will be making further changes to align
pensiontoworkforce, asdescribed on page 64.

Restricted Share Plan

We have thought very carefully about the pay model to best support
the business going forward. SSP faces some significant challenges as
we work torestore and grow shareholder value in a highly uncertain
environment. The conclusion we have come to'is that the restricted
share model best supports the recovery of the business.

We are therefore proposing toreplace the Performance Share Plan
("PSP")with a new Restricted Share Plan ("RSP") under which our
Executive Directors will receive a more modest award (than under the
PSP) subject to performance underpins. We believe that arestricted
shareplanistheright approachto support the business far the
following reasons:

* Supports dynamic and responsive management actions as the
external environment develops - We want management to take
theright actions to rebuild the business to deliver long term
sustainable growth over what is expected to be aprolonged and
potentially volatile recavery cycle. The Committee believes that
the proposed RSP will support management in its execution and
delivery of this.

* Target setting - The environment remains highly uncertaininterms
of trajectary of recovery. Passenger numbers (PAX) at the sites
atwhich SSP operates is akey driver of profit growthandinthe
current environment, we cannot forecast how PAX will recover
and, when it does, if this recovery would mirror SSP's portfolio of
locations and units. That gives us challenges with setting three year
targetswhichwith the benefit of hindsight may be set too low or
too challenging. Therestricted share modelrewards management
for taking the right actions to deliver long term sustainable growth
over therecovery cycle rather thanhitting a specific target in
threeyears.

* More modest reward with performance underpins - The more
modest reward is strongly aligned with our shareholders'
experience andrewards participants for restoring the Group's
share price which feels appropriate to the current circumstances.
We will also operate a performance underpin to ensure there
isno payment for failure and that overall levels of vesting
arereasanable.

* Retentionacross the wider management team - The operation
of therestricted share planwill be aligned across the wider
management team. The restricted share model is simple and
transparent, and although the upside ismore modest, it is
expectedto better support retention and be appropriately
motivating at below board level where there is arisk that
management with transferable skills may move to less hard-
hit sectors.

The maximum award under the proposed policy will be 100% of
salary forthe CEO and /5% of salary for the CFO, whichrepresents a
50%reduction from the maximum level of awards under the current
PSP reflecting shareholder expectations when moving to arestricted
share model. Vesting will be subject to a performance underpin which,
forthe firstawardis detailed onpage /1. Awards will be subject
toathree year vesting period and two year holding period, so that
thetotal time horizon before any potential sale of shares is five years,
in linewith best practice.

Tosupport our restricted share model approach we are asking
shareholders to approve the planrules of the Restricted Share Plan
atthe AGM.
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CONTINUED

Pensions policy

As part of our Policy review we are committing to reducing pensions
for incumbent Executive Directors to the rate applied to the majority
of the wider workforce from the end of the 2022 calendar year, inline
withthe Investment Association guidance. Prior to Covid-19 we had
beguntoreview the pension provisions available for our UKbased
colleagues. This unfortunately had to be pauseddue to changing
priorities as aresult of the pandemic. This review will confirm the

rate available to the wider workforce and therefore therate that the
Executive Directors will be aligned to fromthe end of 2022.

Board changes

As announced on 1 November 2019, Mike Clasper succeeded Vagn
Serensen as Chairman of the Company following the 2020 Annual
General Meeting. His fee was set at £2/5,000. Further, as announced
on 31 July 2020, Judy Vezmar joined the Board during the year as an
Independent Non-Executive Director and a Remuneration Committee
member.Post year end, as announced on 1 October 2020, Tim Lodge
was appointedto the Board as anIndependent Non-Executive
Director and Audit Committee member. Each receives abase

feeof £51,000.

Salaries for the 2021 financial year
This year, there willbe no salary increases for our Executive Directors.

Operation of the annual bonus plan for 2021 financial year

This year we are proposing to simplify the structure of the
Management Bonus Plan and have revised the performance metrics
toalignwithourrecovery strategy. The structure forour CEO and
CFOwillnow be aligned, with 80% based on financialand 20% based
onstrategic objectives.

Taking into account the significant market uncertainty, thisis a
challenging year to set financial targets. As a Committee we consider
that it isstillappropriate for a significant portion of the bonus to be
based onfinancial measures. We consider EBITDA andNet Debt tobe
the key measures for management to focus oninthe short to medium
term. We have thought carefully about how best to adapt the target
setting framework ta thisuncertain environment. Inthat context,

our annual bonus policy allows for us to account for some external
factors, including reference to passenger numbers (PAX) and revenue
achieved, in determining a suitable bonus autcome. The Committee
anticipates that it willapply a greater than normal level of judgement
anddiscretionwhen considering outcomes for the year.

Engagement with shareholders

As part of our Policy review, we wrote to shareholders representing
¢.80% of our shareholder base tounderstand their views on

our new Directors'Remuneration Policy. We welcomed the level

of engagement received and | am pleased to say that we were

able to engage with shareholders representing c./0% of aur
shareholder base. Our shareholders were understanding of the
challenges that the business has faced during this difficult year
andvalued our management team's successfulhandling of the
crisis. Overall, engagement around the new RSP planwas positive
and our shareholders understoodthe strategic rationale for its
implementation, and the difficulties that would arise under other long
termincentive structures in the current environment.

We have welcomedtheir feedback onour proposals andhave taken
intoaccount their comments as part of the process. We remain
committed to keeping an openand transparent dialogue with
shareholders on executive compensation at SSP

We hape youwill support our Directors'Remuneration Policy
and Directors'Remuneration Report at the forthcoming AGM.

CQ/"’"DA =0 L‘7

Carolyn Bradley
Chair, Remuneration Committee

16 December 2020
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Remuneration outcomes for the year ended 30 September 2020

The table below provides ahigh level overview of what our Executive Directors earned in 2020.

Simon Smith Jonathan Davies

Fixed pay (salary, pension and benefits) £720k £520k
Annual bonus £0 £0
PSP vesting (2017 award) £0 £0
Asdiscussedinthe Cha_ir’g statement, the CQvid719 outbreak ha/s Three year TSR performance
hadanunprecedentedimpact onthe travelindustry and on SSP's
businessinall geographies. Remuneration outcomes for the year
areasfollows: 140
* From 1 April to 31 August 2020 Directars received /0% of their 120 e

usual salary/fees. This increased to 90% from 1 September 100

to 30 September as the Group was able toreturnmore of its 80

colleagues towark. -
* Annualbonus payout for the 2020 financial year is zero for both

Executive Directors, with trading conditions meaning that the 40

Groupdidnot achieve the threshold operating profit target. 20

Simon Smithachieved a portion of his strategic objectives, which 0

resultedinaformulaic payout of 12% of maximum opportunity. 30/09/2017 30/09/2018 30/09/2019 30/09/2020

However, he proposed to the Committee that thiswouldbe

. . } —e— SSPGrou —e— FTSE 250
waived, whichthe Committee approved. P

Equity exposure of our Executive Directors
Our Executive Directors strongly align themselves with the long-term success of the Group through their high personal shareholdings.

B 2020 Minimum shareholding requirement
B Actual shareholding

Interests inunvested/
unexercised share awards

200%
Jonathan Davies 600% 147% 747%

As at 30 September 2020

Overview of implementation of Policy in 2021

Asummary of the proposed packages for Executive Directors inthe 2021 financial year in comparison to packages for the 2020 financial year
isset out below.

2021 financial year

2020 financial year

Element of remuneration Simon Smith Jonathan Davies Simon Smith Jonathan Davies
Base salary £650,000 £467,600 £650,000 £467,600
Pension 20% of base salary 21% of base salary 20% of base salary 21% of base salary
Annual bonus maximum 175% of base salary 125% of base salary 175% of base salary 125% of base salary

Annualbonus targets Profit, Net Debt Profit, Net Debt Profit Profit

and strategic and strategic and strategic and strategic
PSP annual award n/a n/a 200% of base salary 150% of base salary
RSP annual award 100% of base salary 75% of base salary n/a n/a
Shareholding requirement 250% of base salary 200% of base salary 250% of base salary 150% of base salary
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Proposed changes to the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Asummary of the proposed changes to the Group's Remuneration Policy is set out below. The new policy has beenwritten to include
developments that were made in the two previous financial years, suchas the introduction of mandatory bonus deferral, post-employment
shareholding requirements and post-vest holding periods. The full policy is shown on pages /7 to 85.

Base Salary Pension Benefits Annual bonus Long Term Incentive  Shareholding requirements
2017 Policy
» Executive » Executive * Executive * ExecutiveDirectorscan = Performance * Group CEO:200% of salary
Director Direqtor Dire_ctors be awarded amaximum Shgre Planin_ « Group CF0:125% of salary
salariesare pension receivea bonus of up to 200% which Executive o N ve Directors:
set takinginto contributions tailored of base salary Directors canbe 188;/6)('3]%]“\/? irectors:
consideration of upto35% of package of > Pedarmmeneale awardedupto oorbasefee
individual skills base salary core benefits e e 200% of salary * Directorshaveuntil the
andthesize + Newly including life targetsinkeyfinancial,  * Awardssubject thirdanniversary of thein
and complexity appointed insurance, operational and/or to financial appointment to build up
ofthe role Director carallowance strategic objectives performance shareholdingrequirement
* Basesalaries pension andhealthcare over the financial year. conditions
normally contributions o Malusand clawback assessed over
reviewed with ofupto20% conditions apply threeyear
effectfrom of basesalary performance
1 June period (usually
EPSand TSR)

* Malusandclawback
conditions apply

Proposed changes for 2020 Policy review

* Nochange

* Newly
appointed
Director
pension
contributions
alignedto
the wider
workforcerate

¢ Incumbent
Executive
Directors will
bealigned
with the wider
workforce
rate by theend
ofthe 2022
calendaryear

* Nochange

Asper 2017 Policy
with the following
amends:

» Executive Directors
required todeferat
least 33% of annual
bonus for three years
into shares

* Iftheshareholding
requirementisnot met,
Executive Directors
required todefer 50%
of annualbonus for
threeyearsintoshares

* Remuneration
Committee
has discretion
over outcomes

* Implementation for
2021 financialyear -
CEOand CFO'sbonus
structures will now
bealigned, with the
majority based on
financial objectives and
aminority based on
strategic objectives

e Restricted
SharePlanin
which Executive
Directorscanbe
awardedup to
100% of salary

* Implementation for
2021 financial year
-Normalaward
levelsare 100% of
salary forthe CEO
and 75% of salary
forthe CFO

» Awards subject
toperformance
underpins to ensure
the Company does
not pay for failure

* Awardsvestafter
threeyearsandare
subjecttoatwo
year holding period

* Remuneration
Committee
has discretion
overoutcomes

As per 2017 Policy with the
following amends:

* Group CEO: 250% of salary
* Group CF0O:200% of salary

Post-employment
shareholding
requirements introduced.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE PROVISION 40 DISCLOSURE

When developing the proposed Remuneration Palicy and considering its implementation for 2021, the Committee was mindful of the UK
Corporate Governance Cade and considers that the executive remuneration framework appropriately addresses the following factors:

Clarity

The Committee is committed to providing openand transparent disclosures regarding our executive
remuneration arrangements.

We have consulted with our shareholders in order to formulate the proposals in our new Remuneration Policy.

We have sought to explain the changes to our proposed Remuneration Policy inaway that highlights their
alignment to our strategic ambitions as well as good governance practices under the UK Corporate Governance
Code and investor guidance.

Simplicity

Remuneration arrangements for our Executives and our wider workforce are simple innature and well
understood by both participants and shareholders.

Ournewrestricted share planis asimple model that aligns our senior management team to the experience of
ourshareholders.

For the 2021 financial year, we have also aligned the bonus structures for our Group CEO and Group CFO which
provides further consistency and simplicity in our pay arrangements.

Risk

The Committee considers that the structure of incentive arrangements does not encourage inappropriate

risk-taking.

 Ourannualbonus is based on abalance of metrics which take into account our strategic plan and external
expectations. Targets are set to ensure that maximum can only be earned for delivering truly exceptional
performance while not encouraging risk-taking.

* OurnewRSPhasmore modest award levels relative to the out-going PSP and is subject to performance
underpins which ensure that there is no payment for failure.

Annual bonus deferral, the RSP post-vesting holding period and our in-employment and post-employment

shareholdingrequirements provide a clear link to creating sustainable, long-term value for shareholders.

Malus and clawback provisions also apply to our incentive arrangements, and the Committee has overarching
discretion to adjust formulaic outcomes to ensure that they are appropriate after assessing performance in
theround.

Predictability

ThenewRSPincreases the predictability of outcomes in line withrecovery strategy and minimises the
potential of unintended outcomes.

Our Policy contains details of opportunity levels under various scenarios for each component of pay.

Proportionality

The Committee believes that the proposed RSP incentivises management to take the right actions for
sustainable value inthe current environment.

The Committee considers performance from arange of perspectives. Poor financial performanceis
notrewarded.

Alignment to culture

Any financial and strategic targets set by the Committee are designed to drive the right behaviours across
thebusiness.

The new RSP model encourages our executives to focus on making the right decisions for the long-term
sustainable performance of the business.

When developing the 2021 Remuneration Policy the Committee reviewed our approach to remuneration
throughout the organisation to ensure that arrangements are appropriate in the context of our Values and
approachtoreward for the wider workforce.

We have committed to aligning executive pensions with the wider workforcerate.
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Single total figure of remuneration - Executive Directors (audited)
The following table provides a summary single total figure of remuneration for 2019/20 and 2018/19 for the Executive Directors.

All figures Salary Annual Long-term Totalfixed Total variable

shownin and fees? Benefits Pension Bonus incentives©¢ Other Remuneration Remuneration Total

£'000 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Executive Directors

SimonSmith® 563 430 27 17 130 90 - 529 - 261 - - 720 537 - 790 720 1,327

Jonathan

Davies 405 459 17 16 98 96 - 468 - 933 - - 520 571 - 1401 520 1,972
968 889 44 33 228 186 - 997 - 1,194 - - 1,240 1,108 - 2,191 1,240 3,299

° Salary and fees - this represents the base salary or fees paid inrespect of the relevant financial year. For Executive Directors this was reduced for a
portion of the year due to the impact of Covid-19 as described below.

® Simon Smith - amounts of pay shown for Simon Smithin 2019 shows remuneration earned from his appointment to the Board on 20 November 2018.

° Long-termincentives 2020 - no shares vested under the 2017 LTIP awards, therefore there is no value attributable to share price appreciation over the
performance period. The Committee did not exercise any discretion with regards to the vesting of the 2017 LTIP awards.

’ Long-termincentives 2019 - the value for 2019 s inrespect of the awards granted in 2016. The value presented in the single total figure of remuneration
tablein the 2019 Annual Report on Remuneration has been adjusted to show the final outcome of the vesting of the awards grantedin 2016 (along with
accrued dividend equivalents) at the mid-market closing share price on the date of vesting of £6.6568.

Additional disclosures in respect of the single figure table

Base salary
Executive Director base salaries in 2019/20 (audited)

From 1 June 2020° From 1 June 2019 Change
Simon Smith £650,000 per annum £650,000 per annum 0%
Jonathan Davies £467,600 per annum £467,600 perannum 0%

° Salary was reduced during the year as described below due to the impact of Covid-19.

During the 2020 financial year, the Group furloughed the majority of its workforce and utilised wage subsidy schemes available across the
regions inwhichit operates topreserve cash and protect the business. As aresult of this, many of our colleagues received reduced pay during
theyear.

Inlight of this, the Remuneration Committee and the Chairman agreed that it was appropriate for the Board of Directors toreceive areduced
salary/fee for aportion of the year From 1 April 2020 to 31 August, Directors received /0% of their usual base salary/fee, reflecting a 30%
reduction. As trading conditions began to improve towards the end of the financial year, and the Group was able to return mare colleagues
towork, the Committee andthe Board considered it appropriate to continue the reduction, but at alower level. As such from 1 September to
30 September, Directors received 90% of their usual base salary/fee, reflecting a 10% reduction.

The figures showninthe Single Total Figure of Remuneration table above reflect these changes. The amount of remunerationreceived
byNon-Executive Directorsis set out onpage /2.
Benefits

During the year, Simon Smithand Jonathan Davies received benefits totalling £ 2/k and £1/k respectively. These benefits included
participationinthe UK SIP, private medical insurance (for the executive and their family), life insurance, car allowance, company fuel card and
home towork travel (including associated tax paid).

Details of shares held by Executive Directors under the UKSIP are set out below:

Total SIP

Total SIP shares held at Shares acquired during Matching shares awarded shares held at

1 October 2019 financial year during financial year 30 September 2020

Simon Smith 1,766 449 204 2,419

JonathanDavies 2,829 471 204 3,504
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Pensions

The table below sets out the pension arrangements for our Executive Directors that were in force during the year. Pension arrangements for
Executive Directors were based on their full base salary and do not reflect the salary reductions described above, in line with the approach
takenfor the rest of the Group's management.

Director Pension type Pension level (% base salary)
Simon Smith? Cashin lieu of pension/defined contribution 20%
Jonathan Davies Cashin lieu of pension 21%

" Simon Smith is amember of the UK defined contribution pension scheme and receives amix of employer pension contributions into the Group's pension
scheme anda cash supplement in lieu of pension such that his total annual pension remuneration amounts to 20% of base salary.

Annual bonus

The bonusesfor the year ended 30 September 2020 assessed underlying operating profit as the financial target. Bonuses for bath Siman
Smithand Jonathan Davies assessed a mix of financial performance and strategic objectives.

For Simon Smith, 80% of his total bonus opportunity was determined by the financial target, with the remaining 20% opportunity determined
by achievement of key strategic objectives. Jonathan Davies'bonus was determined under the Management Bonus Plan matrix structure that
appliedto the broader management team, whereby the financial element of the bonus was based on 100% underlying operating profitand a
personal performance factor, based on the achievement of abjectives, is then applied to determine the actual pay out.

Based on the frameworks described above, Simon Smith and Jonathan Davies earned bonuses as set out in the table below. Further details of
financial and strategic performance is also set out below.

Annual bonus payout in 2019/20 (audited) Simon Smith? Jonathan Davies
Maximum bonus opportunity 175% 125%
Bonus earned (% of maximum) 12% 0%
Actualbonus (£) £0 £0

° Bonus payment was waived.

Taking into account pay conditions and bonus outcomes across the wider workforce, Simon Smith volunteered to waive the 12% of maximum
bonus opportunity earned inrespect of the 2020 financial year and this waiver was agreed by the Remuneration Committee. Due ta the
different bonus structure that appliedto Jonathan Davies during the financial year, no bonus was earned. The Committee concludedthat this
bonus outcome was appropriate in the context of the wider employee and shareholder experience.

Had any annual banus been payable ta Executive Directars, one third of this would have been deferredinto the Group's shares for three years,
inlinewith changes made inthe 2019 financial year.

Afullbreakdown of performance against financial and non-financial targets is set out below.

Inline with our Policy, we have assessed our Executive Directors' performance against strategic objectives based on the targets set at the start
of the year. However, as aresult of the global pandemic, management's priorities for the year changed significantly versus these objectives.

The performance outcomes for the 2020 financial year reflect the decisive action taken by leadership to place the business into'hibernation’
at the onset of the crisis. We believe that the Group took the right actions during the year to protect the business and ensure liquidity, setting
the stage for an effectiverecavery as soon as is possible. The Committee believes that our Executive Directors demonstrated capability and
excellent leadership inanunprecedented time for the travel sector.

Financial performance

Thetable below sets out a summary of performance against the financial target, underlying operating profit. The underlying operating profit
targetsfor the year are set based on the Group's budgeted performance. Budgeting is arigorous process which starts from the bottom up,
reviewing the expected performance of each region inwhich the Group operates against the external opportunities and challenges within
them, andthe Group's five-year plan.

Targets set at the start of the 2019/20 financial year (Em) 2020 performance (Em)*
Threshold Target/budget Maximum
(30% of maximum) (50% of maximum) (100% of maximum)
Underlying operating profit 2246 231.5 2431 -211.7m

' 2020 Performance shows pro-formalAS 17 underlying operating profit performance.
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Strategic objectives

Asummary of our Executive Directors'performance against strategic objectives is shown below.

Simon Smith - Group CEO

Objective (20% maximum)

Targets

Performance assessment

Strategic Initiatives

» Complete commercial planin North America, deep dive
inanairportdeliveringimproved EBITDA ARO yield.

* Deepdives completedin 7 airports (above stretch).

* Develop efficiency programmes for technology
and automationinkey markets.

* Order attable trialled successfully in three regions,
ahead of the stretch target.

» Covid-19response hasresultedinacceleratedrollout.

» Complete profitable LFL trialsinkey regions and
develop actionplans.

* Activity stoppedinMarchdue to Covid-19 priorities.
* Trials completedin 3 keyregions.

People, Capability
and Infrastructure

 Launchandcomplete the first year of the Global
Leadership Programme for regional and country
leadership teams.

* Activity stoppedinMarchdue to Covid-19 priorities.

* Firstcohort partially completed but paused due to
Covid-19 priorities and second cohort scheduled, but
not completed.

» Completereview of the Group CSR strategy.

* Activity stopped due to Covid-19 priorities,
but nowbeingrevisited.

* Backgroundanalysis completed and shared
withBoard.

* Embedthe Group'srefreshed Values.

* Valueslaunchedand cascaded globally.

* Values demonstrated throughout the handling
of the Covid-19 crisis.

Taking into account performance against strategic objectives, Simon Smith achieved 12% of bonus for this element, which was voluntarily waived
by Simon, a decision then approved by Committee.

Jonathan Davies - Group CFO

Objective

Targets

Performance assessment

Strategic Initiatives

* Deliver Group-wide procurement savings including
new purchasing deals, marketingincome, recipe
and menu optimisation, production equipment
and energy efficiency.

* Ontracktoachieve stretchtarget pre-Covid-19.

» ByMarch, savings of 88% of stretch target hadbeen
identifiedand agreed.

* Delivertargeted Group-wide efficiency savings
through planning, reviewing and monitoring of
programmes across the business.

* Ontracktoachieve stretchtarget pre-Covid-19.

 Additional savings £1.5mahead of budget identified
by end of January 2020.

* Implement finance, cashmanagementand
inventory systems project.

* Programme ontrack to meet deadline for delivery
of country pilot on time and within budget.

* Internationalroll-out programme planned and
presented to Steering Committee and GEC.

Financing

* Raise further debt to maintain targetbalance
sheet leverage within plannedinterest costs.

* Specifictargets deemedno longer relevant
due to Covid-19.

 Achieve targetreturns on capital investment.

» Deemedno longerrelevant due to Covid-19.

* Evaluate and execute M&A projects to deliver
returns above target criteria.

* M&A projects successfully executed for
Station Food (Germany), Red Rock (Australia)
and Togservice (Nordics).

Takinginto account performance against strategic objectives, the Committee decided that Jonathan Davies' performance factor was 0.8. As the
financial targets for the Group's operating profit were not met, this performance factor resulted in a nil pay-out.

Scheme interests awarded during the financial year

SSP Performance Share Plan awards (audited)
Thefollowing PSP awards were made to the Executive Directors inthe 2019/20 financial year.

Number Face value Award receivable
of awards (E) atdate Facevalue % for minimum End of
Type of award Date of award granted of grant of salary performance  performance period
Simon Smith Nil Cost Options ~ 21/11/2019 205,533 1,300,000 200% 25% 30 September 2022
Jonathan Davies Nil Cost Options  21/11/2019 110,893 701,400 150% 25% 30 September 2022

The closing price anthe day before grant was used to calculate the number of shares over which each award was granted (£6.3250 for

21 Novemnber 2019 award). Awards will vest subject to the achievement of the performance conditions which will be measured at the time the
Group publishes its full year financial results for the 2022 financial year and completion of a three-year vesting period. The awards will vest
subject to achieving two performance measures, namely earnings per share (EPS) target (/5% weighting) and relative total shareholder return
(Relative TSR) target (25% weighting). The performance targets for these awards granted are summarised on page /5. Following vesting,
awards will be subject to an additional two year holding period.
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Implementation of Remuneration Policy in the year ending 30 September 2021

This section provides an overview of how the Committee is proposing to implement the Group's Remuneration Policy inthe year ending
305eptember 2021, subject taits approval at the 2021 AGM.

Base salary

Base salaries as at 1 October 2020:
Simon Smith: £650,000
Jonathan Davies: £467,600

Base salaries for Executive Directors will be reviewed with effect from 1 June 2021, in line with the Group's usual timetable.
As communicated on his appointment, the Committee intends to keep Simon Smith's package under review subject to his
development and performance inrole and the continued growth of the Group.

Benefits Executive Director benefits will continue to include private healthcare (for the executive and their family), life insurance,
car allowance or a company car, company fuel card, travel to and from work (including associated tax paid) and participation
inthe UK SIP.

Pensions Simon Smith: 20% of base salary

Jonathan Davies: 21% of base salary
New appointments: aligned with the wider workforce

The Committee is committed to aligning Executive Director pensions with wider workforce by the end of 2022.

Annual Bonus

Maximum opportunity:
Simon Smith: 175% of base salary
Jonathan Davies: 125% of base salary

Targets:

Bonuses will continue to be based on both financial and non-financial performance. For 2020/21 the financial targets
willbe EBITDA and Net Debt, aligning with immediate business priorities. Specific targets and details of non-financial
objectives willbe disclosed in the 2020/21 Annual Report when they are no longer considered to be commercially sensitive.

The Committee intends to take into account some external factors including reference to passenger numbers (PAX) and
revenue achieved in its determination of bonus outcomes. At year end, the Committee will be responsible for looking at
performance in the round and applying judgement to ensure that the outcome is appropriate to the external environment,
management's achievements and shareholders'experience.

Executive Directors will be required to defer 33% of any bonus received into the Group's shares. For Executive Directors,
40% bonus will be subject to Group EBITDA performance, 40% will be subject to Net Debt and the remaining 20% will be
subject to the achievement of key strategic objectives. Jonathan Davies'bonus structure has been amended to mirror that
of the Group CEOQ. His bonus was previously calculated using the MBP matrix described in our 2018/19 Annual Report.

Restricted The Committee intends to make the first awards under the Restricted Share Plan shortly after the completion of the 2021 AGM
Share Plan (subject to shareholder approval of the plan).
Face value
(% of salary)
Simon Smith 100%
Jonathan Davies 75%
These awards will vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant. Vested awards will be subject to atwo year holding
period. If the Company does not meet one or more of the performance underpins over the relevant vesting period then the
Committee would consider whether it was appropriate to adjust (including to zero) the level of pay-out under the award
toreflect this. For the first awards under the plan the performance underpins will be:
1. The Company has taken the right actions to strengthen its competitive advantages and position the group for long term
sustainable growth.
2. The Company has achieved the principal strategic and financial annual objectives over the 3 year period, notably:
* Revenue growth, given the available passengers numbers during the period
« Efficient conversion of revenue into profitand cash
3. The Company has made progress on SSP's Corporate Responsibility Strategy.
In assessing the extent to which the performance underpins have been satisfied, the Committee will consider a range of
quantitative and qualitative benchmarks to inform its decision. Should any of the underpins not be met, the Committee would
consider whether adiscretionary reduction in the number of shares vesting was required.
Minimum Toalignthe interests of Executive Directors with those of shareholders, they are required to build and maintain significant
Shareholding holdings of shares in the Group over time. The minimum shareholding requirement for Executive Directors is:
Requirement

* Group CEO: 250% of base salary
* Group CF0O:200% of base salary

In addition to the above, Executive Directors will be required to maintain their full minimum shareholding requirement for
one year post-cessation of employment, and hold 50% of the requirement for asecond year.
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Non-Executive Director Remuneration

Single total figure of remuneration - Non-Executive Directors (audited)

Salary Annual Long-term Total fixed Total variable

and fees Benefits' Pension Bonus incentives Other Remuneration Remuneration Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Non-Executive Directors
Vagn Serensen’ 81 195 - - - - - - - - - - 81 195 - - 81 195
Mike Clasper? 144 - - - - - - - - - - - 144 - - - 144 -
CarolynBradley 62 63 - - - - - - - - - - 62 63 - - 62 63
lanDyson 54 6l - - - - - - - - - - 54 61 - - 54 6l
PerUtnegaard 44 49 4 - - - - - - - - - 48 49 - - 48 49
Judy Vezmar? 7 - - - - - - - - - - - 7 - - - 7 -
392 368 4 - - - - - - - - - 396 368 - - 396 368

! Vagn Serensen did not stand for re-election at the 2020 AGM. Amounts shownreflect fees paid for the period of the year that he was a director.

? Mike Clasper was appointed to the Board on 1 November 2019 and became Chairman on 26 February 2020. Amounts shown reflect fees paid for the
period of the year thathe was a Director.

’ Judy Vezmar was appointed to the Board on 1 August 2020. Fees shownreflect fees paid for the period of the year that she was a director.

* Benefits 2020 - this comprises the reimbursement of expenses for travel to and from Board meetings.

As set out onpage 68, inlight of wider workforce pay conditions and the overall shareholder experience it was agreed that Non-Executive
Directors wouldreceive /0% of their usual fee, reflecting a 30% reduction, between 1 April 2020 and 31 August 2020.From 1 September
to 30 September, Non-Executive Directors received 90% of their usual fee, reflecting a 10% reduction.

Following the review of Non-Executive Director fees during the year ended 30 September 2020, it was determined that there would be
nochange tothefeesseton 1 July 2019 whichare as set out below. The Company will review these fees in accordance with the terms of the
Non-Executive Director appaintment letters, and will undertake areview each year. Areview may not result inanincrease infees.

2020 fees
Chairman of the Board £275,000
Board member £51,000
Additional fee for Senior Independent Director £10,000
Additional fee for Chairman of Audit/Remuneration Committee! £11,000

! Inadditionto any additional fee for acting as the Senior Independent Director.

TimlLodge was appointedto the Board on 1 October 2020 as an Independent Non-Executive Director and Member of the Audit Committee.
Fromthis date Timwill receive the base Board Member fee of £51,000 per annum. Tim did not receive any remunerationinrespect of the

2020 financial year.
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Historical TSR performance

Asthe Company is aconstituent of the FTSE 250, the FTSE 250 Index provides an appropriate indication of market movements against which
tobenchmark the Company's performance. The chart below summarises the Company's TSR performance against the FTSE 250 Index over
the period from Admissionon 15 July 2014 to 30 September 2020.

TSR performance since admission
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Admission

Chief Executive Officer remuneration outcomes

Chief Executive Officer 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019* 20192 2020
CEOName K.Swann K.Swann K.Swann K.Swann K.Swann K.Swann S.Smith S.Smith
Single figure of remuneration £4.5m £2.5m £2.6m £74m £6.0m £53m £0.8m £0.7m
Annual bonus payable (as a %

of maximum opportunity) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 98.6% 0%

Long-termincentive vesting

out-turn (as a % of maximum
opportunity) n/a n/a n/a 100% 100% 100% 100% 0%

' Reflects periodspentinrole as Group CEO from 1 October 2018 to 31 May 2019.
? Reflects period spentinrole as Group CEO from 1 June 2019 to 30 September 2019.

No long-term incentive plan awards vestedin 2014, 2015 or 2016. Performance conditions were not met for the award due to vest inthe 2021
financial year and therefore this award will lapse.

Inaccordance with UK regulations, for the year ended 30 September 2019 the PSP value in the single total figure of remuneration, was an
estimated value. This has nowbeenupdated toinclude the final level of vesting achieved and the share price on the date of vesting.

Total remuneration for 2014 includes additional awards of cash and shares made on IPO by the Company and the previous
majority shareholder.

Year-on-year change in pay for Directors compared to the average employee

Average Simon  Jonathan Michael Vagn Carolyn Per Judy
Resolution Employee Smith? Davies Clasper? Serensen® lanDyson Bradley! Utnegaard Vezmar?
Base salary /fees 0% 31% (12%) - (59%) (12%) (1%) (10%) -
Benefits (8%) 60% 10% - - - - - -
Annual Bonus (100%) (100%) (100%) - - - - - -

! Director was appointed to the Board during the 2019 financial year and therefore table is comparing full year remuneration for the 2020 financial year
with a pro-rata total for the previous year.

2 Director was appointed to the Board during the 2020 financial year and therefore there is no prior-year remuneration for comparison.
3 Director left during the 2020 financial year and therefore table is comparing pro-rata remuneration with a full year total for the previous year.
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Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the total spend onemployee pay in the 2019 and 2020 financial years and the total expenditure on dividends.

2020 2019 Percentage change
Total Staff Costs! £518.6 £809.3m (36%)
Dividends £26.8m £51.0m (47%)
Special Dividend £0m £149.8m (100%)

! This figure is inclusive of wage subsidies received, such as the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme in the UK.

CEO Pay Ratio

Inaccordance with the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the table below sets out the Group's CEQ pay ratios for the
year ended 30 September 2020. This compares the Chief Executive's total remuneration with the equivalent remuneration for the employees
paidat the 25th (P25), 50th (PS0) and /5th (P7/5) percentile of SSP Group's workforce inthe United Kingdom. The total remuneration for each
quartile employee, and the salary component within this, isalso outlined in the table below.

25th Percentile 50th Percentile 75th Percentile

Year Method pay ratio pay ratio pay ratio
2020 OptionB 48:1 471 331
Base Salary £14,942 £15,274 £21,989

Total Pay and Benefits £15,203 £15,573 £22,461

The payratios abave are calculated using the actual earnings for UK employees. The CEO's Single Total Figure of Remuneration is £/20Kk,
asshownonpage 68.

SSPhave chosen Option B, using the most recent Gender Pay Gap data to identify the employees at the 25th, 50th and /5th pay percentiles
inour UK employee population. As SSPhave a large number of employees in the UK, of which alarge portion wark seasonal or part time hours,
OptionBwas selectedas it is the most practical way to produce the percentile calculations.

Totalremuneration for UK full-time equivalent employees on 30 September 2020 has been calculated in line with the single figure
methodology andreflects actual earnings received in the 2020 financial year. No elements of pay have been omitted. The majority of SSP's UK
employee populationare hourly paid operations colleagues. Given this workforce profile, two of the three CEO pay ratio reference points fall in
this population and there is limited difference in the pay at each percentile. All payments have been calculated on a full-time equivalent basis.

Due totheimpact of Covid-19 onthe Group's trading inthe UK, the majority of UK colleagues were furloughed utilising the Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme. The Committee believes it is appropriate for the CEO pay ratio toreflect the pay reductions taken by colleagues. This also
maintains comparability with the Group CEQ's pay as he received areducedbase salary for aportion of the year.

The Committee believes that the median payratio isnotably lower than it would be inanormal year. This is due to the fact that the CEO received
novariable pay in the financial year. In addition, P25, P50 and P/5 were all furloughed for aportion of the year and therefore the total pay and
benefitsreceived by these colleagues is lower that it would be inanormal year. It is likely that any year-on-year change in the pay ratio will be
drivenby our CEO's variable pay, and not by changes to pay and benefits structures for UKEmployees. Pay rates for allemployees are set by
reference toarange of factors, such as market practice, experience and performance inrole.

Fees from external directorships

Jonathan Davies isaNon-Executive Director of Assuraplc andretainedafee of £58,225 inrespect of that directorship.

Statement of Directors' shareholding and share interests (audited)

Shareholding Guidelines require Executive Directors to build up over time a personal shareholding inthe Company equivalent in value to
250% of base salary for the Group CEO and 200% of base salary for the Group CFO. Executive Directors are encouraged taretain vested
shares earned under the Company’s incentive plans until the shareholding guidelines have been met. The Chairman and each Independent
Non-Executive Director are expectedto build and then maintain a shareholding in the Company equivalent invalue to 100% of their annual
grossfee.
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The period over which the minimum shareholding must be built up is a three-year period, either from the date of admission (15 July 2014),
or fromthe date of appointment if later. The table below shows details of the Directors'shareholdings as at 30 September 2020.

Interests in

Shares owned unvested PSP

Shareholding Shareholding outright at awards at

guidelinesasa % as a % of salary/ 30 September 30 September

Director of salary/fees fee achieved® 20200 2020

Simon Smith¢ 250% 308% 869,616 473,228

Jonathan Davies 200% 600% 1,218,305 298,954

Mike Clasper¢ 100% 33% 40,000 -

CarolynBradley* 100% 18% 5,756 -

lanDyson 100% 128% 33,776 -

Per Utnegaard® 100% 66% 14,666 -

Judy Vezmar® 100% 0% 0 -
Notes:

° Forthe purposes of determining Directors' shareholding requirements, the individual's salary/fee and the three month average share price to
30 September 2020 (£2.3027) have beenused. Further, the total shareholding used to calculate the shareholding percentage for Executive Directors
excludes Matching Shares issued under the UK Share Incentive Plan that remain subject to holding conditions (609 for Simon Smith and 738 for Jonathan
Davies as at 30 September 2020).

® Shares owned outrightat 30 September 2020 includes shares held by persons connected with a Director. It also includes Partnership Shares purchased,
Matching Shares awarded and Dividend Shares purchased, under the UK Share Incentive Plan.

° The Director has until the third anniversary of their date of appointment to meet their Minimum Shareholding Requirement.

* Per Utnegaard's shareholding on 30 September 2020 was below that of his Minimum Shareholding Requirement due to fluctuations in the Group's
share price.

Interests in Unvested PSP awards at 30 September 2020

Interests inunvested PSP awards'refers to Performance Share Plan awards granted in, November 201/, November 2018 May 2019, June
2019 andNovember 2019. The performance conditions for each award are described inthe table below.

1 October 2017 to 1 October 2018 to 1 October 2019 to
Performance period 30 September 2020 30 September 2021 30 September 2022
Performance Compound EPS Relative TSR vs Compound EPS Relative TSR vs Compound EPS Relative TSR vs
condition and growth comparator group growth comparator group growth comparator group
weighting (75%) (25%) (75%) (25%) (75%) (25%)
Maximum target
(100% vesting) 12%p.a. Upper-quartile 12%p.a. Upper-quartile 12%p.a. Upper-quartile
Threshold target
(25% vesting) 7%p.a. Median 7%p.a. Median 7%p.a. Median

Vesting is calculated on astraight-line basis between maximum and threshold targets. There is no vesting for performance below the
thresholdtarget.

Athree-monthaverage share price prior to the start and end of the performance period will be usedto calculate TSR. The TSR comparator
Groupisasfollows:

Autogrill Go-Ahead Group JSainsbury Next UDGHealthcare

Compass Group Halfords Group Kingfisher Ocado Group WHSmith

Dignity Inchcape Marks and Spencer Group ~ The Restaurant Group Whitbread

Dixons Carphone InterContinental Hotels Marston's Sports Direct International ~ Wm Morrison Supermarkets
Domino's Pizza Group Group Mitchells &Butlers Stagecoach Group

Dunelm Group JDSportsFashion N Brown Group Tesco

First Group JD Wetherspoon National Express TUIAG

Unvested awards under the Company's share plans will be satisfied by the transfer of existing shares held by the Company's employee benefit
trust (EBT), market purchased shares (which will be held by the EBT) or the issue of new or treasury shares within limits agreed by shareholders
whenthe plans were approved. These limits comply with the Investment Association's guidelines whichrequire that nomore than 10%of a
company's issuedshare capital be issuedinaccordance with all employee share plans inany 10-year period, with no more than 5% issuedin
accordance withdiscretionary employee share plans.
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Movement in Directors’ shareholdings from 30 September 2020

At 16 December 2020, other thanas set out below, there had been no movement in Directors' shareholdings and share interests from
30 September 2020.

Shares owned outright at Shares owned outright at
Director 16 December 2020 30 September 2020 Change
Simon Smith 869,865 869,616 249
Jonathan Davies 1,218,552 1,218,305 247

Note:

Shares owned outright'includes shares held by persons connected witha Director. It also includes Partnership Shares purchased, Matching Shares
awarded and Dividend Shares purchased, under the UK Share Incentive Plan.

The Remuneration Committee in 2020

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The Board entrusts the Remuneration Committee with the responsibility for setting the Remuneration Policy inrespect of Executive Directors
and senior executives and ensuring its ongoing appropriateness and relevance. In setting the remuneration for these groups, the Committee
considersthe pay and canditions of the wider workforce androles inrelevant geographies.

External advice

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Committee received independent advice on executive remuneration matters from Deloitte.
Deloittereceived £120,350 infees for these services. Deloitte isamember of the Remuneration Consultants Group and, as such, voluntarily
operates under the code of conduct inrelation to executive remuneration consulting in the UK. During the year, Deloitte also provided the
Company withinternal audit services, tax services and Risk Management services.

The Committee appointed Deloitte to the role of independent advisor to the Committee in 2014. The Committee has reviewed the advice
provided by Deloitte during the year and is comfortable that it has been objective and independent. The Committee has reviewed the potential
for conflicts of interest andjudged that there were appropriate safeguards against such conflict.

The Committee also received independent advice from FIT Remuneration Consultants to provide additional advice into itsreview of the
Group's new long term incentive. FIT Remuneration Consultants received £28,255 in fees for these services. FIT Remuneration Consultants
are amember of the Remuneration Consultants Group and as such, valuntarily operates under the code of conduct inrelation to executive
remuneration consulting in the UK. During the year, FIT Remuneration Consultants did not provide the Company with any other services.
Deloitte remainas the formally appointed independent advisers to the Remuneration Committee.

Statement of shareholder voting

Votes cast at the AGM inFebruary 2020 inrespect of the approval of the Directors' Remuneration Report and inrespect of the approval of the
Directors'Remuneration Policy are given below:

% of issued

Votes Totalshares share capital Votes
Resolution Meeting Votes for % for against % against voted voted withheld
Toapprove the February 217989,435 68.96% 98,134,556 31.04% 316,123,991 7066% 65,619,420
Directors’ 2020 AGM
Remuneration
Report
To approve the February 263,554,350 7705% 78,502,459 22.95% 342,056,809 71.35% 52,329,530
Directors’ 2018 AGM
Remuneration
Policy

Following the 2020 AGM, the Board gathered feedback from shareholders following the outcome of the vote to approve the Remuneration
Report tounderstand the concerns of those who were unable to approve the report. Throughout the process we greatly appreciated the level
of engagement from our shareholders. It was clear that the key area of concernrelated to the leaving arrangements for our former Group CEC.
The Boardrecognises the importance of engaging with the Group's shareholders and inrecent years has substantially improved its approach
todisclosure inthe Directors' Remuneration Report.

Inaddition, as part of our Policy review, we wrote to shareholders representing over 80% of our shareholder base to understand their views
onour new Directors' Remuneration Policy. We welcomed the level of engagement received andl am pleased to say that we were able to
engage with shareholders representing c./0% of our shareholder base. We have welcomed their feedback on our proposals and have taken
into account their comments as part of the pracess. We remain committed to keeping an open and transparent dialogue with shareholders on
executive compensation at SSP
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DIRECTORS'REMUNERATION POLICY

This part of the Directors'Remuneration Report sets out the Directors'Remuneration Policy as determined by the Remuneration Committee
(the 'Committee’ In accordance with Section 439A of the Companies Act 2006, abinding shareholder resolution to approve this palicy will

be proposedat the 2021 Annual General Meeting of the Company. The policy will apply to payments made to Directors after the 2021 AGM,
subject toshareholder approval of the palicy.

The previous Directors'Remuneration Policy was approved at the AGM inFebruary 2018 and a full version of this policy is available inthe
Group's 2017/18 Annual Report.

Key principles of Remuneration Policy

TheRemuneration Policy for the Directors of the Company is intended to help recruit and retain executives who can execute SSP's strategy
by rewarding them with appropriate compensation and benefit packages. The policy seeksto alignthe interests of Executive Directors with
the performance of the Company and the interests of its shareholders.

Our incentive arrangements are designedtoreward performance against key financial and strategic performance objectives. Our aimis to
reward management for delivering sustainable long-term performance and support the retention of critical talent.

The Policy was developedover the course of 2020. The Committee undertook a thorough review of arrangements in the context of our
business strategy. The Committee consulted extensively with sharehalders and considered all feedback received when developing the
proposals set out below. Input was received from the Chair and management while ensuring that conflicts of interest were suitably mitigated.
The Committee also considered carefully corporate governance developments, particularly in the area of pensions. Input was provided by the
Committee's appointed independent advisors throughout the process.

Policy table

The table below describes the policy inrelation to the components of remuneration for Executive Directors and, at the bottom of the table,
the policy for the Non-Executive Directors. A summary of the changes made and how they compare to our current Remuneration Policy is set
outonpage 66.

Executive Directors

Base salary
A core element of the remuneration package used torecruit, reward and retain Executive Directors who can deliver our strategic objectives.

Operation Maximum potential value Performance metrics
Normally reviewed annually. The Remuneration Salaryincreases in percentage terms will normally None

Committee may however award an out-of-cycle beinlinewithincreases awarded to other head office

increase if it considers it appropriate. employeesintherelevant geography, but may be

Base salaries are set by the Committee taking higher in certain circumstances.

tnto account a_number ofinternaland external The circumstances may include but are not limited to:

factorsincluding:

* Whereanew Executive Director has been
appointedat alower salary, higher increases may

be awarded over aninitial period as the Executive
* Thesize andscope of the Executive Director's Director gains experiencein therole;

role andresponsibilities;

* Theindividual's skills, experience
andperformance;

T ’ ) * Wheretherehasbeenanincreaseinthe scopeor
* Marketpositioningandinflation; and responsibility of an Executive Director's role; and

* Payand conditions elsewhere in the Group. * Whereasalary has fallen significantly below
market positioning.

Thereisnomaximumincrease or opportunity.
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Executive Directors

Pension

To provide anincome following retirement and assist the Executive Director in building wealth for their future.

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

The Company operates anapproveddefined
contribution pension arrangement, to which
the Company may make contributions.
Acashallowance may be providedin lieu of
pension contributions.

Company contributions or cash allowance provided
for Executive Directors willbeinline with the rate
applicable to the wider workforce. The definition
of the wider workforce will be as determined by the
Committee. For example, colleagues employedin
the same country as the Director in question.

Incumbent Executive Directors, appointed prior to
the introduction of this remuneration policy, may
continue toreceive pension contributions oracash
allowance at the applicable rate underaprevious
remuneration policy.

Pensions for incumbent Executive Directors will
be aligned to the wider workforce rate by the end
of 2022.

Currently our Executive Directors receive pension
contribution / cash allowance as follows:

* Group CEO, Simon Smith: 20% of base salary
perannum.

* Group CFO, JonathanDavies: 21% of base salary
perannum.

None

Benefits

To provide appropriate benefits as part of aremuneration package that assists inrecruiting, rewarding and retaining Executive Directors.

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

EachExecutive Director receives atailored

benefits package including (but not limited to)
private healthinsurance for themselves, their
spouse and dependent children, annual health
screening, and life assurance, business travel.

Travel benefits, including (but not limited to) car
allowance, company car, driver, the cost of fuel
for private mileage, and travel to and from work
(including any associated tax and social security
charges) may also be provided.

Inthe event that an Executive Directoris

required by the Group torelocate, other benefits
may include, but are not limited to, the costs

of relocation, housing, travel and education
allowances, subsistence costs and tax equalisation
arrangements.

Expensesincurredin the performance of duties for
the Group may be reimbursed or paid for directly by
the Company, as appropriate, including any tax or
social security charges due on the expenses.

The Executive Directors are eligible toreceive
other benefits (such as a colleague discount card)
onthe same terms as other eligible employees of
the Group.

Executive Directors may participate in
All-Employee Share Plans on the same basis
asother employees.

Carallowance of up to £13,000 per annum.

The cost of insured benefits may vary fromyear to
year depending on the individual's circumstances,
and therefore the Committee has not imposedany
overallmaximum value on the benefit.

Executive Directors who participate in All-
Employee Share Plans can contribute up to the
relevant limits set outin the country plan.

None
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Executive Directors

Annual bonus

Toreward performance onan annual basis against key annual objectives.

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

Performance objectives willnormally be
determined by the Committee at the beginning
of the financial year.

The Committee will assess performance against
these objectives following the end of the relevant
financial year.

Awards are paid once the results for the year have
beenaudited. If anExecutive Director has not met
their Minimum Shareholding Requirement, 50%
of any bonus earned will normally be deferredinto
the Group's shares. If the Minimum Shareholding
Requirementhasbeenmet, 33% of any bonus
earnedwillnormally be deferredinto the Group's
Shares. The remaining amount will be paid in cash.

The Committee may exercise its discretion to adjust
bonus outcomes (up or down) where it believes

that thisis appropriate, including but not limited to
where outcomes are not reflective of the underlying
performance of the business or the level of payout
does notreflect the experience of the Group's
shareholders, employees or other stakeholders. Any
application of the Committee’s discretion would be
within the limits of the overall Remuneration Policy.

The Committee may reduce bonus outcomes or claw
back vested awards up to three years fromthe date
of vest (inpartorinfull) inthe event of:

* Amaterial misstatement in the Company's annual
financial statements.
* Amaterialfailure of risk management.

* Seriousreputational damage to amember of the
Group or relevant business unit.

* Anerrorinthe calculation of any performance
conditions whichresults inoverpayment.

The maximum Annual Bonus opportunity is 200% of
base salary perannum.

For 2020/21 maximum annual opportunities are:
* Group CEO, Simon Smith-175% of salary
perannum.

* Group CFO, JonathanDavies - 125% of salary
perannum.

Performance is measuredrelative to
targets inkey financial, operational
and/or strategic objectives over

the financial year.

The measures selected and their
weightings may vary each year
according to the strategic priorities.

Entitlement tobonus only starts to
accrue ataminimum threshold level
of performance. Below this level, no
bonus willbe paid.

To earnamaximumbonus there must
be outperformance against stretching
objectives.
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Executive Directors

Restricted Share Plan (RSP)

The RSP rewards our Executive Directors for driving the sustainable longer term growth of the Company and shareholder value. Awards are share
basedto aligntheinterests of Executive Directors with those of shareholders.

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

Awards may be made to Executive Directorsinthe
form of conditional share awards, nil cost options,
forfeitable shares or equivalentrights.

Awards will be subject to performance underpins,
assessed over aperiod of three financial years.

Awards willnormally be subject to a three year
vesting period and any vested shares will normally
be subject to a further post-vest holding period of
twoyears.

Awards (other than forfeitable shares) may
incorporate theright to receive (in cash or shares)
the value of dividends that would have been paid
onthe awardshares that vest between the grant
and vesting of awards.

The Committee may exercise its discretion to
adjust vesting outcomes where it believes that
this is appropriate, including but not limited to:
where vesting outcomes are not reflective of

the underlying performance of the business,

the underpins selected onaward are no longer
suitable, or the level of vesting does not reflect
the experience of the Group's shareholders,
employees or other stakeholders. Any application
of the Committee’s discretion would be within the
limits of the overall Remuneration Policy.

The Committee may lapse unvested awards or
claw back vested awards up to three years from
the date of vest (in part orin full) in the event of:

» Amaterial misstatement in the Company's annual
financial statements.

» Amaterialfailure of risk management.

* Seriousreputational damage toamember of the
Group orrelevant business unit.

* Anerrorinthe calculation of any performance
conditions whichresults in overpayment.

The maximum award that may be made to
Executive Directorsis up to 100% of salary per
annum under the rules of the planinrespect

of any financial year of the Company.

Performance underpins may be
based around the Group's key
financial and/or strategic measures.

The Committee may use different
performance underpins for future
awards if the Committee deems this
tobe appropriate.

If any of the underpins are not met
the Committee would consider
whether it was appropriate to scale
back the number of shares that vest
(including to nil).

The Committee will normally disclose
performance underpins in advance of
eachannual grant.

The Committee would seek to
consult with its major shareholders
as appropriate onany proposed
material changes.

Minimum Shareholding Requirement

Aligns the interests of Executive Directors with shareholders and encourages commitment to the company

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

Executive Directors are expected to build and
maintain a holding in the Company's shares as
follows:

* Group CEO: 250% of base salary
* Group CF0:200% of base salary

Executive Directors have three years from the
date of their appointment to the Board to build
and maintain this holding.

Executive Directors willnormally be expected to
maintain their shareholding for a period of time
post-cessation of employment. Normally this
requirement will be for an Executive Director to
maintain their full shareholding requirement for
one year post-employment, and 50% of their
shareholding requirement for asecond year.

The Committee may waive this requirement for
certain exceptional personal circumstances.

N/A

N/A
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Non-Executive Directors Fees
Toattract and retain Non-Executive Directors of the calibre required to oversee the development and execution of the Company's strategy.

Operation Maximum potential value Performance metrics

The Chairman’s fees are determined by N/A None
the Committee.

The Non-Executive Directors' fees are
determined by the Board.

The total fees for Non-Executive Directors,
including the Chairman, willnot exceed the
maximum stated in the Company’s Articles
of Association.

The level of fees are reviewed periodically

and take into account the time commitment,
responsibilities, market levels and the skills and
experiencerequired.

Non-Executive Directors normally receive a

basic fee and an additional fee for specific Board
responsibilities, including chairmanship or
membership of Board committees or acting as the
Senior Independent Director.

Non-Executive Directors are expected to build
and maintain a holding in the Company's shares
of 100% of their base fee. Non-Executive
Directors have three years from the date of their
appointment to the Board to build and maintain
this holding. The Committee may waive this
requirement for certain exceptional personal
circumstances.

Additional fees may be paid to Non-Executive
Directorsonaperdiembasis toreflect
increased time commitment in certain limited
circumstances.

Expensesincurredin the performance of
non-executive duties for the Company may be
reimbursed or paid for directly by the Company, as
appropriate, including any tax and social security
due onthe expenses.

Non-Executive Directors may be provided
withbenefits to enable them to undertake
their duties.

Notes to the tables on pages 77 to 81

The RSPwillbe operated in accardance with the planrules. Inaccordance with the rules of the RSE any performance underpinmay be substituted or
varied if the Committee cansiders it appropriate, provided that the amended performance underpiniis in its opinion reasonable and not materially less
difficult to satisfy. The planrules also provide that the Committee may adjust awards (as it reasonably considers appropriate) in the event of any variation
of the Company’s share capital, capital distribution, demerger, special dividend or other event having amaterial impact on the value of shares.

Malus and clawback applies where statedin the above table. Other elements of remuneration are not subject to recovery provisions.

The Committeereserves theright to make any remunerationpayments and payments for loss of office (including exercising any discretions
availabletoit in cannectionwith such payments) that are not in line with the policy set out above where the terms of the payment were agreed:
() beforethe AGMon3March 2015 (the date the Company's first shareholder-approved Directors' Remuneration Policy came into effect);

(i) beforethe policy set out above came into effect, provided that the terms of the payment were consistent with the shareholder-approved
Remuneration Policy inforce at the time they were agreed; or

(ili) atatimewhenthe relevant individual was not aDirector of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in
consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company.

For these purposes, ‘payments'include the Committee satisfying awards of variable remunerationand anaward over shares is ‘agreed at the
time the awardis granted.
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Performance measures and targets

Annual bonus

Annualbonus metrics and targets are selected ta incentivise Directors to meet objectives for the year and are chosen in line with the

following principles:

* Thetargets set for financial measures should be incentivising and appropriately stretching. Targets may be adjusted by the Committee to
take into account significant capital transactions during the year.

* There should be flexibility to change the measures and weightings year-on-year in line with the needs of the business.

* The Committee retains the ability to adjust the targets and/or set different measures and alter weightings for the annual bonus if events
occur (e.g material divestment of a Group business, capital transactions or changes to accounting standards) which cause it to determine
that anadjustment or amendment is appropriate so that the conditions achieve their original purpose.

Restricted Share Plan

Restricted Share Plan awards are subject to performance underpins. Underpins are chosen to ensure that the financial health and reputation

of the Company are strong and that the Company is making progress on its strategic objectives.

Forawards proposedinthe 2021 financial year, the underpins will be linked to the creation of sustainable growth and strategic objectives
including progress made onthe Company's Corporate Responsibility Strategy priorities.

The Committee retains the ability to adjust any underpinmeasures if events occur (e.g. material divestment of a Group business, capital
transactions or changes to accounting standards) which cause it to determine that an adjustment or amendment is appropriate so that the
underpin conditions achieve their original purpose.

Remuneration arrangements throughout the Group

Differences in the policies for Executive Directors and other employees in the Group generally reflect differences inmarket practice taking into
account role and seniority. The remuneration policies for Executive Directors and the senior executive team are generally consistent in terms
of structure and the performance measures used. All eligible employees may participate in the Company's all-employee share plans in the
relevant territory where they operate.

lllustrative scenario analysis

The following charts show the potential split between the different elements of the Executive Directors remuneration under three different
performance scenarios: Minimum, Target’ and'Maximum'(see table below).

CEO: Simon Smith CFO: Jonathan Davies

£2,919
£2 594k Long-termincentives £1,694k Long-termincentives
9 33% £1,518k
£2,025k 25% M Annualbonus £1,226k 23% 31% M Annualbonus
32% W 29% '
® ixed pay g o o B Fixedpay
807k g 39% £583k 4% 38% 35%
100% 40% 28% 100% 48% 38% 34%
Minimum Target ~ Maximum  Maximum Minimum Target  Maximum  Maximum
+50% share +50% share
price price
appreciation appreciation
‘Maximum + 50%
share price
Component ‘Minimum’ ‘Target’ ‘Maximum’ appreciation’
Fixed remuneration Base salary Annualbase salary for the 2020 financial year**
Pension Chief Executive Officer: 20% of salary; Chief Financial Officer: 21% of salary
Benefits Taxable value of annual benefits provided in the year ended 30 September 2020

Annual bonus

Maximum opportunity

Chief Executive Officer: 175% of salary; Chief Financial Officer: 125% of salary**

Vesting

0% of maximum
opportunity

50% of maximum
opportunity

100% of maximum
opportunity

Restricted share plan

Maximum opportunity

Chief Executive Officer: 100% of salary

; Chief Financial Officer: 75% of salary**

Vesting

0% vesting

100% vesting

100% vesting 100% vesting +
50% share price
appreciation

**Based on contractual base salary as at 1 October 2020.
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Approach to recruitment remuneration
Inthe event that the Group appointed a new Executive Director, remuneration would be determined in line with the following principles:

* The Committee will take into account allrelevant factors, including the calibre and experience of the individual and the market fromwhich
they are recruited, while beingmindful of the best interests of the Group and its shareholders and seeking not to pay more than is necessary

* Sofaras practical the Committee will look to align the remuneration package for any new appointment with the Remuneration Policy set out
inthe policy table onpages //to 81.

* Salariesmaybe higher or lower than the previous incumbent, but will be set taking into account the review principles set out inthe policy
table. Where appropriate the salaries may be set at aninitially lower level, with the intention of increasing salary at a higher thanusual rate
as the Executive Director gains experience intherole. For interimpositions a cash supplement may be paid rather than salary (for example; a
Non-Executive Director taking on an executive function onashort-termbasis).

« Tofacilitate recruitment the Committee may need to buy out terms or remuneration arrangements forfeited on joining the Company.
Any buy-out would take into account the terms of the arrangements, in particular, any performance conditions and the time over which they
would vest. The averriding principle would be that the value of any replacement buy-out awards should be no more than the commercial
value of awards that have been forfeited. The form of any award would be determined at the time and the Committee may make buy-out
awards utilising any of the Company's share plans under LR 94.2 of the Listing Rules (for buy-out awards only).

+ Themaximumvariable pay opportunity inrespect of recruitment (excluding buy-outs) comprises amaximum Annual Bonus of 200% of
annual salary and a maximum RSP grant of 100% of annual salary, as stated inthe policy table onpages 77/ to 81. The Committee retains the
flexibility to determine that, for the first year of appointment, any annual incentive award within this maximumwill be subject to suchterms
asitmay determine.

Where an Executive Director is appointed fromwithin the Company or following corporate activity/rearganisation (for example, merger with
another company), the normal policy would be to honour any legacy arrangements in line with the original terms and conditions.
Where the recruitment requires relocation of the individual, the Committee may provide for additional costs and benefits.

Onthe appointment of anew Chairman or Nan-Executive Director, the remuneration package will be consistent with the policy set out above.

Details of Directors'’ service contracts

Executive Directors

Executive Directors have rolling service contracts. None of the existing service contracts for Executive Directors makes any provision for
termination payments, other than for payment in lieu of notice.

Simon Smith and Jonathan Davies'payment in lieu of notice would be calculated by reference to the base salary inrespect of any unexpired
portion of the notice period. This payment canbe made in instalments over the notice period and can be reduced where alternative
employment is commenced during the notice period.

The Executive Directors'service contracts contain provisionsrelating to salary, car allowance, pension arrangements, medical insurance, life
insurance, business travel insurance, company car, holiday and sick pay, and the reimbursement of reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred
by the Executive Directors while on company business.

Thefollowing service contracts inrespect of Executive Directors who were inoffice during the year are rolling service contracts and therefore
have noenddate:

Date of commencement of contract Notice period for Director Notice period for Company
Simon Smith 1June 2019 9 months 12months
Jonathan Davies 15 July 2014 9 months 12 months

Service contracts for new Executive Directors will be limited to nine months'natice for the Director and 12 months'natice for the Company.

Chairman
Theterms of the Chairman's appointment broadly reflect the terms of the three-year appointments of theNon-Executive Directors. The Chairman’s
appointment canbe terminated at any time upon written notice, resignation or inaccordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Chairman receives no benefits fromthe office other thanfees and reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of his duties,
including any tax due onthe expenses. He is not eligible to participate in Group pension arrangements.
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Non-Executive Directors

AllNon-Executive Directors have been appointed onaninitial term of three years, subject torenewal thereafter. Allare subject to annual

re-electionby shareholders.

The Non-Executive Directors have letters of appaintment which can be terminated at any time uponwritten notice, resignationor in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Non-Executive Directors receive no benefits from their office other than fees and
reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of their duties, including any tax due on the expenses. They are not eligible to participate

in Group pension arrangements.

Effective date of appointment letter

Current term expires

Mike Clasper 1 November 2019 31 October 2022
lanDyson 15July 2014 14 July 2023
PerUtnegaard 1July 2015 30June 2021
Carolyn Bradley 10October 2018 30 September 2021
Judy Vezmar 1 August 2020 31 July 2023
TimLodge 1 October 2020 30 September 2023

Directors'service contracts are kept for inspection by shareholders at the Company'sregistered office.

Payments to departing Directors

Inthe event that the employment of an Executive Director is terminated, any compensation payable will be determined by reference to
the terms of the service contract between the Company and the employee, as well as the rules of any incentive plans. The Committee
may structure any compensation payments in such away as it deems appropriate, taking into account the circumstances of departure.
Inthe event of the Company terminating an Executive Director's contract, the level of compensationwould be subject to mitigation if

considered appropriate.

Payment in lieu
of notice

Inthe event of termination by the Company of an Executive Director’s employment, apayment in lieu of notice
may be paid. This payment would be equal to amaximum of annual base salary and cash allowance in lieu of
pensioninrespect of any unexpired portion of the notice period. This payment can be made in instalments over
the notice period and can be reduced where alternative employment is commenced during the notice period.

Annual bonus

Executive Directors may, at the determination of the Committee, remain eligible to receive an Annual Bonus
for the financial year in which they ceased employment.

Any such bonus will be determined by the Committee, taking into account time in employment and
performance.

Restricted Share Plan awards

On cessation of employment, any outstanding unvested awards will lapse unless the participant dies or is
deemed tobe a‘good leaver'by the Committee inits discretion.

Where the participant is deemed to be a‘good leaver’, any outstanding unvested awards will normally continue
and will vest at the normal vesting date to the extent the original performance underpins have been satisfied.
Vested awards will normally continue to be subject to the two year post-vesting holding period. Awards
willnormally, unless the Committee determines that an alternative proportion of the awards should vest,

be pro-ratedfor the portion of the vesting period completedin employment.

The Committee may, in exceptional circumstances, or if the participant dies, decide to allow awards to

vest on cessation of employment subject to the Committee’s assessment of performance against the

original performance underpins at that time or the Committee's assessment of the likely satisfaction of the
performance underpins over the original performance period. Awards will normally, unless the Committee
determines that an alternative proportion of the awards should vest, be pro-rated for the portion of the vesting
period completed inemployment.

Payments in relation
to statutory rights

The Company may pay an amount considered reasonable by the Remuneration Committee inrespect of an
Executive Director's statutory rights.

Payments required by law

The Company may pay damages, awards, fines or other compensation awarded to an Executive Director by
any competent court or tribunal or other payments required to be made on termination of employment under
applicable law.

Professional fees

The Company may pay an amount considered reasonable by the Remuneration Committee inrespect of fees for
legal and tax advice, and outplacement support for the departing Executive Director.

Award under LR 9.4.2

Were anawardtobemade under LR94.2 then the leaver provisions would be determined at the time of award.
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Takeovers and other corporate events

Under the RSP (or legacy awards made under the PSP), on a takeover ar voluntary winding-up of the Company, awards will vest in accordance
withtherules of the plan. Vesting would be determined by the Committee based on the proportion of the vesting period that has elapsed and
the extent to which the performance conditions or underpins have been satisfied, although the Committee has the discretion to determine
that suchgreater proportionas it considers appropriate of the awards should vest, including where it considers the level of shareholder
returnsis at asuperior level.

Inthe event of a variation of share capital, demerger, capital distribution or any other event having a materialimpact on the value of the
shares, the Committee may determine that outstanding awards shall vest on the same basis as set out above far atakeover. Alternatively, the
Committee may (with the consent of the acquiring company) decide that awards will not vest ona corporate event but will be replaced by new
awards over shares inthe new acquiring company or another company determined by the acquiring company.

Bonusesmay be paid inrespect of the year inwhich the change of control or winding up of the Company occurs, if the Committee considers this
appropriate. The Committee may determine the level of bonus taking into account any factors it considers appropriate.

Amendments

The Committee may make amendments to the terms of the Company's incentive plans in accordance with the rules of those plans.
The Committee may make minor amendments to the palicy set out above (for regulatory, exchange control, tax, administrative purposes or to
take account of achange in legislation) without obtaining shareholder approval for that amendment.

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Group

Inmaking remuneration decisions, the Committee also considers the pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.
Whenreviewing and setting Executive Directors' remuneration, the Committee takes into account the pay and employment conditions

of Group employees. The Group-wide pay review budget is one of the key factors whenreviewing the salaries of the Executive Directors.
During the year, information around the salary reductions taken by our leadership team was cascaded to the wider organisation through
internal announcements and business updates. The Group complies with local regulations and practices regarding employee consultation
more broadly.

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee consulted with the Group's largest shareholders when develaping the above policy. Inreviewing and setting remuneration,
including that of Executive Directors, the Committee receives updates oninvestors'views, and may from time to time engage directly with
investarsand/or investor representative organisations on remuneration topics as appropriate. These lines of communication ensure that
emerging best-practice principles are factored into the Committee’s decision-making.
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This section of the Annual Report includes additional information
required to be disclosed under the Companies Act 2006 (the Act),
the 2018 UK Carporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’), the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules (the DTRs') and the Listing Rules of
the Financial Conduct Authority (theLRs'). The Code canbe found on
the Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk.

Certaininformation required to be includedin the Directors'Report s
included inother sections of this Annual Report, including:

* TheStrategicReportonpages 1 to43;

* The Corporate Governance Report onpages 46 to 55;

* The Audit Committee Report onpages 56 to 61;

* TheDirectors'RemunerationReport onpages 6.2 to 85;
* Postbalance sheet eventson page 149;and

* The Company's subsidiaries outside the United Kingdom
onpages 156to 160.

The sections referred to above provide an overview of the strategy,
development and performance of the Company's business inthe
year endedandas at 30 September 2020, together with information
on the approach of the Company to corporate governance and the
constitution, and the work and effectiveness of the Board and its
principal committees. These sections are incorporated by reference
intothe Directors'Report.

Corporate information and listing on the
London Stock Exchange

The Company was incorporated andregistered in England and Wales
on9March 2006 as a private company limited by shares under the
Companies Act 1985 with the registered number 5/35966.0n 4 July
2014, the Company was re-registered as apublic limited company
limited by shares. The Company's registered office and principal place
of business is at Jamestown Wharf, 32 Jamestown Road, London,
UnitedKingdom, NW1 7HW.

On 15 July 2014, the entire issued ordinary share capital of the
Company was admitted to the premium listing segment of the Official
List of the Financial Conduct Authority and to unconditional trading
on the London Stock Exchange plc's main market for listed securities
under the ticker 'SSPG.

Dividends

Therewas no interim dividend declared during the Y20 financial
year (2019:£258m). Additionally, the Directors will not be
recommending aFY 20 final dividend (2019: £ 26.8m) which will
result inno ordinary dividends for the year (2019: £52.6m). In light of
ongoing macro-ecanomic uncertainty and the significant impact that
Covid-19 hashad, and continues to have, on the Group, the Board has
decidednot to declare or recommend (respectively) these dividends
topreserve cashinthe business and maximise its financial resilience.
Further, the Group is currently restricted from declaring or paying
dividends until the expiry of certainrestrictions that apply under

the amended debt arrangements with the Group's lending group of
banks and US private placement holders during the covenant waiver
periodand for a period afterwards until any additional fees accrued
during the waiver period are paid in full. When these restrictions are
lifted and conditions improve, the Board will consider the best way to
restartreturnof capital to shareholders.

On 26 February 2020 shareholder approval was given at the Annual
GeneralMeeting for areturn of 6 pence per share to shareholders
whichwas the equivalent of £268min aggregate (the FY19Final
Dividend'). The FY19 Final Dividend was paid on 4 June 2020
(deferredfrom 27 March 2020). With the continued aim of retaining
cashwithinthe business to maximise its financial resilience and to
offset the cash outflowfromthe payment of the FY 19 Final Dividend,
on 3 June 2020 the Company announced the June Placing (defined
below) to allow those investors entitled to the FY 19 Final Dividend
the opportunity tareinvest it inthe Company. The proceeds from
the offering allowed a proportion of the FY19 Final Dividend to be
retained in the business. For further information see June Placing,
Subscription andRetail Offer for re-investment of FY19 Final
Dividend below.

During the year, the trustees of each of the employee benefit trusts
which operate in connectionwith the Company's share plans waived
theirrights toreceive dividends onany shares held by them. Details of
thetrustscanbe foundinnote 25 of thisreport. The amount of
dividends waived during the year ended 30 September 2020 in
relationtothe trustswas£40438.56.

Share capital

At 30 September 2020 there were 537859931 ordinary shares of
11290 pence inissue (comprised of 537,596,432 ordinary shares with
onevote eachand 263,499 held in treasury, which are non-voting),
whichare fully paidup and are quoted on the London Stock Exchange.
Further informationregarding the Company's issued share capital
and movements in the financial year can be foundinnate 25 to the
financial statements on pages 138 and 139.

Powers conferred on the Directors in relation to issuing or buying
back shares

Subject to applicable law andthe Company’s Articles of Association,
the Directors may exercise all powers of the Company, including

the power to authorise the issue and/or market purchase of the
Company's shares (subject to anappropriate authority being given
to the Directors by shareholders at ageneral meeting and any
conditions attaching to such authority). The shareholders delegated
the following powers inrelation to the issuing or market purchase by
the Company of its shares at the Company's 2020 AGM:

Issuing shares

The Directors were granted authority to allot shares in the Company
andtogrant rightsto subscribe for or to convert any security into
shares inthe Company:

(@) uptoanominalamountof £1,617939;and

(b) comprisingequity securities up to anominal amount of
£3,235,8/9 such amount to be reduced by any allotments
made under (a) above, in connectionwithan offer by way of a
rightsissue.

The authorities conferred on the Directors toallot securities under
paragraphs (a) and (b) will expire on the date of the 2021 AGM, or
close of business on 26 May 2021, whichever is sooner, (the Expiry
Date’). The Directors will be seeking anew authority at the 2021
AGM for the Directars to allot shares andto grant subscriptionand
conversionrights ta ensure that the Directors continue to have
theflexibility to act inthe best interests of shareholders when
opportunities arise, by issuing new shares or granting suchrights.



87 | SSP Group plc Annual Reportand Accounts 2020

Strategic Report Financial statements

Corporate governance

TheDirectors were also given authority to allot equity securities for
cashortosellordinary shares as treasury shares for cash subject
to certainlimitations, such authority to apply until the Expiry

Date. The Directorswill seek to renew this authority at the 2021
AGM. See the Placings section below for details of how the above
authorities were usedintheyear.

Issuing shares pursuant to share schemes

During the 2020 financial year, a total of 3,032,564 ordinary shares
inthe Company were issued to satisfy (a) Matching Share awards
under the Company's UKSIP and International SIP and (b) the vesting
of awardsunder the Company’s Performance Share Plan (PSP).
Therelevant PSP awards were those that vested inNovember 2019
andMay, June and July 2020, based on performance conditions
satisfiedas at theend of the 2019 financial year. As noted on pages
63 and 65, there was no vesting of PSP awards granted in November
2017/ anddue tavestinNovember 2020. It is noted that ordinary
shares issuedto satisfy awards under employee share schemes do
not count against the allotment authorities granted by shareholders
inaccordance withthe Act.

Placings

March Placing and Subscription

On 25March 2020, the Company agreedthe terms and announced
the successful completion of the non pre-emptive placing of
86,195,459 new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
(withan aggregate nominal value of £935,220.73) (the March
Placing Shares') at a price of 250 pence per March Placing Share
(the March Placing Price’) (the March Placing). On the same date,
the Company agreed the terms of and announced the subscription
by certain directors and members of the senior management team
of the Company for anaggregate of 304,000 new ardinary shares
inthe capital of the Company (with anaggregate nominal value of
£3,29840) (the March Subscription Shares'), at the March Placing
Price, pursuant to subscription letters entered into with the Company
(the'March Subscription).

Together, the March Placing and March Subscription of inaggregate
86,499459 new ardinary shares raised gross proceeds of
approximately £215.5mand £ /60,000 respectively. The March
Placing Price representedapremiumof 6.2 per cent to the closing
share price of 235.5 pence on 24 March 2020 and a discount of

/7 per cent to the middle market price at the time at which the
Company agreed the March Placing Price. The March Placing Shares
and the March Subscription Shares issued together represented
approximately 19.3% of the existing issued ordinary share capital
of the Company prior to the March Placing and March Subscription.
The Company acknowledged at the time that the March Placing

and the March Subscription were onanon-pre-emptive basis and
itisnoted that they took place before the Pre-Emption Group
publishedrevised guidance on 1 April 2020 encouraging investors
to support issuances by companies on anon-pre-emptive basis of
upto 20% of their issued share capital. Members of the Board and
the senior management team consulted with the Company's major
institutional shareholders before launching the March Placing and
March Subscription.

The purpose of the March Placing and March Subscription was
tostrengthenthe Company's balance sheet, working capital and
liquidity position during aperiod of unprecedented disruptioninthe
globaltravelmarket as aresult of the Covid-19 outbreak, andthe
net proceeds were used accordingly. The March Placing structure
was chosen as it minimised cost, time to completion and use of
management time at an impaortant and unprecedented time for

the Company.

June Placing, Subscription and Retail Offer for re-investment

of FY19 Final Dividend

On 3 June 2020 the Company agreed the terms, and subsequently
on4 June 2020, the Company announced the successful completion
of the non-pre-emptive placing of 3,382,255 new ordinary shares
inthe capital of the Company (with an aggregate nominal value of
£36,69/406) (the June Placing Shares') at aprice of 315.2 pence

per June Placing Share (the June Placing Price’) (the June Placing).
On 3 June 2020 the Company agreed the terms, and subsequently
announced on 4 June 2020 the successful completion of the
subscriptionby certain Directors and members of the senior
management team of the Company for anaggregate of 31,739 new
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company (with an aggregate
nominal value of £344.37) (theJune Subscription Shares'), at the
June Placing Price, pursuant to subscription letters entered into with
the Company (the June Subscription). In addition, retail investors
subscribed inan offer made by the Company via the PrimaryBid
platformforanaggregate of 61,394 new ordinary sharesinthe
capital of the Company (with anaggregate nominal value of £666.12)
(the Retail Shares') at the June Placing Price (the Retail Offer’), the
terms of which were agreed on 3 June 2020 and as announced on

4 June 2020.

Together, the June Placing, June Subscription and Retail Offer of, in
aggregate, 34/5,388 new ordinary shares, raised gross proceeds
of approximately £10.6m, £0.1mand £0.2mrespectively. The June
Placing Price was equal to the mid-market closing price of the
Company's shares on 3 June 2020. The June Placing Shares, June
Subscription Shares and Retail Shares issuedtogether represented
approximately 0./ per cent of the existing issued ordinary share
capital of the Company prior to the June Placing, June Subscription
andRetail Offer.

Following the onset of Covid-19 and its impact on the Company,

the Directors and members of senior management engagedwith
shareholders and assessed various options for the non-payment of
the FY19Final Dividend, including cancelling it, requesting waivers of
it and deferring it. However, in light of the circumstances aroundthe
timing and shareholder approval of the FY19Final Dividend, many of
the options provedtobe unachievable.

Therefore, following further engagement with shareholders and with
the continued aimof retaining cash within the Group, the Company
conductedthe June Placing, June Subscription andRetail Offer to
raisefunds to offset the cash outflow framthe payment of the FY19
Final Dividend. The June Placing, June Subscription and Retail Offer
were solely intended to give investors entitled to the FY 19 Final
Dividend payment an opportunity toreinvest their cash dividend
backinthe business. Investors were not permittedto apply foran
allocation of shares that exceeded the value of their FY 19 Final
Dividend entitlement.

Thenet proceeds fromthe June Placing, June Subscriptionand

Retail Offer therefore allowed approximately £10.8mof the FY19
Final Dividend payment to be effectively retainedin the business to
further enhance the Company’s cash and liquidity position during the
period of unprecedented disruptioninthe global travel market as a
result of the Covid-19 outbreak.
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Three-year statement

Over the three-year period preceding the placings, subscriptions
andretail offer referred to above, the Company has only issued new
sharesfor the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under employee
share schemes.

Buyback of shares

The Directors were granted authority to make market purchases
of the Company's own shares onbehalf of the Company up toa
maximum of approximately 10% of the Company's issued share
capital. This standard authority is renewable annually and the
Directors will seek torenew thisautharity at the 2021 AGM.

On 20 November 2019 the Company launched its first on-market
share buyback programme pursuant to the authority granted at

the AGMin 2019.Under the programme between 21 November
and 5December 2019, the Company bought back inaggregate
263,499 ordinary shares for a total consideration of approximately
£1.7m(excluding expenses). Given the Covid-19 pandemic the

share buyback programme has been suspended since the start

of 2020.Repurchased shares under the buyback programme
represented approximately 0.06% of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately prior to the commencement of the buyback
programme. All of the repurchased shares were transferred into
treasury. The purpose of the buyback programme was toreduce the
Company'sissued share capital as part of its commitment to maintain
an efficient balance sheet.

Rights and restrictions on shares and transfers of shares

Certainrestrictions, which are customary for alisted company,

apply totherights andtransfers of ordinary shares inthe Company.
Therights and obligations attaching to the Company's ordinary
shares, in addition to those conferred on their holders by law, are set
outinthe Company's Articles of Association, copies of whichcanbe
obtained from Companies House inthe United Kingdom or by writing
tothe Company Secretary. The key points are summarised below.

Ordinary shares

Notice of meetings must be given to every shareholder and toany
personentitledto ashare unless the Articles of Associationor the
rights of the shares say they are not entitled to receive them from
the Company. The Board candecide that only people who are entered
ontheregister of members at the close of business onaparticular
day are entitled toreceive the notice. Onashow of hands at ageneral
meeting every member present in person or by proxy shall have one
vote and, onapoll, every member present in person or by proxy shall
have ane vote for every ordinary share held. No sharehalder holds
ordinary shares which carry special rights relating to the control of
the Company.

Dividends and distributions on winding up to shareholders

Holders of ordinary shares may receive interim dividends approved
by Directors and dividends declared ingeneral meetings.Ona
liquidation and subject to a special resolution of the Company, the
liguidator may divide among members in specie, the whole or any part
of the assets of the Company and may, for such purpose, value any
assets and may determine how such division shallbe carried out.

Transfers of ordinary shares

The Articles of Association place norestrictions onthetransfer

of ordinary shares or onthe exercise of voting rights attached to
them except: (i) in very limited circumstances (such as a transfer to
more than four persons) and (i) where the Company has exercised
its rights to suspendtheir voting rights or to prohibit their transfer
following the omission by their holder or any person interested in
them, to provide the Company with informationrequestedby it in
accordance withPart 22 of the Act. Restrictions ontransfers may
apply where the holder is precluded from exercising rights by the LRs,
the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers or any other regulations.
The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of
the Company's shares that may result inrestrictions an the transfer
of securities or onvoting rights at any meeting of the Company.

Dealings subject to Market Abuse Regulation

Pursuant to the Market Abuse Regulationandthe Group's securities
dealing policy, Directors, other persons discharging managerial
responsibilities and certain employees require the approval of the
Company todealin the ordinary shares of the Company.

Exercise of rights of shares in employee share schemes

Awards over shares held by relevant participants under the
Company's various share plans carry norights until the shares are
issuedto participants or their nominees.

The Trustees of the Company's employee benefit trusts are
entitledtovote onunallocated shares heldin the trust fund from

time to time but they may consider, in their absolute discretion, any
recommendations made to themby the Company before doing so.
However, the trustee of the SSP Group plc Share Plans Trust does

not seekto exercise votingrights onexisting shares held inthe Share
Plans Trust (see note 25 for further details onthe employee benefit
trusts). Inrespect of allocated shares held by the Trustees as nominee
(including the Trustees of the Company's Share Incentive Plans), they
must seek instructions from participants on howthey should exercise
their voting rights befare doing so on their behalf.
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Notification of major shareholdings

Information provided to the Company pursuant to the DTRs is published on aRegulatory Information Service and on the Company's website.
As at 30 September 2020, the following notifications of major shareholdings of 3% or more have beenreceived by the Company under DTR 5.

No. of ordinary shares % of the Company’s
Name and voting rights notified* voting rights*
HSBCHoldings PLC 53,836,798 10.01%
BlackRock, Inc. 44,927,739 8.35%
APG Asset Management Limited 31,561,081 7.05%
Marathon Asset Management LLP 24,167,130 543%
Parvus Asset Management Europe Limited 27751,072 5.20%
Artemis Investment Management LLP 22,621,923 5.06%
Schroders plc 23,720,071 499%
JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited and
JP Morgan Investment Management Inc 17,000,000 3.58%

Thefollowing notifications were received after 30 September 2020 and before 16 December 2020:

No. of ordinary shares and % of voting rights as at the

Name voting rights notified date of this report
Norges Bank 17,108,217 3.18%
BlackRock, Inc. 39,039,324 7.26%
HSBC Holdings PLC 39,716,201 7.38%
* Atthe date of disclosure.

Sofar as the Company is aware, no other personheld anotifiable Powers of the Directors

interest inthe ordinary share capital of the Company.

The holdings andvoting rights shown above are correct at the date of
notification. It should be noted that these holdings may have changed
since the Company was notified, including as result of the March
Placing and March Subscription that took place inMarch 2020 and
the JunePlacing, June Subscription and Retail Offer that took placein
June 2020 andgiven that notification of any change is not required
until the next notifiable thresholdis crossed.

Directors

Particulars of the Directors in office as at the date of thisreport

are listedonpages 44 and 45. There were various changes to the
compositionof the Board throughout FY19/20. These changes are
setout in the footnotes to the meeting attendance table on page 49.
Thetable setsout all persons who were Directors of the Company
during FY19/20.

Appointment and removal of Directors

The Company may, by ordinary resolution of the shareholders of

the Company at ageneral meeting, remove any Director from office
andelect another personin place of a Director soremoved from
office, following arecommendation by the Nomination Committeein
accordance withits Terms of Reference and approval by the Board.

The processes for the appointment and replacement of Directors
are governed by the Company's Articles of Association, the Code, the
Act, thelRsandrelated legislation. Inaccordance with the Code, all
Directors standfor electionat the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
following their appointment, and stand for re-electiononanannual
basis at each AGM thereafter.

Subject to the Articles of Association, the Act andrelated legislation,
any directions givenby special resolution and any relevant statutes
andregulations, the business of the Company will be managed by the
Board whomay exercise all the powers of the Company.

Directors'interests

The Directors'interests in shares and options over ardinary shares
inthe Company are shown inthe Directors'Remuneration Report
onpage /4. Inline with the requirements of the Act, each Director
has notified the Company of any situation inwhichhe or she has, ar
couldhave, adirect or indirect interest that conflicts, or passibly may
canflict, withthe interests of the Company (a situational conflict).
These were considered and approved by the Board in accordance
withthe Company’s Articles of Association in September 2020 and
eachDirector was informed of the authorisation and any terms
onwhichitwas given. The Board has formal procedures to deal
with Directors'conflicts of interest. The Board reviews and, where
appropriate, approves certain situational conflicts of interest that
arereported toitby Directors, and aregister of those situational
conflicts is maintained and continues to be reviewed by the Board.

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualifying indemnity provisions, as defined
by section 236 of the Act, of which the Directors had the benefit

of during the financial year ended 30 September 2020 and which
remainin force at the date of thisreport. Inaddition, Directors and
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries are covered by Directors
and officers'liability insurance.

!
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Awards under employee share schemes

Details of the Group's employee share schemes and awards made
during the year and held by Executive Directors as at 30 September
2020 are set out inthe Annual Report onRemuneration on
pages65to /6.

Details of awards made during the year and held by employees as at
30 5eptember 2020 under the Performance Share Planare disclosed
innote 26 andnote 39 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 139and 155 respectively.

Controlling shareholders

Any personwho exercises or controls on their ownor together with
any personwithwhomthey are acting in concert, 30% or more of
thevotes able tobe cast onall or substantially all matters at general
meetings of acompany are known as ‘controlling shareholders’

The LRs require companies with controlling shareholders to enter
intoawrittenand legally binding agreement, whichis intended
toensure that the controlling shareholder complies with certain
independence provisions.

As at 30 September 2020, the Company had no
controlling shareholders.

Annual General Meeting

Details of the arrangements for the 2021 AGMwillbe set out in the
Notice of Meeting, which, along with other relevant documentation, is
enclosedwiththis Annual Report or available onthe Group's website
atwww.foodtravelexperts.com (for those shareholders who have
chosen to communicate with the Company by electronic means).
Shareholderswhowishto ask a question of the Boardrelating to the
business of the AGM can do so by submitting questions in advance
of the AGM, details for how to do this (and deadlines for submitting
questians) are set out in the Notice of Meeting, The results of the
voting will be annauncedto the Laondon Stock Exchange and made
available to shareholders onthe Group's website after the meeting.

Allholders of ordinary shares on the register at the relevant record
date are entitled toreceive the Notice of AGM, whichwill be posted
at least 20 working days before the AGM. They are also entitledto
appoint one or more proxies or, if they are corporations, corporate
representatives, and to exercise voting rights. Shareholders may
vote andappoint proxies electronically. The Notice of AGM specifies
deadlinesfor exercising voting rights and appointing a proxy or
proxies tovote inrelation toresolutions to be put to the AGM,

Change of control

Contracts

There are anumber of contracts entered into by members of the
Group that allow the counterparties to alter or terminate those
arrangements in the event of achange of control of the Company.
These arrangements are commercially sensitive and confidential, and
their disclosure could be seriously prejudicial to the Group.

Other agreements

The Company does not have agreements with any Director, officer
or employee that would provide compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from atakeover, except that provisions of the
Company's employee share plans may cause options and awards
granted under such plans to vest onatakeover.

The Group'smain credit facilities, being the committed bank facilities
dated 16 June 2014 entered into by SSP Financing Limited, awholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (SSP Financing’) (as amended from
time to time), contain a provision such that inthe event of a change

of control, if alender sarequires and has notified the agent within
10business days of the agent notifying the lenders of the event,

the commitment of that lender will be cancelled and all outstanding
amounts, together with accrued interest under that commitment, will
becomerepayable, onthe date notified inwriting by the agent that
therelevant commitment has been cancelled (where such date must
not be fewer than 10 business days after the date of the notice).

SSPFinancing also entered into: (i) a note purchase agreement on

9 August 2018 (2018 NPA) inrespect of a US$175m issue of US
private placement notes (the 2018 Notes') (as amended from time
totime); and (i) a note purchase agreement on 11 April 2019(2019
NPA) inrespect of aUS$199.5mand €58 5missue of US private
placement notes (2019 Nates') (as amended from time ta time).
The 2018 NPA and 2019 NPA (NPAs') each containa change of
control provisionwhereby if any ane personoragroup of persons
acting in concert gain Control of the Company (as defined in the
NPAs), then the Company and SSP Financing must give written notice
of this to the holders of the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes (Notes').
The writtennotice shall contain an offer by SSP Financing to prepay
the entire unpaid principal amount of the Notes held by each holder
together with interest thereon.

Articles of Association

The Articles of Association of the Company may be amendedby a
special resolution of the shareholders.

Political donations

The Company's policy is not tomake political donations. Neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries, during the financial year ended

30 September 2020, made any political donation to a political party,
other political organisation or independent election candidate, or
incurred any political expenditure or made any contributiontoa
non-EU political party. The Company will propose to shareholders
at the 2021 AGMthat a precautionary authority be granted of up
to£25000inaggregate. Details are included in the 2021 Natice

of AGM.

Environmental, social and governance risks

The Boardhas identified and assessed the significant environmental,
social and governancerisks to the Company's short andlong term
value, aswell as the opportunities to enhance value that may

arise fromimproving its environmental and social performance.
The Corporate Responsibility Report onpages 12 to 19reports
onenvironmental and sacial matters, including the impact of the
Group's businesses onthe environment and the steps we are taking
tomitigate thisimpact. The Corporate Responsibility Report also
reports onthe Group's annual quantity of greenhouse emissions in
tonnes of carbon dioxide, the Group's employees, and on social and
community issues.
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Employee engagement and
business relationships

Understanding the views and values of all the Group's stakeholders,
includingemployees, suppliers, customers and other business
relationships is critical to the Group's success. Examples of how

the Directors have engaged with employees and hadregardto
employee and other stakeholder interests and the effect of that
regard, including on the principal decisions taken by the Company, are
detailed throughout this report and specific examples can be found
onpage 11.

Details of how information is communicated to employees andhow a
common awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting
the performance of the Company is achieved amongst the employee
population canbe foundonpages 10to 19.

Treasury and risk management

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies,
including its hedging policy, and the mainrisks arising from the
Group's financial assets andliabilities are summarised innote 29 to
the consolidated financial statements onpages 142 to 146.

Branch disclosure

The Company does not have any branches outside the UK.

Future Developments and Research
and Development

Details regarding likely future development in the business of
the Group canbe foundin the Strategic report onpages 1 to 19.
The Group does not undertake material levels of research and
development activity.

Disclosures required under
UK Listing Rule 9.8.4

Thereare nadisclosures requiredto be made under UK Listing Rule
984 whichhave not already beendisclosed elsewhere in thisreport.
Details of long term incentive plans can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report onpages 6. to 85 and details of dividends
waived by shareholders canbe found on page 86. Details on Director
salaryreductions canbe foundin the Statement by the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and Directors' Remuneration Report
onpages 62 to 85.Furthermore, details of theMarchand June
Placings and the June Subscription and Retail Offer canbe found
above onpage 87/

Going concern

The financial information in these financial statements has been
prepared onagoing concern basis, the assessment of which is set
outonpages 42 and 43 along with the Board's assessment of the
prospects andviability of the Group.

Auditor

The auditor, KPMGLLP has indicated its willingness to continue in
office, andaresolution that it will be reappointed will be proposed at
the 2021 AGM.

Statement of disclosure of information
to auditors

Insofar as each Director in office on the date of approval of this
reportisaware, thereis norelevant audit information of which the
Company's external auditor is unaware, and the Directors have taken
allthe stepswhichthey ought tohave takenas Directors, to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information andto establish
that the Company's external auditor is aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
withthe provisions of Section 418 of the Act.

Approvedby the Board and signed on its behalf by:

(A Do

Helen Byrne
General Counsel and Company Secretary

16 December 2020
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITIES INRESPECT OF THE
ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TheDirectors areresponsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law andregulations.

Company lawrequires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law

they are requiredto prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and applicable law. The Directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial
statementsinaccordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101
ReducedDisclosure Framework.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and parent company, and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and parent company
financial statements, the Directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ makejudgements andestimates that are reasonable, relevant andreliable;

* statewhether they have been preparedinaccordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU or applicable UK accounting standards in the case of
the parent company;

* assess the Group andparent company's ability to continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
* use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company, or to cease operations, or
have norealistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors areresponsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company, and enable them to ensure that
its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
toenable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group, andto prevent and detect fraud and
otherirregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are alsaresponsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors'Report, Directors'
RemunerationReport and Corporate Governance Statement that complies with that law and those regulations.

TheDirectors areresponsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website.
Legislationinthe UK governing the preparationand dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the Annual Financial Report
We confirm that to the best of ourknowledge:

* thefinancial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the cansolidation taken as awhole; and

* theStrategic Report andthe Directors'Report includes afair review of the development and performance of the business and the position
of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as awhole, together with a description of the principalrisks and
uncertainties that they face.

We consider the AnnualReport and Accounts, taken as awhole, to be fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's and the Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

Simon Smith

Chief Executive Officer
16 December 2020

geh-

Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer

16December 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SSP GROUPPLC

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of SSP Group plc (“the
Company") for the year ended 30 September 2020 which comprise
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of

Overview

Materiality:
Group financial
statements as awhole

£9.0m(2019:£9.5m)
0.6% of total Group revenue

(2019:4.8% of Group profit before tax)

other comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet, the
consolidated statement of changes inequity, the consolidated cash

Coverage

79% of total Group revenue

(2019: 78% of Group profit before tax)

flow statement, company balance sheet and company statement
of changes inequity, and the related notes, including the accounting

policiesinnote 1 and 34.

In our opinion:

* Thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the parent Company's affairs as at 30 September

2020 and of the Group's loss for the year thenended;

* The Group financial statements have been properly preparedin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adoptedby the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU);

* The parent Company financial statements have been properly
preparedinaccordance with UK accounting standards, including
FRS101 ReducedDisclosure Framework; and

* Thefinancial statements have been preparedinaccordance with

and lease liabilities on transition
toIFRS 16

vs 2019
Recurring risks Recoverability of goodwill and Ll
indefinite life intangible assets
Recoverability of parent's <
investment in subsidiary
undertaking
Event driven Going Concern L)
The impact of uncertainties due to
the UK exiting the European Union
onour audit <
Recoverability of site assets New
Initial recognitionof ROU assets ~ New

the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, asregards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
onAuditing (UK) ("1SAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities
are describedbelow. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our

opinion. Our audit opinionis consistent with our report to the

Audit Committee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the Directors on 20 September
2006. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is for the 15
financial years ended 30 September 2020. We have fulfilled our
ethicalresponsibilities under, and we remain independent of the
Group inaccordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC
Ethical Standard as applied tolisted public interest entities. No non-
audit services prohibited by that standardwere provided.
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2. Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention tonote 1.2 inthe financial statements which indicates that the ability of the Group and parent Company to continue asa
going concernis dependent on the external lenders not calling the debts owing to theminthe event of the Group breaching its covenants once
access to the Covid Corporate Financing Facility ("CCFF") is withdrawn in February 2022 and original covenants are reinstated inMarch 2022,
aswellas its ability toraise additional funding once the CCFF is withdrawn in February 2022,

The Group's forecasts, taking into account committed facilities including the CCFF and the Group's estimates of the Covid-19 impact, under
both the base case and severe but plausible downside scenarios, indicate sufficient liquidity and revised covenant compliance for at least

12 months from the date of these financial statements.

However, we nate that the Group is forecasting abreach of covenants once the CCFF isrepaidin February 2022 and original covenants are
reinstated inMarch 2022, under both scenarios, as well the possible need for additional funding once the CCFF is withdrawn in February 2022.

Whilst the directors believe that the Group would continue to have the support of its shareholders and the banks in these circumstances there

isno certainty that this would be the case.

These events and conditions, along with the other matters explained innote 1.2, constitute amaterial uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt onthe Group's andthe parent Company's ability to continue as agoing concern. Our opinion is not modified inrespect of thismatter.

The risk

Disclosure quality

Thereis littlejudgementinvolvedin
thedirectors’conclusion that risks and
circumstances describedinnote 1.2 to the
financial statements represent a material
uncertainty over the ability of the Group and
parent Company to continue as agoing concern
foraperiod of atleast ayear from the date of
approval of the financial statements.

However, clear and full disclosure of the facts
andthedirectors'rationale for the use of the
going concernbasis of preparation, including
thatthereis arelated materialuncertainty,
isakey financial statement disclosure and so
was the focus of our audit in this area. Auditing
standards require that to bereportedas akey
audit matter.

Our response

We assessed the accuracy and completeness of the matters coveredin the
Going Concerndisclosure by:

Our sector experience - We assessed and challenged the key assumptionsin
theforecasts usedby the Directors by benchmarking these against external
forecasts and our sector knowledge.

Our debt market experience - We used our debt market experience
inassessing the likelihood of covenant waivers and renewed financing
beingavailable.

Sensitivity analysis - We considered sensitivities over the inputs to the cash
flow forecasts which determine the level of available financial resources
indicated by the Group's financial forecasts, taking account of reasonably
possible (butnot unrealistic) adverse effects that could arise from these
risks individually and collectively. In particular, we assessed the Group's
severe but plausible downside forecasts based on the risks resulting from
the Covid-19 pandemic.

Evaluating assumptions - We challenged the key assumptions inthe
forecastsusedby the Directorsinassessing the Going Concernassumptions
and considering the reasonableness of their risks and sensitivities to these
assumptions.

Funding assessment - We obtained and inspected the signed banking
agreement, approved revised covenant terms and Covid Corporate Financing
Facility (CCFF)facility agreement, a commercial paper issued to eligible
larger businesses who are experiencing disruption as aresult of the Covid-19
pandemic, to ascertain the committed level of financing available to the
Group and parent Company, the duration of the facilities and related covenant
requirements. We have also assessed the evidence available to support
whether the covenants willbe met over the forecast period.

Historical comparisons - We have considered the historical accuracy of the
Group's cash flow forecasts and growthrates by assessing the accuracy of
previous forecasts toactuals.

Ourresults

We found the going concern disclosure including a material uncertainty to
be acceptable (2019 result: We found the going concern disclosure withno
materialuncertainty tobe acceptable).
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3. Key audit matters: including our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements and
include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which
hadthe greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement
team. Going concernis asignificant key audit matter and is describedin section 2 of our report. We summarise below other key audit matters,
inarriving at our audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest
entities, our results framthose procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, inthe
context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently
are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The risk
The impact of Unprecedented levels of uncertainty
uncertaln.tlfes dueto All audits assess and challenge the
the UK exiting the reasonableness of estimates, in particular
Europee‘m Unionon as described in our Recoverability of
our audit goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets,
Refertopage 37 of Recoverability of site assets (including

property, plantand equipmentand ROU assets)
and Recoverability of parent’s investment

in subsidiary undertaking KAMs below, and
related disclosures and the appropriateness of
the going concern basis of preparation of the
financial statements (see above). All of these
depend on assessments of the future economic
environment and the Group's future prospects
and performance.

Risk Management
and Principal Risks
andpage 57 Audit
Committee Report

Inaddition, we are required to consider the
other information presentedin the Annual
Report including the principalrisks disclosure
and the viability statement and to consider the
directors'statement that the annualreport
andfinancial statements takenas awhole s
fair, balanced and understandable and provides
theinformationnecessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's position and performance,
business modeland strategy.

Brexitis one of the most significant economic
events for the UK and its effects are subject
tounprecedented levels of uncertainty of
consequences, with the full range of possible
effects unknown.

Our response

We developed astandardised firm-wide approach to the consideration of the
uncertainties arising from Brexit in planning and performing our audits.

Our procedures included:

Our Brexit knowledge - We considered the directors’assessment of Brexit-
related sources of risk for the Group's business and financial resources
comparedwith our ownunderstanding of the risks. We considered the
directors'plans to take action to mitigate the risks.

Sensitivity analysis - When addressing the recoverability of goodwill and
indefinite life intangible assets, recoverability of site assets (including
property, plant and equipmentand ROU assets) and recoverability of
parent'sinvestmentin subsidiary undertaking, and other areas that depend
on forecasts, we compared the directors’analysis to our assessment of the
fullrange of reasonably possible scenarios resulting from Brexit uncertainty
and, where forecast cash flows are required to be discounted, considered
adjustments to discount rates for the level of remaining uncertainty.

Assessing transparency - As well as assessing individual disclosures as part
of our procedures onrecoverability of goodwill and indefinitely life intangible
assets, recoverability of site assets (including property, plant and equipment
andROU assets) and recoverability of parent’s investment in subsidiary
undertaking, we considered all of the Brexit related disclosures together,
including those in the strategic report, comparing the overall picture against
our understanding of therisks.

Ourresults

Asreportedunder our Recoverability of goodwill and indefinite life intangible
assets, Recoverability of site assets (including property, plant and equipment
andROU assets) and Recoverability of parent's investment in subsidiary
undertaking, we found the resulting estimates andrelated disclosuresin
relationto goodwill and indefinite life intangibles, site assets and parent's
investment and disclosures inrelation to going concerntobe acceptable.
However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors orall
possible future implications for acompany and this is particularly the case in
relationto Brexit.
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Recoverability of
goodwill and indefinite
life intangible assets

Goodwilland indefinite
lifeintangible assets
£683.8m(2019:
£706.0m)

Refer to page 58 Audit
Committee Report,
Note 1.15and Note
13 Accounting policies
andfinancial disclosure

The risk

Subjective estimate

Therecoverable amount of goodwilland
indefinite life intangible assetsis inherently
judgemental due to the subjectivity and
uncertainty involvedinselecting the
appropriate key assumptions, suchas the
discountandlong-termgrowthrates, and
preparing future discounted cash flows.

SSP Group plcis subjecttointernal and external
factors, whichmay influence its trading in the
short-term, as wellas the Group's long-term
strategy. These primarily include passenger
traveltrends, Covid-19, economic and political
uncertainty, tenderingand competition.

The effect of these mattersis that, as part

of our risk assessment, we determined that

the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite
lifeintangible assets has a high degree of
estimationuncertainty, withapotentialrange
of reasonable outcomes greater than our
materiality for the financial statements as
awhole. The financial statements (note 13)
disclose the sensitivity estimated by the Group.

Our response

Our procedures included:

Our sector experience - We considered the consistency of the Group’s
forecasts with ourunderstanding of the business, including changesin
thebusiness, inassessing whether these matters had been appropriately
capturedintheimpairment models.

Our valuation expertise - We used our valuation experience in assessing
the appropriateness of the methodology and assumptions. Our valuation
specialists assisted us inassessing the discount rate assumptions used by
the Group.

Benchmarking assumptions - We challenged and compared the Group's
assumptions to externally derived data, industry norms and our expectation
based on ourknowledge and experience of the Group, inrelation tokey inputs
suchas projected market growth and revenue growthrates.

Sensitivity analysis - We have used KPMG's proprietary dataanalytics
software toolto prepare multiple scenarios sensitisingassumptions in
combination to assess theirimpact on therecoverability of the assets.

Historical comparison - We evaluated the historical accuracy of the Group's
forecasts by comparing previous budgets toactualresults.

Comparing valuations - We compared the results of discounted cash flows
against the Group's market capitalisation, after adjusting for its net debt to
assess thereasonableness of those cash flows.

Assessing transparency - We considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure of the key risks and sensitivity around the outcome, and whether
that disclosurereflected therisks inherentin the valuation of goodwill and
indefinite life intangible assets.

Ourresults

We found the carryingamount of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets
inthe Group's financial statements tobe acceptable.

Recoverability of site
assets

Property, plantand
equipment-£437.2m
(2019:£466.5m)

ROU assets -
£1,271.2m(2019:£nil)

Refer topage 58 Audit
Committee Report,
Note 1.15,Note 12 and
Note 14

Subjective estimate

The outbreak of Covid-19 has led to amaterial
decline inpassenger volumes whichinturnhas
adversely impacted business performance.

Assessing therecoverability of site assets
relies onanumber of assumptions around
future trading performance, such as future
sales growthrates anddiscountrates, that
involve a high degree of estimation uncertainty.

Consequently, we determined that the
carryingvalue of site assets has ahigh degree
of estimationuncertainty, witharange

of reasonable outcomes greater than our
materiality for the financial statements as
awhole.Note 12 discloses the sensitivities
estimated by the Group. Thisrisk is newin the
current year due to the increased economic
uncertainty and changes in passenger trends.

Our procedures included:

Our sector experience - We used our experience and understanding of the
Group, retailand travel sectors to challenge the key assumptions used to
develop the Group's forecasts, and whether these had been appropriately
and consistently captured in the impairment models.

Our valuation expertise - We used our valuation experience in assessing
the appropriateness of the methodology and assumptions. Our valuation
specialists assisted us in assessing the discount rate assumptions used by
the Group.

Sensitivity analysis - We have prepared multiple alternate scenarios
sensitising key assumptions individually and in combination to assess their
impact on therecoverability of the assets.

Historical comparison-We evaluated the historical accuracy of the Group's
forecasts by comparingbudget toactualresults.

Test of details - We assessed the consistency of site assets included in the
Group's CGU impairment exercise with those inaccountingrecords, including
theimpact of newly created ROU assets arising during the period, asa
consequence of the new leasing standard adopted in the year.

Assessing consistency - We ensured consistency, where relevant, of forecast
financial information with other forecasting exercises across the Group
including the assessment of the recoverability of goodwill and intangible
assetsimpairment and going concern cash flows forecasts.

Assessing transparency - We also considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure of the key risks and sensitivity around the outcome, and whether
thatdisclosurereflected therisks inherentinthe valuation of the site assets.

Ourresults

We found the carryingamount of site assets in the Group's financial
statements tobe acceptable.
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Initial recognition

of right-of-use ('ROU’)
assets and lease
liabilities on transition
toIFRS 16

ROU assets at
1October 2019 -
£1,4689m

Lease Liabilities at

Therisk

Subjective estimate

Following the adoption of IFRS 16,

the accounting for lease liabilities and
corresponding assets has changed with the
Group bringing ontoits balance sheet £1.5
billion of lease liabilities and £1.5 billion of
right-of-use assetsat 1 October 2019. There
isarisk thatexisting leases are not completely
identified, and that transition date recognition
and measurement adjustments are not

Our response

Our procedures included:

Assessing methodology and assumptions - We have challenged key
judgements made by management in preparing the transition adjustments,
specifically lease term, discount rate and variable rates. This included
considering the appropriateness of the selection of accounting policies based
ontherequirements of the accounting standard, our business understanding
andindustry practice.

Our valuation expertise - Our valuation specialists assisted us in assessing
the discount rate assumptions used by the Group on transition.

é{)z’%ofg:fow— accurately recorded. Test of details - For asample of leases, we have tested the accuracy of the
T Furthermore to determine the future lease underlying datausedin preparing the transition balances through agreeing
Refer to page 59 Audit liability and base for calculating the right-of- information to the original contracts.
ﬁzzn{lgiissfni:]and useasset, the Group has made anumber of Test of details - We have tested the completeness of the leases identified
olicieéandfinanciagl assumptions abqutmdtvtdualleasesmcludlng ontransition by inquiring with management and assessing consistency with
(Fj)isclosure lease termand discount rate. revenue generated and rental expenses incurred which may suggest alease
Duetoit being the first year of application and contractisinplace.
the magnitude qfthe balance, thereisarisk Re-performance - Forasample of leases, we have manually recalculated the
thatinaccurate input of the key data elements lease liability using the underlying data inputs.
orincorrect selection of assumptions suchas
changes indiscountrate applicable, could result Assessing transparency - We considered the adequacy of the Group's
inamaterial misstatement. disclosures inrespect of the transitionto IFRS 16.
The effect of these mattersis that, as part Ourresults
of ourrisk assessment, we determined that We found the lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at 1 October 2019
the lease liability and corresponding right-of- tobeacceptable.
use assethas apotentialrange of outcomes
greater than our materiality for the financial
statements asawhole.
Recoverability of Lowrisk, high value Our procedures included:
E]a;ﬁgi;isdlir;\rlestment The carryingamount of the parentcompany’s Tests of detail - We compared the carryingamount of the investment book
undertakingy investment in its single subsidiaryrepresents value to the underlying aggregate recoverable amount of the Group's CGUs,

Investmentin
subsidiary -£947.8m
(2019:£946.1m)

Notes 31 andNote 35
Accounting Policies
and financial disclosure

91%(2019:100%) of the company's total
assets. Itsrecoverability is notat a high

risk of significant misstatement or subject
tosignificant judgement. However, due to

its materiality in the context of the parent
Company financial statements, this is
consideredtobe theareathathadthe greatest
effectonouroverall parent company audit.

afteradjusting for net debt. Our procedures over those CGUs are described
inour Recoverability of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets
KAMabove.

Test of detail - We compared the carrying amount of the investment to the
market capitalisation for the Group (after adjusting for net debt).
Ourresults

We found the Group's assessment of the recoverability of the investmentin
subsidiary tobe acceptable (2019:acceptable).

We continue to perform procedures over deferred taxes in the US. However, following assessment of the 2019 forecasts in the US, we no
longer consider the estimationtobe judgemental ar complex. As aresult, we have not assessed this as one of the most significant risks inour
current year audit and, therefore, it is not separately identified in our report this year as akey audit matter.
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4. Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality

Materiality for the Group financial statements as awhole was set at
£90m (2019:£95m), determined with reference to abenchmark of
total Group revenue of £1,433.1m (2019: Group profit before tax of
£197.2m), of whichit represents 0.6% (2019: 4.8% of Group profit
before tax).

We consider total Group revenue to be the most appropriate
benchmark for the year ended 30 September 2020 (compared

to Group profit befare taxused for the year ended 30 September
2019), as it pravides a more stable measure than Group profit before
tax following the impact of Covid-19 on the Group's performance
during the year.

Materiality for the parent company financial statements as awhole
was set at £3.2m (2019: £76m), determined withreference to
component materiality (2019: total assets). In 2020, this is lower than
the materiality we would otherwise have determined by reference to
total assets, of which it represents 0.3%(2019: 0.8%).

Total Group Revenue
£1,433.1m(2019:£2,794m)

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected
identified misstatements exceeding £045m (2019: £0.5m), in
addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting
onqualitative grounds.

Scope

Of the Group's 88(2019:87) reporting components, we subjected 18
(2019: 19) to full scope audits for Group purposes.

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages illustrated below.

The remaining 21% (2019: 22%) of total Group revenue, 20%
(2019: 22%) of total Group profit before taxand 19% (2019: 19%)
of total Group assets isrepresented by 70 (2019: 68) reporting
components, none of which individually represented more than

3% (2019: 4%) of any of the total Group revenue, Group profit
before tax or total Group assets. For these residual components, we
performed ananalysis at an aggregated Group level tore-examine
our assessment that there were no significant risks of material
misstatement within these.

Group materiality

£9.0m(2019:£9.5m)

£9.0m

Whole financial statements materiality (2019: £9.5m)

£6.3m
Range of materiality at 18 components (£0.5m to £6.3m) (2019: £0.3m to 7.6m)

W Total Group Revenue
Group materiality

Total Group revenue

o

(2019: 78%)

oo

(2019: 78%)

M Full scope for Group audit purposes 2020

The Group audit team instructed component auditors as to the
significant areas tobe covered, including the relevant risks detailed
above andthe information to be reportedback. The Group audit team
approved the component materiality, which ranged from £0.5m to
£6.3m (2019: £0.3m to £ /6m), having regard to the mix of size and
risk profile of the Group across the components. The work on 14
(2019: 19) of the Group's 18 (2019: 19) components was performed
by component auditors and the rest, including the audit of the parent
Company, was performed by the Group audit team.

Total Group profit before tax

£0.45m

Misstatements reported to the audit committee (2019: £0.5m)

Total Group assets

-

81%

(2019: 81%)

Full scope for Group audit purposes 2019 []Residual components

Onaccount of the travel restrictions in place during the performance
of the audit, the Group team has not visited any component auditor
andinstead held virtual conference meetings with all component
auditors (2019: the Group audit team visited 5 of the 12 component
locations). At these meetings the Group team discussedthe

audit strategy, the ongoing audit efforts and focus areas, and the
findings reported to the Group audit teamwere discussed inmore
detail. Any further work required by the Group audit teamwas then
performedby the component auditor.
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5. We have nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

Thedirectorsare responsible for the other information presented
inthe Annual Report together with the financial statements.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work,
the information thereinis materially misstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on
that work we have not identified material misstatements in the
other information.

Strategic report and directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information:

* we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic
reportand thedirectors'report;

* inouropinion the informationgiven in thosereports for the
financialyear is consistent with the financial statements; and

* inouropinionthosereports have beenpreparedinaccordance
withthe Companies Act 2006.

Directors’' remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the Directors'Remuneration Report to
be auditedhas been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Disclosures of principal risks and longer-term viability

Based on the knowledge we acquired during our financial statements
audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in
relationto:

* thedirectors' confirmationwithin the Viability statement on page
42 that theyhave carried out arobust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its
business model, future performance, solvency and liquidity;

* thePrincipal Risks disclosures describing these risks and
explaining how they are being managed and mitigated; and

* thedirectors'explanation in the Viability statement of how they
have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period
they have done so and why they considered that period to be
appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able ta continue in
operationand meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period
of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Viability
statement. We have nothing toreport in this respect.

Our work s limitedto assessing these matters inthe context of only
the knowledge acquired during our financial statements audit. As we
cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent
eventsmay result inoutcomes that are inconsistent with judgments
that werereasonable at the time they were made, the absence of
anything toreport on these statements is not a guarantee as to the
Group's and Company's longer-termviability.

Corporate governance disclosures
We arerequiredtoreport toyouif:

* wehave identified materialinconsistencies betweenthe
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements audit
andthedirectors'statement that they consider that the annual
reportand financial statements takenas awhole is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy; or

* thesection of the annualreport describing the work of the Audit
Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated
by us to the Audit Committee.

Wearerequiredtoreport toyou if the Corporate Governance
Statement does not properly disclose adeparture fromthe
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified by the
ListingRules forourreview.

We have nothing toreport in these respects.

6. We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we arerequiredtoreport toyouif, in
our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
frombranches not visited by us; or

* theparent Company financial statements andthe part of the
Directors’RemunerationReport tobe audited are not in agreement
withthe accounting records andreturns; or

* certaindisclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

* wehavenotreceivedall the information and explanations we
requirefor our audit.

We have nothing toreport in these respects.

7. Respective responsibilities

Directors'responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out onpage 92,
thedirectors areresponsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true andfair
view; suchinternal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and
parent Company's ability to continue as agoing concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concernbasis of accounting unless they either intendto liquidate
the Group or the parent Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtainreasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or other irregularities (see below), or error, and
toissue our opinion inan auditor's report. Reasonable assurance
isahighlevel of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conductedinaccordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud, other irregularities or error and are considered material if,
individually or inaggregate, they could reasonably be expectedto
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

Afuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Irregularities - ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably

be expected to have amaterial effect onthe financial statements
from our general commercial and sector experience and through
discussionwiththe directors (asrequired by auditing standards) and
frominspection of the Group's regulatory and legal correspondence
anddiscussed with the Directors and other management the policies
and pracedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout

our teamand remained alert to any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial
statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly
affect the financial statements including financial reporting
legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable
profits legislation andtaxation legislation and we assessed the
extent of compliance with these laws andregulations as part of our
proceduresontherelated financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations
where the consequences of non-compliance could have amaterial
effect onamounts or disclosures inthe financial statements, for
instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified
thefollowing areas as those most likely to have such an effect:
healthand safety, anti-bribery and employment law recognising the
nature of the Group's activities. Auditing standards limit the required
audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the Directors and other management
andinspectionof regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Through these procedures, we became aware of actual or suspected
non-compliance and cansidered the effect as part of our procedures
ontherelated financial statement items. The identified actual or
suspectednon-compliance was not sufficiently significant to our
audittoresult inour response being identified as akey audit matter.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is anunavaidable
risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements
inthefinancial statements, even though we have properly planned
and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards.

For example, the further removednon-compliance with laws and
regulations (irregularities) is from the events and transactions
reflectedinthe financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.
Inaddition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-
detection of irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
controls.We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance
and cannot be expectedto detect non-compliance withall laws
andregulations.

8. The purpose of our audit work and to
whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as abody, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has beenundertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we arerequired to state to
theminanauditor'sreport and forno other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respansibility
toanyone other than the Company and the Company's members,
asabody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Nicholas Frost

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15Canada Square

London, E14 5GL

16 December 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 30 September 2020

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
Underlying? Adjustments Total  Underlying? Adjustments Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 4 1,433.1 - 14331 2,794.6 - 2,794.6
Operating costs 6 (1,748.5) (48.5) (1,797.0) (2,573.5) (1.9) (2,5754)
Operating (loss)/profit (315.4) (48.5) (363.9) 2211 (1.9) 219.2
Share of (loss)/profit of associates 15 (2.4) - (2.4) 41 - 41
Financeincome 9 2.5 - 25 23 - 2.3
Finance expense 9 (56.5) (5.5) (62.0) (24.3) (4.1) (28.4)
(Loss)/profit before tax (371.8) (54.0) (425.8) 203.2 (6.0) 1972
Taxation 10 237 44 28.1 (45.1) 14 (437)
(Loss)/profit for the year (348.1) (49.6) (397.7) 1581 (4.6) 1535
(Loss)/profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (334.7) (40.3) (375.0) 1315 (4.6) 126.9
Non-controlling interests 25 (13.4) (9.3) (22.7) 26.6 - 26.6
(Loss)/profit for the year (348.1) (49.6) (397.7) 1581 (4.6) 1535
(Loss)/earnings per share (pence):
- Basic 5 (68.0) (76.1) 29.1 281
- Diluted 5 (68.0) (76.1) 287 277

! Presented onanunderlying basis, which excludes non-underlying items as further explainedinnote 7.

2 The Group adopted IFRS 16 Leases’on 1 October 2019 using the modified retrospective approach to transition and in accordance with the standard
the Group's financial results for the prior periods have not beenrestated. As aresult, with the exception of revenue, the statutory results shown above
forthe year ended 30 September 2020 are not directly comparable with the prior periods. To provide a meaningful comparison with the prior periods
analternative presentation of the Group's results under IAS 17 Leases’, the previous accounting standard, is shown in note 2.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 30 September 2020

2020 2019

Notes £m £m
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Items that will never be reclassified to the income statement:
Remeasurements on defined benefit pension schemes 23 1.2 6.2)
Tax (charge)/creditrelating to items that will not be reclassified (2.5) 1.9
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement:
Net gain/(loss) on hedge of net investment in foreign operations 42 (4.3)
Other foreign exchange translation differences (19.7) 16.0
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (1.8) (5.9)
Cash flow hedges - reclassified to income statement 16 38
Tax creditrelating to items that are or may be reclassified 0.5 0.2
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (16.5) 55
(Loss)/profit for the year (397.7) 1535
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (414.2) 159.0
Total comprehensive (expense)/income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (386.1) 1291
Non-controlling interests 25 (28.1) 299
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (414.2) 159.0
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

asat 30 September 2020

2020 2019
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 437.2 466.5
Goodwill and intangible assets 13 731.2 7471
Right-of-use assets 14 1,271.2 -
Investments in associates 15 12.2 173
Deferredtax assets 16 49.8 28.2
Otherreceivables 18 738 543
2,575.4 13134
Current assets
Inventories 17 235 387
Taxreceivable 10.1 0.8
Trade and otherreceivables 18 1253 2054
Cashand cash equivalents 19 185.0 2333
343.9 478.2
Total assets 2,919.3 1,791.6
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 20 (158.2) (128.8)
Trade and other payables 21 (399.0) (551.9)
Tax payable (20.9) (30.9)
Lease liabilities 22 (289.1) -
Provisions 24 (12.3) (4.6)
(879.5) (716.2)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 20 (718.1) (587.9)
Post-employment benefit obligations 23 (18.6) (19.6)
Lease liabilities 22 (1,060.2) -
Other payables 21 (4.0) (4.1)
Provisions 24 (21.4) (29.9)
Derivative financial liabilities 29 (5.1) (4.6)
Deferred tax liabilities 16 (10.4) (13.7)
(1,837.8) (659.8)
Total liabilities (2,717.3) (1,376.0)
Net assets 202.0 415.6
Equity
Share capital 25 5.8 4.8
Share premium 25 472.7 461.2
Capitalredemptionreserve 25 1.2 12
Mergerreliefreserve 25 206.9 -
Otherreserves 25 31 129
Retained losses (559.6) (152.1)
Total equity shareholders' funds 130.1 328.0
Non-controlling interests 25 719 87.6
Total equity 202.0 415.6

These financial statements were approvedby the Board of Directors on 16 December 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

90)-

Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY

for the year ended 30 September 2020

Capital  Merger Retained Total Non-
Share Share redemption relief Other earnings/ parent  controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves (losses) equity interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 October 2018 4.8 461.2 1.2 - (13.0) (71.5) 382.7 81.8 464.5
Profit for the year - - - - - 1269 1269 26.6 1535
Other comprehensive income/ - - - - 6.5 (4.3) 2.2 33 5.5
(expense) for the year
Capital contributions from - - - - - - - 9.0 9.0
non-controllinginterests (note 25)
Reclassification of obligation to - - - - 104 (10.4) - - -
purchase subsidiary
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - - - (200.8)  (200.8) - (200.8)
(note 11)
Dividends paid to non-controlling - - - - - - - (24.7) (24.7)
interests (note 25)
Purchase of additional stake in - - - - 83 - 8.3 (8.3) -
subsidiary
Transactions with non-controlling - - - - 0.7 - 0.7 (0.1) 0.6
interests
Share-based payments - - - - - 8.2 8.2 - 8.2
Tax on share-based payments - - - - - (0.2) (0.2) - (0.2)
At 30 September 2019 4.8 461.2 1.2 - 129 (152.1) 328.0 876 415.6
Loss for the year - - - - - (375.0) (375.0) (22.7)  (397.7)
Other comprehensive expense for - - - - (9.8) (1.3) (11.1) (5.4) (16.5)
theyear
Capital contributions from non- - - - - - - - 30.5 30.5
controlling interests (note 25)
Acquisition of shares in partly owned - - - - - (4.3) (4.3) (0.7) (5.0)
subsidiary from non-controlling
interest (note 25)
Equity issues (note 25) 1.0 11.5 - 206.9 - - 2194 - 2194
Share buyback - - - - - (1.7) (1.7) - (1.7)
Dividends paid to equity - - - - - (26.8) (26.8) - (26.8)
shareholders (note 11)
Dividends paid to non-controlling - - - - - - - (20.4) (20.4)
interests (note 25)
Share-based payments - - - - - 2.0 2.0 - 2.0
Tax on share-based payments - - - - - 0.5 0.5 - 0.5
Other movements - - - - - (0.9 (0.9) 3.0 21
At 30 September 2020 5.8 4727 1.2 206.9 31 (559.6) 130.1 71.9 202.0
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CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 September 2020
2020 2019

Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flow from operations 27 134 3383
Tax paid (11.0) (37.1)
Net cash flows from operating activities 24 301.2
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received from associates 15 3.6 5.2
Interestreceived 24 24
Purchase of property, plantand equipment 12 (120.3) (175.9)
Purchase of other intangible assets 13 (17.3) (18.1)
Acquisition in the year, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 32 (21.5) (3.4)
Investmentinassociate 15 - (3.0
Net cash flows from investing activities (153.1) (192.8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Equity funding from shareholders 25 227.2 -
Equity raising expenses 25 (7.8) -
Share buyback (1.7) -
Receipt of bank loans 20 321 -
Repayment of borrowings - (32.0)
Drawdown onrevolving credit facility 20 = 275
Repayment of revolving credit facility 20 (97.5) -
Receipt of USPP debt 20 101.8 239.8
Drawdown on Covid Corporate Financing Facility 20 125.0 -
Purchase of additional 16% stake in TFS - (22.4)
Repayment of finance leases and other loans - (3.2)
Payment of lease liabilities - principal 22 (172.6) -
Payment of lease liabilities - interest 22 (27.8) -
Refinancing fee paid - (1.3)
Acquisition of shares in partly owned subsidiary from non-controlling interest 25 (5.0) -
Interest paid excluding interest on lease liabilities (22.0) (18.5)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders 11 (26.8) (200.8)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 25 (20.4) (24.7)
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests 25 31 9.0
Net cash flows from financing activities 107.6 (26.6)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (43.1) 81.8
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2333 1478
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents (5.2) 37
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 185.0 2333

Prioryear comparatives have not beenrestated for IFRS 16'Leases’ Additional information about the impact of IFRS 16 is included innote 1.

Areconciliation of net debt movements in the year has been provided innote 28.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

SSP Group ple (the Company) is acompany incorporated inthe
UnitedKingdom under the Companies Act 2006. The Group financial
statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referredto as the Group) and equity-account the Group's
interestinitsassociates. These financial statements have been
prepared inaccordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU and the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reportingunder IFRS.

The financial statements are presented in Sterling, whichis the
Company's functional currency. Allinformation is givento the
nearest £0.1m.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis,
except inrespect of financial instruments (including derivative
instruments) and defined benefit pension schemes which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below.

The accounting policies set out belowhave, unless otherwise
stated, beenapplied consistently to all periods presented inthese
financial statements.

1.2 Going concern
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The Boardhasreviewed the Group's trading forecasts, incorporating
the impact on SSP of Covid-19, as part of the Group's adoption of the
going concern basis, inwhich context the Directors have reviewed
cashflow forecasts prepared for aperiod of 16 months fromthe date
of approval of these financial statements, with anumber of different
scenarios considered. Having carefully reviewed these forecasts, the
Directorshave concluded that it is appropriate to adopt the going
concernbasis of accounting in preparing these financial statements
for thereasons set out below.

Since the onset of Covid-19, management has taken decisive action
toprotect cash, minimise costs and raise additional liquidity to
allow the Company to operate throughout evenits most pessimistic
trading scenario. This action toincrease liquidity included a£ 209m
(net of related fees) equity placing and share subscriptionin late
March 2020, followed shortly afterwards by securing access to

the Bank of England's Covid Corporate Financing Facility (CCFF),
under which facility the Group was permitted to draw up to £300m.
Inaddition, the Group also secured access to anumber of additional
smaller liquidity lines, including government-backed facilities in
France, Spainand Switzerland, providing afurther £44m.

At the end of the year, the Group had approximately £520m of
available liquidity, including cash of £ 185mand committed undrawn
revolving credit facilities of £150m, aswell as a further£1/5m
available to be drawn downunder the CCFF. The £150mrevolving
credit facility is committed until July 2022, while the Bank of England
has confirmed that the Group can draw down the maximum £300m
available toit under the CCFF for a period extending through to
February 2022.

Inmaking the going concern assessment, the directors have modelled
anumber of scenarios for the period to March 2022. The base case
scenario is consistent with the Board-approved 2021 Budget,
adjusted for the lockdown across England announced by the UK
Government on 31 October, aswell as significantly increased
government-imposedrestrictions inmany other parts of Continental
Europe which are likely toremain inplace for the immediate future.
Our Budget reflects our expectations of ongoing challenging

trading conditions for the remainder of this financial year, with sales
recoveringonly gradually in calendar year 2021 and remaining well

below pre-pandemic levels for the duration of the going concern
period. While the recent positive news on the development of
potential vaccines is extremely encouraging, the Directors recognise
that the pace of the anticipatedrecovery in sales and passenger
numbers inour markets remains uncertain.

Inlight of the cansiderable uncertainty surrounding the ongoing
impact of Covid-19, a downside scenario has also beenmodelled,
applying severe but plausible assumptions to the base case.

This scenario assumes a further twelve week lockdown (in addition
to the November lockdown), lasting from December until February.
The downside scenario then assumes a gradual recovery, but ata
much slower pace thanenvisaged in our Budget throughout the
secondand third quarters of the current financial year. Only by the
fourth quarter do our downside sales assumptions converge with
those inour Budget.

Inboth the base case and the downside case the Group would
continue to have sufficient liquidity headroom based on the cash and
available facilities as described above.

Inaddition tothe actiontakenin the Spring to strengthen liquidity, the
Group secured anagreement inMay 2020 from SSP's lending group
of banks and its US private placement note holders to waive existing
financial covenants (existing covenants'), testing both interest

cover and leverage, for the two testing periods covering the twelve
months to 30 September 2020 and 31 March 2021. They agreed
that these existing covenants would be replaced between the date of
the agreement and 30 September 2021 by two new covenants (new
covenants), each testedmonthly, with the first of these based on the
Group demonstrating a minimum level of liquidity and the second
based on the Group not exceeding amaximum level of net debt.

For the testing period ending 30 September 2021 boththe existing
andnew covenants would be relevant, with the Group returning to
the existing covenants thereafter once compliance with the existing
covenantshadbeen confirmed.

Inorder to provide the maximum financial flexibility for the Group
through this exceptionally challenging period, we have now agreed
further covenant waivers and amendments cavering the period up
toMarch 2022. Aswas the case with the covenant amendments
agreed inMay, the existing financial covenant testing leverage has
beenwaived, untilreinstated inMarch 2022, with the two temporary,
monthly-tested new cavenants onminimum liquidity and maximum
net debt introduced for a further sixmonths from October 2021.
For the testing period ending 31 March 2022 bath the existing and
new covenantswould berelevant, with the Groupreturning to the
existing cavenants thereafter, once compliance with the existing
covenants has been confirmed. Inaddition, we have agreed to an
additional new covenant, testing minimum EBITDA thresholds

for the sixmonths ending 30 September 2021 and 31 December
2021.Modified interest cover tests (calculated on a last six months
basis) will also be applied at these two testing dates. All of these
new covenant thresholds have been based on our most pessimistic
trading scenario.

Althoughthe Directors are confident that the Group has sufficient
headroom to stay within the applicable new covenants for at least
the next twelve months, they alsorecognise that there is likely to be
continued disruptionto travel markets during 2021, notwithstanding
therecent vaccine developments, andas a consequence it is difficult
to predict with confidence the overallimpact of Covid-19 on the
Group's profitability in the twelve month period ending March 2022
at thisstage. Giventhis level of uncertainty, there are scenarios in
which the Group could breach its existing interest cover and leverage
covenants at the end of March 2022 when these tests are reinstated,
aswellas the minimum liquidity covenant when the CCFF is expected
toberepaidinthe first quarterof 2022,
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Inadopting the going concern basis of preparation, the Directors
took account of the fact that they would be able taraise additional
liquidity prior to the repayment of the CCFF inearly 2022, and that
management wouldremainin close dialogue with both lenders and
noteholders, and would seek further covenant waivers should the
needarise. Nevertheless, the possibility of a covenant breach during
the first quarter of calendar year 2022, together with the passible
requirement toraise additional liquidity prior to the repayment of
the CCFF at that time, cannot be discounted, and as suchrepresents
amaterialuncertainty that may cast significant doubt onthe Group's
and the Company's ability to continue as agoing concern, and that

it thereforemay be unable torealise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

After reviewing the most recent projections and the sensitivity
analysis and having carefully considered the material uncertainty and
the mitigating actions available as set out inthe previous paragraph,
the Directors believe that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on the going concern basis. The financial statements do
not containany adjustments that would be necessary if that basis
were inappropriate.

1.3 New accounting standards adopted by the Group

There have been significant changes to accounting under IFRS which
have affectedthe Group's financial statements. New standards
andinterpretations effective for periods commencing on or after

1 January 2019 and therefore applicable to the Group's financial
statements for the financial year ended 30 September 2020 are
listed below:

* [FRS 16Leases’
 Covid-19-relatedrent concessions (amendment toIFRS 16).
¢ IFRIC 23'Uncertainty over income tax treatments’

* Amendments tolFRS 9'Prepayment features with
negative compensation.

* AmendmentstolAS 28'Long terminterests inassociates and
jointventures.

e AmendmentstolAS 19'Planamendment, curtailment
or settlement’

+ Annualimprovements toIFRS 2015-2017 cycle.

The nature and effect of the changes ta the Group's accounting
policies asaresult of the adoption of IFRS 16 is set out below.

The adoption of the other standards and interpretations listed above
has not led to any changes to the Group's accounting policies or had
any other material impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

[FRS 16'Leases’

The Group adopted|FRS 16'Leases' with effect from 1 October 2019
using the modified retrospective approach totransition. The new
standardrequires that the Group's leased assets are recorded as
right-of-use assets together with their corresponding lease liabilities.
Adoption of the new standard has had amaterialimpact onthe
Group's financial statements, with right-of-use assets of £1,468.9m
recognised ontransitiontogether with lease liabilities of £1,464.4m.
As at 30 September 2020 theright-of-use assetswere £1,2/1.2m
andthe lease liabilities were £1,349.3m.

The Group's lease portfolio consists of approximately 1,500 leases
whicharewithinthe scope of IFRS 16, principally for concession
contracts, offices, warehouses, vehicles and equipment for which the
Group has been callating data for anumber of years in preparation for
the newstandard. This datahasbeenused in conjunctionwithalease
accounting toolimplemented for the Group to provide the accounting
entriesrequiredunder IFRS 16.

Ontransition, the lease liabilities have been measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate onthe date of transition. The right-
of-use assets have beenmeasured at the carrying amounts that
would have been inplace hadthe standard been applied since the
commencement of each lease, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at the date of transition. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to the Group's lease portfolio on
1 October 2019 was 1.62%.

Ontransitionthe Group elected not toreassess whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease, insteadrelying onthe assessment already
made inapplyingIAS 17 Leases' and IFRIC 4 Determining whether
anArrangement contains al.ease' In addition, the Group applied the
following available practical expedients permitted by the standard:

* theexclusion of leasesrelating to low-value assets (less than
£5000when new);

* theexclusion of short-term leases, being those with alease term of
12monthsor less;

* theuseof hindsight in determining the lease termwhere the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease; and

* reliance onits assessment of whether leases are onerous
immediately prior to the date of transition.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 onthe opening balance sheet
asat 1 October 2019 is shown in the table below. Further details on
right-of-use assets by class are showninnote 14.

As at Restatedas at

30 September Impact of 1 October

2019 IFRS 16 2019

£m £m fm

Right-of-use assets - 1,4689 1,468.9
Otherreceivables 1184 (10.9) 1075
Other payables (201.3) 26 (198.7)
Provisions (34.5) 38 (30.7)
Lease liabilities - (1,464.4) (1,464.4)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1. Accounting policies continued

Arecanciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed inthe Group's 2019 Annual Report and Accounts to the lease liability recognised as

at 1 October 2019 is shownbelow:

£m
Operating lease commitments disclosed at 30 September 2019 (2,000.2)
Discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at 1 October 2019 1174
Leases committed not yet started 2894
Short-termand low-value leases recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense 1290
Lease liability recognised as at 1 October 2019 (1,464.4)

Under IFRS 16, the operating lease expense previously recorded in operating costs has beenreplaced by a depreciation charge, which is higher
inthe current period than the operating lease expense recognised under IAS 17/, the previous accounting standard for leases, and aseparate
interest expense, recorded in finance expense. This significantly impacts certain line items in the Group's consolidated income statement
anddistorts comparisons with prior periods because in accordance withthe standard, as aresult of the Group transitioning to IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach, prior periods have not beenrestated. However, in order to provide ameaningful comparison with prior
periods, the Group's financial results for the year ended 30 September 2020 have also beenpresented inaccordance with IAS 1/ Theresults
for the year ended 30 September 2020 under IAS 17 arereferred to as'Pro formalAS 1/ Note 2 includes a consolidated income statement
showing the results for the yearended 30 September 2020 both as reported under IFRS 16 and onaproformalAS 17 basis together with

growthrates versus the prior period on a like-for-like basisunder IAS 17/

Asummary of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group's underlying results for the year ended 30 September 2020 compared to the

proformalAS 17/ results is shown in the table below:

Pro forma
IAS17 Impact of IFRS 16
2020 IFRS 16 2020
£m £m £m
Underlying! operating loss (211.7) (103.7) (315.4)
Underlying"loss before tax (239.6) (132.2) (371.8)
Underlying"loss per share (pence) (45.4) (22.6) (68.0)

! Stated onanunderlying basis, which excludes non-underlyingitems detailed innote 7.

There is nonet cash flow impact arising from the adoption of the

new standard. As discussed inthe going concern section abave,

the Group's principal debt covenants, which are net debt to EBITDA
andinterest cover, have beenwaived for 30 September 2020,

31 March 2021 and 30 September 2021 (in the case of net debt only)
andreplaced by new cavenants based on minimum liquidity and a
maximum consolidated net debt levels as well as (from 30 September
2021) minimum EBITDA and modified interest cover. These new
covenants are measured on ahistorical accounting standards basis
and are therefore unaffected by the adoption of IFRS 16. The Group
does not intendtoalter its approach going forward as to whether
assets shouldbe leased or bought.

From 1 October 2019, the Group's lease accounting policy is
as follows:

The Grouprecognises aright-of-use asset and alease liability at

the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, comprising the initialamount of the lease liability
plusany initial direct costs incurred and any lease payments made at
or before the lease commencement date, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using
the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the asset or the end of the lease
term. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discountedusing the incremental borrowing rate being the rate that
the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain

anasset inasimilar economic environment with similar terms and
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
isachange infuture lease payments arising fromachange inan index
orarateorachange inthe Group's assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or termination option. When the lease liability
isremeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the right-of-
use asset. Variable lease payments are recognised as an expense
inthe income statement in the period they are incurred. For short
termleases and low value assets, the Group recognises the lease
payments as anoperating expense on a straight-line basis over the
termof the lease.

Covid-19-relatedrent concessions

The Group has applied Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions -
AmendmenttolFRS 16 issuedon 28May 2020. The Group applies
the practical expedient allowing it not to assess whether eligible rent
concessions that are adirect consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic
are lease modifications. The Group applies the practical expedient
consistently to contracts with similar characteristics and in similar
circumstances. The amendment has been applied retrospectively
andhasnoimpact onretained earnings at 1 October 2019.For rent
concessions inleasestowhichthe Group chooses notto apply the
practical expedient, or that do not qualify for the practical expedient,
the Group assesses whether there is alease modification.
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Policies applicable before adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 October 2019

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised inthe
income statement onastraight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Contingent rent which is dependent onvariable factors, suchas unit
sales, isrecognised in the period inwhich it is incurred.

Lease incentivesreceivedare recognised in the income statement
asanintegral part of the total lease expense.

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportionedbetween the finance
charge andthe reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
chargeis allocated to each period during the lease termsoasto
produce aconstant periodic rate of interest onthe remaining balance
of the liability.

1.4 Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

The following amended standards and interpretations are not
expected to have asignificant impact onthe Group's consolidated
financial statements:

* Amendments toreferences to the conceptual framework in
IFRS standards

* Amendments to IFRS 3'Definition of abusiness'
* AmendmentstolAS 1 andIAS 8'Definition of material’

e AmendmentstolFRS9 IAS 39 and IFRS /'Interest rate
benchmark reform’

« (lassification of liabilities as current or non-current
(AmendmentstolAS 1)

* Saleof Contribution of Assetsbetweenaninvestor andits
Associate or Joint Venture (amendments toIFRS 10 andIAS 28)

* IFRS 14'Regulatory Deferral Accounts'
* IFRS 1/'Insurance Contracts'

* Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to
IAS37)

1.5 Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group consalidate the results of
the Company and its subsidiary entities, together with the Group's
attributable share of the results of associates. All intercompany
balances andtransactions, including unrealised profits and losses
arising fromintragroup transactions, have been eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Cantrol is the power
todirect therelevant activities of the subsidiary that significantly
affect the subsidiary'sreturnso as to have rights to the variable
returnfrom its activities.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are includedin the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Losses applicable
tothenon-controlling interests inasubsidiary are allocated to the
non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling
intereststohave adeficit balance.

Associates

Anassaciate isanundertaking inwhich the Group has a long-
termequity interest and over which it has the power to exercise
significant influence.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method and are
initially recognisedat cost (including transaction costs). The Group's
interest inthenet assets of associates is reportedas aninvestment
onthe consolidated balance sheet andits interest intheir results are
includedinthe consolidated income statement below the Group's

operating profit. The Group's investment inassociates includes
goodwillidentified onacquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
losses. The consolidated financial statements include the Group's
share of the total comprehensive income and equity movements of
equity-accounted investees, fromthe date that significant influence
commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

Whenthe Group's share of losses exceeds its interest inan equity-
accountedinvestee, the carrying amount of the Group's investment
isreducedtoniland recognition of further losses is discontinued
except ta the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments onbehalf of aninvestee.

Investments inassociates are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carryingamount may not be
recoverable. The impairment review compares the net carrying value
withthe recoverable amount, where therecoverable amount is the
higher of the value inuse, calculatedas the present value of the Group's
share of the investees' future cash flows and the fair value less costs

of disposal.

1.6 Foreign currency

Transactionsinforeign currencies are translatedto the respective
functional currencies of Group entities at the foreign exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.Monetary assets and liabilities
denominatedin foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange
rateruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising
ontranslation arerecognised in the income statement, except

for differences arising on the retranslation of a financial liability
designated as ahedge of the net investment inaforeign operation
thatis effective, or qualifying cash flow hedges, whichare recognised
directly in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured interms of historical cost inaforeign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
thetransaction.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and
fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated to the
Group's presentation currency, Sterling, at foreignexchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of foreign
operations are translated at an average rate for the period where this
rate approximates to the foreign exchangerates ruling at the dates

of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising from this translation of foreign
operations are reportedas an item of other comprehensive income
andaccumulatedinthe translationreserve or non-controlling
interest, as appropriate. When a foreign operation is disposed of,
such that control, joint control or significant influence is lost, the
entire accumulated amount in the foreign currency translation
reserve, net of amounts previously attributed to non-controlling
interests, isrecycled to the income statement as part of the gainor
loss ondisposal. Whenthe Group disposes of only part of its interest
inasubsidiary that includes aforeign operation while still retaining
control, therelevant proportion of the accumulated amount is
reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group disposes
of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that
includes aforeign operation while still retaining significant influence
or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
recycledtothe income statement.

Exchange differences arising froma monetary itemreceivable from
or payable toaforeignoperation, the settlement of whichis neither
plannednor likely inthe foreseeable future, are considered to form
part of anetinvestment inaforeign operationandare recognised
directly in other comprehensive income. Foreign currency differences
arising on the retranslation of ahedge of anet investment inaforeign
operationarerecognised directly inequity, in the translationreserve,
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tothe extentthat the hedge is effective. When the hedgedpart of anet
investment is disposed of, the associated cumulative amount in equity
isrecycledto the income statement as anadjustment to the profit or
lossondisposal.

1.7 Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group

Financial instrumentsissued by the Group are treated as equity only
tothe extent that they meet the following two conditions:

(b) theyincludenocontractual abligations upon the Group to deliver
cashorotherfinancial assets or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Group; and

(c) where theinstrument will or may be settled in the Company's own
equity instruments, it is either anon-derivative that includes no
obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company's own
equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the
Company exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial
assets far afixed number of its own equity instruments.

Tothe extent that this definitionis not met, the proceeds of issue are
classified as afinancial liability.

1.8 Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity
anddebt securities, trade and other receivables, cashand cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Trade and otherreceivables

Trade andother receivables arerecognised initially at fair value.
Subsequent toinitial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses
and doubtful debts. The allowance for doubtful debts is recognised
based onan expected loss model whichis a probability weighted
estimate of credit losses.

The Group applies the simplified approach andrecords lifetime
expected credit losses for trade and other receivables. The basis
onwhich expected credit losses are measured uses historical cash
collection data for periods of at least 24 months wherever possible.
The historical loss rates are adjusted where macro-economic,
industry specific factors or known issues to aspecific debtor are
expectedtohave asignificant impact when determining future
expected credit losses. For the 2020 financial year, less reliance has
been placedon histarical cash collection data due to the uncertainty
causedby Covid-19, and instead the Group has focused onreviewing
receivables in the context of their macro-economic circumstances
andthe government support packages available to them. Trade and
otherreceivables are fully written off when each business unit
determines thereto be noreasaonable expectationof recavery.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets comprise money market funds that are not
readily convertible to cash. These are held on the balance sheet at
amortisedcost.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value.
Subsequent toinitial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Cashand cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits
and liquidinvestments, and short-term deposits. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable ondemand and formanintegral part of the
Group's cashmanagement are included as a component of cashand
cashequivalents.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. Where amodificationto the terms

of existingborrowings has taken place, the difference between the
current carrying amount of borrowings and the modified net present
value of future cash flows is taken to the income statement.

1.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financialinstruments are recognised at fair value. The gain
or loss onremeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately

in the income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for
hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends
onthe nature of the item being hedged.

Cashflowhedges

Where aderivative financial instrument is designated as ahedge

of the variability in cash flows of arecognised asset or liability, or a
highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain
or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in
the cashflowhedgingreserve. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
recognised immediately inthe income statement.

If ahedge of aforecast transaction subsequently results inthe
recognition of afinancial asset or afinancial liability, the assaciated
gains andlosses that were recognised directly in other comprehensive
income arerecycledinto the income statement in the same period or
periods during whichthe asset acquired or liability assumed affects
profitorloss, ie.wheninterestincome or expense isrecognised.

For cash flow hedges, other than those specified above, the assaciated
cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement inthe same period or periods during which the
hedgedforecast transactionaffectsprofitor loss.

Fair value hedges

Where a derivative financialinstrument is designated as ahedge
of the variability infair value of arecognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment, all changes in the fair value of the
derivative arerecognisedimmediately in the income statement.

The carrying value of the hedged item is adjusted by the change in
fairvalue that is attributable to the risk beinghedged (even if it is
normally carried at cost or amortised cost) and any gains or losses on
remeasurement arerecognised immediately inthe income statement
(evenif those gains would normally be recognised directly inreserves)

1.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciationand accumulated impairment losses.

Where parts of anitemof property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of
property, plant and equipment.

For the comparative 2019 reporting period, whichhas been prepared
under therequirements of IAS 1/'Leases, leases inwhich the Group
assumed substantially allthe risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased asset have been classified as finance leases. Leased assets
acquiredby way of afinance lease are stated at anamount equal to
the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum
lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated
depreciationand accumulated impairment losses.
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Depreciationis chargedtothe income statement onastraight-
line basis over the estimated usefullives of each part of an
item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated.
The estimateduseful lives are as follows:

* Freeholdbuildings S50vears

* Leaseholdbuildings thelife of the lease
* Plantandmachinery 3to13years

* Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 3to 13years

Leaseholdbuildings are included above to show the policy in effect
for the comparative reporting period prior to transition to IFRS 16.

1.11 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method as at the acquisition date, which is the date at which control
istransferred tothe Group. The consideration transferredinthe
acquisitionismeasured at fair value as are the identifiable assets
and liabilities acquired. The excess of the fair value of consideration
transferredover the fair value of net assets acquiredis accounted
foras goodwill. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for
impairment. Transaction costs are expensedas incurred.

Non-controlling interests arising from acquisition are accounted for
basedonthe proportionate share of the fair value of identifiable
net assets. Subsequent ta acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial
recognitionplus the non-controlling interests'share of subsequent
changes inequity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having adeficit balance.

1.12 Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interests

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interests that do

not result inachange of control are accounted for as transactions
with ownersintheir capacity as owners and, therefore, no goodwill
isrecognisedas aresult of such transactions. The adjustments to
non-controlling interests are based onaproportionate amount of the
net assets of the subsidiary. Any difference between the price paid

or received and the amount by whichnon-controlling interests are
adjustedisrecogniseddirectly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the parent company.

1.13 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwillis allocated to groups of cash-generating units (CGUs) as this
isthe lowest level withinthe Group at which the goodwill is monitored
forinternal management purposes. Goodwill is not amortisedbut is
tested annually for impairment, or when impairment triggers have
beenidentified, at the level at which it is allocated when accounting
forbusiness combinations. Goodwill is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Indefinite life intangible assets

Indefinite life intangible assets relate to brands recognised on
acquisition of the SSP business in 2006. Indefinite life intangible
assetsaretreatedas having anindefinite life due to the nature of
those assets along with continued investment by the Group, and
are tested annually for impairment or when impairment triggers
have beenidentified, at the level at which they are allocated when
accounting for business combinations..

Definite life and software intangible assets

Definite life intangible assets, consisting mainly of brands and
franchise agreements and software, that are acquired/purchased

by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised in the income statement as an
expenseisincurred.

Amortisation

Amortisationis chargedto the income statement onastraight-line
basis aver the estimated useful lives of intangible assets (between 3
and 15 years)unless such lives are indefinite. Other intangible assets
areamortisedfromthe date they are available for use.

1.14 Inventories

Inventories comprise goods purchased for resale and consumable
storesandare stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first in first out’method.

1.15 Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets

Financial assets

Afinancial asset not carried at fair value through the income
statement is assessed at eachreporting date to determine whether
thereis objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset
isimpaired (with a charge to the income statement) if objective
evidence indicates that aloss event has occurred after the initial
recognitionof the asset, and that the loss event has had anegative
effect onthe estimated future cash flows of that asset, which canbe
estimatedreliably.

Animpairment loss inrespect of afinancial asset measured at
amortised cost is calculated as the difference betweeniits carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset's ariginal effective interest rate. Interest on
the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding
of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease inimpairment loss is
reversedthroughthe income statement.

Non-financial assets

The carryingamounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than
inventories and deferred taxassets, are reviewed at eachreporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

If any suchindicationexists, thenthe asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite
usefullives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable
amount is estimatedineach period at the same time.

Therecoverable amount of anasset or CGU s the greater of its
valueinuse and its fair value less coststo sell. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are
groupedtogether into the smallest group of assets that generates
cashinflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cashinflows of other assets or groups of assets. Subject to
anoperating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of gooduwill
impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has beenallocated are
aggregated so that the level at which impairment is tested reflects
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitoredfor internal reporting
purpases. Goodwill acquired in a business combinationis allocated
to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expectedto benefit fromthe
synergies of the combination.

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an

asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recagnised inrespect of CGUs are allocated first
toreducethe carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units,
and thentoreduce the carrying amounts of the ather assetsinthe
unit (orgroup of unitsjona proratabasis. Any subsequent reduction
inanimpairment loss inrespect of goodwill is nat reversed.

Forother assets, any subsequent reductioninan impairment loss
isreversedonly to the extent the asset's carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
beenrecognised.
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1.16 Employee benefits

Definedbenefit plans

Adefinedbenefit planis a post-employment benefit plan other than
adefined contribution plan. The Group's net obligation inrespect

of defined benefit plansis calculated separately for eachplan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earnedin the current and prior periods, discounting the amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually
by aqualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

When the calculationresults in a potential asset for the Group, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of the economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan

or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given toany
applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined liability, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return onplan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
arerecognisedimmediately in other comprehensive income.

Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined plans
arerecognised inthe income statement.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or whenaplan s curtailed,
theresulting change inbenefit that relates to past service or the
gainor loss on curtailment isrecognised immediately inthe income
statement. The Grouprecognises gains and losses on the settlement
of adefined benefit planwhen the settlement occurs.

Defined contribution plans

Adefined contributionplanis a post-employment benefit plan
under which the employing company pays fixed contributions into
aseparate entity and willhave no legal or constructive obligation
topay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as anexpense inthe
income statement in the periods during which services are rendered
by employees.

Short-termbenefits

Short-termemployee benefit obligations are measured onan
undiscountedbasis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognisedfor the amount expected to be

paid under a short-term cash bonus if the employing company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as aresult
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation canbe
estimatedreliably.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value excludes the effect of service and non-market-based
vesting conditions.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to equity
reserves, based onthe Group's estimate of equity instruments that
willeventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expectedtovest
asaresult of service and non- market-basedvesting conditions.
The impact of changes to the original estimates, if any, is recaognised
inthe income statement such that the cumulative expense reflects
therevisedestimate, witha corresponding adjustment
toequityreserves.

1.17 Provisions

Aprovisionisrecognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligationas aresult of apast event,
that canbereliably measured andit is probable that an outflow

of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at anappropriaterate.

1.18 Segment information

Segment information is provided based onthe geographical
segmentsthat arereviewed by the chief operating decision-maker.
In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 8 Operational segments,
the Group's chief operating decision-maker is the Board of Directors.
The operating segments are aggregated if they meet certain
criteria. Segment results include items directly attributable toa
segment, aswell asthose that canbe allocated onareasonable basis.
Unallocateditems comprise mainly head office expenses, finance
income, finance charges and income tax. No disclosure is made for
net assets/liabilities as these are not reported by segment to the
chief operating decision-maker.

1.19 Revenue

Revenue represents amounts for retail goods and catering services
suppliedto third party customers (predominantly passengers)
excluding discounts, value-added tax and similar sales taxes.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised at the point that control of the good is passed
tothe custamer. Thisis deemedto be at the at the point of sale of
food, beverage andretail goods.

Provision of catering services
Revenue isrecognised over time, asthe services are provided to
the customer.

1.20 Supplier income

The Group enters into agreements with suppliers to benefit from
promotional activity and volume growth. Supplier incentives, rebates
anddiscounts are recognised within cost of sales as they are earned.

1.21 Underlying items

Underlying items are those that, in management's judgement, need
tobedisclosedby virtue of their size, nature or incidence, in order to
draw the attention of the reader and to show the underlying business
performance of the Group more accurately. Such items are included
within the income statement caption towhich theyrelate, and are
separately disclosedeither in the notesto the consolidated financial
statements or on the face of the consolidated income statement.

Non-underlying and exceptional items

The Group makes reference to non-underlying items in presenting
the Group's statutory profitability measures. These comprise one-off
exceptionalitems, and other recurring non-exceptional items. Non-
underlying items are items not considered reflective of the normal
trading performance of the business. Exceptional items are non-
recurring items of expense or income which are exceptional because
of their size, nature or incidence and as such have been presented
separately. Examples of exceptional items include restructuring
expenses and impairment of goodwill, property plant and equipment
andright-of-use assets.

1.22 Finance income and expense

Finance income comprises interest receivable on funds invested
and net foreign exchange gains that are recognised inthe income
statement. Finance expense comprises interest payable, finance
charges on shares classified as liabilities, unwinding of the discount
on lease liabilities, the unwinding of the discount on provisions
andnet foreign exchange losses that are recognisedin the income
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statement. Interest income and interest expense are recognisedin
theincome statement asthey accrue, using the effective interest
method. Fareign currency gains and losses arereportedon a
netbasis.

1.23 Taxation

Taxonthe profit or loss for the period comprises current and
deferredtax. Taxisrecognisedinthe income statement except to
theextent that it relates toitems recognised directly inequity, in
which caseitisrecognisedinequity.

Current taxisthe expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to taxpayable
inrespect of previous periods.

Deferred taxis provided on temporary differences between the
carryingamounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. No provision
ismade for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other thanina
business combination; and differences relating to investments
insubsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in
the fareseeable future. The amount of deferredtax providedis
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carryingamount of assets and liabilities, using taxrates enacted ar
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Adeferredtaxassetis recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available, against which
the temporary difference canbe utilised.

2. Pro forma consolidated income statement

1.24 Share capital

Where the Company purchases its ownshare capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued.

Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration receivednet of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and therelated income tax effects, is includedin
equity attributable to the Company’'s equity holders.

1.25 Government grants

Income receivedin the form of government grants is accounted for
under IAS 20'Government grants'and recognised in the income
statement inthe period inwhichthe associated costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate are incurred. The grant income
isrecognisedas areductioninthe corresponding expense inthe
income statement.

Where agovernment or a government guaranteed bank loanhas been
received withbelow-market interest rates, the loan is accounted for
initially at fair value discounted at market rates with the difference
between the cashreceived and the fair value at market rates being
recognised as deferred income. The unwind of the discount andthe
deferredincome arereleasedto and netted in finance charges inthe
income statement, onastraight-line basis over the duration of loan.

Other thanthe changes discussed in 1.2, the accounting policies
adoptedare consistent with those of the previous year.

Asreferredtainnote 1, the Group adopted|FRS 16 Leases on 1 October 2019 using the modified retrospective approach to transition.
Inaccordance with the standard, prior periods have not beenrestated and as aresult comparisons with prior periods are distorted.
However, inorder to provide ameaningful comparison with prior periods which were accounted for under IAS 1/ Leases, the table below
shows the Group's underlying financial results for the year ended 30 September 2020 presented inaccordance withIAS 1/ under the

heading Pro formaunderlyinglAS 17"

2020

2020 2020 Pro forma 2019 Year-on-year

Underlying Impactof  Underlying Underlying change

IFRS 16 IFRS 16 IAS 17 IAS 17 IAS 17

£m £m £m £m %

Revenue 1,433.1 - 1,433.1 27946 (48.7)%

Operating costs (1,748.5) 103.7 (1,644.8) (2,573.5) 36.1%

Operating (loss)/profit (315.4) 103.7 (211.7) 2211 (195.7)%

Share of (loss)/profit of associates (2.4) 0.7 (1.7) 41 (141.5)%

Financeincome 25 - 25 23 8.7%

Finance expense (56.5) 27.8 (28.7) (24.3) (18.1)%

(Loss)/profit before tax (371.8) 132.2 (239.6) 203.2 (217.9)%

Taxation 23.7 (17.4) 6.3 (45.1) 114.0%

(Loss)/profit for the year (348.1) 114.8 (233.3) 1581 (247.6%)

(Loss)/profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (334.7) 111.0 (223.7) 131.5 (270.2)%

Non-controlling interests (13.4) 3.8 (9.6) 26.6 (136.1)%

(Loss)/profit for the year (348.1) 1148 (233.3) 158.1 (2476)%
(Loss)/earnings per share (pence):

- Basic (68.0) (45.4) 291 (256.0)%

- Diluted (68.0) (45.4) 287 (258.2)%
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3. Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions concerning
thefuture. Theresulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actualresults. These estimates and assumptions are
based onhistorical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions
thathave a significant risk of causingamaterial adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussedbelow.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of assets in CGUs

The Group isrequired to test the assets (both property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets) within a cash-generating unit (CGU) for
impairment annually if there isa trigger for impairment. The Group has identified each operating site, suchas anairport or rail station, asaCGU
for the purpose of the impairment review, on the basis that within one site the units are interdependent because the market dynamics (and
thus cashinflow and outflows) in one unit could impact other units. The economic impact of Covid-19 has beenidentified as a specific trigger
for impairment and as such all CGUs withinthe Group have been tested for impairment.

Therecoverable amount of a CGUis determined fromvalue inuse calculations. The key assumptions for these calculations are discount
rates and cashflow forecasts. The cash flow forecast period is based on length of the lease term of contracts held within a site. The values
appliedtothekeyassumptions inthe value inuse calculations are derived froma combination of internal and external factors, based on
past experience together with management's future expectations about business performance. The pre-tax discount rates usedreflect
the time value of money and are based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital, adjusted for specific risks relating to the country in
which the CGU operates. Inputs into the discount rate calculation include a countryrisk-free rate and inflation differential to the UK, country
risk premium, market risk premiumand company specific premium. Note 12 provides further details of impairment reviews performedand
associated sensitivities.

Impairment of goodwilland intangible assets

The Group recognises goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets that have arisen through acquisitions. These assets are subject to
impairment reviews to ensure that the assets are not carried above their recoverable amounts. For goodwill and indefinite life intangible
assets, reviews are performed annually as well as when there is a specific trigger for impairment. For other intangible assets, reviews are
performed if events or circumstances indicate that this isnecessary. As discussed above for impairment of assets in CGUs, the economic
impact of Covid-19 has beenidentified as a specific trigger for impairment.

Therecoverable amounts of CGUs or groups of CGUs have been determined based onvalue inuse calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates and assumptions consistent with the most up-to-date budgets and plans that have beenformally approved by the Board.
The key assumptions used for the value inuse calculations and associated sensitivities are set out innote 13 to these financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements

Initial recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on transition to IFRS 16

The Group adopted IFRS 16 eases'with effect from 1 October 2019. The new standard requires that the Group's leased assets are recorded
asright-of-use assets together with their corresponding lease liabilities. Adoption of the new standard has had amaterial impact on the
Group's financial statements, with right-of-use assets of £1,468 9mrecognised on transition together with lease liabilities of £1,464.4m.

Ontransition, the lease liabilities have been measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate onthe date of transition. The right-of-use assets have been measured at the carrying amounts that would have beeninplace
had the standard been applied since the commencement of each lease, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate (IBR) at the date

of transition.

The lease termis determined as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods coveredby an optionto extendthe lease if it
isreasanably certaintobe exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certainnot to be exercised.
The Group exercises judgement on whether or not such options will be exercised for the leases which directly impacts on the length of the
lease termand as such the quantum of the lease liability and ROU asset recognised at transition. In making the judgement, the Group considers
severalfactorsincluding: profitability of the underlying assets, costs to exit, importance of the site in gaining further business with clients and
forecasted capital expenditure. In overall terms, automatic renewal is not reasonably certain.

Similarly, the Group exercises judgement on computation of the IBRwhichis usedto measure lease liabilities. The local currency interbank
swaprate isusedas areference rate which takes into consideration the currency that the lease originates inand the lease term. This is
adjusted by the group financing margin, as a proxy for the cost of financing.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is requiredto determine the corporate tax provision in each of the many jurisdictions in which it operates. During the ardinary
course of business, there are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain. As aresult the Group recognises
taxliabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. The recognition of tax benefits and assessment of provisions against
taxbenefits requires management judgement. In particular the Group is routinely subject to tax audits inmany jurisdictions, which by their
nature are often complexand can take several years toresolve. Provisions are based on management's interpretation of country-specific tax
law and the likelihood of settlement, and have been calculated using the single best estimate of likely outcome approach. Management takes
advice fromin-house tax specialists and professional tax advisors, and uses previous experience to inform its judgements. To the extent that
the outcome differs from the estimates made, tax adjustments may be required in future periods.



115 | SSP Group plc AnnualReportand Accounts 2020 Strategic Report Corporate governance Financial statements

The evaluation of recoverability of deferred taxassets requires judgements to be made regarding the availability of future taxable income.
Management therefore recognises deferred taxassets only where it believes it is probable that such assets will be realised, taking account of
current levels of profitability and forecasts prepared for budgets and the Group's Medium Term Plan (as referred to in the viability statement in
the risk management section of the Strategic Report).

4. Segmental reporting
SSPoperates inthe food andbeverage travel sectar, mainly at airports and railway stations.

Management monitors the performance and strategic priorities of the business froma geographic perspective, andin thisregard has
identified the following four key reportable segments" the UK, Continental Europe, North America and the Rest of the World (Row). The UK
includes operations in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland; Continental Europe includes operations in the Nordic countries,
Western Europe and Southern Europe; North America includes operations in the United States and Canada; and RoW includes operations in
EasternEurope, the Middle East, Asia Pacific, India and Brazil. These segments comprise countries which are at similar stages of development
and demonstrate similar economic characteristics.

The Group's management assesses the performance of operating segments based on revenue and underlying operating profit.

Interest income and expenditure are not allocated to segments, as they are managed by a central treasury function, which oversees the debt
and liquidity position of the Group. The non-attributable segment comprises of costs associated with the Group's head office functionand the
depreciation of central assets. Revenue is measuredinamanner consistent with that in the income statement.

Continental North Non-

UK Europe America RoW attributable Total
2020 (IFRS 16) £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 410.1 558.2 274.9 189.9 - 14331
Underlying operating loss (28.7) (148.1) (55.4) (55.6) (27.6) (315.4)
Non-underlying items (note 7) (10.3) (45.4) (7.9) 183 (3.2) (48.5)
Operating loss (39.0) (193.5) (63.3) (37.3) (30.8) (363.9)
2020 (Pro forma IAS 17)
Revenue 410.1 558.2 2749 189.9 - 14331
Underlying operating loss (12.4) (103.2) (43.7) (24.8) (27.6) (211.7)
2019 (asreportedunder1AS 17)
Revenue 840.5 1,036.9 5334 383.8 - 2,794.6
Underlying operating profit/(loss) 101.8 793 419 359 (37.8) 2211
Non-underlying items (note 7) (1.5) (0.4) - - - (1.9)
Operating profit/(loss) 100.3 789 419 35.9 (37.8) 219.2

Disclosure inrelationto net assets and liabilities for eachreportable segment is not provided as these are only reported on and reviewed by
management inaggregate for the Group as awhale.
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4. Segmental reporting continued

Additional information
Althoughthe Group's operations are managed onageographical basis, we provide additional information inrelation torevenue, based onthe
type of travel locations as follows:

2020 2019
Turnover £m £m
Air 859.8 1,800.2
Rail 456.7 853.9
Other 116.6 140.5

1,433.1 2,794.6

The following amounts are included inunderlying operating profit:

Continental North Non-

UK Europe America RoW attributable Total
2020 (IFRS 16) £m £m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation and amortisation! (78.3) (183.7) (72.7) (78.0) (6.1) (418.8)
2020 (pro formaIAS 17)
Depreciation and amortisation! (15.4) (42.4) (33.4) (16.2) (6.1) (113.5)
2019 (as previously reported under IAS 17)
Depreciationand amortisation’ (15.2) (35.6) (31.3) (18.6) (4.6) (105.3)

! Excludes amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets and accelerated depreciation as detailed innote 7.

Areconciliation of underlying operating (loss)/profit to (loss)/profit before and after taxis provided as follows:

2020 2019

(FRS16)  (IAS17)

£m £m

Underlying operating (loss)/profit (315.4) 2211
Non-underlying operating costs (note 7) (48.5) (1.9)
Share of (loss)/profit from associates (2.4) 41
Financeincome 25 23
Finance expense (56.5) (28.4)
Non-underlying finance expense (note 7) (5.5) -
(Loss)/profit before tax (425.8) 1972
Taxation 28.1 (43.7)
(Loss)/profit after tax (397.7) 153.5

The Group's customer base primarily represents individuals or groups of individuals travelling through airports andrailway stations. It does not
rely onasingle major customer. therefore additional segmental information by customer is not provided.
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5. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the result for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the result for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted by potentially dilutive outstanding share options.

Underlying earnings per share is calculated the same way except that the result for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders is adjusted

for specificitems as detailed in the below table.

On 26 April 2019, the Group paid a special dividend of £149.8m to shareholders. In order to maintain the comparability of the Company's
share price before and after the special dividend, a share consolidationwas undertaken on 15 April 2019, with shareholders receiving 20 new
ordinary shares inexchange far every 21 existing ordinary shares. The 2019 weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the

periodwas adjusted for the share consolidation from the date the special dividend was paid.

IFRS 16 IAS 17
2020 2019
£m £m
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (375.0) 126.9
Adjustments:
Non-underlying operating costs (note 7) 48.5 19
Net revaluation and unwind of discount on obligation to acquire shareholdings from non-controlling interest = 1.9
Non-underlying finance costs (note 7) 5.5 22
Tax effect of adjustments (4.4) (1.4)
Less non-underlying costs attributable to non-controlling interest (9:3) -
Underlying (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (334.7) 1315
Basic weighted average number of shares 492,458,604 452,360,460
Dilutive potential ordinary shares = 5,953,867
Diluted weighted average number of shares 492,458,604 458,314,327
Earnings per share (pence):
-Basic (76.1) 281
- Diluted (76.1) 277
Underlying earnings per share (pence):
-Basic (68.0) 291
- Diluted (68.0) 28.7

The number of ordinary shares inissue as at 30 September 2020 was 537596,432 which excludes treasury shares (2019: 444,852,520).

The Company alsaholds 263,499 shares intreasury.

Potential ordinary shares canonly be treated as dilutive when their conversion to ordinary shares would decrease earnings per share or
increase loss per share. As the Group has recognised a loss for the period, none of the potential ordinary shares are considered to be dilutive.
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6. Operating costs
IFRS 16 IAS 17
2020 2019
£m £m
Cost of food and materials:
Cost of inventories consumed in the period (431.1) (806.7)
Labour cost:
Employee remuneration (518.6) (809.3)
Overheads:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment? (111.0) (98.3)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (305.3) -
Amortisation of intangible assets (10.6) (8.9)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (38.4) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets (38.2) -
Impairment of goodwill (33.0) -
Profit onlease disposal 0.3 -
Other exceptional costs (22.7) -
Rentals payable under leases (149.2) (551.8)
IFRS 16 rent credit 91.9 -
Other overheads (231.1) (300.4)

(1,797.0) (2,575.4)

! Cappedtothelife of the related unit lease whererelevant.

The Group'srentals payable consist of fixed and variable elements depending on the nature of the contract and the levels of revenue earned
fromthe respective sites. £110.6m of the expense relates to variable elements, and the remaining £ 38.6m s rent from short-term leases.
These payments are not capitalisedunder IFRS 16.

The fixedelement of rent during the year was £ 2294monapro formalAS 17 basis (2019:£350.5m).

Employee remuneration is shown net of government grants receivedinthe year of £/94m. These grants relate to support packages made
available by severalnational governments inresponse to the Cavid-19 pandemic, such as the UK Government's Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme. In addition, government support has been paid directly to employees in certain countries inresponse to Covid-19. Other forms of
government support for operating expenditure totalled £ 20.3m. This is primarily attributable to business rates relief in the UK (£9.1m), and
rent relief in Denmark (£3./m) andNorway (£1.3m).

Non-underlying items within operating costs are detailed innote /.

Auditor's remuneration:

2020 2019

£m Em

Audit of these financial statements 0.5 03
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 1.0 1.0
Auditrelated services 0.3 03
1.7 16

Amounts paid to the Company's auditor andits associates inrespect of services to the Company, other than the audit of the Company's
financial statements, have nat beendisclosed as the information is requiredto be disclosed ona consolidated basis.
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7.Non-underlying items

Total non-
Non-  underlying
Exceptional exceptional items
2020 2020 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m
Operating costs
Impairment of goodwill (33.0) - (33.0) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (38.4) - (38.4) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets (38.2) - (38.2) -
Depreciation (6.2) - (6.2) -
IFRS 16 rent credit 91.9 = 91.9 -
Restructuring expenses (22.7) - (22.7) -
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisition - (1.9) (1.9) (1.9)
(46.6) (1.9) (48.5) (1.9)
Finance expenses
Effective interest rate charge and debt modification loss - (5.4) (5.4) (2.2)
Equity issue (0.1) - (0.1) -
Unwind of discount on obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking = = = (0.3)
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains on revaluation of obligation to acquire additional share - - - (1.6)
of subsidiary undertaking
(0.1) (5.4) (5.5) (4.1)
Taxation
Tax credit on non-underlying items 4.4 14
Total non-underlying items (49.6) (4.6)

There were no exceptional items in the prior year.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwillis not amortised but is tested annually for impairment, by calculating the value inuse of groups of cash-generating units to determine
therecoverable amount. Duetothe reduction in short-term trading resulting from Covid-19, and anincrease in the discount rate usedin
calculating the value inuse for each CGU, impairments of £33 0mhave beenrecognised. Further information is provided innote 13.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Theimpact of Covid-19 and and national restrictions imposed inresponse to the pandemic are considered animpairment trigger.
Therecoverable amounts of all CGUs have been calculated and reviewed against the carrying value of assets held, resulting in impairments of
£384mfor property, plant and equipment and £ 38.2m for right-of-use assets. Further detail is provided innote 12.

Depreciation

As aresult of reassessment of the lease term of certainunits, accelerated depreciation has beenrecorded onfixed assets to align the carrying
value of suchassets to their expected useful economic life based onthe revised lease term.

IFRS 16 rent credit

During the year, the Group successfully negotiated several rent waivers with clients, totalling £91.9m, as part of its response to the Covid-19
pandemic. The Group applies the practical expedient issued as a part of the Amendment to IFRS 16 torecord this as areductioninrent
expense and an exceptional itemwithin the consolidated income statement.

Restructuring expenses

As aresult of theimpact of Covid-19, the Group has recognised acharge of £ 22 /mrelating to its restructuring programmes carried out across
the group during the second half of the year. The charge primarily relates to redundancy costs. It also includes some costs related to the exit
from certain contracts, most notably at Sheremetyevo Airport in Russia.
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7.Non-underlying items continued

Amortisation of intangible assets

Underlying operating profit excludes non-cash accounting adjustments relating to the amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisition
of the SSP business in 2006.

Interest expense from amendment and extension of borrowings under IFRS 9

The Group adopted IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'an 1 October 2018. As aresult of the transition, and changes in the Group's effective interest
rate, borrowings werereducedby £ //m. These reductions are unwound as part of the effective interest rate expense whichis recognised in
the income statement. For the year ended 30 September 2020, this charge was £2.0m (2019: £2 2m).

On29May 2020, as part of the Group's debt refinancing, a non-substantial modification to the bank facility debt occurred, further details of
whichare provided innote 20. As aresult of the modification, a one-off loss of £ 34mwas recognised inthe income statement.

8. Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:

2020 2019

Number of employees

Operations 29,516 36,817
Sales and marketing 164 166
Administration 2,093 2,566
31,773 39,549

The decrease inthe average number of employees year-an-year reflects the impact of redundancies arising out of the Group's restructuring
programme toreduce its cost base inresponse to reduced trading levels resulting from Covid-19 restrictions.

The aggregate payroll costs of the Group were as follows:

2020 2019

£m £m

Wages and salaries (445.3) (693.3)
Social security costs (59.2) (93.2)
Other pension costs (12.1) (14.6)
Share-based payments (note 26) (2.0) 8.2)
)

(518.6) (809.3
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9. Finance income and expense

IFRS 16 IAS 17
2020 2019
£m £m
Finance income:
Interestincome 25 23
Total finance income 25 23
Finance expense:
Totalinterest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (22.8) (18.1)
Lease interest expense (27.8) -
Debt modification loss (3.4) -
Effective interestrate (2.0) -
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges utilised in the year (1.6) (3.8)
Unwind of discount on provisions (0.4) (04)
Netinterest expense on defined benefit pension obligations (0.2) -
Foreign exchange losses onrevaluation of obligation to acquire additional share in subsidiary undertaking = (1.6)
Unwind of discount on obligation to acquire additional share in subsidiary undertaking = (0.3)
Other net foreign exchange losses (0.3) (0.7)
Other (3.5) (3.5)
Total finance expense (62.0) (28.4)
Non-underlying items within finance income and expense are detailed innote /.
10. Taxation
2020 2019
£m £m
Current tax expense:
Currentyear 0.6 (47.0)
Adjustments for prior years (0.7) 0.7
(0.1) (46.3)
Deferred tax credit/(expense):
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 29.0 (0.6)
Recognition of deferred tax assets not previously recognised = 15
Changes in tax rates 0.5 (04)
Adjustments for prior years (1.3) 21
28.2 26
Total tax credit/(charge) 28.1 (43.7)
Taxrate 6.6% 22.2%
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10. Taxation continued

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax credit (2019: expense) for the year is different to the standardrate of corporation taxin the UK of 190% (2019: 190%) applied to the
loss (2019: profit) before tax for the year. The differences are explained below:

2020 2019

£m £m

(Loss)/profit before tax (425.8) 197.2
Tax credit/(charge) using the UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% (2019: 19.0%) 80.9 (37.5)
Losses onwhichno deferred tax was recognised (35.5) (1.9)
Temporary differences on which no deferred tax was recognised (19.9) 0.6
Non-deductible goodwillimpairment (6.3) -
Non-deductible expenses (5.7) (2.7)
Taximpact of share of profits/losses of non-wholly owned subsidiaries’ (2.8) 3.0
Adjustments for prior years (2.0) 2.2
Secondary irrecoverable taxes (0.4) (2.8)
Withholding taxes (0.2) (2.0)
Recognition of deferred tax assets not previously recognised = 1.7
Changes in tax rates 0.5 (0.4)
Effect of taxrates in foreignjurisdictions 19.5 (3.9
Total tax credit/(charge) 28.1 (43.7)

! Thisrelates to the fact that certain subsidiaries in the US are not wholly owned and whose profits or losses are taxed at the level of the subsidiaries’
shareholders. Therefore the Group is not subject to tax on the profits or losses attributable to its non-controlling interests.

The Group'staxrate is sensitive to the geographic mix of profits and reflects acombination of higher rates in certain jurisdictions, as well
as theimpact of losses in some countries for which no deferredtaxasset isrecognised.

The change in the taxrate for the current year comparedto historic rates of around 22% s due ta the impact of Covid-19 whichhasledtoa
significant change inthe Group's geographic mix of profits and losses compared to prior years. Inparticular, the taxrate in the current year has
beennegatively impacted byhigher levels of losses in countries for which no deferred taxasset hasbeenrecognised, as well as the impairment
of goodwill, forwhichno taxdeductionis available.

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Group expects the taxrate inthe future to continue to be affected by the geographical mix of profits and the different taxrates that will
apply tothose profits, as well as the Group's ability to recognise deferred tax assets on losses in certain jurisdictions.

11. Dividends

2020 2019

£m £m

Interim dividend paid in the year of £nil per share (2019: 5.8p) - (25.8)
Special dividend paid in the year of £nil per share (2019:32.1p) - (149.8)
Prior year final dividend of 6.0p per share paidin the year (2019: 5.4p) (26.8) (25.2)
(26.8) (200.8)

The prior year final dividend of 6.0p per share was approved at the Group's Annual General Meeting in February 2020 and was paid in June
2020 for atotal payment of £26.8m. No dividend for the 2020 financial year is proposed.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Land, buildings Equipment,
and leasehold fixtures and

improvements fittings Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 October 2018 230.2 7707 1,000.9
Additions 503 1256 175.9
Disposals (11.9) (35.4) (47.3)
Effects of movements in foreign exchange 134 7.2 206
Other movements! 20 37 57
At 30 September 2019 284.0 871.8 1,155.8
Additions 30.9 89.4 120.3
Disposals (8.4) (45.4) (53.8)
Acquisitions from business combinations 0.1 9.8 9.9
Reclassifications 7.3 (7.3) -
Effects of movements in foreign exchange (12.6) (7.5) (20.1)
Other movements! - 3.2 3.2
At 30 September 2020 301.3 914.0 1,215.3
Depreciation
At 1 October 2018 (128.8) (500.7) (629.5)
Charge for the year (26.5) (71.8) (98.3)
Disposals 111 35.6 46.7
Reclassifications 14 0.2 16
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (6.9) (2.9 (9.8)
At 30 September 2019 (149.7) (539.6) (689.3)
Charge for the year (35.4) (75.6) (111.0)
Impairments (13.2) (25.2) (38.4)
Disposals 8.4 45.4 53.8
Effects of movements inforeign exchange 6.1 0.7 6.8
At 30 September 2020 (183.8) (594.3) (778.1)
Net book value
At 30 September 2020 1175 319.7 437.2
At 30 September 2019 1343 3322 466.5

! Included in other movementsis £3.2m(2019: £5.9m) in respect of increases to the restoration costs provision (see note 20).

At 30 September 2019, the net carrying amount of equipment, fixtures and fittings held under finance leases was £0.5m. Depreciation for
theyear onthese assetswas £04m. The leased equipment acted as security against lease obligations. Upon transition to IFRS 16 the Group
recognised all leased assets asright-of-use assets.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group tests assets for impairment when impairment triggers are identified. The economic impact of Covid-19 has beenidentified as
aspecifictrigger for impairment, resulting inimpairment charges of £384m to property, plant and equipment and £38.2m toright-of-
use assets.

The Group has identified each operating site, such as anairport or rail station, as a cash-generating unit (CGU) for the purpose of the
impairment review, onthe basis that within one site the units are interdependent because the market dynamics (and thus cash inflow and
outflows) inone unit could impact other units.
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12. Property, plant and equipment continued

Therecaverable amount of a CGU is determined fromvalue inuse calculations. The key assumptions for these calculations are discount rates
and cashflowforecasts. The cashflow forecast periodis based on length of the lease term of contracts heldwithinasite. The values applied to
the key assumptions in the value in use calculations are derived from a combination of internal and external factors, based on past experience
together with management's future expectations about business performance. The pre-tax discount rates usedreflect the time value of
money and are based onthe Group's weighted average cost of capital, adjusted for specific risks relating to the country in which the CGU
operates. Inputs into the discount rate calculation include a countryrisk-free rate and inflation differential to the UK, country risk premium,
market risk premium and company specific premium.

Sensitivity analysis

Whilst management believe the assumptions arerealistic, it is possible that additional impairments would be identified if any of the above
sensitivities were changed significantly. A sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of these key assumptions with the other variables
held constant. Anincrease in the discount rate by 1% would result inadditional impairments of £04mand £1./minproperty, plant and

equipment andright-of-use assets respectively. Areduction in EBITDA of 10% ineach forecast year would result in additional impairments of
£48mand£11./minproperty, plant and equipment andright-of-use assets respectively.

13. Goodwill and intangible assets

Indefinite life Definite life
intangible  intangible

Goodwill assets assets Software Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 30 September 2018 646.4 58.0 66.6 63.2 834.2
Additions - - - 20.8 208
Business acquisitions 03 - 2.2 - 25
Disposals (0.3) - - (0.5) (0.8)
Reclassifications - - - - -
Effects of movementin foreign exchange 16 - 0.2 0.8 26
At 30 September 2019 648.0 58.0 69.0 843 859.3
Additions - - - 173 173
Business acquisitions 129 - - - 129
Disposals - - - (0.2) (0.2)
Reclassifications - - - - -
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (2.1) - 0.1 (0.4) (2.4)
At 30 September 2020 658.8 58.0 69.1 101.0 886.9
Amortisation
At 30 September 2018 - - (55.5) (47.5) (103.0)
Charge for the year - - (2.7) 6.2) (8.9)
Disposals - - - 0.5 0.5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - - (0.8) (0.8)
At 30 September 2019 - - (58.2) (54.0) (112.2)
Charge for the year - - (2.8) (7.8) (10.6)
Impairments (33.0) - - - (33.0)
Disposals - - - 0.2 0.2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - (0.2) 0.1 (0.1)
At 30 September 2020 (33.0) - (61.2) (61.5) (155.7)
Net book value
At 30 September 2020 625.8 58.0 79 39.5 731.2
At 30 September 2019 648.0 58.0 10.8 303 7471

Indefinite life intangibles comprise SSP's brands, which are protected by trademarks and for which there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which they are expectedto generate net cash inflows. These are considered ta have an indefinite life, given the strength and durability of
these brands andthe level of marketing support provided. The nature of the food and beverage industry is that absolescence isnot acommon
issue, with our major brands being originally created over 20 years ago. Although performance has beenimpactedby Covid-19, thisisashort-
termimpact and the Group anticipates allbrands will return to previous trading levels in the near future.
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Goodwilland indefinite life intangible assets are allocated to groups of cash-generating units (CGUs). Details of goodwill and indefinite life
intangible assets allocatedto groups of CGUs are provided inthe table below:

Indefinite life

Goodwill intangible assets

2020 2019 2020 2019

£m £m £m £m

UK &lreland 104.1 104.0 55.5 55.5
Rail Gourmet UK 594 594 = -
North America 15.0 157 = -
France 65.0 63.4 25 2.5
Belgium 83 81 = -
Spain 483 471 = -
Germany 33.6 46.0 = -
Switzerland 279 43.7 - -
Finland 22.2 217 - -
Norway 64.8 70.1 = -
Sweden 51.2 49.0 - -
Denmark 255 24.8 = -
Greece 5.0 4.8 = -
Egypt 14.8 151 = -
Hungary 11 1.2 = -
Australia 104 - - -
Singapore = 0.2 = -
Hong Kong 276 287 = -
China 0.6 0.6 - -
Thailand 12.0 130 = -
India 29.0 314 = -
625.8 648.0 58.0 58.0

The Group tests annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill might be impaired. Thisresulted inan
impairment charge of £33.0m inthe year (2019: £nil), reflecting the adverse impact of Covid-19 on the Group's anticipated short to medium-
term performance.

Therecoverable amounts of agroup of CGUs (ie. a country) have been determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions consistent with the most up-to-date budgets and plans that have been formally approved by
the Board.

Thekey assumptions for these calculations are shown below:

2020 2019
Terminal Discount Terminal Discount
growthrate rate growthrate rate
UK &Ireland 2.0% 10.5% 2.0% 6.2%
Continental Europe 2.0%-2.9% 8.9%-16.2% 2.0%-22% 6.3%-12.6%
North America 2.0% 10.4% 2.0% 6.8%
Rest of the World 2.0-48% 8.7%-19.1% 2.0%-41% 6.2%-19.5%

The values applied to the key assumptions in the value in use calculations are derived from a combination of internal and external factors,
based on past experience together with management's future expectations about business performance. The discount rates reflect the
time value of money and are based on the Group's weighted average caost of capital, adjusted for specific risks relating to the country which
represents agroup of CGUs. Inputs into the discount rate calculation include a country risk-free rate and inflation differential to the UK,
countryrisk premium, market risk premium and company specific premium. The increase indiscount rates from 2019 reflects the additional
risks the Group faces inrelation to Covid-19.



126 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2020

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

13. Goodwill and intangible assets continued

Sensitivity analysis

Whilst management believe the assumptions arerealistic, it is possible that additional impairments would be identified if any of the above
sensitivities were changed significantly. A sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of these key assumptions with the other variables
held constant. Anincrease in the discount rate by 1% wouldresult inadditional impairments of £29.1m, areduction inthe growth rate by

1% wouldresult inadditionalimpairments of £22.5m, and areduction in EBITDA of 10% ineach forecast year would result in additional
impairments of £82.8m.

14. Right-of-use assets
Land,
buildingsand  Equipment,
Concessions leasehold fixtures and
contracts improvements fittings Total
Em £m £m Em

Beginning of the period - - - -
Right-of-use assets on transition 1,441.4 26.5 1.0 1,468.9
Acquisitions 241 - - 241
Additions 2479 177 0.8 266.4
Depreciation charge in the period (298.8) (5.9) (0.6) (305.3)
Remeasurement adjustments (130.2) (6.7) - (136.9)
Impairments (38.2) - - (38.2)
Currency translation (7.0) (0.8) - (7.8)
At 30 September 2020 1,239.2 30.8 1.2 1,271.2

Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

Asdetailed innote 1, the Group adopted IFRS 16 Leases'with effect from 1 October 2019 using the modified retrospective approachto
transition. Note 2 provides a pro forma cansolidated income statement to provide ameaningful comparison of the current and prior year.

Themajority of the right-of-use assets are associated with leased concession units, which are predominantly located in train stations and
airports. The remaining right-of-use assets relate to land and buildings in the form of warehouses and offices, and a small asset relating to
vehicles and equipment.

Impairment of right-of-use assets and sensitivity analysis

Details of the impairment methodology and sensitivity analysis for right-of-use assets are provided innote 12.

15. Investments in associates

The Group uses the equity accounting methodto account for its associates, the carrying value of whichwas £12.2m as at 30 September 2020
(2019:£17/3m). The following table summarises the movement ininvestments inassociates during the year:

2020 2019

£m £m

At 1 October 2019 17.3 10.6
Additions 18 73
Share of (losses)/profits for the year (2.4) 41
Dividends received (3.6) (5.2)
Currency adjustment (0.9) 0.5
At 30 September 2020 12.2 173

Therewere £1.8mof non-cash additions in the year, including af 1.4m conversion of a short-termrepayable loaninto equity inthe Group's
Frenchassociate undertaking, Epigo SAS. In 2019, non-cash additions were £4.3m, which mostly related to afurther conversion of a short-term
repayable loan into equity in Epigo SAS.

The financial information of the Group's associates included in their own financial statements required by IFRS 1.2 Disclosure of Interests'in
Other Entities has not been presented as all the Group's associates are immaterial individually. Details of the Group's interests inassociates are
showninnote 44.
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16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred taxassets andliabilities are attributable to the following;
Assets Liabilities
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m
Intangible assets - - (8.8) (8.0)
Property, plant and equipment 13.8 11.8 (0.8) (1.7)
Provisions 31 4.5 - -
Tax losses carried forward 198 39 = -
Pensions 0.7 14 = -
Other 15.6 9.3 (4.0) (6.7)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 53.0 309 (13.6) (16.4)
Set-off (3.2) (2.7) 3.2 27
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 49.8 28.2 (10.4) (13.7)
Recognised
30 September in income Recognised Currency 30 September
2019 statement inreserves adjustment 2020
Movement in net deferred tax during the year: Em £m £m £m £m
Intangible assets (8.1) (0.6) - (0.1) (8.8)
Property, plant and equipment 10.2 2.7 - 0.1 130
Provisions 45 (2.1) 0.5 0.2 31
Tax losses carried forward 38 156 - 04 19.8
Pensions 1.5 0.9 (1.9) 0.2 0.7
IFRS 16 temporary differences - 16.1 - - 16.1
Other 26 (4.4) (2.6) (0.1) (4.5)
145 28.2 (4.0) 0.7 394
Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Unrecognised deferred taxassets and liabilities in these financial statements are attributable to the following:
Gross value of
temporary differences Assets Liabilities
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 5.0 37 1.0 0.7 = -
Tax losses 510.5 2723 106.1 59.8 = -
Provisions and other temporary differences 438 89 17.8 19 - -
559.3 2849 1249 624 - -

The above deferredtaxassets have not been recognised either because of uncertainty over the future profitability of the relevant companies
withinthe Group towhich the deferredtax assetsrelate, or because the deferred tax assets relate to tax losses which are subject to
restrictions onuse or forfeiture, due, for example, to time restrictions or change inownership rules. Of the totalunprovided deferred tax ontax
losses, £6.3mof this (2019:£1./m) will expire at various dates between 2021 and 2025.

£8./mof the Group's unrecognised deferred tax assetsrelate to trapped interest losses in the UK, with the balance relating to unrecognised
deferredtaxassets in overseas jurisdictions, mainly the US, France and Germany, as well as smaller amounts inanumber of other countries.
The largest proportion of the unrecognised deferred tax assets relate to carried forward losses interritories where operations have been
making taxlosses for some time, or where use of those losses is not anticipated in the mediumterm. Profitability forecasts are reviewed
carefully and used as the basis for considering the recognition of deferredtax assets.

There are unremitted earnings in overseas subsidiaries of £ 26.3m (2019: £ 26./m)which would be subject to additional tax of £4.9m
(2019:£4.9m)if the Group chooses to remit those profits back to the UK. No deferred tax liability has been provided on these earnings because
the Group isinaposition to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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17. Inventories

2020 2019
£m £m
Foodandbeverages 193 334
Other 4.2 53
235 387

18. Trade and other receivables
2020 2019
£m £m
Tradereceivables 18.8 66.1
Otherreceivables' 136.3 1184
Prepayments andaccruedincome 44.0 75.2
199.1 2597

Of which:

Non-current (other receivables) 738 543
Current 1253 2054

1 Otherreceivables include long-term security deposits of £28.9m (2019: £30.1m) relating to some of the Group's concession agreements, £27.3m of
capital contributions due fromnon-controlling interest equity shareholders in the Group's US subsidiaries (2019: £nil)? sales tax receivable of £17.1m
(2019:9.9m), £9.1m social security taxes recoverable (2019: £nil) and purchasing income of £5.6m (2019: £18.4m).

2 No amount was recorded in the prior year or opening balances as the contributions were recorded on a cash receipts basis instead of when the NCI
shareholders became liable for payment. The receivables balance at 30 September 2019 should have been £24.3mand at 1 October 2018 £19.1m, with
the other side being posted to NCI. The directors have not restated prior periods as they have assessed this as not material to those periods.

Thevalue of contract assets was not material at the reporting date.

19. Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019
£m £m
Cashatbank and in hand 141.9 186.2
Cashequivalents 431 471
185.0 2333
20. Short-term and long-term borrowings
2020 2019
£m £m
Current liabilities
Bank loans (34.3) (128.2)
Covid Corporate Financing Facility (CCFF) (123.9) -
Finance leases - (0.6)
(158.2) (128.8)
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans (377.0) (343.4)
US Private Placement notes (341.1) (243.9)
Finance leases - (0.6)
(718.1) (587.9)

Bank loans held through the Group's UK subsidiary SSP Financing Limited

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had Facility Aborrowings of £112.4m. This debt matures on 15 July 2022 and accrues cash-pay interest
at therelevantbenchmarkrate plus amargin of 1.25% per annumas at 30 September 2020. Facility A debt requires amandatory payment of
11.7% of the debt annually in July.

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had Facility Bborrowings of £2/0./m. This debt matures on 15 July 2022 and accrues cash-pay interest
attherelevant benchmark rate plus amargin of 1.5% per annum as at 30 September 20.20.
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As at 30 September 2020, the Group's revolving credit facility was undrawn. This £150m committed facility expires on 15 July 2022.
Whendrawn, this facility accrues cash-pay interest at the relevant benchmark rate plus amargin of 1.0% per annum as at 30 September 2020.
Acommitment and utilisation fee also applies to this facility.

Asat 30 September 2020, interest rate swapshedge the floating rate exposure until 15 July 2022, to match the debt profile (see note 27/ for
details of the Group's interest rate profile).

Under the financing agreement, the Group has to comply with covenants at interim and year end relating to net debt cover and interest caver.
These covenants are normally tested biannually but were waived for the year ended 30 September 2020. These were replaced with manthly
Minimum Liquidity and Consolidated Maximum Net Debt covenants. Bank loans are shown net of unamortised arrangement fees totalling
£2 Imasat 30 September 2020 (2019:£33m).

2020 debt modification

The Group adoptedIFRS 9 Financial Instruments'in the previous financial year, with the standard introducing new guidance with regard to debt
modifications whereby all modifications, irrespective of their significance, result inarevaluation of the carrying value of borrowings. IFRS 9
was adopted using the modifiedtransition approach with adjustments arising from adoption of the standardreflected in the opening balance
sheeton 1 October 2018. As aresult, the Group's facility borrowings were reduced by £ /./mwith the other side of this adjustment made to
opening retained earnings, as showninthe statement of changes in equity. This was inadditionto a £ 1. 2Zmreduction to borrowings from the
Group's previous effective interest rate calculation. These reductions are unwound as part of the effective interest rate expense whichis
recognised inthe income statement. For the year ended 30 September 2020, this charge was £2.0m (2019: £2 2m).

On 29May 2020, as part of the Group's debt refinancing, a non-substantial modification to the bank facility debt occurred where the
requirement for the 2020 July annual mandatory payment of 11./% of Facility Aborrowings was waived to the facility's maturity date.
Furthermore, the marginrates applicable on Facility A and Facility Bwere raised from 1.0%and 1.25%to 1.25% and 1.5%respectively.
Fromthe beginning of financial year 2021 theserates increasedto 2.0% and 2.25% respectively. For non-substantial debt modifications
under IFRS 9, the difference between the modified future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate applied, and the current
carrying value of the debt isrecognised as again or loss in the income statement with the other side applied to the reduction being unwound
through the effective interest rate expense.

As aresult of the modification, a one-off loss of £ 34mwas recognised in the income statement. The remaining amount to be unwound through
effective interest rate expense at 30 September 2020 was £1.2m (2019 £6.7m)with the bank loans being shownnet of this balance.

Bank loans - held through subsidiaries in France, India, Spain and Switzerland

Inadditiontothe loan held by the Group's subsidiaries inIndia, the Group's subsidiaries in France, Spain and Switzerland secured access and
drew upon anumber of additional smaller liquidity lines during April and May 2020. These are summarised as follows:

France
Asat 30 September 2020, the Group had borrowings in France of £ 22./m (EUR25.0m). This debt matures on 23 March 2026 and accrues

cash-pay interest at 1.0% per annum as at 30 September 2020. Payment of the principal debt starts in 2022 at arate of £4.5m (EURS.0m)
perannum.

The majority of the borrowings are guaranteed by the French government, which allowed the subsidiary to obtain abelow-market interest
rateandis accounted for as a government grant under IAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures. The loan is recognised
initially at fair value, discounted at market rates with the difference between the cash received and the fair value at market rates being
recognised indeferred income. The discount is unwound andthe deferred income isreleased and netted together in finance charges inthe
income statement over the duration of the loan. The net impact to the income statement was £nil during the year ended 30 September 2020.
The carrying amount of the borrowings was £ 19.5m as at 30 September 20.20.

India

Asat 30 September 2020, the Group had borrowings inIndia of £1.4m. (INR129.0m) This debt matures on 1.2 December 2023 and accrues
cash-pay interest at 8.3% per annum with effect from October 2020. The subsidiary alsohad £0.2m of overdrafts.

Spain

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had borrowings in Spain of £8.2m (EUR9.0m). This debt matures on 22 April 2024 and accrues cash-pay

interest at the relevant benchmark rate plus amargin of 1.6% per annumas at 30 September 2020, Payment of the principal debt startsin
2021 atarateof £2./m(EUR3.0m) per annum.

Asof 30 September 2020 the borrowing entity in Spain also held a £9.0m (EUR10.0m) revolving credit facility with £1.8m (EUR2. 0m) drawn
upon. This committedfacility expires on 24 April 2021. Whendrawn, this facility accrues cash-pay interest at the relevant benchmark rate plus
amarginof 1.5% per annumas at 30 September 2020. A commitment and utilisation fee also applies to this facility.

Switzerland

Asat 30 September 2020, the Group had borrowings in Switzerland of £0.4m (CHFO.5m). This debt matures on 1 May 2025 and is interest free.
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20. Short-term and long-term borrowings continued

US Private Placement (USPP)

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had US Private Placement note drawings of £342.6m. Allnotes drawn carry a fixed rate of interest.
The following notes were drawn as at 30 September 2020:

Drawn Currency Amount in currency Coupon Maturity
Oct2018 uss 40,000,000 5.35% Oct 2025
Oct2018 GBP 21,000,000 3.85% Oct 2025
Jul2019 uss 66,500,000 5.06% Jul2026
Oct2018 uss 40,000,000 5.50% Oct 2028
Oct2018 GBP 21,000,000 4.06% Oct2028
Oct2018 Uss 40,000,000 5.60% Oct 2030
Jul2019 EUR 58,500,000 3.11% Jul2031
Dec 2019 Uss 66,500,000 5.25% Dec 2027
Dec 2019 Uss 66,500,000 535% Dec 2029

USPP debt is shownnet of unamortised arrangement fees totalling £1.5m as at 30 September 2020 (2019: £1./m).

Covid Corporate Financing Facility (CCFF)

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had Commercial paper issuances through the CCFF of £1.25.0m. Allissuances carry a below-market fixed
interestrate. The following paper was issued as at 30 September 20.20:

Issued amount Value date Maturity Interest rate
£50,000,000 3Apr2020 50ct 2020 0.69%
£50,000,000 29Jun2020 19Mar 2021 0.64%
£25,000,000 24 Sept 2020 19Mar 2021 0.64%

The benefit of the low interest rate isaccounted for as a government grant under IAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures.
The loanisrecognised initially at fair value, discounted at market rates with the difference between the cashreceived and the fair value at
market rates being recognised in deferred income. The discount is unwound and the deferred income is released and netted together in
finance charges in the income statement over the duration of the loan. The net impact to the income statement was £nil during the year ended
30September 2020. The carrying amount of the borrowings was £1.23.9m as at 30 September 2020.

21. Trade and other payables

2020 2019

£m £m

Trade payables (92.1) (146.9)
Other payables* (97.7) (201.3)
Other taxation and social security (23.0) (23.2)
Accruals and deferredincome (190.2) (184.6)
(403.0) (556.0)

* Including non-current payables amounting to £4.0m (2019: £4.1m).

Other payables include capital creditors of £19.0m (2019: £57./m), accrued holiday pay of £171m (2019: £ 19.8m), employeerelated costs of
£29.2m(2019:£64.6m)and sales taxof £79m (2019: £21.9m).

The value of contract liabilities was not material at the reporting date.
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22. Lease liahilities

2020
£m
Beginning of the period =
Lease liabilities on transition (1,464.4)
Acquisitions (24.1)
Additions (266.4)
Interest charge in the period (27.8)
Payment of lease liabilities 200.4
Remeasurement adjustments 227.2
Currency translation 5.8
At 30 September 2020 (1,349.3)
Of whichare:
Current lease liabilities (289.1)
Non-current lease liabilities (1,060.2)
At 30 September 2020 (1,349.3)

Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

As detailed innote 1, the Group adopted IFRS 16 Leases' with effect from 1 October 2019 using the modified retrospective approach to
transition. Note 2 provides a pro forma cansolidated income statement to provide ameaningful comparison of the current and prior year.

Covid-19 practical expedient

The Group has applied Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - Amendment to IFRS 16 issued on 28 May 2020. This practical expedient allows
theimpact on lease liability of temporary rent reductions/waivers affecting rent payments due on or before June 2021, to be recognised in
theincome statement in the period they are received, rather than as lease modifications, which would require the remeasurement of the lease
liability using arevised discount rate with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Group has applied this practical expedient to all Covid-19 rent reductions/waivers that meet the requirements of the amendment. This has
resultedinanexceptional item in the form of a credit in the income statement of £91 9m for the year ended 30 September 2020, Thisis also
reflectedin the remeasurement adjustment line in the movement of the lease liability above.

£24m of fixedrent whichwas originally due in the year, has been deferredto a period beyond 30 September 2020 due to Covid-19.
Therefore these payments are still included in the lease liability balance at the end of the period.

Other information relating to leases
Note 29 presents amaturity analysis of the undiscounted payments due over the remaining lease termfor these liabilities.

The total cash outflow for leases in the year was £350.5m, with £2004m being the payment of lease liabilities. The remaining rent payments
arenot capitalisedunder IFRS 16, with£38 6mrelating to short-term leases and £ 111.5m tovariable leases. There was an immaterial cash
outflow for low-value leases.

The Group received immaterial income from subleasing right-of-use assets during the year.

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had £13.0m of leases which had been committed to but which had not yet started. Such leases are not
included in the Group's lease liabilities as at 30 September 2020.
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23. Post-employment benefit obligations

Group

The Group operates anumber of post-employment benefit schemes including both defined contribution and defined benefit schemes.
Inrespect of the defined contribution schemes, amounts paid during the year were £ 11.6m (2019: £ 14.1m) across the Group. There are no
contributions outstanding at the balance sheet date. The principal defined contribution scheme is called the 'SSP Group Pension Scheme!

The Group operates a combination of funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes across Europe, the respective net plan liabilities of which
are presentedbelow:

2020 2019

£m £m

Funded schemes (see (a) below) (6.8) (77)
Unfunded schemes (see (b) below) (11.8) (11.9)
(18.6) (19.6)

These definedbenefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest raterisk and market (investment)
risk. The plans are administered by pension funds that are legally separate from the Group and are required to act in the best interests of

the planparticipants. The Group expectstopay £ 1.1min contributions to its defined benefit plans in 2021. As at 30 September 2020, the
weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligationwas 159 years (2019: 16.6 years).

Information disclosedbelow is aggregated by funded and unfunded schemes.

(a) Funded schemes

The Group operates funded schemes inthe UK and Norway. Inthe UK, the Group participates in the Railways Pension Scheme (RPS) via the Rail
Gourmet UK Limited Shared Cost Section (RG section), whichis a final salary scheme and provides benefits linked to salary at retirement or
earlier date of leaving service. The RG section covers permanent managerial, administrative and operational staff of Rail Gourmet UK Limited
andisclosed tonewentrants.

The RG scheme was subject toits last full actuarial valuation by a qualified actuary as at 31 December 2016. These results have beenused by a
qualified independent actuary in the valuation of the scheme as at 30 September 2019 for the purposes of IAS 19 Employee Benefits'

In 2016, itwas agreed with the Trustees of the RPS that, from 1 January 2016, the employing company contributions would be 18.3% of
pensionable pay (with members paying 12.2%). Inaddition, it was agreed that from 1 January 2016 the employing company would make
monthly lump sum contributions of £2,/00. The most recent funding valuation of the RG scheme, as at 31 December 2016, showed a
funding level of 103.6%. Accordingly, the contributions that are being paid by the employing company are inrespect of future service

of current members.

Major assumptions used in the valuation of the funded schemes on a weighted average basis are set out below:

2020 2019
Discountrate applied to scheme liabilities 1.5% 1.9%
Rate of increase insalaries 3.1% 3.2%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.4% 2.0%
Inflation assumption 3.0% 3.0%
At the balance sheet date, scheme members were assumed to have the following life expectancies at age 65:

2020 2019
Male pensioner now aged 65 20.9 20.3
Female pensioner now aged 65 229 22.2
Male pensioner now aged 45 235 233

Female pensioner now aged 45 26.8 255
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Sensitivity analysis
Changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions by 1.0%, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Defined benefit obligation

Increase Decrease
As at 30 September 2020 Em £m
Discount rate applied to scheme liabilities 6.9 (8.9)
Rate of increase in salaries (1.6) 15
Rate of increase in pensions in payment (0.7) -
Inflation assumption (3.1) 4.0
Mortality rates (change of 1 year) (1.2) 1.2

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plans, it does provide an approximation
of the sensitivity.

Themajor categories of assets inthe funded schemes and their percentage of the total scheme assets were:

2020 2019
Equities, of which: 38.4% 38.0%
-actively traded 17.9% 83.6%
Property andinfrastructure 22.4% 176%
Fixed interestinvestments 36.6% 40.6%
Cash 2.6% 3.8%
Totalassetsrelated to:
-RGscheme 86.3% 85.7%
-Norway 13.7% 14.3%
Property investments are held at fair value, which has been determined by an independent valuer.
The fair value of the scheme assets and the present value of the scheme liabilities of the funded schemes were:

2020 2019

£m £m

Fair value of scheme assets 39.8 40.1
Present value of funded liabilities (46.6) (47.8)
Net pension liability (6.8) (7.7)
The following amounts have been charged or credited inarriving at the profit for the year.

2020 2019

£m £m

Current service cost (reported in employee remuneration) (0.4) (0.5)
Net interest on pension scheme liabilities (reported in finance income and expense) (0.1)

Total amount charged (0.5) (0.5)
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23. Post-employment benefit obligations continued

Changes inthe present value of the scheme liabilities are as follows:

2020 2019
£m fm
Scheme liabilities at 1 October 2019 (47.8) (41.8)
Current service cost (0.4) (0.5)
Past service cost - (0.1)
Employee contributions - (0.1)
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (0.8) (1.1)
Remeasurements:
-arising from changes in demographic assumptions (1.3) -
- arising from changes in financial assumptions (1.4) (6.8)
-arising from changes in experience adjustments 3.0 0.2
Benefits paid 1.6 20
Currency adjustment 0.5 0.4
Scheme liabilities at 30 September 2020 (46.6) (47.8)
Changes inthe fair value of the scheme assets are as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
Scheme assetsat 1 October 2019 40.1 391
Interestincome 0.7 11
Employer contributions 0.4 0.4
Employee contributions - 0.1
Remeasurement: return on plan assets excluding interest income 0.9 1.9
Benefits paid (1.6) (2.0)
Curtailment (0.1) (0.2)
Currency adjustment (0.6) (0.3)
Scheme assets at 30 September 2020 39.8 40.1
The following amounts have beenrecognised directly in other comprehensive income:
2020 2019
£m £m
Remeasurements 1.2 (47)

(b)Unfunded schemes

The principalunfunded scheme of the Group operates in Germany. To be eligible for the general plan, employees must complete five years of
service and the narmal retirement age for thisplan is 65. Employees in Germany are also provided with along service (Jubilee) award, which
provides amonth's gross salary after the employee has worked a certain number of years of service. Allunfunded schemes are valuedin
accordance with IAS 19 and have beenupdated for the period ended 30 September 2020 by a qualified independent actuary.

There have beenno changes to scheme contributions to preserve equity in the year.

The major assumptions (on aweighted average basis) used inthese valuations were:

2020 2019
Rate of increase in salaries 2.2% 2.2%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment and deferred pensions 0.9% 0.9%
Discountrate applied to scheme liabilities 0.8% 0.6%
Inflation assumption 1.6% 1.6%

Thediscountrate usedto calculate the defined benefit obligation at March 2020, for inclusion in the Group's interim announcement, had
increased due to the uncertainties presented by Covid-19. At 30 September 2020 the discount rate has reduced to a level more comparable
with the prior year.
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At the balance sheet date, scheme members were assumed to have the following life expectancies at age 65:

2020 2019
Pensioner now aged 65 226 225
Pensioner now aged 40 24.2 24.1

Sensitivity analysis
Changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions by 1%, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Defined benefit obligation

Increase Decrease
As at 30 September 2020 £m £m
Discountrate applied to scheme liabilities 0.5 (0.6)
Rate of increase in salaries 0.1 (0.1)
Rate of increase in pensions in payment (0.7) 0.6
Inflation assumption (0.5) 04
Mortality rates (change by 1 year) (0.4) 0.4

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plans, it does provide an approximation of
the sensitivity.

The present value of the scheme liabilities of the unfunded schemes was:

2020 2019
£m £m
Net pension liability (11.8) (11.9)
The movement inthe liability during the period was as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
Deficitin the schemesat 1 October 2019 (11.9) (10.3)
Current service cost (0.2) -
Contributions 0.5 0.6
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (0.1) (0.2)
Remeasurements:
- arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.2 (1.1)
- arising from changes in experience adjustments (0.2) (0.4)
Acquisition - (0.6)
Currency adjustment (0.1) 0.1
Deficit in the schemes at 30 September 2020 (11.8) (11.9)
Thefollowing amounts have been chargedinarriving at profit for the year inrespect of these schemes:
2020 2019
£m £m
Current service cost (reported in employee remuneration) (0.2) -
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (reported in finance income and expense) (0.1) (0.2)
Total amount charged (0.3) (0.2)
The following amounts have beenrecognised directly to other comprehensive income:
2020 2019
£m £m

Remeasurements - (1.5)




136 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2020

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

24. Provisions
Onerous lease  Restoration Restructuring Site exit
contracts costs charges costs Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 September 2019 (3.8) (15.5) - - (15.2) (34.5)
Transitionto IFRS 16 38 - - - - 3.8
At 1 October 2019 - (15.5) - - (15.2) (30.7)
Createdinthe year - (3.2) (7.3) (0.7) (5.2) (16.4)
Unwind of discount - (0.4) - - - (0.4)
Utilised inthe year - 31 - - 10.7 138
At 30 September 2020 - (16.0) (7.3) (0.7) (9.7) (33.7)
Representedby:

Current - (2.3) (7.3) (0.7) (2.0) (12.3)
Non-current - (13.7) - - (7.7) (21.4)
- (16.0) (7.3) (0.7) (9.7) (33.7)

Provision for onerous contracts are made when the expectedbenefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meetingits obligations under the contract. The timing of the utilisation of these provisions is variable, dependent
onthe contract expiry dates, which vary betweenone and tenyears. Upon transition ta IFRS 16, onerous contract provisions that related to
operating leases were derecognised and accounted for as part of the related right-of-use asset.

Provision for restoration casts represents estimates of expected costs to be incurredinrestoring asite taits original condition when
itisvacatedat the endof the lease term. These provisions will be utilised at the end of the lease terms, which typically vary between one and
tenyearsinlength.

Provisions for restructuring charges and site exit costs are estimated amounts due to be incurred as part of the Group's response to Covid-19.
Further details are providedinnote /.

Other provisions include the estimated cast of an ongoing free travel provision provided to employees of Travellers Fare Limited, an histaric
acquisition (now part of Select Service Partner UK Limited). The benefit is a lifetime benefit and has been calculated using life expectancies
anddiscountedto apresent value using a suitable discount rate. The remaining amount represents probable expected costs in legal and
related matters and are not material individually.

25. Capital and reserves

Share capital and share premium

Share Share
Number of capital premium
shares £m £m
Issued, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £0.01085 each
At 30 September 2019 444,852,520 48 461.2
Ordinary shares issued as part of the March equity placement 86,499,459 1.0 0.7
Ordinary shares issued as part of the June equity placement 3,475,388 - 10.8
Ordinary shares issuedinrelation to the Group’s share incentive plans 3,032,564 - -
Effect of the share buyback (see below) (263,499) - -
At 30 September 2020 537,596,432 5.8 4727
Comprised of:
Issued, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £0.01085 each 537,596,432 5.8 4727

Ordinary shares

The ordinary shareholders are entitled toreceive notice of, attend, and speak at and vote at general meetings of the Company.
Ordinary shareholders have one vote for each ordinary share held by them.

March equity placement

On 25March 2020, the Company announced that it had raised new equity by agreeing to allot and issue 86,195,459 new ordinary shares (of
nominalvalue 1129 pence each) to investors at 250 pence per share, by way of a share placing. Due to the size of the transaction, and the
short timeframe requiredas part of the Company's response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the placing was effected by the Company's placing
agent subscribing for shares in a subsidiary of the Company for anamount broadly equal to the proceeds of the placing, and then transferring
those shares to the Company in exchange for the allotment of the Company's new shares to investors. The Company raised gross proceeds of
£215.5mandincurredissue costs and other related fees of £/6m.
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The excess of the gross proceeds raised over the nominal value of the sharesissued, and the issue costs and other related fees incurred from
the placing, are both recorded in the merger relief reserve within other reserves, in accordance with Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006.

Concurrent to the placing, certain Directors of the Company and members of the senior management team of the Group subscribed in cash
at 250 pence per share for anaggregate 304,000 new ordinary shares (of nominal value of 1 /2% pence each), raising additional proceeds
of £E08mandincurring £0.1m of issue costs. The excess of the proceeds raised over the nominal value of the shares issued and issues costs
incurredisrecorded in share premium, inaccordance with section 610 of the Companies Act 2006.

June equity placement

On4 June 2020, the Company raised equity by agreeing to allot and issue 3,382,255 new ordinary shares (of nominal value 1 1/7%Y pence each)
toinvestorsat 315.2 pence per share through a further share placing, Gross proceeds raisedwere £ 10./m andissue costs and other related
feesof £0.Imwere incurred.

Concurrent withthe placing, certain Directors of the Company and members of the senior management team of the Group subscribedincash
at 315.2 pence per share for anaggregate 31,739 new ordinary shares (of nominal value of 1 /°%° pence each). In addition, retail investors
subscribedincashat 315.2 pence per share to afurther, inaggregate, 61,394 new ordinary shares (of nominal value 1 '/?°° pence per share),
raising in total gross proceeds of £0.2m.

The excess of the gross proceeds raised over the nominal value of the shares issued, and the issue casts and other related fees incurred from
the June placing, subscription andretail offer, are recorded in share premium, in accordance with section 610 of the Companies Act 2006.
Employee benefit trust

The SSP Group plc Share Incentive Plan was established in 2014, in connectionwith the Company’s UK Share Incentive Plan (UK Trust). The SSP
Group plc Share Plans Trust was established in 2018, in connection with the Company's share option plans including the Performance Share
Plan (Share Plan Trust). Details of the Company's share plans are set out in the Directors'Remuneration Report onpage /5 as part of the Annual
Report onRemuneration.

As at 30 September 2020, the Trustees of the UK Trust and the Share Plan Trust respectively held 30,037 (2019: 2,253) and 606,492
(2019: 177850) ordinary shares of the Company with a combined value of £1.1m(2019:£1.1m).

Reserves
Details of reserves (other than retained earnings) are set out below:

Capital Cash flow
redemption  Translation hedging Merger relief Other
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em

At 1 October 2018 1.2 9.1 (2.7) - (19.4) (11.8)
Net loss onhedge of net investments in foreign operations - (4.3) - - - (4.3)
Current tax credit on loss onhedge of netinvestment - 0.8 - - - 0.8
inforeign operations
Decreaseinnon-controlling interest equity - - - - 9.0 9.0
Reclassification of obligation to purchase subsidiary - - - - 104 104
Other foreign exchange translation differences - 12.7 - - - 127
Current tax charge on gains arising on exchange translation - (0.9) - - - (0.9)
differences
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow - - (5.9) - - (5.9)
hedges
Cashflow hedges -reclassified to income statement - - 3.8 - - 38
Tax credit on cash flow hedges - - 03 - - 03
At 30 September 2019 1.2 174 (4.5) - - 141
Excess proceeds over share capital of the March 2020 - - - 206.9 - 206.9
equity placement, net of fees incurred
Net gain on hedge of net investments in foreign operations - 4.2 - - - 4.2
Other foreign exchange translation differences - (15.9) - - - (15.9)
Current tax credit on losses arising on exchange - 1.6 - - - 16
translation differences
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow - - (1.8) - - (1.8)
hedges
Cash flow hedges - reclassified to income statement - - 16 - - 16
Tax credit on cash flow hedges - - 0.5 - - 0.5

At 30 September 2020 1.2 73 (4.2) 206.9 - 211.2
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25. Capital and reserves continued

Capital redemptionreserve
The capital redemptionreserverelates to the cancellation of the deferred ordinary shares in 2015.

Translationreserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising since 1 October 2010, the transition date to IFRS, from the
translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries with non-Sterling functional currency, as well as from the translation of liabilities that
hedge the Group's net investment inforeign subsidiaries.

Cash flow hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of the Group's interest rate swaps.

Merger relief reserve

On 25March 2020 the Company undertook an equity placement which was effected by the Company's placing agent subscribing for shares in
asubsidiary of the Company for anamount broadly equal to the proceeds of the placing, and then transferring those shares to the Company in
exchange for the allotment of the Company's new shares to investors.

The excess of the gross proceeds raised over the nominal value of the shares issued of £214.5m, andthe issue costs and other related
feesincurredfromthe placing of £ /6m, are both netted and recorded in the merger relief reserve, in accordance with Section 612 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Otherreserve

The otherreserve consists of the initial recognition of a financial liability to purchase a further 16% of TFS, inorder to take the Group's
shareholding to 49%, and the impact when the obligation was settled in April 2019. This resulted in the majority of the decrease to other
reserves of £8 3mwith the other side gaing to non-controlling interests. The remaining balance was thenreclassified to retained earnings.

Non-controlling interests

2020 2019

£m £m

At1October 2019 87.6 81.8
Share of (loss)/profit for the year (22.7) 26.6
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (20.4) (24.7)
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 30.5 9.0
Purchase of non-controlling interest in subsidiary (0.7) -
Purchase of additional 16% stake in TFS - (8.3)
Other 3.0 (0.1)
Currency adjustment (5.4) 33
At 30 September 2020 719 87.6

The increase in capital contributions inthe year has been detailed innote 18.

Prior to 6 February 2020 the Group helda 50% interest in Rail Gourmet Togservice Norge AS (RGT), a subsidiary of the Group. On6February
2020, the Group purchased the 50% interest in RGT it did not own, taking its ownership to 100%. The consideration paid for the additional
50% interest was NOK60m (£5.0m). The difference between the cash consideration paid and RGT's closing non-controlling interest balance of
£0./misrecognisedinretainedearnings.

The Group has two subsidiaries with amaterial non-controlling interest, Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Ltd (MALS)) and Travel Food
Services ChennaiPrivate Ltd (Chennaf). The principal place of business for both subsidiaries is India. See note 44 onpages 157 and 160 for
further details of registered office and ownership percentages of each of these companies.
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Summarisedfinancial information, before inter-company eliminations, is as follows:

MALS MALS Chennai Chennai
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m
Income statement
Revenue 11.8 229 115 225
(Loss)/profit after tax (0.7) 41 16 6.5
NCl share of (loss)/profit (0.5) 35 0.8 39
Total comprehensive (loss)/income (2.3) 5.5 0.6 74
Balance sheet
Non-current assets 351 47 111 50
Current assets 284 231 279 25.2
Current liabilities (19.4) 6.7) (13.4) (12.2)
Non-current liabilities (26.8) (0.1) (8.0) (1.2)
NCl share of equity 135 163 9.0 8.6
Cash flow
Netincrease/(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 8.7 (0.8) 44 43

26. Share-based payments

The Group has granted equity-settled share awards to its employees under the Performance Share Plan (PSP), the UK Share Incentive Plan
(UK SIP) and the International Share Incentive Plan (International SIP).

Details of the terms and conditions of each share-based payment plan and the Group's TSR comparator group are provided onpages /3
and /5respectively, as part of the Annual Report on Remuneration.

Performance Share Plan

The PSP awards are based ontwo independent performance conditions, whichare assessed independently. 25% of the award isbased on SSP's total
shareholder return (TSR) relative to acomparator group and /5% of the award is based on an earnings per share (EPS) performance condition.

Expense in the year
The Groupincurred a charge of £2.0min 2020 (2019: £9.0m) inrespect of the PSP

2020 2019

Number of Number of

shares shares

Outstanding at 1 October 2019 6,341,808 8,029,631
Granted during the year 2,204,924 2,363,443
Exercised during the year (2,498,277) (3,041,440)
Lapsed during the year (116,641) (1,009,826)
Outstanding at 30 September 2020 5,931,814 6,341,808
Exercisable at 30 September 2020 540,167 193,461
Weighted average remaining contracted life (years) 13 11
Weighted average fair value of awards granted (£) 6.62 5.37

! This includes the dividend equivalent shares which have been awarded in line with the terms of the rules of the PSP.

The exercise price for the PSP awards is £nil.
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26. Share-based payments continued

Details of awards granted in the year

The fair value of equity-settled awards granted in the year with the TSR performance condition was determined using an option pricing model
(based onsimilar principles to aMonte Carlo model). The following inputs were used for the option pricing model:

2020 2019
Weighted average share price at grant (£) 6.52 6.75
Weighted average exercise price = -
Risk freerate 0.6% 0.9%
Expected volatility 23.1% 23.6%
Expected life (years) 3.0 3.0
Vesting period (years) 3.0 3.0
Expected correlation between the share price of TSR comparators 28.2% 24.5%

Expectedvolatility was determined with reference to the historic volatility for the constituents of the Group's TSR comparator group over
aperiod commensurate with the expected life of the awards.

Awards subject to EPS performance criteria have been valued withreference to the share price at the date of the award.

UK Share Incentive Plan

The UK Share Incentive Plan (UK SIP') is a share matching scheme which entitles participating employees to be given up to two free ordinary
shares (matching shares) for each SSP Group plc ordinary share purchased (partnership shares). Both the partnership and matching shares are
placedintrust for athree-year period. The UK SIP has been in place since December 2014.

Foreach 12-monthplanperiodfromJanuary 2016 to December 2020, the actual entitlement to matching shares was fixed at one matching
share for every two partnership shares purchased. For the period from January 2015 to December 2015, the actual entitlement was fixed at
ane matching share for every ane partnership share purchased. The Group incurred acharge of £0.1minrespect of the matching element of
the UKSIPin 2020(2019: £0.1m).

International Share Incentive Plan

The International Share Incentive Plan (1SIP') is a share matching scheme which entitles participating employees to be given up to two free
ordinary shares (matching shares) for each SSP Group plc ordinary share purchased (partnership shares). Both the partnership and matching
sharesare placed intrust far athree-year period. The ISIP has beenin place since September 2015.

Foreach 12-monthplanperiod fromNovember 2016 to October 2020, the actual entitlement to matching shares was fixed at one matching
share forevery two partnership shares purchased. For the period from November 2015 to October 2016, the entitlement was fixed at one

matching share for every one partnership share purchased. The Group did not incur acharge inrespect of the matching element of the ISIPin
2020(2019:£0.1m).

27. Cash flow from operations

2020 2019
IFRS 16 IAS 17
Note £m £m
(Loss)/profit for the year (397.7) 1535
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 111.0 98.3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14 305.3 -
Amortisation 13 10.6 8.9
Profit on disposal of leases (0.3) -
Non-cash change in lease liabilities 7 (91.9) -
Impairments 109.6 -
Share-based payments 26 20 8.2
Finance income 9 (2.5) (2.3)
Finance expense 9 62.0 284
Share of loss/(profit) of associates 15 24 (4.1)
Taxation 10 (28.1) 437
824 3346
Decrease/(increase)in trade and other receivables 77.2 (30.4)
Decrease/(increase) ininventories 15.5 (3.6)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (including provisions) (161.7) 377

Cash flow from operations 134 3383
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During the year the Group benefited from government support packages related to Covid-19, whereby tax payments of £104mwere deferred
toaid cashflow.

The cashinflow intrade and other receivables during the year is higher than the decrease in the trade and other receivables in the cansolidated
balance sheet from 2019 to 2020. This is primarily due to the recognition of £2/3m capital contributionreceivables from non-controlling
interest equity shareholders towards the end of the 2020 financial year, of which cash had not been collected as at 30 September 2020.

The other side to this adjustment is recognised in non-controlling interests in equity. Furthermore, transition to the IFRS 16 opening balance
sheet led toareduction of receivables of £11.0m. Due to the Group using the madified retrospective approach to transition, the prior periods
have not beenrestatedfor this opening balance sheet transition.

28. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Gross debt
Bank and US Private
Cash and cash other Placement Total gross
equivalents  borrowings notes Leases debt Net debt
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2018 147.8 (480.8) - (17) (482.5) (3347)
Transition to IFRS 9 (non-cash movement) - 77 - - 77 77
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 81.8 - - - - 818
Cashinflow from drawdown of revolving credit facility - (275) - - (275) (27.5)
Cashoutflow from other changes in debt - 320 - - 320 320
Cashinflow from drawing of USPP notes - - (239.8) - (239.8) (239.8)
Payment of lease liabilities and other loans - 27 - 0.5 3.2 3.2
Cashinflow frominvestment in other financial assets - (5.1) - - (5.1) (5.1)
Currency translation gains/(losses) 37 1.6 (5.9) - (4.3) (0.6)
Other non-cash movements - (2.2) 18 - (0.4) (0.4)
At 1 October 2019 2333 (471.6) (243.9) (1.2) (716.7) (483.4)
Transition to IFRS 16 (non-cash movement) - - - (1,464.4) (1,464.4) (1,464.4)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (43.1) - - - - (43.1)
Cashoutflow fromrepayment of revolving credit - 975 - - 975 97.5
facility
Cash inflow from other changes in debt - (32.1) - - (32.1) (32.1)
Cashinflow fromreceipt of USPP note - - (101.8) - (101.8) (101.8)
Cash inflow from drawing of CCFF - (125.0) - - (125.0) (125.0)
Cash outflow from payment of lease liabilities - - - 2004 2004 2004
New lease liabilities and amendments - - - (89.9) (89.9) (89.9)
Currency translation (losses)/gains (5.2) (1.7) 49 5.8 9.0 38
Other non-cash movements - (2.3) (03) - (2.6) (2.6)

At 30 September 2020 185.0 (535.2) (3411)  (1,3493)  (2,2256)  (2,040.6)
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29. Financial instruments

(a) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
All financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost, except for derivatives which are held at fair value through the
income statement.

The fair values of all financial assets and financial liabilities by class, together with their carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are
as follows:

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
2020 2020 2019 2019
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Cashand cashequivalents 185.0 185.0 2333 2333
Trade and otherreceivables 155.1 155.1 1845 184.5
Total financial assets measured at amortised cost 340.1 340.1 4178 4178
Non-derivative financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Bank loans (411.3) (417.8) (471.6) (481.5)
Covid Corporate Financing Facility (CCFF) (123.9) (125.0) - -
US Private Placement notes (341.1) (342.6) (243.9) (245.6)
Lease liabilities (1,349.3) (1,349.3) - -
Finance lease liabilities - - (1.2) (1.2)
Trade and other payables (380.0) (380.0) (532.8) (532.8)
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (2,605.6) (2,614.7) (1,249.5) (1,261.1)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interestrate swaps (5.1) (5.1) (4.6) (4.6)
Total derivative financial liabilities (5.1) (5.1) (4.6) (4.6)
Bank loans

Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the
balance sheet date. Bank loans are categorised as level 2 financial liabilities, whereby inputs which are used in the valuation of these financial
liabilities and have asignificant effect on the fair value are abservable, either directly or indirectly.

Lease liabilities
Fairvalue isbased onthe present value of the future lease payments, discounted at the rate implicit inthe lease or, where this is not known, the
incremental borrowing rate.

Finance lease liabilities
Fairvalue isbased onthe present value of the future lease payments, discounted at the rate implicit inthe lease.

Other non-derivative financial instruments (excluding bank loans)
Dueto the short-termnature of non-derivative financial instruments (excluding bank loans), the fair value is approximate to the carrying value.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financialinstrumentsrelate tointerest rate swaps and are valued using relevant yield curves and exchange rates as at the balance
sheetdate.

Fair value hierarchy
All derivative financial liabilities are categorised as level 2 under which the fair value is measured using the inputs other than quoted prices
abservable for the liability, either directly or indirectly.
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(b) Credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk withrespect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Group's customer base being large and diverse, withno
single debtorrepresenting more than ©.4% (2019: 3.9%) of the total balance. The ageing of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was
asfollows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Totaltradereceivables 283 723
Less: loss allowance (9.5) (6.2)
18.8 66.1
Of which:

Notyetdue 11.0 386
Overdue, between 0 and 6 months 7.7 24.2
Overdue, more than 6 months 9.6 95
Loss allowance (9.5) 6.2)
188 66.1

The movement inthe loss allowance inrespect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
At 1 October 2019 (6.2) (3.9
Chargedinthe year (7.9) (2.6)
Reversedinthe year 0.6 -
Utilised in the year 3.8 0.6
Currency adjustment 0.2 (0.3)
At 30 September 2020 (9.5) 6.2)

Expected credit losses

The Group applies the simplified approach and records lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables. Loss allowances have been
recognised for trade receivables that have been identified as credit impaired. In addition, due to the financial uncertainty arising from
Covid-19, expected credit loss rates have been increased for all other trade receivables. The Group has assessed customer balances inrelation
totheir operating sector (suchas air or rail), whether the customer has access to some form of government support scheme, receivable ageing
and other indicators of risk torecoverability.

Receivables excluding trade receivables

Expected credit losses for other receivables were negligible at 30 September 2019, Due to the uncertainties caused by Covid-19, the Group
hasrecorded expected credit losses of £1.5minrelation to other receivables at 30 September 2020.

(c) Credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits

The credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits has been assessed by reference to Moody's external ratings as follows:

2020 2019

£m £m

High grade 58.1 1314
Upper medium grade 67.4 174
Medium grade 113 145
Non-investment grade 6.6 9.9
Unrated 39.0 247
182.4 1979

Cashinhand andintransit 2.6 354

185.0 2333
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29. Financial instruments continued

(d) Financial risk management

Themain financialrisks of the Grouprelate to the availability of funds to meet business needs, the risk of default by counterparties to
financial transactions, and fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates. In this regard, the treasury function is mandated by the Board
tomanage thefinancial risks that arise inrelation to underlying business needs. The function has clear policies and operating parameters,
anditsactivitiesareregularly reviewed by the Boardto ensure compliance. The function does not operate as a profit centre and speculative
transactions are not permitted.

Financial instruments, including derivatives, are used on occasion to manage the main financial risks arising during the course of business.
Theserisks are liquidity risk and market risk and are discussed further below.

Liquidity risk
The Group's objective inmanaging liquidity risk is to ensure that it canmeet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Inorder to
achieve this, the treasury department maintains an appropriate level of funds and facilities to meet each year's planned funding requirement.

Inresponse to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group implemented a set of measures to conserve cash and create approximately £ /50m of
liquidity by April 2020 through new equity and debt. These measures included: (i) completion of equity placings and share subscriptionsin
March 2020, which raised £ 208.6m of net cash proceeds, and a subsequent placing, share subscription and retail offer in June 2020 which
raised additional net cash proceeds of £10.8m and allowed investors to reinvest their 2019 dividend payment into new shares and retain
cashinthe business; (i) secured access to the UK Government's CCFF programme which gave access to £ 300m of liquidity inMarch 2020 (iii)
securedwaivers of the Group's existing covenant tests until September 2021, (iv) suspension of the Group's share buyback programme to
canserve cash; and (v) the foregoing of interim dividends.

On29May 2020, in order to help the Group's liquidity position, anon-substantial modification to the bank facility debt occurred where
therequirement for the 2020 July annual mandatory payment of 11./% of Facility Aborrowings was waived to the facility's maturity date.
Further detail is providedinnote 20.

At the end of the reparting period, the Group had approximately £520m of available liquidity, including cash of £185mand committed undrawn
revolving credit facilities of £150m, as well as a further £1/5mavailable to be drawn down under the CCFR

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

2020
Carrying Contractual 1year 1lto 2to
amount cash flows orless <2years <5years >5 years
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans (411.3) (435.2) (42.6) (362.9) (20.2) (9.5)
Covid Corporate Financing Facility (CCFF) (123.9) (125.0) (125.0) - - -
US Private Placement notes (341.1) (454.6) (16.4) (14.3) (39.1) (384.7)
Lease liabilities (1,349.3) (1,429.3) (294.3) (257.8) (594.8) (282.4)
Trade and other payables (380.0) (380.0) (376.0) (0.8) (0.1) (3.1)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps used for hedging (5.1) (4.6) (2.4) (2.1) - -
(2,610.7) (2,828.7) (856.7) (637.9) (654.2) (679.7)
2019
Carrying Contractual 1year 1to 2to
amount cash flows orless <2years <Syears >5years
fm fm £m £m fm £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans (471.6) (530.5) (136.2) (37.9) (356.4) -
Finance lease liabilities (1.2) (1.4) (0.8) (0.3) (0.3)
US Private Placement notes (243.9) (366.5) 970 (13.6) (40.7) (409.2)
Trade and other payables (532.8) (532.8) (529.7) (3.1) - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps used for hedging (4.6) (4.6) (1.4) (1.7) (1.5) -
(1,254.1) (1,435.8) (571.1) (56.6) (398.9) (409.2)
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Marketrisk
Market riskis therisk that changes inmarket prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group's income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. These are discussed further below.

Currencyrisk

Although the functional currency of the Group is Sterling, the Group's operating cash flows are transacted inanumber of different currencies.
The Group's policy inmanaging this financial currency risk is to use foreign currency denominated borrowings to ensure that interest costs
ariseincurrencies that reflect the operating cash flows, thereby minimising net cash flows inforeign currencies. As the mix of foreign currency
cash flows generated by the business changes over time, there may be arequirement to restructure borrowings (via financial instruments or
other treasury products) tomaintain this hedge. The Board reviews financial currencyrisk at least once ayear.

The currency profile of the cash balances of the Group at 30 September 2020 was as follows:

2020 2019
Cash at bank and in hand £m £m
Sterling 215 86.5
Other currencies 163.5 146.8
185.0 2333

The Group uses currency denominated borrowings to hedge the exposure of a portion of itsnet investment in overseas operations (with non-
Sterling functional currency) against changes invalue due to changes in foreign exchange rates. An economic relationship has been identified
asboththenetinvestment in overseas operations, and the currency denominated borrowings used as the related hedging instrument, are
subject to currency risk, and changes inforeign exchange rates would cause their values to move in opposite directions.

Asat 30 September 2020, the fair value of bank loans and US Private Placement debt used as hedging instruments was £545.3m
(2019:£4475m).Of this, £ 213./mwas inrespect of Euro exposure, £ 274 9m inrespect of the US Dollar exposure, £32.2m inrespect of Norwegian
Krone exposure and £ 24.5m for Swedish Krona exposure. This increased during the year due to the issuance of US Private Placement debt where
the equivalent of £ 101 8mwas drawn innon-Sterling currencies (see note 20 for details).

Therewere noreclassifications fromforeign currency translation reserve and net investment hedge ineffectiveness was £nil during the year.

No sensitivity analysis is provided inrespect of currency risk as the Group's currency exposure mainly relates to translation risk
asdiscussed above.

Interestraterisk
The Group has entered into a series of interest rate swaps inorder tohedge its interest rate exposure from its variable rate term loan facilities.
Theimpact of all of these transactions is reflectedin the table below.

The interest rate and currency profile of the Group's bank loans at 30 September 2020, after taking into account interest rate swaps and
before adjustments for unamortised bank fees of £3.6m (2019: £5.0m) and government grants of £4.3m(2019: £nil) received in the form of
beneficialinterest rates, was as follows:

Floating-rate liabilities Fixed-rate liabilities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Currency
Sterling (43.2) (132.1) (262.2) (145.8) (305.4) (277.9)
Euro (60.1) (39.2) (186.3) (169.6) (246.4) (208.8)
US Dollar (8.5) (72) (266.3) (173.3) (274.8) (180.5)
SwedishKrona (7.7) (5.9) (16.8) (17.6) (24.5) (23.5)
Norwegian Krone (10.1) (8.7) (22.2) (26.1) (32.3) (34.8)
Swiss Franc - - (0.4) - (0.4) -
Indian Rupee (1.6) (1.7) - - (1.6) (1.7)

(131.2) (194.8) (754.2) (532.4) (885.4) (727.2)
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29. Financial instruments continued

Interestrate swaps

Allinterest rate swap contracts exchanging floating-rate interest amounts for fixed interest amounts are designated as cash flow hedges to
reduce the Group's cash flow exposure resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. An economic relationship between the interest
rate swaps and floating-rate liabilities has beenidentified, as both are subject to changes ininterest rates that would cause their values to
move in opposite directions. The interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur simultaneously and the amount accumulated
inequityisreclassified to the income statement over the period that the floating rate interest payments on debt affect the income statement.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps was £ 5.1mas at 30 September 2020 (2019: £4.6m).

In 2020, acharge of £1.8m (2019: charge of £ 5.9m) was recognised in other comprehensive income representing the effective portion of
changes inthe fair value of the interest rate swaps in the year. There was no ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement in either year.

In 2020, acredit of £1.6m(2019: credit of £3.8m) inother comprehensive income arose on the reclassification of the cumulative changes in fair
value of the interest rate swaps to the income statement (see note 9).

Sensitivity analysis
Achange of 50 basis points ininterest rates at the balance sheet date would have increased/(decreased) equity by the amounts in the table

below. Thisis drivenby changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments. At 30 September 2020, these were infully effective
hedge relationships and the movement would have had no impact on the income statement.

This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the balance sheet date and has been applied torisk exposures existing at that date.
Inaddition, allother variables, in particular, foreign currency rates, have been assumed to remain constant.

2020 2019
£m £m
Equity
Increase 2.2 38
Decrease (2.3) (3.8)
(e) Capital management

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as tomaintain investor, creditor and market confidence andto sustain future
development. The Group's capital isrepresented by the share capital and reserves (as set out innote 25), retained earnings, and net debt (see
below). The funding requirements of the Group are met by a mix of long-term barrowings, medium-termborrowings, short-termborrowings
(under its RCF) and available cash.

InMay 2020 the Group secured an arrangement from its lending group of banks and US Private Placement noteholders to waive existing
financial covenants covering the two testing periods to 30 September 2020 and 31 March 2021. It has been agreed that these covenant tests
willbe replaced by between now and 30 September 2021 by two new covenant tests, each tested monthly, with the first of these based on
SSP demonstrating aminimum level of liquidity and the second based onthe Group not exceeding a maximum level of debt.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group also agreed further covenant waivers cavering the twelve months to September 2021. As was the

case with the covenant amendments agreed in May, the existing financial cavenant testing leverage has been waived, to be replaced between
September 2021 andMarch 2022 by the two new covenants testing minimum liquidity and maximum net debt. An additional new covenant will
alsoapply during this sixmonth period, testing minimum EBITDA thresholds for the six months ending 30 September 2021 and 31 December
2021 Modified interest cover tests (calculated onalast sixmonths basis) will also be applied at these two testing dates.

Asmentioned inthe review of liquidity risk, the Group implemented a number of actions inresponse to the Covid-19 pandemic. These included
equity placings inMarch and June in order toraise cash proceeds, while also allowing investors to reinvest their 2019 dividend payment into
new shares toretain cashin the business. The Group's share buyback scheme was suspended, and no dividend payment has been proposed for
the 2020 financial year.

30. Commitments
Capital commitments at the end of the financial year, for which no provision has been made, are as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m

Contracted for but not provided 473 62.5
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31. Related parties

Related party relationships exist with the Group's subsidiaries, associates (note 15), key management personnel, pension schemes (note 23)
andemployee benefit trust (note 25).
Subsidiaries

Transactions between the Company andits subsidiaries, and transactions between subsidiaries, have been eliminated on consolidation
andare not disclosedin this note. Where the Group does not own 100% of its subsidiary, significant transactions with the other investors in
the non-wholly owned subsidiary (investor’), other than those listed innote 25, are disclosed within this note (in the table below). Sales and
purchases withrelated parties are made at normal market prices.

Associates

Significant transactions with assaciated undertakings during the year, other than those included innote 15, are included in the table below.

Related party transactions

2020 2019

£m £m

Purchases fromrelated parties! (1.7) (3.0)
Management fee income 2.2 26
Otherincome 11 16
Other expenses? (11.2) (14.2)
Amounts owed by related parties at the end of the year 3.6 10.1
Amounts owed torelated parties at the end of the year (6.1) -
Operating lease commitments - (18.5)

! The majority of purchases fromrelated parties relates to purchases from The Minor Food Group PCL (£0.9m; 2019: £0.9m) which owns 51% of Select
Service Partner Co. Limited.

2 The majority of other expensesrelate to £11.2mrent from Midway Partnership LLC (2019: £8.9m concession fees with various parties).

Bank guarantees

The Group has provided a number of guarantees to third parties and has given guarantees to partners of consolidated non-wholly owned
subsidiaries inrespect of obligations of its non-wholly owned subsidiaries, relating to, for example, concession agreements, franchise
agreements and financing facilities. In addition, certain subsidiaries benefit from guarantees provided by the Group's non-controlling interest
partners to similar third parties (inrespect of obligations of the subsidiaries). These guarantees are consistent with those provided in the
normal course of business inrespect of the Group's wholly owned subsidiaries. At 30 September 2020 the value of these guarantees was
£1190m. The Group does not expect these guarantees to be called onand as such na liability has been recognised in the financial statements.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified inIAS
24'RelatedParty Disclosures' The Group considers key management personnel to be the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Non-Executive Directors and the Group Executive Committee.

2020 2019

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits (5.0) (6.5)
Post-employment benefits (0.6) (04)
Share-based payments (0.8) (1.5)
)

(6.4) (84




148 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2020

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

32. Business combinations

Business combinations 2019/2020

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Group purchased 100% of the share capital of two companies and the trade and assets
comprisingpart of the business of two other companies for a total consideration, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired, of £21.5m.
Thesetransactions were deemed tobe business combinations within the scope of IFRS 3'Business Combinations’

Asummary of the details of these acquisitions are shown in the table below:

Business/Company Acquisition method Sector Country Acquisition date
Land’s End Pasty Tradeand assets Rail UK 1 October 2019
Red Rock’s F&B business in Melbourne airport Trade and assets Air Australia 23 December 2019
WA AirportHospitality Pty Ltd Share capital Air Australia 23 January 2020
Station Food GmbH Share capital Rail Germany 29 February 2020

The acquisitions are in line with the Group's strategy to grow its geographic footprint and expand its operations in the UK, Australia
and Germany.

These acquisitions are individually not material but are material inaggregate.

Asummary of the aggregate effect of acquisitions completedin 2020 are shown below:

£m
Property, plant and equipment 98
Right-of-use assets 241
Inventories 03
Trade and other receivables 0.6
Cash 1.0
Trade and other payables (21)
Lease liabilities (24.1)
Fair value of the assets acquired 9.6
Goodwill 12.9
Cash consideration 225
Reconciliation of consideration to the consolidated cash flow statement:
Cash consideration 225
Less: cashand cashequivalents acquired (1.0)
Cash consideration, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 215

The Board believes that the excess consideration paid over fair value of the net identifiable assets is best considered as goodwill
onacquisition, representing the operating synergies, derived from adding scale and other benefits to our local existing operations.
Goodwill recognised is not deductible for tax purposes.

For the year ended 30 September 2020, the acquisitions in aggregate contributed £6.6m to revenue and £2./m to operating losses from the
dates of acquisition. If the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the year, their contribution to revenue and operating loss would have
beenf160mandf3.3mrespectively.

Total transaction costs and expenses incurred of £0.6mhave been included in other overheads within the income statement and primarily
related to professional fees for reviews and due diligence of these deals.

Business combinations 2018/2019
The Group made nomaterial, individual or inaggregate, business combinations during the year ended 30 September 2019.
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33. Post balance sheet event

InDecember 2020, SSPFinancing Limited secured an agreement from its lending group of banks and US private placement note holders to
waive the net debt cover financial covenant for the testing period covering the twelve months to 30 September 2021. Please refer to going
concernsectiononpage 106 for further details.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 September 2020

2020 2019
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments 35 947.8 946.1
947.8 946.1
Current assets
Debtors due within one year 36 98.5 03
Liabilities falling due within one year
Creditors 37 (10.1) (90.7)
Net current (liabilities)/assets 88.4 (90.4)
Net assets 1,036.2 855.7
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 38 5.8 48
Share premium account 38 472.7 461.2
Treasury shares 38 (1.7) -
Capitalredemptionreserve 38 1.2 1.2
Mergerrelief reserve 38 206.9 -
Profit and loss account 38 3513 388.5
Total equity shareholders’ funds 1,036.2 855.7

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 December 2020 and were signed onits behalf by:

Joi=

Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer

Registered number: 5/35966
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY

As at 30 September 2020

Capital Merger

Share Share redemption relief Treasury Profit and Total

capital premium reserve reserve shares loss account equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m Em

At 10October 2018 48 461.2 1.2 - - 344.5 8117

Profit for the year - - - - - 236.6 236.6

Issue of ordinary shares under share - - - - - (200.8) (200.8)
optionschemes

Share-based payments - - - - - 8.2 8.2

At 30 September 2019 48 461.2 1.2 - - 3885 855.7

Loss for the year - - - - - (12.4) (12.4)

Equity issue 1.0 11.5 - 206.9 - - 2194

Share buyback - - - - (1.7) - (1.7)

Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - - - (26.8) (26.8)

(note 38)
Share-based payments - - - - - 2.0 2.0
At 30 September 2020 5.8 4727 1.2 206.9 (1.7) 351.3 1,036.2
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34. Accounting policies
SSP Group plc (the Company) is a company incorporated in the UK.

These statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not about its Group. The separate financial
statements are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framewark
(FRS 101)under the historical cost accounting rules.

As permittedby FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions:

* thecashflowstatement andrelated notes;

* disclosuresinrespect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

» disclosuresinrespect of capital management;

* disclosuresrequiredby IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement’and IFRS / Financial Instrument Disclosures' and
* theeffects of newbut not yet adoptedIFRSs.

Whererelevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies adopted
are the same as those set outinnote 1 to the consolidated financial statements except as noted below. The following accounting policies have
beenapplied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the Company's balance sheet and related notes.

The Company uses Sterling as its presentational and functional currency and all values have been roundedto the nearest £0.1munless
otherwise stated.

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own income statement. The loss
for the financial year (2019: profit) is disclosed innote 38 to these accounts. The Company has no other recognised gains or losses in the
current ar preceding year and, therefare, no statement of comprehensive income is presented.

Going concern

SSP Group plcis the ultimate parent company of the SSP Group. The Board has reviewed the Group's trading forecasts, incorporating the
impact on SSP of Covid-19, as part of the Group's adoption of the going concernbasis, inwhich context the Directors have reviewed cash flow
forecasts preparedfor aperiod of 16 months fromthe date of approval of these financial statements, with anumber of different scenarios
considered.Having carefully reviewed these forecasts, the Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting inpreparing these financial statements for the reasons set out below. See pages 42 and 43 for consideration of the Group's going
concernbasis.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are statedat cost less provision for impairment losses.

Impairment

The carrying values of the Company's assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carryingamount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
Animpairment loss is recognisedwhenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. When a subsequent event or
change incircumstances causes therecoverable amount of anasset to increase, the decrease inimpairment loss isreversed through the
income statement.

Taxation

The charge for taxationisbased onthe results for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of temporary differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. Taxis recognised in the profit and loss account except where
itrelatestoitems taken directly to equity, inwhich case it isrecognised in equity. Deferred tax is recognised inrespect of all temporary
differencesbetweenthetreatment of items for taxation and accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet
date, except as otherwise requiredby FRS 101.

Deferred taxassetsarerecognised to the extent that it isregarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered.

Share-based payment compensation

The Company has granted equity-settled share awards to Group employees. Equity-settled awards are measured at fair value at grant date.
The fair value of awards granted to employees of the Company is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Company's estimate of the number of shares that will actually vest. The cost of awards to employees of subsidiary undertakings is accounted
foras anadditionalinvestment.
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35. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Shares in Group
undertaking

£m
Cost
At 1 October 2019 946.1
Additions 1.7
At 30 September 2020 947.8
Net book value
At 30 September 2020 947.8
At 30 September 2019 946.1
Impairment

The Directors have assessedwhether the Company's fixed asset investments require impairment under the accounting principles set out in
FRS 101. Inmaking this assessment, the relationship between the Company's market capitalisation and the carrying value of its investments
has been considered, in addition to the disruption attributable to the Covid-19 pandemic and the effect of this on future trading,

The assessment did not result inany impairment in 2020 (2019: £nil).

36. Debtors

2020 2019
Due within one year £m £m
Amount receivable from Group undertakings 97.9 -
Other debtors 04 0.1
Deferred taxation 0.2 0.2
98.5 03

37. Creditors
2020 2019
Due within one year £m £m
Amounts payable to Group undertakings (2.6) (84.4)
Accruals and deferredincome (3.9) (2.6)
Trade and other payables (0.6) (0.8)
Other taxationand social security (3.0) (2.9)
)

(10.1) (90.7
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38. Capital and reserves

Share capital and share premium

Share Share
Number of capital premium
shares £m £m
Issued, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £0.01085 each
At 30 September 2019 444,852,520 4.8 461.2
Ordinary shares issued as part of the March equity placement 86,499,459 1.0 0.8
Ordinary shares issued as part of the June equity placement 3,475,388 - 10.7
Ordinary shares issued inrelation to the Group's share incentive plans 3,032,564 - -
Effect of the share buyback (263,499) - -
At 30 September 2020 537,596,432 5.8 4727
Comprised of:
Issued, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £0.01085 each 537,596,432 5.8 472.7
Reserves
Capital Merger
Treasury  redemption relief Profit and
shares reserve reserve  loss account Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2018 - 1.2 - 3445 345.7
Profit for the year - - - 236.6 236.6
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - (200.8) (200.8)
Share-based payments - - - 8.2 8.2
At 30 September 2019 - 1.2 - 388.5 389.7
Loss for the year - - - (12.4) (12.4)
Excess of proceeds over share capital of the March 2020 equity - - 206.9 - 206.9
placement, net of fees incurred
Effect of the share buyback (1.7) - - - (1.7)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - (26.8) (26.8)
Share-based payments - - - 2.0 20
At 30 September 2020 (1.7) 1.2 206.9 3513 5577

Capital redemptionreserve
The capital redemptionreserverelates to the cancellation of the deferred ordinary shares in 2015.

Merger relief reserve

On 25March 2020 the Company undertook an equity placement which was effected by the Company's placing agent subscribing for shares in
asubsidiary of the Company for anamount broadly equal to the proceeds of the placing, and then transferring those shares to the Company in
exchange for the allotment of the Company’s new shares ta investors.

The excess of the grass proceeds raised over the nominal value of the shares issued of £215.5m, and the issue costs and other related
feesincurredfromthe placing of £/6m, are both netted and recarded in the merger relief reserve, inaccordance with Section 612 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Profit and loss account
The Company's loss for the financial year was £124m (2019: profit of £ 236.6m).
Dividends
2020 2019
£m £m
Interim dividend paid in the year of £nil per share (2019:5.8p) - (25.8)
Special dividend paid in the year of £nil per share (2019:32.1p) - (149.8)
Prior year final dividend of 6.0p per share paid in the year (2019: 5.4p) (26.8) (25.2)
(26.8) (200.8)

The prior year final dividend of 6.0p per share was approved at the Group's Annual General Meeting in February 2020 and was paid in June
2020 for a total payment of £26.8m. No dividend for the 2020 financial year is proposed.



155 | SSP Group plc AnnualReportand Accounts 2020 Strategic Report Corporate governance Financial statements

39. Employee share plans

Awards over shares of the Company have been granted to employees of the Company under the Performance Share Plan (PSP) and the UK
Share Incentive Plan (UK SIP).

Details of the terms and conditions of each share-based payment plan and of the Group's TSR comparator group are given in the Annual Report
onRemunerationonpages /3and /5.

PSP
2020 2019
Number of Number of
shares shares
Outstandingat 1 October 2019 1,605,885 2,516,276
Granted during the year 582,880 450,418
Exercised during the year (729,984) (990,897)
Lapsed during the year (15,093) (369,912)
Outstanding at 30 September 2020 1,443,688 1,605,885
Exercisable at 30 September 2020 157,643 61,584
Weighted average remaining contracted life (years) 13 09
Weighted average fair value of 